
 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 1 of 2 
 

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, June 24, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
110 N. Court St., Heppner, Oregon 

See Electronic Meeting Info on Page 2 
AMENDED 

 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance - 9:00 a.m.  
2. City/Citizen Comments:  Individuals may address the Board on issues not on the agenda 
3. Open Agenda:  The Board may introduce subjects not already on the agenda 
4. Consent Calendar 

a. Accounts Payable and Payroll Payables 
b. Trucking Contract for Public Works – Road Department 
c. Umatilla Basin Assistant Watermaster Program Intergovernmental Agreement 
d. Amendment #10 to Oregon Health Authority Intergovernmental Agreement 

#159824 for the Financing of Public Health Services 
e. Amendment #13 to Oregon Health Authority Intergovernmental Agreement 

#159824 for the Financing of Public Health Services 
f. Helion Software Contract Renewal 
g. Coronavirus Relief Fund, State of Oregon Grant Agreement No. 1025 

5. Business Items 
a. Order No. OR-2020-5:  Authorizing the Treasurer to Invest Funds  
b. Morrow County Mental Health Advisory Board Appointments 
c. Insurance Renewals- General Liability, Auto, Mobile and Property; Workers 

Compensation and Pollution Policy 
d. Equity Fund-Loan Review Committee and Policy & Procedures 
e. Resolution Discussion – First Addendum to 2017 Vadata Enterprise Zone 

Agreement (Justin Nelson, County Counsel) 
f. Morrow County Government Command Center Update 
g. Order No. OR-2020-6:  An Order Declaring a Local State of Emergency 
h. Irrigon Building Update 

6. Department Reports 
a. Road Department Monthly Report (Eric Imes, Assistant Road Master) 

7. Correspondence 
8. Commissioner Reports  
9. Signing of documents 
10. Adjournment 
 

 
Agendas are available every Friday on our website (www.co.morrow.or.us/boc under 
“Upcoming Events”).  Meeting Packets can also be found the following Monday. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at 
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613. 

http://www.co.morrow.or.us/boc


 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This 
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are 
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the 
media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and 
the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the 
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday.  If something urgent comes up after this 
publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about 
items listed on the agenda, please contact Darrell J. Green, Administrator at (541) 676-2529. 
 

Electronic Meeting Information 
 

Morrow County Board of Commissioners is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.  Join 
Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/5416762546 
PASSWORD:  97836 
 
Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 
 
Zoom Call-In Numbers for Audio Only: 

• 1-346-248-7799, Meeting ID:  541 676 2546#  
• 1-669-900-6833, Meeting ID:  541 676 2546#  
• 1-312-626-6799, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 
• 1-929-436-2866, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 
• 1-253-215-8782, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 
• 1-301-715-8592, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 

 
Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/abD3eWKYVW 
 
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/5416762546
https://zoom.us/u/abD3eWKYVW


AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of2) b 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners 
(See notations at bottom of form) 

Staff Contact: Matt Scrivner Phone Number (Ext): 541 -989-9500 
Department: Public Works - Road Dept. Requested Agenda Date: 06/17/2020 

Short Title of Ageoda Item: Trucking Contract for Public Works - Road Dept (No acronyms please) · 

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 
D Order or Resolution D Appointments 
D Ordinance/Public Hearing: D Update on Project/Committee 
D 1st Reading D 2nd Reading ~ Consent Agenda Eligible 
D Public Comment Anticipated: D Discussion & Action 

Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 
D Document Recording Required D Purchase Pre-Authorization 
~ Contract/ Agreement D Other 

D N/ A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements 

Contractor/Entity: Andy Ashbeck Truckinq LLC 
Contractor/Entity Address: 69425 Little Buttercreek Rd, Echo, OR 97826 
Effective Dates-From: 06/17/2020 Through: 06/17/2023 
Total Contract Amount: Fee Schedule Budget Line: 202 .220.5.20.3119 
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? Ii] Yes D No 

DA1'E 
(" I ~ -TOIi~'/' -=-1/M~ ?i'--, _ _ __ ...,.....__,'--+" ____ -___ ~ounty Counsel 

DATE 

K-~ ..Juv..~ l k-t l -'J..D Finance Office 
DATE 

_ ______________ .Human Resources 

Required for all BOC meetings 

Required for all BOC meetings 

*Required for all legal documents 

*Required for all contracts; other 
items as appropriate. 

*If appropriate 
DATE *Allow l week for review (submit to all simultaneously). When e21ch office has notified tbe submitting 

departmrnt of uu11niv11r, (hen submit the request to the BOC for plarrment nu the aecnde, 
Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners ( originals 
preferred), Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. 

Rev: 3/28/18 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of2) 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY): 

Advertised with a Request for Qualification for a three (3) year contract that will allow the proposer to 
provide with hauling, trucking services when the need arises. If deadline to get a project paved road 
repaired and need gravel , this will allow someone else to call upon if needing the additional trucking 
services. 

With the panel of five individuals it was decided that Andy Ash beck Trucking will be the best fit for the 
County. 

2. FISCAL IMPACT: 

Contract truck and Equipment line G/L code is 202.220.5.20.3119 

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S): 

Motion to sign the contact with Morrow County and Andy Ashbeck Trucking LLC. For additional trucking 
services for the County. 

~ Attach additional background documentation as needed. 

Rev: 3/28/18 



2 MORROW COUNTY PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
3 
4 This Contract is between Morrow County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereafter called 
5 County, and Andy Ashbeck Trucking LLC, hereafter called Contractor. County's Contract Administrator 
6 for this contract is Matt Scrivner, Public Works Director. 
7 
8 1. Effective Date and Duration. This contract shall become effective on the date this Contract has been signed 
9 by every party hereto. Unless earlier terminated or extended, this Contract shall expire three years from 

10 execution of this agreement. Expiration shall not extinguish or prejudice County's right to enforce this 
11 Contract with respect to any breach of a Contractor warranty; or any default or defect in Contractor 
12 performance that has not been cured. 
13 

14 2. Statement of Work. This contract is for trucking services. The statement of work (the "Work") including 
15 the delivery schedule for the Work will be agreed upon on a project by project basis. Contractor agrees to 
16 adhere to all State and Federal rules, regulations, and laws pertaining to any particular project, including, but 
17 not limited to, BOLL Contractor further agrees to perform the Work in accordance with the terms and 
18 conditions of this Contract. 
19 
20 3. Consideration 
21 a. County agrees to pay Contractor the hourly rates as set forth in Contractor's Fee Schedule, herein attached 
22 as Exhibit A, for accomplishing the Work required by the various Scopes of Work generated under this 
23 Contract. The maximum, not-to-exceed compensation payable to Contractor under this Contract shall be 
24 determined on a project by project basis and included in the Scopes of Work to be developed on a project 
25 by project basis. Contractor and County agree a written Scope of Work will be approved and signed by 
26 County and Contractor prior to start of each project for work required under this Contract. 
27 

28 4. Contract Documents. This contract consists of this Contract with all attached exhibits. All attached Exhibits 
29 are hereby incorporated by reference. 
30 
31 5. Independent Contractor; Responsibility for Taxes and Withholding 
32 a. Contractor shall perform required Work as an independent contractor. Although County reserves the right 
33 (i) to determine (and modify) the delivery schedule for the Work to be performed and (ii) to evaluate the 
34 quality of the completed performance, County cannot and will not control the means or manner of 
35 Contractor's performance. Contractor is responsible for determining the appropriate means and manner of 
36 performing the Work. 
37 b. If Contractor is currently performing work for County, the State of Oregon or the Federal Government, 
38 Contractor by signature to this Contract declares and certifies that: Contractor's work to be performed under 
39 this Contract creates no potential or actual conflict of interest as defined by ORS 244 and that no rules or 
40 regulations of Contractor's employing entity (county, state or federal) would prohibit Contractor's activities 
41 under this Contract. Contractor is not an "officer", "employee", or "agent" of County, as those terms is used 
42 in ORS 30.265. 
43 c. Contractor shall be responsible for all federal or state taxes applicable to compensation or payments paid 
44 to Contractor under this Contract and, unless Contractor is subject to backup withholding, County will not 
45 withhold from such compensation or payments any amount(s) to cover Contractor's federal or state tax 
46 obligations. Contractor is not eligible for any Social Security, unemployment insurance or workers' 
47 compensation benefits from compensation or payments paid to Contractor under this Contract, except as a 
48 self-employed individual. 
49 

llPngc 
MORROW COUNTY PERSONAUPROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT - 1RUCKING SERVICES 



50 6. Subcontracts and Assignment; Successors and Assigns. 
SJ a. Contractor shall not enter into any subcontracts for any of the Work required by this Contract, or assign or 
52 transfer any of its interest in this Contract, without County's prior written consent. In addition to any other 
53 provisions County may require, Contractor shall include in any permitted subcontract under this Contract a 
54 requirement that the subcontractor be bound by sections 6, 10, 11, 15, and 17 of this Contract as if the 
55 subcontractor were the Contractor. County's consent to any subcontract shall not relieve Contractor of any 
56 of its duties or obligations under this Contract. 
57 b. The provisions of this Contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, 
58 and their respective successors and assigns, if any. 
59 

60 7. No Third Party Beneficiaries. County and Contractor are the only parties to this Contract and are the only 
61 parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Contract gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to 
62 give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly, indirectly or otherwise, to third persons unless such third 
63 persons are individually identified by name herein and expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms 
64 of this Contract. 
65 

66 8. Funds Available and Authorized 
67 a. Contractor shall not be compensated for work performed under this contract by any other County or 
68 department of the State of Oregon. County has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for 
69 expenditure to finance the costs of this Contract. 
70 b. County will only pay for completed work that is accepted by County. 
71 

72 9. Representations and Warranties 
73 a. Contractor's Representations and Warranties. Contractor represents and warrants to County that (1) 
74 Contractor has the power and authority to enter into and perform this Contract, (2) this Contract, when 
75 executed and delivered, shall be a valid and binding obligation of Contractor enforceable in accordance with 
76 its terms, (3) the Work under this Contract shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner and in 
77 accordance with the highest professional standards, and (4) Contractor shall, at all times during the term of 
78 this Contract. be qualified, professionally competent, and duly license to perform the Work. 
79 b. Warranties Cumulative. The warranties set forth in this section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any 
80 other warranties provided. 
81 
82 10. Ownership of Work Product. All Work product of Contractor that results from this Contract (''the Work 
83 Product11

) are the exclusive property of County. County and Contractor intend that such Work Product be 
84 deemed "works made for hire" of which County shall be deemed the author. If for any reason the Work Product 
85 is not deemed "works made for hire", Contractor hereby irrevocably assigns all of its right, title, and interest in 
86 and to any and all of the Work Product, whether arising from copyright, patent, trademark, trade secret, or any 
87 other state or federal intellectual property law or doctrine. Contractor shall execute such further documents and 
88 instruments as County may reasonably request in order to fully vest such right in County. Contractor forever 
89 waives any and all rights under 17 USC § 106A or any other rights of identification of authorship or rights of 
90 approval, restriction or limitation on use or subsequent modifications. 
9 1 

92 11. Indemnity. Contractor shall defend, save, hold harmless, and indemnify the County, their officers, 
93 employees, agents, from and against all claims, suits, or actions, losses, damages, liabilities costs and expenses 
94 of any nature whatsoever resulting from, arising out of, or relating to the activities of Contractor or its officers, 
95 employees, subcontractors, or agents under this Contract. 
96 
97 12. Insurance. Contractor shall provide insurance as required by State law and provide proof of said insurance 
98 to the Morrow County Public Works Department on an annual basis. 

2JPage 
MORROW COUNTY PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT-TRUCKING SERVICES 



99 

100 13. Termination. 
101 a. Parties Right to Terminate For Convenience. This Contract may be terminated at any time by mutual 
I 02 written consent of the parties. 
103 b. County's Right to Terminate for Convenience. County may, at its sole discretion, terminate this Contract, 
104 in whole or in part, upon thirty (30) days notice to Contractor. 
105 c. Parties Right to Terminate due to uncured Breach. This Contract may be terminated at any time by 
106 either party should a material breach by the other party remain uncured thirty (30) days after submission of 
I 07 written notice being provided of the breach thereof, or a shorter period of time as may be specified within this 
108 Contract or within the applicable Schedule provided to the Contractor by the County. 
I 09 d. Remedies 
11 0 In the event of termination pursuant to Sections 13a. or 13b., Contractor's sole remedy shall be a claim for the sum 
111 designated for accomplishing the Work multiplied by the percentage of Work completed and accepted by County, 
112 less previous amounts paid and any claim(s) which State has against Contractor. If previous amounts paid to 
113 Contractor exceed the amount due to Contractor under this subsection, Contractor shall pay any excess to County 
114 upon demand. 
115 e. Contractor's Tender Upon Termination. Upon receiving a notice of termination of this Contract, 
116 Contractor shall immediately cease all activities under this Contract, unless County expressly directs otherwise 
117 in such notice of termination. Upon termination of this Contract, Contractor shall deliver to County all 
118 documents, information, works-in-progress and other property that are or would be deliverables had the Contract 
119 been completed. Upon County request, Contractor shall surrender to anyone County designates, all documents, 
120 research or objects or other tangible things needed to complete the Work. 
121 

122 14. Limitation of Liabilities. EXCEPT FOR LIABILITY ARISING UNDER OR RELATED TO 
123 SECTION 9(a), NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR (i) ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, 
124 CONSEQUENTIAL OR SPECIAL DAMAGES UNDER THE CONTRACT OR (ii) ANY DAMAGES 
125 OF ANY SORT ARISING SOLELY FROM THE TERMINATION OF TIDS CONTRACT IN 
126 ACCORDANCE WITH ITS TERMS. 
127 

128 15. Records Maintenance; Access. Contractor shall maintain all fiscal records relating to this Contract in 
129 accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, Contractor shall maintain any other records 
130 pertinent to this Contract in such a manner as to clearly document Contractor's performance. Contractor 
131 acknowledges and agrees that County and the Oregon Secretary of State's Office and the federal government and 
132 their duly authorized representatives shall have access to such fiscal records and other books, documents, papers, 
133 plans and writings of Contractor that are pertinent to this Contract to perform examinations and audits and make 
134 excerpts and transcripts. Contractor shall retain and keep accessible all such fiscal records, books, documents, 
13 5 papers, plans, and writings for a minimum of three (3) years, or such longer period as may be required by applicable 
136 law, following final payment and termination of this Contract, or until the conclusion of any audit, controversy or 
137 litigation arising out of or related to this Contract, whichever date is later. 
138 

139 16. Compliance with Applicable Law. Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, regulations, 
140 executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Work under this Contract. Without limiting the generality of 
141 the foregoing, Contractor expressly agrees to comply with: (i) Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Section V 
142 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and ORS 659,425; (iv) all 
143 regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (v) all other applicable 
144 requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations. County's 
145 performance under this Contract is conditioned upon Contractor's compliance with the provisions of ORS 279.312, 
146 279.314, 279.316, 279.320, and 279.555, which are incorporated by reference herein. 
147 

31Page 
MORROW COUNTY PERSONAllPROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT -TRUCKING SERVICES 



148 17. Foreign Contractor. If Contractor is not domiciled in or registered to do business in the State of Oregon, 
149 Contractor shall promptly provide to the Oregon Department of Revenue and the Secretary of State Corporation 
150 Division all information required by those agencies relative to this Contract. Contractor shall demonstrate its legal 
151 capacity to perform the Work under this Contract in the State of Oregon prior to entering into this Contract. 
152 

153 18. Force Majeure. Neither County nor Contractor shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by 
154 fire, riot, acts of God, or war where such cause was beyond, respectively, County's or Contractor's reasonable 
155 control. Contractor shall, however, make all reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such a cause of delay or 
156 default and shall, upon the cessation of the cause, diligently pursue performance of its obligations under this 
157 contract. 
158 

159 19. Survival. All rights and obligations shall cease upon termination or expiration of this Contract, except for 
160 the rights and obligations set forth in Sections 1, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 19, and 25. 
161 

162 20. Time is of the Essence. Contractor agrees that time is of the essence under this Contract. 
163 

164 21. Notice. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, any communication between the parties 
165 hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile, or mailing the 
166 same, postage prepaid, to Contractor or County at the address or number set forth on the signature page of this 
167 Contract, or to such other addresses or numbers as either party may hereafter indicate pursuant to this Section 
168 21. Any communication or notice so addressed and mailed shall be deemed to be given five (5) days after 
169 mailing. Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be deemed to be given when receipt of the 
170 transmission is generated by the transmitting machine. To be effective against County, such facsimile 
171 transmission must be confirmed by telephone notice to County's Contract Administrator. Any communication 
172 or notice by personal delivery shall be deemed to be given when actually delivered. 
173 

174 22. Severability. The parties agree that if any term or provision of this contract is declared by a court of 
175 competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions 
176 shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the 
177 contract did not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid. 
178 

179 23. Counterparts. This Contract may be executed in several counterparts, all of which when taken together 
180 shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories to the 
181 same counterpart. Each copy of the Contract so executed shall constitute an original. 
182 

183 24. Disclosure of Social Security Number. Contractor must provide Contractor's Social Security number 
184 unless Contractor provides a federal tax ID number. This number is requested pursuant to ORS 305.385, OAR 
185 125-20-410(3) and OAR 150-305.100. Social Security numbers provided pursuant to this authority will be used 
186 for the administration of state, federal and local tax laws. 
187 

188 25. Governing Law, Venue, Consent to Jurisdiction. This Contract shall be governed by and construed in 
189 accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of conflicts oflaw. Any claim, action, 
190 suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between County (and/or any other County or department of the State of 
191 Oregon) and Contractor that arises from or relates to this Contract shall be brought and conducted solely and 
192 exclusively within the Circuit Court of Morrow County for the State of Oregon; provided, however, if a Claim 
193 must be brought in a federal forum, then it shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within the United 
194 States District Court for the District of Oregon. CONTRACTOR, BY EXECUTION OF THIS CONTRACT, 
195 HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE IN PERSONAM JURISDICTION OF SAID COURTS. 
196 

41Page 
MORROW COUNTY PERSONAIJPROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT-TRUCKING SERVICES 



197 26. Merger. This contract and attached exhibits constitute the entire agreement between the parties on the 
198 subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified 
199 herein regarding this Contract. No waiver, consent, modification or change of terms ofthis Contract shall bind 
200 either party unless in writing and signed by both parties and all necessary State approvals have been obtained. 
201 Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if made, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for 
202 the specific purpose given. The failure of County to enforce any provision of this Contract shall not constitute 
203 a waiver by County of that or any other provision. 
204 
205 CONTRACTOR, BY EXECUTION OF TIDS CONTRACT, HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT 
206 CONTRACTOR HAS READ TIDS CONTRACT, UNDERSTANDS IT, AND AGREES TO BE BOUND 
207 BY ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 
208 
209 
210 CONTRACTOR 
211 ANDY ASHBECK TRUCKING LLC 

By:~/ A:i-k-k 
Facsimile number: 

Date: i.p(q \c9u:3,t:) Q ~ Title: l A.(\() j 
212 
213 
214 
215 
216 
217 

218 
219 

------------ Phone number: _,_5...c...y__,_/,.__~-=_l.,,,_;]..L._(a ___ __._f _;;_l_,_( _S.._-

Address: lt<fLW S L,+J/.f C' c.\o a I OR I J ~ 

220 COUNTY 
221 MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

222 Date: 
223 
224 
225 
226 
227 
228 
229 
230 
231 
232 
233 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
234 
235 
236 
237 

238 
239 County Counsel 
240 

SI Pa g e 

Melissa Lindsay, Chair 

Don Russell, Commissioner 

Jim Doherty, Commissioner 

MORROW COUNTY PERSONAUPROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT - TRUCKING SERVICES 



241 
242 
243 

244 
245 

Exhibit A 

Dump Truck $90.00 Per Hour 

Truck and Pup $110.00 Per Hour 

Belly Dump $105.00 Per Hour 

Lowboy $115.00 Per Hour 

Tilt Deck $90.00 Per Hour 

Water Truck $90.00 per Hour 

61Page 
MORROW COUNTY PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT -TRUCKING SERVICES 



Melissa Lindsay 

Subject: 

-----Original Message----
From: Kate Knop 

FW: Trucking Contract 

Sent: Thursday, June 11, 2020 11:09 AM 
To: Richard Tovey <rtovey@co.morrow.or.us>; Justin Nelson <jnelson@co.morrow.or.us>; Sandra Pointer 
<spointer@co.morrow.or.us>; Darrell Green <dgreen@co.morrow.or.us>; Matt Scrivner <mscrivner@co.morrow.or.us> 
Subject: RE: Trucking Contract 

Sandi, 

I have review and have no concerns. 

(Side note: the Certificate of Insurance does expire on 6/26/20.) 

Kate Knop 
Finance Director 
Morrow County 
P.O. Box 867 
Heppner, OR 97836 
541-676-5615 or x5302 
kknop@co.morrow.or.us 

-----Original Message----
From: Richard Tovey 
Sent: Monday, June 8, 2020 8:42 AM 
To: Justin Nelson <jnelson@co.morrow.or.us>; Sandra Pointer <spointer@co.morrow.or.us>; Kate Knop 
<kknop@co.morrow.or.us>; Darrell Green <dgreen@co.morrow.or.us>; Matt Scrivner <mscrivner@co.morrow.or.us> 
Subject: RE: Trucking Contract 

Sandi-
I reviewed the proposed contract and made a few edits. It is ready for review by the Board. 
Thanks-
Rich 

Richard S. Tovey 
Deputy District Attorney/County Counsel 
Morrow County District Attorney's Office P.O. Box 664 Heppner, OR 97836 
(541) 676-5626 

1 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SH.EET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of2) 

'1forBOClJse) -
Item# 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners 
(See notations at bottom of form) 

Presenter at BOC: Darrell Green 
Department: Administration 
Short Title of Agenda Item: 

(No ac ronyms plea:ie) 

Phone Number (Ext): 
Requested Agenda Date: 6/24/2020 

Umatilla Basin Assistant Watermaster Program IGA 

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 
D Order or Resolution D Appointments 
D Ordinance/Public Hearing: D Update on Project/Committee 
D 1st Reading D 2nd Reading ~ Consent Agenda Eligible 
D Public Comment Anticipated: D Discussion & Action 

Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 
D Document Recording Required D Purchase Pre-Authorization 
D Contract/ Agreement D Other 

0 NIA 
Contractor/Entity: 
Contractor/Entity Address: 
Effective Dates - From: 
Total Contract Amount: 

Purchase Pre-A uthoriZRtions, Contracts & AgTeements 

Through: 
Budget Line: 

Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? D Yes Iii No 

Reviewed By: 

Department Director 
DATE 

Darrell Green 6/19/2020 Administrator 
DATE 

County Counsel 
DATE 

Finance Office 
DATE 

Human Resources 

Required for all BOC meetings 

Required for all BOC meetings 

*Required for all legal documents 

*Required for all contracts; other 
items as appropriate. 

*If appropriate 
DATE * Allow I week for review (suhmit to all simultaneously). When e~ch office has nolilied the submitting 

departmen t of approval. then su hmil the rcgue.,t to the RO( for placement on the agenda. 

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals 
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. 

Rev: 3/2 8/18 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of 2) 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY): 

This IGA is to fund the cost of one Assistant Watermaster to perform work in Morrow County 
that is in the Umatilla Basin. 
The costs include salary, benefits and other payroll expenses. 
The County is contributing $12,200 for the performance of this agreement. 

2. FISCAL IMPACT: 

GL 101-199-5-50-5166 $12,200 

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S): 

Motion to have Chair Lindsay sign the IGA 

~ Attach additional background documentation as needed. 

Rev: 3/28/18 



WRD 20055 

1. 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
Umatilla Basin Assistant Watermaster Program 

This agreement is between the Oregon Water Resources Department, (hereafter called 
the "Department") and Morrow County, (hereafter called the "County"). The purpose of 
this Agreement is to fund the costs of one Assistant Watermaster to perform work in that 
portion of Morrow County that is in the Umatilla Basin. These costs include but are not 
limited to salary, benefits and other payroll expenses (OPE), supplies, and I/T services. 
There is a separate agreement with Umatilla County so that county can cover its 
portions of the program-related costs for the same period. 

Term of Agreement 

The period of this agreement shall be from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. 

2. Statement of Work 

The Department agrees to provide watermaster services, hereby referred to as 
Work and generally described in ORS Chapter 540.045 and related Oregon 
Administrative Rules which services are specifically provided by the Assistant 
Watermaster for the Umatilla River basin. 

3. Consideration 

4. 

The Department shall bill County a total amount of $12,220.00 for performance of 
this agreement. Invoicing and payment details are specified in Exhibit A. 

Subcontracts 

The Department may enter into subcontracts for any of the work scheduled under 
this agreement without obtaining prior written approval from the County. 

5. Amendments 

The terms of this agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented, 
or amended, in any manner whatsoever, except by written instrument signed by 
both parties. 

6. Termination 

A. This agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties. 

B. The Department may terminate this agreement effective upon delivery of 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 2020 - 2021 Page 1 of 7 



WRD 20055 
written notice to the County, or at such other date as may be established by 
the Department under any of the following conditions: 

1. If the Department funding is not secured and continued at levels 
sufficient to allow for the continuation of the assistant watermaster 
program, when possible, and when agreed upon, the contract may be 
modified to accommodate a reduction in funds. 

2. If federal or state regulations or guidelines are modified or changed in 
such a way that the services are no longer allowable or appropriate for 
purchase under the agreement. 

3. If the County fails to provide funds as specified herein, or so fails to 
comply with other provisions of this agreement to endanger 
performance of this agreement in accordance with its terms, and after 
receipt of written notice from the Department, fails to correct such 
failures within thirty (30) days or such longer period as the Department 
may authorize. 

7. Funds Available and Authorized 

8. 

9. 

The County certifies at the time the agreement is approved that sufficient funds are 
available and authorized for expenditure to finance costs of this Agreement with the 
County's current appropriation and limitation. 

Captions 

The captions or headings in this agreement are for convenience only and in no way 
define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions of this agreement. 

Representations and Warranties 

Department has the skill and knowledge possessed by well-informed members of its 
industry, trade and profession and Department will apply that skill and knowledge 
with care and diligence to perform Services in a professional manner and in 
accordance with standards prevalent in Department's industry, trade or profession. 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 2020 - 2021 Page 2 of 7 



WRD 20055 

10. Indemnity 

EACH PARTY SHALL DEFEND, SAVE, HOLD HARMLESS, AND INDEMNIFY THE OTHER 
PARTY AND THE OTHER PARTY'S AGENCIES, SUBDIVISIONS, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, 
EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, SUITS, ACTIONS, LOSSES, 
DAMAGES, LIABILITIES, COSTS AND EXPENSES OF ANY NATURE WHATSOEVER ("CLAIMS"}, 
INCLUDING ATTORNEY FEES, RESULTING FROM, ARISING OUT OF, OR RELATING TO THE 
ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF THE INDEMINFYING PARTY'S OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, 
SUBCONTRACTORS, OR AGENTS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. ANY INDEMNITY BY THE 
DEPARTMENT UNDER THIS SECTION SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE LIMITATIONS OF ARTICLE 
XI, SECTION 7, OF THE OREGON CONSTITUTION AND THE OREGON TORT CLAIMS ACT, 
ORS 30.260 TO 30.300. ANY INDEMNITY BY THE COUNTY UNDER THIS SECTION SHALL BE 
SUBJECT TO THE LIMITATIONS OF ARTICLE XI, SECTION 10, OF THE OREGON 
CONSITUTION AND THE OREGON TORT CLAIMS ACT, ORS 30.260 TO 30.300. 

11 . Access to Records 

The Department, the Secretary of State's Office of the State of Oregon, the Federal 
Government, and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the 
books, documents, papers, and records not otherwise privileged under law, which 
are directly pertinent to the specific agreement for the purpose of making audit, 
examination, excerpts, and transcript. 

12. Nondiscrimination 

The parties each agree to comply with all applicable requirements of federal and 
state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations. 

13. Merger Clause 

This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. No waiver, 
consent, modification or change of terms of this agreement shall bind either party 
unless in writing and signed by both parties. Such waiver, consent, modification or 
change, if made, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific 
purpose given. There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral 
or written, not specified wherein regarding this agreement. The county, by the 
signature below of its authorized representative, hereby acknowledges to have read 
this agreement, understands it and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions. 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 2020 - 2021 Page 3 of 7 



WRD 20055 

14. County Data 

Project Officer: 
Organization: 
Address: 

Phone: 

15. Department Data 

Project Officer: 
Organization: 
Address: 

Phone: 

16. Signatures 

County: 

County Administrator 
Morrow County 
PO Box 788 
Heppner, OR 97836 
541-676-2529 

Chris Kowitz 
Oregon Water Resources Department 
116 SE Dorion Ave 
Pendleton, OR 97801 
541- 278-5456 

Signature 

Title: 
Address: 

Chair, Morrow County Board of Commissioners 
PO Box 788 
Heppner, OR 97801 

I 
Date 

Department: - ------------------'-'- - 
Signature 

Lisa Snyder - Administrator 
Administrative Services Division 
Oregon Water Resources Department 
725 Summer Street NE 
Suite A 
Salem, OR 97301-1271 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 2020 - 2021 

Date 

Page 4 of 7 



WRD 20055 

EXHIBIT A 

County: Morrow County, 

a. Payment for all work performed under this contract shall be subject to the provisions of 
ORS 293.462 and shall not exceed the maximum sum of $12,220.00 including any travel 
and other expense reimbursement. 

Both parties acknowledge that other agreements may exist under the Assistant 
Watermaster program but such agreements are separate to this Agreement. 

b. Department 

The Department shall perform work that includes: 

1. Research and interpret water rights; court decrees; well logs; Oregon Revised 
Statutes; Oregon Administrative Rules; legal descriptions for ownership records; and 
historical hydrologic data for public, private agencies, water users and governmental 
groups such as tribal, local, state and federal agencies to facilitate water resource 
management activities in Watermaster District 5 to assure compliance with Oregon 
State water law. 

2. Perform field flow measurements (wading, cable way, bridge crane) of 
waterways including streams, rivers, irrigation canals and ditches, utilizing hydrologic 
data instruments such as Flow Trackers, AA Price or Pygmy Current meters to 
calculate the amount of water and to establish the relationship between flow elevation 
and quantity. 

3. Conduct maintenance and operation of waterway gaging stations. Examine 
and record electronic and manual gaging equipment data to provide a continuous 
record of water availability at specific sites for daily and emergency management and 
distribution of water resources. 

4. Utilize flow measurements and gaging station data to determine water 
availability for development and promotion of water management actions. Read flow 
meters and perform static water level measurements in wells. 

5. Resolve problems associated with water distribution, dam safety and well 
construction sometimes under emergency, hostile and/or dangerous conditions. 

6. Interact with and inform agencies, groups and individuals in a public forum, to 
promote public relations and beneficial water management practices using Oregon 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 2020 - 2021 Page 5 of 7 



WRD 20055 
Revised Statutes and WRD policies and programs. 

7. Distribute available water during times of shortage according to relative priority 
dates of water right holders, Water Resource Department (WRD) policies and 
procedures. 

8. Daily documentation of activities and violations observed in the field and initiate 
appropriate enforcement action in compliance with Oregon State Water Laws. 

9. Testify during legal proceedings in support of enforcement or other water 
related issues. 

10. Conduct water development loan, dam safety, and well construction 
inspections. 

11 . Conduct surveys of surface and groundwater measurement devices to monitor 
water use and availability. Enforce appropriate state statutes to ensure compliance. 

12. Compile and organize data in report form for the public and/or governmental 
agencies. 

13. Assist in updating and development of water management plans. 

14. Responsible for maintenance and updating records of water rights and well 
logs. 

15. Select sites, assist in and supervise the construction of headgates, flow meters 
and measurement devices. 

16. Send invoice for the total agreement amount of $12,220.00 to the County. The 
invoicing sctiedules shall be as follows: 

Invoice Date Invoice Period Invoice Amount 
October 1 , 2020 July- September 2020 $3,055.00 
January 1, 2021 October - December 2020 $3,055.00 
April 1 , 2021 Januarv - March 2021 $3,055.00 
July 1, 2021 April - June 2021 $3,055.00 

Total $12,220.00 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 2020 - 2021 Page 6 of 7 



WRD 20055 
c. Morrow County 

County shall fund the Assistant Watermaster for the Umatilla Basin. Upon receiving an 
invoice from the Department, County shall pay such invoice within 30 days. The 
Department shall perform the work as described above. 

d. Deliverables 

By March 5, 2021, the Department shall present a summary of the activities and 
accomplishments during the period of July 1, 2020 to February 28, 2021. 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 2020 - 2021 Page 7 of 7 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of2) 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners 
(See notations at bottom of form) 

Presenter at BOC: 

Department: Public Health 
Short Title of Agenda Item: 

Phone Number (Ext): 
Requested Agenda Date: 06/24/2020 

( o acronyms plea ·e) Tenth Amendment to Oregon Health Authority Intergovernmental 
Al!reement #159824 for the Financing of Public Health Services 

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 
D Order or Resolution D Appointments 
D Ordinance/Public Hearing: D Update on Project/Committee 
D 1st Reading D 2nd Reading 00 Consent Agenda Eligible 
D Public Comment Anticipated: D Discussion & Action 

Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 
D Document Recording Required D Purchase Pre-Authorization 
00 Contract/ Agreement D Other 

D N/ A Purchllse Pre-Authoriutions, Contracts & Aentments 

Contractor/Entity: Oregon Health Authority (OHA) 
Contractor/Entity Address: 800 NE Oregon Street, Suite 465B Portland, OR 97232 
Effective Dates- From: 03/27/2020 Through: 12/30/2020 
Total Contract Amount: $467 65 (w/ dd $U.1,948b Budget Line: 114-3- 0-3496 
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? Ill] Yes No 

Reviewed By: 

Department Director Required for all BOC meetings 
DATE 

Administrator Required for all BOC meetings 

J. Nelson email 6-16-20 County Counsel *Required for all legal documents 
DATE 

K. KnoQ email 6-17-20 Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other 
DATE items as appropriate. 

Human Resources *If appropriate 

a 

DATE *.-\How l wct·k for rc\'icw (submit to all simullaneouslY). When each of!ic~ has notified the submitting 

department nf i!POC" \ al t/J "/J ~uhmit th,~ reont·~ t to the 80(" fur gl...u ernent on thr i-1 \'f!Hla 

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals 
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. 

Rev: 3/30/20 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of 2) 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY): 

OHA Agreement # 159824, Amendment # 10 represents an expansion to PE O 1-01 State Support 
for Public Health with added Program Elements (PE O 1-05, PE O 1-06) specific to LPHA COVID 
19 Response and funding increased by $111,948.00. 

PE O 1-05 COVID 19 has now been added to the list of State Mandated Reportable Diseases. 
The funding will support additional time required to coordinate Contract Tracing, meet the 
minimum of 15 contact tracers for every 100,000. 
Case investigation; enter all case investigation and contact tracing data in Orpheus and ARIAS, as 
directed by OHA. 
Isolation and quarantine by 6/15/2020 demonstrate to OHA that a quarantine location is identified 
and ready to be used. 
Social Services and wraparound supports. 
Tribal Nation Support. 
Support infection prevention and control for high-risk populations. 
Community education. 
PE O 1-06 Regional Active Monitoring. 

2. FISCAL IMPACT: 

Funding supports current FTE could include increase FTE. 

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S): 

Following review per county counsel and Kate Knop, finance. I would request that the BOC 
review, approve and sign OHA IGA #159824 Amendment #10 and authorize Chair Lindsay to sign 
on behalf of the County the Document Return Statement. 

~ Attach additional background documentation as needed. 

Rev: 3/30/20 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT- FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

Agreement #159824 eaith 
-----Authorit , 

TENTH AMENDMENT TO OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 
2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE 

FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SERVICES 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in alternate fonnats such as 
Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based communications and other electronic formats. To request an 
alternate fonnat, please send an e-mail to dhs-oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us or call 503-378-3486 (voice) 
or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to arrange for the alternative format. 

This Tenth Amendment to Oregon Health Authority 2019-2021 Intergovernmental Agreement for the 
Financing of Public Health Services, effective July I, 2019, (as amended the "Agreement"), is between the State 
of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority ("OHA") and Morrow County, ("LPHA"), the 
entity designated, pursuant to ORS 431.003, as the Local Public Health Authority for Morrow County. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, OHA is acquiring some services under this Amendment for the purpose of responding to 
the state of emergency declared by the Governor on Saturday, March 7, 2020 and pursuant to the Major Disaster 
Declaration number DR4499OR as a direct result of the COVID-19. OHA intends to request reimbursement 
from FEMA for all allowable costs. This amendment is subject to the additional federal tenns and conditions 
located at: https://www.oregon .gov/das/Procurement/Documents/COVI0Federa1Provisions.pdf as may be 
applicable to this Amendment. 

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the set of Program Element Descriptions set forth in 
Exhibit B of the Agreement 

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the Fiscal Year 2020 (FY20) Financial Assistance Award 
set forth in Exhibit C of the Agreement. 

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the Exhibit J infonnation required by 2 CFR Subtitle B 
with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants and agreements contained herein and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereto agree as follows 

159824 TLH AMENDMENT #10 PAGE 1 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA- 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT- FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

AGREEMENT 

Exhibit A "Definitions", Section 18 "Program Element" is amended to replace the information for PE0l 
as follows: 

PE NUMBER AND TITLE FUND F EDERAL AGENCY/ 
HIPAA SUB-

SUB-ELEMENT(S) TYPE GRANT TITLE 
CFDA# RELATED RECIPIENT 

• (YIN) (YIN) 

P E 01-01 State Support for 
GF NIA NIA N N 

Public Health (SSPH) 

• 

• 

PE 01-04 LPHA COVID-
GF NIA NIA N N 

19 Response 

PE 01-05 COVID-19 
FF 

TBD/Coronavirus Relief 
21.019 N y 

Active Monitoring Fund 

Exhibit B Program Element #01 "State Support for Public Health" is hereby superseded and replaced in 
its entirety by Attachment A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 1 of Exhibit C entitled "Financial Assistance Award" of the Agreement for FY20 is hereby 
superseded and replaced in its entirety by Attachment B attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. Attachment B must be read in conjunction with Section 3 of Exhibit C. 

Exhibit J "Information required by 2 CPR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CPR Part 200" is amended to 
add to the federal award information datasheet as set forth in Attachment C, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

LPHA represents and warrants to OHA that the representations and warranties ofLPHA set forth in 
Section 4 of Exhibit P of the Agreement are true and correct on the date hereof with the same effect as if 
made on the date hereof. 

Capitalized words and phrases used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in 
the Agreement. 

Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

The parties expressly ratify the Agreement as herein amended. 

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which when taken together 
shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories 
to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Amendment so executed shall constitute an original. 

159824TLH AMENDMENT #10 PAGE 2 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SERVICES 

10. This Amendment becomes effective on the date of the last signature below. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set forth 
below their respective signatures. 

11. Signatures. 

By: 

Name: /for/ Carole L. Yann 

Title: Director of Fiscal and Business Operations 

Date: 

MORROW COUNTY LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH AUTHORITY 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE-APPROVED FOR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

Exempt per Executive Order 20-03, "Declaration of Emergency Due to Coronavirus (COVID-19) 
Outbreak in Oregon ". 

REVIEWED BY OHA PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

159824 TLH 

Derrick Clark (or designee) 

Program Support Manager 

AMENDMENT #10 PAGE 3 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA- 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT- FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

Attachment A 
Program Element Description 

Program Element #01: State Support for Public Health (SSPH) 

1. Description. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 
accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to operate a 
Communicable Disease control program in LPHA's service area that includes the following 
components: (a) epidemiological investigations that report, monitor and control Communicable Disease, 
(b) diagnostic and consultative Communicable Disease services, (c) early detection, education, and 
prevention activities to reduce the morbidity and mortality of reportable Communicable Diseases, ( d) 
appropriate immunizations for human and animal target populations to control and reduce the incidence 
of Communicable Diseases, and (e) collection and analysis of Communicable Disease and other health 
hazard data for program planning and management. 

Communicable Diseases affect the health of individuals and communities throughout Oregon. 
Disparities exist for populations that are at greatest risk, while emerging Communicable Diseases pose 
new threats to everyone. The vision of the foundational Communicable Disease Control program is to 
ensure that everyone in Oregon is protected from Communicable Disease threats through Communicable 
Disease and Outbreak reporting, investigation, and application of public health control measures such as 
isolation, post-exposure prophylaxis, education, or other measures as warranted by investigative 
findings. 

All changes to this Program Element are effective upon receipt of grant award unless otherwise noted in 
Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Specific to State Support for Public Health 

a. Case: A person who has been diagnosed by a health care provider, as defined in OAR 333-017-
0000, as having a particular disease, infection, or condition as described in OAR 333-018-0015 
and 333-018-0900, or whose illness meets defining criteria published in the OHA's 
Investigative Guidelines. 

b. Communicable Disease: A disease or condition, the infectious agent of which may be 
transmitted to and cause illness in a human being. 

c. Outbreak: A significant or notable increase in the number of Cases of a disease or other 
condition of public health importance (ORS 431A.005). 

d. Reportable Disease: Any of the diseases or conditions specified in OAR 333-018-0015 and 
OAR 333-018-0900. 

159824 TLH AMENDMENT# 10 PAGE 4 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT- FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

3. Program Components. Activities and services delivered under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities, as defined in Oregon s Public Health 
Modern ization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon. gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TA KFORCE/Documents/public health modernization man 
ual.pdf) as well as with public health accountability outcome and process metrics (if applicable) as 
follows: 

a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization 
Manual) 

Program Components Foundational Program 

2 
E 
0 u 
Q 
u 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that 
aligns with each component 

IX = Other applicable foundational programs 

Epidemiological 
investigations that report, 
monitor and control * 
Communicable Disease 
(CD). 

Diagnostic and 
consultative CD services. 

Early detection, education, 
and prevention activities. 

Appropriate immunizations 
for human and animal 
target populations to 
reduce the incidence of 
CD. 

CoJlection and analysis of 
CD and other health hazard 
data fo r program planning 
and management. 

* 

* 

* 

* 

X 

Foundational Capabilities 

~ 
>-. 
OJ) "O c:: 0 § 0 ] -~ ~ Cl'l ... 0. E Cl'l 

.8 11.1 .§ :.a 11.1 c:: "5 Cl'l "O "O 

e.o () ... ·s.. 11.1 11.1 
~ OJ) ... 

0 "O c:: c:: Cl'l ro 
c:: t: "O ·a c:: 0. 

"O ro Cl'l ro c:: 0 11.1 
§ ;;,-,. Cl'l A.. ..... § ... 

Cl'l ro -~ A.. 11.1 ..... 11.1 >-. c:: o. ·u ·- c:: ..... 
~ ;;,-,. :::I 11.1 .... 11.1 c:: () 

·- c:: c:::r ;> ·- s 11.1 ·a () 
11.1 ..c: 11.1 

11.1 ·-
c:: 0. s ad :::I c:: Cl'l 

~ d) Cl'l :::I 0 11.1 c:: ..c: c:: E- Cl'l >-. s OJ) 0 11.1 0. .... 0 Cl'l ... 0.. 
"-g E ~ s ~ 11.1 -~ E 0. Cl'l 11.1 Cl'l 

11.1 0 11.1 Cl'l 0 11.1 Cl'l 0 0 JL~ o--l () :r: 11.1 uo < A.. u ... 
~ = Foundational capabilities that align with 
'(!ach component 

X X X 

X 

X X X 

X 

X X X X 

159824 TLH AMENDMENT #10 PAGE 5 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA- 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT- FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon's governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric: 

Gonorrhea rates 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon's governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Modernization Process Measure: 

(1) Percent of gonorrhea Cases that had at least one contact that received treatment; and 

(2) Percent of gonorrhea Case reports with complete "priority" fields. 

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements. By accepting and using the Financial Assistance awarded 
under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct the following activities in 
accordance with the indicated procedural and operational requirements: 

a. LPHA must operate its Communicable Disease program in accordance with the Requirements 
and Standards for the Control of Communicable Disease set forth in ORS Chapters 431 , 432, 
433 and 437 and OAR Chapter 333, Divisions 12, 17, 18, 19 and 24, as such statutes and 
rules may be amended from time to time. 

b. LPHA must use all reasonable means to investigate in a timely manner all reports of Reportable 
Diseases, infections, or conditions. To identify possible sources of infection and to carry out 
appropriate control measures, the LPHA Administrator shall investigate each report following 
procedures outlined in OHA's Investigative Guidelines or other procedures approved by OHA. 
OHA may provide assistance in these investigations, in accordance with OAR 333-019-0000. 
Investigative guidelines are available at: 
http://www.o.regon.gov/oha/PH/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommuni 
cableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Pages/index.aspx 

c. As part of its Communicable Disease control program, LPHA must, within its service area, 
investigate the Outbreaks of Communicable Diseases, institute appropriate Communicable 
Disease control measures, and submit required information in a timely manner regarding the 
Outbreak to OHA in Orpheus as prescribed in OHA CD Investigative Guidelines available at: 

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommuni 
cab leDisease/Reporti ngG u idel i nes/Pages/i ndex..aspx 

d. LPHA must establish and maintain a single telephone number whereby physicians, hospitals, 
other health care providers, OHA and the public can report Communicable Diseases and 
Outbreaks to LPHA 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. LPHA may employ an answering service 
or 911 system, but the ten-digit number must be available to callers from outside the local 
emergency dispatch area, and LPHA must respond to and investigate reported Communicable 
Diseases and Outbreaks. 

e. LPHA must attend Communicable Disease IO I and Communicable Disease 303 training. 

f. LPHA must attend monthly Orpheus user group meetings or monthly Orpheus training 
webinars. 

g. 01-04: COVID-19 LPHA must: 

159824 TLH 

(1) Submit a budget plan and narrative within 30 days ofreceiving this amendment. Refer to 
LPHA COVID-19 Budget Guidance document for terms and conditions. 

(2) OHA will send "Budget Narrative Template", "Budget Guidance" and any other 
applicable documents that OHA may identify. 

AMENDMENT #10 PAGE 6 OF IS PAGES 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

h. 01-05: COVID-19 In cooperation with OHA, the LPHA must ensure adequate culturally and 
linguistically responsive COVID-19 testing, investigation resources and contact tracing resources 
to limit the spread of COVID-19. OHA will be entering into grant agreements with community
based organizations (CBOs) to provide a range of culturally and linguistically responsive 
services, including community engagement and education, contact tracing, social services and 
wraparound supports. Services provided by CBOs will complement the work of the LPHA. 
LPHA must conduct the following activities in accordance with the guidance to be provided by 
OHA: 

I59824TLH 

(1) Cultural and linguistic competency and responsiveness. 

LPHA must: 

(a) Partner with CBOs, including culturally-specific organizations where available in 
the jurisdiction, including those funded by OHA through a Memorandum of 
Understanding or similar agreement that clearly describes the role of the CBO that 
has entered into a grant agreement with OHA, to ensure culturally and 
linguistically responsive community outreach and education strategies, testing, 
contact tracing and monitoring, and social service and wraparound supports. 
OHA will share with LPHA the grant agreement and deliverables between OHA 
and the CBOs and the contact information for all the CBOs. IfOHA's grant with 
a CBO in the jurisdiction includes contact tracing, LPHA will execute, as part of 
the MOU between the LPHA and CBO, the CBO's requirements to immediately 
report presumptive cases to LPHA, ensure HIP AA training and compliance by the 
CBO so the LPHA and CBO can share personal health information, clearly define 
referral and wrap-around service pathways and require regular communication 
between CBO and LPHA so services and payments are not duplicative. 

(b) Work with local CBOs including culturally-specific organizations to develop and 
track progress toward equity goals to maintain equity at the center of the LPHA's 
COVID-19 response. 

(c) Work with disproportionately affected communities to ensure a culturally and 
linguistically responsive staffing plan for case investigations, contact tracing, 
social services and wraparound supports that meets community needs is in place. 

(d) Ensure the cultural and linguistic needs and accessibility needs for people with 
disabilities or people facing other institutionalized barriers are addressed in the 
LPHA's case investigations, contact tracing, and in the delivery of social services 
and wraparound supports. 

(e) Have and follow policies and procedures for meeting community members' 
language needs relating to both written translation and spoken or American Sign 
Language (ASL) interpretation. 

(t) Employ or contract with individuals who can provide in-person, phone, and 
electronic community member access to services in languages and cultures of the 
primary populations being served based on identified language (including ASL) 
needs in the County demographic data. 

(g) Ensure language access through telephonic interpretation service for community 
members whose primary language is other than English, but not a language 
broadly available, including ASL. 

AMENDMENT #10 PAGE 7 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA- 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT- FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

159824 TLH 

(h) Provide written information provided by OHA that is culturally and linguistically 
appropriate for identified consumer populations. All information shall read at the 
sixth-grade reading level. 

(i) Provide facial coverings and other personal protective equipment (PPE) to LPHA 
staff when appropriate. 

(i) Provide opportunities to participate in OHA trainings to LPHA staff and LPHA 
contractors that conduct case investigation, contact tracing, and provide social 
services and wraparound supports; trainings should be focused on long-standing 
trauma in Tribes, racism and oppression. 

(2) Testing 

LPHA must: 

(a) Work with health care and other partners to ensure COVID-19 testing is available 
to individuals within the LPHA' s jurisdiction meeting current OHA criteria for 
testing and other local testing needs. 

(b) Work with health care and other partners to ensure testing is provided in a 
culturally and linguistically responsive manner with an emphasis on making 
testing available to disproportionately impacted communities and as a part of the 
jurisdiction's contact tracing strategy. 

( c) Maintain a current list of entities providing COVID-19 testing and at what 
volume. 

(d) Provide reports to OHA on testing locations and volume as requested. 

(3) Contact Tracing 

LPHA must: 

(a) Maintain the capacity to surge a minimum of 15 contact tracers for every I 00,000 
people in the jurisdiction. as needed, based on disease rates. OHA grants with 
CBOs for contact tracing will count toward this minimum. 

(b) Have contact tracing staff that reflect the demographic makeup of the jurisdiction 
and who can provide culturally and linguistically competent and responsive 
tracing services. In addition, or alternatively, enter into an agreement(s) with 
community-based and culturally-specific organizations to provide such contact 
tracing services. OHA grants with CBOs will count toward fulfilling this 
requirement. 

(c) Ensure all contact tracing staff are trained in accordance with OHA investigative 
guidelines and data entry protocols. 

(d) Follow up with at least 95% of cases within 24 hours of notification. 

(4) Case investigation 

LPHA must: 

(a) Conduct all case investigations and monitor outbreaks. 

(b) Enter all case investigation and contact tracing data in Orpheus and ARIAS, as 
directed by OHA. 

AMENDMENT #10 PAGE 8 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA- 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT- FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

159824 TLH 

( c) Ensure all LPHA staff designated to utilize Orpheus and ARIAS are trained in 
these systems. Include in the tracing data whether new positive cases are tied to a 
known existing positive case or to community spread. 

(5) Isolation and quarantine 

LPHA must: 

(a) By June 15, 2020, demonstrate to OHA that a quarantine location is identified and 
ready to be used. 

(b) Facilitate efforts to ensure isolation and quarantine housing, transportation, health 
care supplies, meals, telecommunications and other supports needed for any 
resident in the jurisdiction who has a financial or physical need. The LPHA will 
utilize existing resources when possible such as covered case management 
benefits, WIC benefits, etc. 

(6) Social services and wraparound supports. 
LPHA must ensure social services referral and tracking processes are developed and 
maintained. LPHA must cooperate with CBOs to provide referral and follow-up for 
social services and wraparound supports for affected individuals and communities. OHA 
contracts with CBOs will count toward fulfilling this requirement. 

(7) Tribal Nation support. 
LPHA must ensure alignment of contact tracing and supports for patients and families by 
coordinating with local tribes if a patient identifies as American Indian/ Alaska Native 
and/or a member of an Oregon Tribe, if the patient gives permission to notify the Tribe. 

(8) Support infection prevention and control for high-risk populations. 

LPHAmust: 

(a) Migrant and seasonal farmworker support. Partner with farmers, agriculture 
sector and farmworker service organizations to develop and execute plans for 
COVID-19 testing, quarantine and isolation, and social service needs for migrant 
and seasonal farmworkers. 

(b) Congregate care facilities. In collaboration with State licensing agency, support 
infection prevention assessments, COVID-19 testing, infection control, and 
isolation and quarantine protocols in congregate care facilities. 

(c) High risk business operations. In collaboration with State licensing agencies, 
partner with food processing and manufacturing businesses to ensure adequate 
practices to prevent COVID-19 exposure, conduct testing and respond to 
outbreaks. 

(d) Vulnerable populations. Support COVID-19 testing, infection control, isolation 
and quarantine, and social services and wraparound supports for homeless 
individuals, individuals residing in homeless camps, individuals involved in the 
criminal justice system and other vulnerable populations at high risk for COVID-
19. 

(9) Community education. LPHA must work with CBOs and other partners to provide 
culturally and linguistically responsive community outreach and education related to 
COVID-19. 

AMENDMENT#IO PAGE 9 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA- 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT- FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

i. 01-06: COVID-19: Regional Active Monitoring. Activities. In cooperation with OHA, the 
LPHA must work with other LPHAs in the region to collaboratively support epidemiologic and 
surge capacity needs. LPHA must conduct the following activities in accordance with guidance 
to be provided by OHA: 

LPHA must: 

(1) Ensure regular communication among LPHAs in the region. 

(2) Compile and share regional data regularly among LPHAs. 

(3) Establish MOU with LPHAs in the region for epidemiologic and surge capacity needs. 

(4) Implement MOU as needed. 

j. Regional budget and budget narratives. LPHA regional fiscal agent must submit a regional 
budget and budget narrative for approval by OHA within 60 days of receiving amendment. 
Refer to LPHA COVID-19 PE O 1-05 Budget Guidance document and LPHA PE O 1-06 COVID-
19 Budget Guidance document for terms and conditions. OHA will send "Budget Narrative 
Template", "Budget Guidance" and any other applicable documents that OHA may identify. 
These funds may be used for services and supplies such as computers and telephones needed for 
contact tracing. 

OHA will: 

(1) Make contact tracing and case investigation training available. 

(2) Require and provide access to training for all local public health and CBOs on Protected 
Health Information and CD investigation. 

(3) Provide information on the availability of trauma informed training for both LPHAs and 
CBOs. 

5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting. LPHA must complete an "Oregon Health Authority Public 
Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report" located in Exhibit C of the Agreement. 

a. 

b. 

159824 TLH 

These reports must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the following schedule: 

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First: July 1 - September 30 October 30 

Second: October 1 - December 31 January 30 

Third: January 1 - March 31 April 30 

Fourth: April 1 - June 30 August 20 

All funds received under a PE or PE- supplement must be included in the quarterly Revenue and 
Expense reports. 

AMENDMENT #10 PAGE 10 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA- 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

c. Funding under PE0I-05 includes three components - a) base funding, b) active monitoring fee 
for service payment, and c) active monitoring, isolation and quarantine, and wraparound 
services. 

(a) Base Funding-Award will be issued June 2020 for FY20. Funds can be used from 
March 27, 2020-December 30, 2020. Unspent funds during FY20 are eligible for carry 
forward to FY2 l once FY20 Q4 Revenue and Expense Reports are submitted. 

(b) COVID-19 Active Monitoring Fee for Service payment - a fee-for-service payment will 
be paid for each case or contact per OHA guidance. LPHA must submit invoices to 
receive these funds for the period of March 27,2020-December 30, 2020. Final invoice 
due no later than January 31, 2021. OHA will amend the PE monthly upon receipt of the 
invoice. Payment will be made once the agreement is executed. LPHA must submit an 
invoice no less than quarterly to OHA. Invoice amounts must be reported on the R/E 
reports. 

(c) COVID -19 Active Monitoring, Isolation and Quarantine, and Wrapround services -
LPHAs must also submit invoices for isolation and quarantine-related expenses per OHA 
guidance. LPHA must submit invoices to receive these funds for the period of March 27, 
2020-December 30, 2020. Final invoice due no later than January 31, 2021. OHA will 
amend the PE monthly upon receipt of the invoice. Payment will be made once the 
agreement is executed. LPHA must submit an invoice no less than quarterly to OHA. 
Invoice amounts must be reported on the R/E reports. 

d. PE0l-06 - Regional Active Monitoring-Funds are available for March 27, 2020-December 30, 
2020. 

6. Reporting Requirements. Not applicable. 

7. Performance Measures. LPHA must operate its Communicable Disease control program in a manner 
designed to make progress toward achieving the following Public Health Modernization Process 
Measures: 

a. Percent of gonorrhea Cases that had at least one contact that received treatment; and 

b. Percent of gonorrhea Case reports with complete "priority" fields. 

159824 TLH AMENDMENT #10 PAGE 11 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA- 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT- FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

Attachment B 
Financial Assistance Award (FY20) 

State of Oregon Page 1 of 3 
Oregon Health Authority 
Public Health Division 

1) Grantee 2) Issue Date This Action 
Name: Morrow County June 03, 2020 AMENDMENT 

FY 2020 

Street: 110 N Court Street 3) Award Period 
City: Heppner From July 1. 2019 Through June 30. 2020 

State: OR Zip Code: 97836 

4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved 
Award Increase/ New 

Program Balance (Decrease) Award Bal 

PE01-01 State Support for Public Health 14.354 0 14,354 

PE01-04 COVID19 Response 35,696 0 35,696 

PE01-05 COVID-19 Local Active Monitoring 0 111 ,948 111 ,948 

PE12 Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response 69,400 0 69,400 
(PHEP) 

PE12-02 COVID-19 Response 38,344 0 38.344 

PE13-01 Tobacco Prevention and Education Prgram (TPEP) 19,870 0 19,870 

PE42-03 MCAH Perinatal General Funds & Title XIX 1,908 0 1,908 

PE42-04 MCAH Babies First! General Funds 6,103 0 6,103 

PE42-06 MCAH General Funds & Title XIX 3.582 0 3,582 

PE42-07 MCAH Title V (July-Sept) 4,637 0 4,637 

PE42-08 MCAH Title V (Oct.June) 13,910 0 13,910 

PE42-09, MCAH Oregon Mothers Care Title V (July-Sept) 773 0 773 

PE42-10 MCAH Oregon Mothers care Title V (Oct-June) 2,318 0 2,318 

PE43 Public Health Practice (PHP) - Immunization Services 8,619 0 8,619 
(Vendors) 

PE44-01 SBHC Base 60,000 0 60,000 

PE44-02 SBHC - Mental Health Expansion 40,000 0 40,000 

PE46-02 RH Community Participation & Assurance of Access 0 0 0 
(July- Mar) 

PE46-03 RH Community Participation & Access (State Funds) 12,001 0 12,001 

159824 TLH AMENDMENT #10 PAGE 12 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA- 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT- FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

State of Oregon 
Oregon Health Authority 
Public Health Division 

Page 2 of 3 

1) Grantee 2) Issue Date 
June 03, 2020 

This Action 
AMENDMENT Name: Morrow County 

FY 2020 

Street: 11 0 N Court Street 3) Award Period 
City: Heppner From July 1, 2019 Through June 30, 2020 

State: OR Zip Code: 97836 

4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved 

Program 
Award 
Balance 

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

New 
Award Bal 

PE46-04 RH Community Participation & Access Federal Funds 
(July-Mar) 

469 0 469 

PE51-01 LPHA Leadership, Governance and Program 
Implementation 

23,433 0 23,433 

159824TLII 

5) Foot Notes: 

PE01--01 1 

PE01-01 2 

PE01-04 1 

PE01--05 1 

PE12--02 1 

PE13--01 1 

PE13--01 2 

PE42--07 1 

PE42--08 1 

PE42-09 1 

PE42-10 1 

PE46-03 1 

PE46-04 1 
PE51-01 1 

6) Comments: 

355,417 111,948 467,365 

Initial SFY20: Award is estimated for July 1-September 30. 201 9 and will be paid out at 113rd. 
Awards will be amended pending approval of the State budget. 
8/2019: SFY20 Award amended for increase for July 1. 201 9-June 30. 2020. Previous footnotes 
are void and replaced by this one. 
3/2020: SFY20 COVID-19 Funding 1/21/2020-6/30'2020. Must submit a budget and narrative 
within 30 days of award using OHA-PHD provided format Unspent funds may be eligible for 
carry forward from FY20 to FY21. R/E report due by August 20. 2020. 
6/2020: LPHA hlust use budget guidance and submit budget plan witl'1in 60 days of receiving 
award. 
4/2020: SFY20 COVID-19 Funding 3/21/2020-6130'2020. Must subml a budget and narrative 
within 60 days of award using OHA-PHD provided forma . Unspent funds may be eligible for 
carry forward from SFY20 to SFY21 . R/E report due by August 20, 2020. 
Initial SFY20: Award is 3 months (July-September 2019) of bridge TPEP funding and will be pad 
out at 113rd 
8'2019: Award Is 5 months (July-November 2019) of bridge TPEP funding and viii be paid out at 
115th, all previous footnotes are void and replaced by this one. 
Initial SFY20: LPHA shall not use more than 10% of the Title V funds awarded for a particular 
MCAH Service on Indirect costs. See PE42 language under 4. a. (3) Funding Limitations for 
details. 
Initial SFY20: LPHA shall not use more han 10% of the Title V funds awarded for a particular 
MCAH Service on indirect costs. See PE42 language under 4. a. (3) Funding Limitations for 
details. 
Initial SFY20: LPHA shall not use more than 10% of the Title V funds awarded for a particul8li 
MCAH Service on ndirect costs. See PE42 language under 4. a. (3) Funding Limitations for 
details. 
Initial SFY20: LPHA shall not use more than 10% of the Title V funds awarded for a particular 
MCAH Service on indirect costs. See PE42 language under 4. a. (3) Funding Limitations for 
details. 
7/2019: Funding is for July 15, 2019 - June 30. 2020 

7/2019: Funding for July 1-14, 2019 
9/2019: Funding is for period of October 1, 2019-June 30. 2020 

PE01-04 3/2020: SFY20 COVID-19 Funding 1/21/2020-6/30/2020 
PE01-05 6/2020: Funding period is 3/27/2020-12/30/2020. Unspent funds from SFY20 are eligible for 

carry forward to SFY21 after submitting FY20 Q4 Revenue & Expenditure report. 
PE12 11/2019: $2,008 award increase for scholarship funding for Oregon Prepared or OR-Epi 

AMENDMENT #10 PAGE 13 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA- 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT- FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

State of Oregon Page 3 of 3 
Oregon Health Authority 

Publlc Health Division 

1) Grantee 2) Issue Date This Action 

Name: Morrow County June 03, 2020 AMENDMENT 

FY2020 

Street: 11 0 N Court Street 3) Award Period 

City: Heppner From July 1, 2019 Through June 30, 2020 

State: OR Zip Code: 97836 

4) OHA Publlc Health Funds Approved 
Award Increase/ New 

Program Balance (Decrease) Award Bal 

PE12-02 4/2020: PHEP COVID-19 Funding 3/21/2020-6/30/2020. Unspent SFY20 funds may be carried 
over to SFY21. 

PE13-01 8/2019: Amending to add 2 months of funding (total award is now for July-November 2019) 
PE13-01 10/2019: Amending award to ICAA Tier S7.500 for SFY20. all previous footnotes and 

comments are void and replaced by this one 
PE13-01 1212019: Amending award total to S19.870 for SFY20 all previous footnotes are void and 

replaced by this one. 
PE44-02 7/2019: MH Expansion funding increase 
PE46-02 7/2019: Reducing a rd to $0 and re-allocating award to PE46-03 and PE46-04 

PE46-03 7/2019: State Funding for July 15, 2019-June 30. 2020 
PE46-04 7/2019: Federal Funding for July 1 -July 14, 2019 only 

PE51-01 10/2019: Moving $2,000 of funds from PE51-01 to NCPHD PE51-02 to support collaborative 
work 

PE51-01 1/2020: S1 ,000 increase is a revision of 10/2019 amendment to split amount over current SFY 
and SFY21 

7) Capital outlay Requested In this Action: 
Prior approval Is required for Capital Outlay. Capital Outlay is defined as an expenditure for equipment with 
a purchase price In excess of S5.000 and a life expectancy greater than one year. 

PROG 
PROGRAM ITEM DESCRIPTION COST APPROV 

I I I 
I I I 

159824 TLH AMENDMENT #10 PAGE 14 OF 15 PAGES 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SERVICES 

Attachment C 

159824TLH 

Information required by CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200 

PE01-05: COVID-19 Local Active Monitoring 
Funding Information Table 

Federal Award Identification f\urrber (FAIN): TBD 

Agency/Contractor 

Morrow 

Federal Award Date: 4/22/2020 

Performance Period: 3/27/2020-12/30/2020 

Federal Awarding Agency: TBD 

CFDA Nurrber: 21.019 

CFDA Name: Coronavirus Relief Fund 

Total Federal Award: TBD 

Project Description: Coronavirus Relief Fund 

Awarding Official: TBD 

Indirect Cost Rate: 17.86% 

Research and Development (Y/N): No 

PCA: 

INDEX: 

DUNS 
10741189 

AMENDMENT #10 

TBD 

TBD 

Amount 

$111,948 

PAGE 15 OF 15 PAGES 



DOCUMENT RETURN STATEMENT 

Please complete the following statement and return with the completed signature page and the 
Contractor Data and Certification page and/or Contractor Tax Identification Information (CTII) 
form, if applicable. 

If you have any questions or find errors in the above referenced Document, please contact the 
contract specialist. 

Document number: #159824 Amendment #10 , hereinafter referred to as "Document." 

I, Melissa Lindsay Chair, Board of Commissioners 

Name Title 

received a copy of the above referenced Document, between the State of Oregon, acting by 
and through the Department of Human Services, the Oregon Health Authority, and 

Morrow County by email. 

Contractor's name 

On June 24, 2020 

Date 

I signed the electronically transmitted Document without change. I am returning the completed 
signature page, Contractor Data and Certification page and/or Contractor Tax Identification 
Information (CTII) form, if applicable, with this Document Return Statement. 

June 24, 2020 

Authorizing signature Date 

Please attach this completed form with your signed document(s) and return to the contract 
specialist via email. 

Document Return Statement, Rev. 10/16 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of2) 

[
ForBO~ s]e Item# 

4g., 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners 
(See notations at bottom of form) 

Prestnltr at BOC: Phone Number (Ext): 
Department: Public Health 
Short Title of Agenda Item: 

Requested Agenda Date: 06/24/2020 

(No acronyms please) Thirteenth Amendment to Oregon Health Authority Intergovernmental 
Agreement #159824 for the Financine: of Public Health Services a 

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 
D Order or Resolution D Appointments 
D Ordinance/Public Hearing: D Update on Project/Committee 
D 1st Reading D 2nd Reading [!:I Consent Agenda Eligible 
D Public Comment Anticipated: D Discussion & Action 

Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 
D Document Recording Required D Purchase Pre-Authorization 
~ Contract/Agreement D Other 

D N/ A Purchase Prt-Auiborizations, Contracts & Agreements 

Contractor/Entity: Oregon Health Authority (OHA) 
Contractor/Entity Address: 800 NE Oregon Street, Suite 4658 Portland, OR 97232 
Effective Dates - From: 07 /0l/2019 Through: 06/30/2021 
Total Contract Amount: $223,334.00 Budget Line: Multiple Program Element [ncome 
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? Iii Yes D No 

Reviewed By: 

DATE 

A~~(&J~~~:::::::~~.!:6'JZ.~e:~!!~~l'u~ Administrator 
DATE 

..;;.J ...... N---'-e ..... Is-"-o=n ....c.e=m=ac.;;..;il ____ ___,.;.6_-l_;;6 ..... -2;;;..0;;___Coun ty Counsel 
DATE 

_K_._K_n_o__.p_em_a_il _____ ....;;.6_-2_2_-_2_0_Finance Office 
DATE 

_______________ Human Resources 

Required for all BOC meetings 

Required for all BOC meetings 

*Required for all legal documents 

*Required for all contracts; other 
items as appropriate. 

*If appropriate 
DATE *.-\llcm I week for re-·icw (submit to all simultanwusly). When each office has notified the submitting 

•li·cacirurn t nf aooroval, th,•11 wbwif lb•· rrounl III lbe ROC for u!ttl'rrornt 11 11 lb• m•rn,lo, 
Note: AH other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals 
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests mu t be received in the BOC Office by J :00 p.m. on the 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. 

Rev: 3/30120 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of2) 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY): 

This is for the FY21 award that runs from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. This is a 
restatement as this the process for the mid biennium amendment. This is the initial award for 
FY21. They have skipped 3 amendment numbers to allow for potential amendments for the 
remaining time in FY20. 
FEMA language has been added to the recitals and at the end of Exhibits D and G. OHA intends 
to request reimbursement from FEMA for all allowable costs, and will provide Recipient with 
FEMA reporting forms and requirements for the grant. Recipient shall complete such reports with 
sufficient detail and within the deadlines necessary to comply with FEMA grant requirements for 
reimbursement 
All Program Elements have been modified, mostly small formatting, dates, etc. If any funding is 
limited to a specific time frame it will be noted in the financial assistance award in Exhibit C. 
There is none at this time with a specific time frame. 
Overall increase from FY20 is $51,174.00. This is in PE-001 State Support for Public Health 
with an increase of$10,902.00 with increased CD to include COVID. Also PE-51 LPHA 
Leadership, Governance and Program Implementation to include Public Health Modernization 
with an increase of $8,144.00. This does not include the upcoming awards for COVID contact 
tracing that is coming. 

2. FISCAL IMPACT: 

Funding supports current FTE without any expectations of changes to the level ofFTE. 

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S): 

Following review per county counsel and Kate Knop, finance. I would request that the BOC 
review, approve and sign OHA IGA #159824 Amendment #13 and authorize Chair Lindsay to sign 
on behalf of the County the Document Return Statement. 

~ Attach additional background documentation as needed. 

Rev: 3/30/20 



DOCUMENT RETURN STATEMENT 

Please complete the following statement and return with the completed signature page and the 
Contractor Data and Certification page and/or Contractor Tax Identification Information (CTII) 
form, if applicable. 

If you have any questions or find errors in the above referenced Document, please contact the 
contract specialist. 

Document number: #159824 Amendment #13 , hereinafter referred to as "Document." 

I, Melissa Lindsay Chair, Board of Commissioners 

Name Title 

received a copy of the above referenced Document, between the State of Oregon, acting by 
and through the Department of Human Services, the Oregon Health Authority, and 

Morrow County by email. 
------------------------------

Contractor's name 

On June 24, 2020 

Date 

I signed the electronically transmitted Document without change. I am returning the completed 
signature page, Contractor Data and Certification page and/or Contractor Tax Identification 
Information (CTII) form, if applicable, with this Document Return Statement. 

June 24, 2020 

Authorizing signature Date 

Please attach this completed form with your signed document(s) and return to the contract 
specialist via email. 

Document Return Statement, Rev. 10/16 



Darrell Green 

From: Justin Nelson 
Sent: Tuesday, June 16, 2020 4:24 PM 
To: 
Cc: 

Vickie Turrell; Kate Knop; Diane Kilkenny 
Roberta Lutcher; Darrell Green 

Subject: RE: IGA Agreement 159824 Amendment #13 
Attachments: Document Return Statement IGA 159824 amendment 13 00000006).pdf; 159824-13 

FY21 tlh (00000002).pdf; IGA 159824-13 FY 21 Fillable Agenda Cover Sheet v2.pdf 

I have reviewed and do not have any concerns. 
-Justin 

Justin W Nelson 
Morrow County District Attorney 
Morrow County Counsel 
100 S. Court St. 
P.O. Box 664 
Heppner, OR 97836 
Office: (541) 676-5626 
Fax: (541) 676-5660 
Email: inelson@co. morrow. or. us 

From: Vickie Turrell 
Sent: Wednesday, June 10, 2020 3:33 PM 
To: Kate Knop <kknop@co.morrow.or.us>; Justin Nelson <jnelson@co.morrow.or.us>; Diane Kilkenny 
<dkilkenny@co.morrow.or.us> 
Cc: Roberta Lutcher <rlutcher@co.morrow.or.us> 
Subject: IGA Agreement 159824 Amendment #13 

Hello, 

Here is the new IGA Agreement for F21. This is part of the biennium 2019-2021. I left it on a 
fillable document in case you have need to change my language. 

'11iank you! 
'Vici.ie 'I'urreff 
Pu6{ic Jfea{tfi Office :Manager 
110 N. Court Street 
Jfeyyner, O'R 97836 
Pfione: 541-676-5421 
:fax: 541-676-5652 

CONFIENTIALITY NOTICE: 
This email may contain information that is privileged, confidential, or otherwise exempt from disclosure under 
applicable law. If you are not the addressee or it appears from the content or otherwise that you have received this 

1 



Darrell Green 

From: Kate Knop 
Sent: Wednesday, June 17, 2020 11 :27 AM 
To: 
Cc: 

Vickie Turrell; Roberta Lutcher; Diane Kilkenny; Darrell Green 
Deanne Irving 

Subject: RE: IGA #159824 Amendment 10 

Great job! 

Thank you, 

Kate Knop 
Finance Director 
Morrow County 
P.O. Box 867 
Heppner, OR 97836 
541-676-5615 or x5302 
kknop@co.morrow.or.us 

From: Vickie Turrell 
Sent: Wednesday, June 17, 2020 11:23 AM 
To: Kate Knop <kknop@co.morrow.or.us>; Roberta Lutcher <rlutcher@co.morrow.or.us>; Diane Kilkenny 
<dkilkenny@co.morrow.or.us>; Darrell Green <dgreen@co.morrow.or.us> 
Cc: Deanne Irving <dirving@co.morrow.or.us> 
Subject: IGA #159824 Amendment 10 

Kate, 

I made the suggested revisions and am now forwarding these on to Darrell and Roberta. Justin 
also approved. 

Thank youl 

'Viciie 'I'urrelf 
Pu6ac J-feaftli Office :M.anager 
110 :N. Court Street 
J-feyyner, O'R 97836 
Pfione: 541-676-5421 
:fax: 541-676-5652 

1 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13- TLH CONTRACT DOCUMENT PAGE 1 OF 129 PAGES 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in alternate 
formats such as Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based communications and other 
electronic formats. To request an alternate format, please send an e-mail to dhs-
oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us or call 503-378-3486 (voice), or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to 
arrange for the alternative format. 
AGREEMENT #159824 AMENDMENT #13 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 
2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
This 2019-21 Intergovernmental Agreement for the Financing of Public Health Services (the 

“Agreement”) is between the State of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority (“OHA”) and 
Morrow County ,  the Local Public Health Authority for Morrow County (“LPHA”).  

This Agreement, as originally adopted effective July 1, 2019, and as previously amended, is hereby 
further amended and restated in its entirety.  This amendment and restatement of this Agreement do not affect 
its terms and conditions for Work prior to the effective date of this Amended and Restated Agreement. 

RECITALS 
 WHEREAS, ORS 431.110, 431.115 and 431.413 authorizes OHA and LPHA to collaborate and 
cooperate in providing for basic public health services in the state, and in maintaining and improving public 
health services through county or district administered public health programs;  
 WHEREAS, ORS 431.250 and 431.380 authorize OHA to receive and disburse funds made available for 
public health purposes; 
 WHEREAS, LPHA has established and proposes, during the term of this Agreement, to operate or 
contract for the operation of public health programs in accordance with the policies, procedures, and 
administrative rules of OHA; 
 WHEREAS, LPHA has requested financial assistance from OHA to operate or contract for the operation 
of LPHA’s public health programs; 

WHEREAS, OHA is acquiring services under this Amendment for the purpose of responding to the state 
of emergency declared by the Governor on Saturday, March 7, 2020 and pursuant to the Major Disaster 
Declaration number DR4499OR as a direct result of the COVID-19. OHA intends to request reimbursement 
from FEMA for all allowable costs. 
 WHEREAS, OHA is willing, upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement, to provide financial 
assistance to LPHA to operate or contract for the operation of LPHA’s public health programs; 
 WHEREAS, nothing in this Agreement shall limit the authority of OHA to enforce public health laws 
and rules in accordance with ORS 431.170 whenever LPHA administrator fails to administer or enforce ORS 
431.001 to 431.550 and 431.990 and any other public health law or rule of this state; 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 
  

mailto:dhs-oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us
mailto:dhs-oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us
file://dhs.sdc.pvt/HSB/PROCURE/Public%20Health%20FAA%20Process/19-21%20FAA%20Process/19-21%20Master%20Templates/Draft%20FY21/20-21%20LPHA%20Master%20Amended%20and%20Restated%20Template%205-4-20%20Final.docx#NO1


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13- TLH CONTRACT DOCUMENT PAGE 2 OF 129 PAGES 

AGREEMENT 
1. Effective Date and Duration.  This Amended and Restated Agreement shall become effective on July 

1, 2020 regardless of the date of signature. Unless terminated earlier in accordance with its terms, this 
Agreement shall expire on June 30, 2021. 

2. Agreement Documents, Order of Precedence.  This Agreement consists of the following documents: 
This Agreement without Exhibits 
Exhibit A Definitions 
Exhibit B Program Element Descriptions 
Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award and Revenue and Expenditure Reporting Forms 
Exhibit D Special Terms and Conditions 
Exhibit E General Terms and Conditions 
Exhibit F Standard Terms and Conditions 
Exhibit G Required Federal Terms and Conditions 
Exhibit H Required Subcontract Provisions 
Exhibit I Subcontractor Insurance Requirements 
Exhibit J Information Required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200 
In the event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement, the 
language in the document with the highest precedence shall control. The precedence of each of the 
documents comprising this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence to lowest 
precedence:  this Agreement without Exhibits, Exhibit G, Exhibit A, Exhibit C, Exhibit D, Exhibit B, 
Exhibit F, Exhibit E, Exhibit H, Exhibit I, and Exhibit J. 

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13- TLH CONTRACT DOCUMENT PAGE 3 OF 129 PAGES 

EACH PARTY, BY EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT, HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES 
THAT IT HAS READ THIS AGREEMENT, UNDERSTANDS IT, AND AGREES TO BE 
BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

3. SIGNATURES. 

STATE OF OREGON, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 
By:   
Name: /for/ Carole L. Yann  
Title: Director of Fiscal and Business Operations 
Date:   

MORROW COUNTY LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH AUTHORITY 
By:   
Name:   
Title:   
Date:   

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE – APPROVED FOR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
Agreement form group-approved by Steven Marlowe, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Tax and 
Finance Section, General Counsel Division, Oregon Department of Justice by email on May 11, 2020, 
copy of email approval in Agreement file. 

REVIEWED BY: 
OHA PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION 
By:   
Name: Derrick Clark (or designee)  
Title: Program Support Manager  
Date:   

 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT A PAGE 4 OF 129 PAGES 

EXHIBIT A 
DEFINITIONS 

 As used in this Agreement, the following words and phrases shall have the indicated meanings.  Certain 
additional words and phrases are defined in the Program Element Descriptions.  When a word or phrase is 
defined in a particular Program Element Description, the word or phrase shall not have the ascribed meaning in 
any part of this Agreement other than the particular Program Element Description in which it is defined. 
1. “Agreement” means this 2019-2021 Intergovernmental Agreement for the Financing of Public Health 

Services.  
2. “Agreement Settlement” means OHA’s reconciliation, after termination or expiration of this 

Agreement, of amounts OHA actually disbursed to LPHA with amounts that OHA is obligated to pay to 
LPHA under this Agreement from the Financial Assistance Award, based on allowable expenditures as 
properly reported to OHA in accordance with this Agreement. OHA reconciles disbursements and 
payments on an individual Program Element basis.  

3. “Allowable Costs” means the costs described in 2 CFR Part 200 or 45 CFR Part 75, as applicable, 
except to the extent such costs are limited or excluded by other provisions of this Agreement, whether in 
the applicable Program Element Descriptions, the Special Terms and Conditions, the Financial 
Assistance Award, or otherwise.  

4. “CFDA” mean the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance. 
5. “Claims” has the meaning set forth in Section 1 of Exhibit F.  
6. “Conference of Local Health Officials” or “CLHO” means the Conference of Local Health Officials 

created by ORS 431.330. 
7. “Contractor” or “Sub-Recipient” are terms which pertain to the accounting and administration of 

federal funds awarded under this Agreement.  In accordance with the State Controller’s Oregon 
Accounting Manual, policy 30.40.00.102, OHA has determined that LPHA is a Sub-Recipient of federal 
funds and a Contractor of federal funds as further identified in Section 18 “Program Element” below. 

8. “Federal Funds” means all funds paid to LPHA under this Agreement that OHA receives from an 
agency, instrumentality or program of the federal government of the United States. 

9. “Financial Assistance Award” or “FAA” means the description of financial assistance set forth in 
Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference; as 
such Financial Assistance Award may be amended from time to time. 

10. “Grant Appeals Board” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit E. Section 1.c.(3)(b)ii.A. 
11. “HIPAA Related” means the requirements in Exhibit D, Section 2 “HIPAA Compliance” applied to a 

specific Program Element. 
12. “LPHA” has the meaning set forth in ORS 431.003. 
13. “LPHA Client” means, with respect to a particular Program Element service, any individual who is 

receiving that Program Element service from or through LPHA. 
14. “Medicaid” means federal funds received by OHA under Title XIX of the Social Security Act and 

Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP) funds administered jointly with Title XIX funds as part of 
the state medical assistance program by OHA. 

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT A PAGE 5 OF 129 PAGES 

15. “Misexpenditure” means funds, other than an Overexpenditure, disbursed to LPHA by OHA under this 
Agreement and expended by LPHA that is: 
a. Identified by the federal government as expended contrary to applicable statutes, rules, OMB 

Circulars, 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200, or 45 CFR Part 75, as applicable, 
or any other authority that governs the permissible expenditure of such funds for which the 
federal government has requested reimbursement by the State of Oregon, whether in the form of 
a federal determination of improper use of federal funds, a federal notice of disallowance, or 
otherwise; or 

b. Identified by the State of Oregon or OHA as expended in a manner other than that permitted by 
this Agreement, including without limitation any funds expended by LPHA, contrary to 
applicable statutes, rules, OMB Circulars, 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200, or 
45 CFR Part 75, as applicable, or any other authority that governs the permissible expenditure of 
such funds; or 

c. Identified by the State of Oregon or OHA as expended on the delivery of a Program Element 
service that did not meet the standards and requirements of this Agreement with respect to that 
service. 

16. “Oregon Health Authority” or “OHA” means the Oregon Health Authority of the State of Oregon. 
17. “Overexpenditure” means funds disbursed to LPHA by OHA under this Agreement and expended by 

OHA under this Agreement that is identified by the State of Oregon or OHA, through Agreement 
Settlement, as being in excess of the funds LPHA is entitled to as determined in accordance with the 
financial assistance calculation methodologies set forth in the applicable Program Elements or in Exhibit 
D, “Special Terms and Conditions.” 

18. “Program Element” means any one of the following services or group of related services as described 
in Exhibit B “Program Element Descriptions”, in which costs are covered in whole or in part with 
financial assistance pursuant to Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” of this Agreement.   

2020-2021 PROGRAM ELEMENTS (PE) 

PE NUMBER AND TITLE 
• SUB-ELEMENT(S) 

FUND 
TYPE 

FEDERAL AGENCY/ 
GRANT TITLE CFDA# 

HIPAA 
RELATED 

(Y/N) 

SUB-
RECIPIENT 

(Y/N) 
PE 01 State Support for Public 
Health (SSPH) 

• PE 01-01 State Support 
for Public Health 
(SSPH) 

GF N/A N/A N N 

PE 03 Tuberculosis Case 
Management N/A N/A N/A N N 

PE 10 Sexually Transmitted 
Disease (STD) N/A N/A N/A N N 

PE 12 Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness Program (PHEP) FF CDC/Public Health 

Emergency Preparedness 93.069 N 
 

Y 
 

PE 13-01 Tobacco Prevention 
and Education Program (TPEP) OF N/A N/A N N 

I I I 

-

-

-

-



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT A PAGE 6 OF 129 PAGES 

PE NUMBER AND TITLE 
• SUB-ELEMENT(S) 

FUND 
TYPE 

FEDERAL AGENCY/ 
GRANT TITLE CFDA# 

HIPAA 
RELATED 

(Y/N) 

SUB-
RECIPIENT 

(Y/N) 
PE 42 Maternal, Child and 
Adolescent Health (MCAH) 
Services 

• PE 42-03 Perinatal 
General Funds & Title 
XIX 

GF/FF 
Title XIX Medicaid 
Admin/Medical Assistance 
Program 

93.778 Y N 

• PE 42-04 Babies First! 
General Funds GF N/A N/A Y N 

• PE 42-06 General Funds 
& Title XIX GF/FF 

Title XIX Medicaid 
Admin/Medical Assistance 
Program 

93.778 Y N 

• PE 42-11 Title V FF HRSA/Maternal & Child 
Health Block Grants 93.994 Y Y 

• PE 42-12 Oregon 
Mothers Care Title V FF HRSA/Maternal & Child 

Health Block Grants 93.994 Y Y 

PE 43-01 Immunization Services 
• PE 43-01 Immunization 

Services  
FF CDC/Immunization 

Cooperative Agreements 93.268 N Y 

PE 44 School-Based Health 
Centers (SBHC) 

• PE 44-01 SBHC Base 
GF N/A N/A N N 

• PE 44-02 SBHC Mental 
Health Expansion GF N/A N/A N N 

PE 46 Reproductive Health 
Community Participation & 
Assurance of Access 

• PE 46-05 

GF N/A N/A N N 

PE 51 Public Health 
Modernization 

• PE 51-01 Leadership, 
Governance & Program 
Implementation 

GF N/A N/A N N 

 
19. “Program Element Description” means a description of the services required under this Agreement, as 

set forth in Exhibit B. 
20. “Subcontract” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit E “General Terms and Conditions,” Section 3. 
21. “Subcontractor” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit E “General Terms and Conditions,” Section 3.  

As used in a Program Element Description and elsewhere in this Agreement where the context requires, 
Subcontractor also includes LPHA if LPHA provides services described in the Program Element 
directly. 

22. “Underexpenditure” means money disbursed to LPHA by OHA under this Agreement that remains 
unexpended by LPHA at Agreement termination. 

 

I I I 

-

-

-

-



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #01 – STATE SUPPORT FOR PUBLIC HEALTH PAGE 7 OF 129 PAGES 

EXHIBIT B 
PROGRAM ELEMENT DESCRIPTIONS 

Program Element #01: State Support for Public Health (SSPH) 
1. Description. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to operate a 
Communicable Disease control program in LPHA’s service area that includes the following 
components: (a) epidemiological investigations that report, monitor and control Communicable Disease, 
(b) diagnostic and consultative Communicable Disease services, (c) early detection, education, and 
prevention activities to reduce the morbidity and mortality of reportable Communicable Diseases, (d) 
appropriate immunizations for human and animal target populations to control and reduce the incidence 
of Communicable Diseases, and (e) collection and analysis of Communicable Disease and other health 
hazard data for program planning and management. 
Communicable Diseases affect the health of individuals and communities throughout Oregon. 
Disparities exist for populations that are at greatest risk, while emerging Communicable Diseases pose 
new threats to everyone. The vision of the foundational Communicable Disease Control program is to 
ensure that everyone in Oregon is protected from Communicable Disease threats through Communicable 
Disease and Outbreak reporting, investigation, and application of public health control measures such as 
isolation, post-exposure prophylaxis, education, or other measures as warranted by investigative 
findings. 
All changes to this Program Element are effective upon receipt of grant award unless otherwise noted in 
Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Specific to State Support for Public Health  
a. Case: A person who has been diagnosed by a health care provider, as defined in OAR 333-017-

0000, as having a particular disease, infection, or condition as described in OAR 333-018-0015 
and 333-018-0900, or whose illness meets defining criteria published in the OHA’s 
Investigative Guidelines.  

b. Communicable Disease: A disease or condition, the infectious agent of which may be 
transmitted to and cause illness in a human being. 

c. Outbreak: A significant or notable increase in the number of Cases of a disease or other 
condition of public health importance (ORS 431A.005). 

d. Reportable Disease: Any of the diseases or conditions specified in OAR 333-018-0015 and 
OAR 333-018-0900.  

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #01 – STATE SUPPORT FOR PUBLIC HEALTH PAGE 8 OF 129 PAGES 

3. Program Components. Activities and services delivered under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities, as defined in   Oregon’s Public Health 
Modernization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man
ual.pdf) as well as with public health accountability outcome and process metrics (if applicable) as 
follows:  
a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization 

Manual) 

Program Components  Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 

 
C

D
 C

on
tro

l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that 
aligns with each component 
X = Other applicable foundational programs 

X = Foundational capabilities that align with 
each component 

Epidemiological 
investigations that report, 
monitor and control 
Communicable Disease 
(CD).  

*      X  X   X 

Diagnostic and 
consultative CD services. *        X    

Early detection, education, 
and prevention activities.  *      X  X  X  

Appropriate immunizations 
for human and animal 
target populations to 
reduce the incidence of 
CD.   

*   X   X      

Collection and analysis of 
CD and other health hazard 
data for program planning 
and management. 

*      X  X X  X 

 
  

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #01 – STATE SUPPORT FOR PUBLIC HEALTH PAGE 9 OF 129 PAGES 

b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric: 
Gonorrhea rates 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Modernization Process Measure: 
(1) Percent of gonorrhea Cases that had at least one contact that received treatment; and 
(2) Percent of gonorrhea Case reports with complete “priority” fields. 

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements. By accepting and using the Financial Assistance awarded 
under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct the following activities in 
accordance with the indicated procedural and operational requirements:  
a. LPHA must operate its Communicable Disease program in accordance with the Requirements 

and Standards for the Control of Communicable Disease set forth in ORS Chapters 431, 432, 
433 and 437 and OAR Chapter 333, Divisions 12, 17, 18, 19 and 24, as such statutes and 
rules may be amended from time to time. 

b. LPHA must use all reasonable means to investigate in a timely manner all reports of Reportable 
Diseases, infections, or conditions. To identify possible sources of infection and to carry out 
appropriate control measures, the LPHA Administrator shall investigate each report following 
procedures outlined in OHA’s Investigative Guidelines or other procedures approved by OHA. 
OHA may provide assistance in these investigations, in accordance with OAR 333-019-0000. 
Investigative guidelines are available at: 
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommuni
cableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Pages/index.aspx  

c. As part of its Communicable Disease control program, LPHA must, within its service area, 
investigate the Outbreaks of Communicable Diseases, institute appropriate Communicable 
Disease control measures, and submit required information in a timely manner regarding the 
Outbreak to OHA in Orpheus as prescribed in OHA CD Investigative Guidelines available at: 
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommuni
cableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Pages/index.aspx  

d. LPHA must establish and maintain a single telephone number whereby physicians, hospitals, 
other health care providers, OHA and the public can report Communicable Diseases and 
Outbreaks to LPHA 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. LPHA may employ an answering service 
or 911 system, but the ten-digit number must be available to callers from outside the local 
emergency dispatch area, and LPHA must respond to and investigate reported Communicable 
Diseases and Outbreaks.   

e. LPHA must attend Communicable Disease 101 and Communicable Disease 303 training. 
f. LPHA must attend monthly Orpheus user group meetings or monthly Orpheus training 

webinars.  
g. 01-04: COVID-19  

LPHA must: 

• Submit a budget plan and narrative within 30 days of receiving this amendment.  Refer to 
LPHA COVID-19 Budget Guidance document for terms and conditions.  

• OHA will send “Budget Narrative Template”, “Budget Guidance” and any other 
applicable documents that OHA may identify. 

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommunicableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Pages/index.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommunicableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Pages/index.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommunicableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Pages/index.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommunicableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Pages/index.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommunicableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Pages/index.aspx


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #01 – STATE SUPPORT FOR PUBLIC HEALTH PAGE 10 OF 129 PAGES 

h. 01-05: COVID-19 In cooperation with OHA, the LPHA must ensure adequate culturally and 
linguistically responsive COVID-19 testing, investigation resources and contact tracing resources 
to limit the spread of COVID-19. OHA will be entering into grant agreements with community-
based organizations (CBOs) to provide a range of culturally and linguistically responsive 
services, including community engagement and education, contact tracing, social services and 
wraparound supports. Services provided by CBOs will complement the work of the LPHA. 
LPHA must conduct the following activities in accordance with the guidance to be provided by 
OHA: 
(1) Cultural and linguistic competency and responsiveness. 

LPHA must: 
(a) Partner with CBOs, including culturally-specific organizations where available in 

the jurisdiction, including those funded by OHA through a Memorandum of 
Understanding or similar agreement that clearly describes the role of the CBO that 
has entered into a grant agreement with OHA, to ensure culturally and 
linguistically responsive community outreach and education strategies, testing, 
contact tracing and monitoring, and social service and wraparound supports.  
OHA will share with LPHA the grant agreement and deliverables between OHA 
and the CBOs and the contact information for all the CBOs.  If OHA’s grant with 
a CBO in the jurisdiction includes contact tracing, LPHA will execute, as part of 
the MOU between the LPHA and CBO, the CBO’s requirements to immediately 
report presumptive cases to LPHA, ensure HIPAA training and compliance by the 
CBO so the LPHA and CBO can share personal health information, clearly define 
referral and wrap-around service pathways and require regular communication 
between CBO and LPHA so services and payments are not duplicative.  

(b) Work with local CBOs including culturally-specific organizations to develop and 
track progress toward equity goals to maintain equity at the center of the LPHA’s 
COVID-19 response. 

(c) Work with disproportionately affected communities to ensure a culturally and 
linguistically responsive staffing plan for case investigations, contact tracing, 
social services and wraparound supports that meets community needs is in place. 

(d) Ensure the cultural and linguistic needs and accessibility needs for people with 
disabilities or people facing other institutionalized barriers are addressed in the 
LPHA’s case investigations, contact tracing, and in the delivery of social services 
and wraparound supports.  

(e) Have and follow policies and procedures for meeting community members' 
language needs relating to both written translation and spoken or American Sign 
Language (ASL) interpretation.  

(f) Employ or contract with individuals who can provide in-person, phone, and 
electronic community member access to services in languages and cultures of the 
primary populations being served based on identified language (including ASL) 
needs in the County demographic data. 

(g) Ensure language access through telephonic interpretation service for community 
members whose primary language is other than English, but not a language 
broadly available, including ASL. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #01 – STATE SUPPORT FOR PUBLIC HEALTH PAGE 11 OF 129 PAGES 

(h) Provide written information provided by OHA that is culturally and linguistically 
appropriate for identified consumer populations. All information shall read at the 
sixth-grade reading level. 

(i) Provide facial coverings and other personal protective equipment (PPE) to LPHA 
staff when appropriate. 

(j) Provide opportunities to participate in OHA trainings to LPHA staff and LPHA 
contractors that conduct case investigation, contact tracing, and provide social 
services and wraparound supports; trainings should be focused on long-standing 
trauma in Tribes, racism and oppression.   

(2) Testing 
LPHA must: 
(a) Work with health care and other partners to ensure COVID-19 testing is available 

to individuals within the LPHA’s jurisdiction meeting current OHA criteria for 
testing and other local testing needs. 

(b) Work with health care and other partners to ensure testing is provided in a 
culturally and linguistically responsive manner with an emphasis on making 
testing available to disproportionately impacted communities and as a part of the 
jurisdiction’s contact tracing strategy. 

(c) Maintain a current list of entities providing COVID-19 testing and at what 
volume.  

(d) Provide reports to OHA on testing locations and volume as requested. 
(3) Contact Tracing 

LPHA must: 
(a) Maintain the capacity to surge a minimum of 15 contact tracers for every 100,000 

people in the jurisdiction. as needed, based on disease rates. OHA grants with 
CBOs for contact tracing will count toward this minimum. 

(b) Have contact tracing staff that reflect the demographic makeup of the jurisdiction 
and who can provide culturally and linguistically competent and responsive 
tracing services. In addition, or alternatively, enter into an agreement(s) with 
community-based and culturally-specific organizations to provide such contact 
tracing services. OHA grants with CBOs will count toward fulfilling this 
requirement. 

(c) Ensure all contact tracing staff are trained in accordance with OHA investigative 
guidelines and data entry protocols. 

(d) Follow up with at least 95% of cases within 24 hours of notification. 
  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #01 – STATE SUPPORT FOR PUBLIC HEALTH PAGE 12 OF 129 PAGES 

(4) Case investigation 
LPHA must: 
(a) Conduct all case investigations and monitor outbreaks. 
(b) Enter all case investigation and contact tracing data in Orpheus and ARIAS, as 

directed by OHA. 
(c) Ensure all LPHA staff designated to utilize Orpheus and ARIAS are trained in 

these systems. Include in the tracing data whether new positive cases are tied to a 
known existing positive case or to community spread. 

(5) Isolation and quarantine 
LPHA must: 
(a) By June 15, 2020, demonstrate to OHA that a quarantine location is identified and 

ready to be used. 
(b) Facilitate efforts to ensure isolation and quarantine housing, transportation, health 

care supplies, meals, telecommunications and other supports needed for any 
resident in the jurisdiction who has a financial or physical need.  The LPHA will 
utilize existing resources when possible such as covered case management 
benefits, WIC benefits, etc. 

(6) Social services and wraparound supports.  
LPHA must ensure social services referral and tracking processes are developed and 
maintained.  LPHA must cooperate with CBOs to provide referral and follow-up for 
social services and wraparound supports for affected individuals and communities. OHA 
contracts with CBOs will count toward fulfilling this requirement. 

(7) Tribal Nation support.  
LPHA must ensure alignment of contact tracing and supports for patients and families by 
coordinating with local tribes if a patient identifies as American Indian/Alaska Native 
and/or a member of an Oregon Tribe, if the patient gives permission to notify the Tribe. 

(8) Support infection prevention and control for high-risk populations. 
LPHA must: 
(a) Migrant and seasonal farmworker support. Partner with farmers, agriculture 

sector and farmworker service organizations to develop and execute plans for 
COVID-19 testing, quarantine and isolation, and social service needs for migrant 
and seasonal farmworkers. 

(b) Congregate care facilities. In collaboration with State licensing agency, support 
infection prevention assessments, COVID-19 testing, infection control, and 
isolation and quarantine protocols in congregate care facilities. 

(c) High risk business operations. In collaboration with State licensing agencies, 
partner with food processing and manufacturing businesses to ensure adequate 
practices to prevent COVID-19 exposure, conduct testing and respond to 
outbreaks.  

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #01 – STATE SUPPORT FOR PUBLIC HEALTH PAGE 13 OF 129 PAGES 

(d) Vulnerable populations. Support COVID-19 testing, infection control, isolation 
and quarantine, and social services and wraparound supports for homeless 
individuals, individuals residing in homeless camps, individuals involved in the 
criminal justice system and other vulnerable populations at high risk for COVID-
19. 

(9) Community education. LPHA must work with CBOs and other partners to provide 
culturally and linguistically responsive community outreach and education related to 
COVID-19. 

i. 01-06: COVID-19: Regional Active Monitoring. Activities. In cooperation with OHA, the 
LPHA must work with other LPHAs in the region to collaboratively support epidemiologic and 
surge capacity needs. LPHA must conduct the following activities in accordance with guidance 
to be provided by OHA: 
LPHA must: 
(1) Ensure regular communication among LPHAs in the region. 
(2) Compile and share regional data regularly among LPHAs. 
(3) Establish MOU with LPHAs in the region for epidemiologic and surge capacity needs. 
(4) Implement MOU as needed. 

j. Regional budget and budget narratives. LPHA regional fiscal agent must submit a regional 
budget and budget narrative for approval by OHA within 60 days of receiving amendment.  
Refer to LPHA COVID-19 PE 01-05 Budget Guidance document and LPHA PE 01-06 COVID-
19 Budget Guidance document for terms and conditions. OHA will send “Budget Narrative 
Template”, “Budget Guidance” and any other applicable documents that OHA may identify. 
These funds may be used for services and supplies such as computers and telephones needed for 
contact tracing. 
OHA will:  
(1) Make contact tracing and case investigation training available. 
(2) Require and provide access to training for all local public health and CBOs on Protected 

Health Information and CD investigation. 
(3) Provide information on the availability of trauma informed training for both LPHAs and 

CBOs. 
  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #01 – STATE SUPPORT FOR PUBLIC HEALTH PAGE 14 OF 129 PAGES 

5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting. LPHA must complete an “Oregon Health Authority Public 
Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” located in Exhibit C of the Agreement.  
a. These reports must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the following schedule: 
 

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First: July 1 – September 30 October 30 

Second: October 1 – December 31 January 30 

Third: January 1 – March 31 April 30 

Fourth: April 1 – June 30 August 20 

b. All funds received under a PE or PE- supplement must be included in the quarterly Revenue and 
Expense reports.   

c. Funding under PE01-05 includes three components – a) base funding, b) active monitoring fee 
for service payment, and c) active monitoring, isolation and quarantine, and wraparound 
services.   
(a) Base Funding – Award will be issued June 2020 for FY20.  Funds can be used from 

March 27, 2020-December 30, 2020.  Unspent funds during FY20 are eligible for carry 
forward to FY21 once FY20 Q4 Revenue and Expense Reports are submitted.   

(b) COVID-19 Active Monitoring Fee for Service payment – a fee-for-service payment will 
be paid for each case or contact per OHA guidance.  LPHA must submit invoices to 
receive these funds for the period of March 27,2020-December 30, 2020.  Final invoice 
due no later than January 31, 2021.  OHA will amend the PE monthly upon receipt of the 
invoice.  Payment will be made once the agreement is executed.  LPHA must submit an 
invoice no less than quarterly to OHA.  Invoice amounts must be reported on the R/E 
reports.   

(c)  COVID -19 Active Monitoring, Isolation and Quarantine, and Wrapround services – 
LPHAs must also submit invoices for isolation and quarantine-related expenses per OHA 
guidance.  LPHA must submit invoices to receive these funds for the period of March 27, 
2020-December 30, 2020.  Final invoice due no later than January 31, 2021.  OHA will 
amend the PE monthly upon receipt of the invoice.  Payment will be made once the 
agreement is executed.  LPHA must submit an invoice no less than quarterly to OHA.  
Invoice amounts must be reported on the R/E reports. 

d. PE01-06 - Regional Active Monitoring – Funds are available for March 27, 2020-December 30, 
2020. 

6. Reporting Requirements. Not applicable. 
7. Performance Measures.  LPHA must operate its Communicable Disease control program in a manner 

designed to make progress toward achieving the following Public Health Modernization Process 
Measures:  
a. Percent of gonorrhea Cases that had at least one contact that received treatment; and 
b. Percent of gonorrhea Case reports with complete “priority” fields. 

 
 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #03 – TUBERCULOSIS SERVICES PAGE 15 OF 129 PAGES 

Program Element #03: Tuberculosis Services 
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:    
Public Health Division/Center for Public Health Practice/HIV, STD and TB Section 
1. Description. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to deliver Tuberculosis 
Services.  
ORS 433.006 and Oregon Administrative Rule 333-019-0000 assign responsibility to LPHA for 
Tuberculosis (“TB”) investigations and implementation of TB control measures within LPHA’s service 
area. The funds provided for TB case management (including contact investigation) and B waiver follow-
up under the Agreement for this Program Element may only be used as supplemental funds to support 
LPHA’s TB investigation and control efforts and are not intended to be the sole funding for LPHA’s TB 
investigation and control program.   
Pulmonary tuberculosis is an infectious disease that is airborne.  Treatment for TB disease must be 
provided by Directly Observed Therapy to ensure the patient is cured and prevent drug resistant TB.  
Screening and treating Contacts stops disease transmission.  Tuberculosis prevention and control is a 
priority in order to protect the population from communicable disease and is included in the State Health 
Improvement Plan (SHIP).  The priority outcome measure is to reduce the incidence of TB disease among 
U.S. born person in Oregon to .4 Cases per 100,000 by 2020. 
This Program Element, and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the month 
noted in Issue Date section of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted in 
Comments and Footnotes of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Specific to TB Services 
a. Active TB Disease:  TB disease in an individual whose immune system has failed to control his 

or her TB infection and who has become ill with Active TB Disease, as determined in 
accordance with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention’s (CDC) laboratory or clinical 
criteria for Active TB Disease and based on a diagnostic evaluation of the individual. 

b. Appropriate Therapy: Current TB treatment regimens recommended by the CDC, the 
American Thoracic Society, the Academy of Pediatrics, and the Infectious Diseases Society of 
America. 

c. Associated Cases: Additional Cases of TB disease discovered while performing a Contact 
investigation. 

d. B-waiver Immigrants: Immigrants or refugees screened for TB prior to entry to the U.S. and 
found to have TB disease or LTB Infection. 

e. B-waiver Follow-Up: B waiver follow-up includes initial attempts by the LPHA to locate the B-
waiver immigrant. If located, LPHA proceeds to coordinate or provide TB medical evaluation 
and treatment as needed. Updates on status are submitted regularly by LPHA using Electronic 
Disease Network (EDN) or the follow-up worksheet.  

f. Case: A Case is an individual who has been diagnosed by a health care provider, as defined in 
OAR 333-017-0000, as having a reportable disease, infection, or condition, as described in OAR 
333-018-0015, or whose illness meets defining criteria published in OHA’s Investigative 
Guidelines. 

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #03 – TUBERCULOSIS SERVICES PAGE 16 OF 129 PAGES 

g. Cohort Review:  A systematic review of the management of patients with TB disease and their 
Contacts.  The “cohort” is a group of TB Cases counted (confirmed as Cases) over 3 months.  
The Cases are reviewed 6-9 months after being counted to ensure they have completed treatment 
or are nearing the end.  Details of the management and outcomes of TB Cases are reviewed in a 
group with the information presented by the case manager. 

h. Contact:  An individual who was significantly exposed to an infectious Case of Active TB 
Disease. 

i. Directly Observed Therapy (DOT): LPHA staff (or other person appropriately designated by 
the LPHA) observes an individual with TB disease swallowing each dose of TB medication to 
assure adequate treatment and prevent the development of drug resistant TB.   

j. Evaluated (in context of Contact investigation): A Contact received a complete TB symptom 
review and tests as described in OHA’s Investigative Guidelines. 

k. Interjurisdictional Transfer: A Suspected Case, TB Case or Contact transferred for follow-up 
evaluation and care from another jurisdiction either within or outside of Oregon. 

l. Investigative Guidelines:  OHA guidelines, which are incorporated herein by this reference are 
available for review at:  
http://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/Tuberculosis/Docum
ents/investigativeguide.pdf. 

m. Latent TB Infection (LTBI): TB disease in a person whose immune system is keeping the TB 
infection under control.  LTBI is also referred to as TB in a dormant stage. 

n. Medical Evaluation: A complete Medical Examination of an individual for TB including a 
medical history, physical examination, TB skin test or interferon gamma release assay, chest x-
ray, and any appropriate molecular, bacteriologic, histologic examinations. 

o. Suspected Case: A Suspected Case is an individual whose illness is thought by a health care 
provider, as defined in OAR 333-017-0000, to be likely due to a reportable disease, infection, or 
condition, as described in OAR 333-018-0015, or whose illness meets defining criteria published 
in OHA’s Investigative Guidelines. This suspicion may be based on signs, symptoms, or 
laboratory findings. 

p. TB Case Management Services:  Dynamic and systematic management of a Case of TB where 
a person, known as a TB Case manager, is assigned responsibility for the management of an 
individual TB Case to ensure completion of treatment.  TB Case Management Services requires 
a collaborative approach to providing and coordinating health care services for the individual.  
The Case manager is responsible for ensuring adequate TB treatment, coordinating care as 
needed, providing patient education and counseling, performing Contact investigations and 
following infected Contacts through completion of treatment, identifying barriers to care and 
implementing strategies to remove those barriers.  

  

http://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/Tuberculosis/Documents/investigativeguide.pdf
http://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/Tuberculosis/Documents/investigativeguide.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #03 – TUBERCULOSIS SERVICES PAGE 17 OF 129 PAGES 

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities. The 
activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics (if 
applicable), as follows (see Oregon’s Public Health Modernization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man
ual.pdf):   
a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization 

Manual) 
Program Components  Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 

 
C

D
 C

on
tro

l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that 
aligns with each component 
X = Other applicable foundational programs 

X = Foundational capabilities that align with 
each component 

TB Case Management 
Services *     X X  X    

TB Contact Investigation 
and Evaluation *      X  X    

Participation in TB 
Cohort Review *      X      

Evaluation of B-waiver 
Immigrants  *      X  X    

b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric: Not applicable 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Modernization Process Measure: Not applicable   

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements., By accepting fee-for-service (FFS) funds to provide TB 
case management or B waiver follow-up, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in accordance with the 
following requirements:  
a. LPHA must include the following minimum TB services in its TB investigation and control 

program if that program is supported in whole or in part with funds provided under this 
Agreement: TB Case Management Services, as defined above and further described below and in 
OHA’s Investigative Guidelines. 

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #03 – TUBERCULOSIS SERVICES PAGE 18 OF 129 PAGES 

b. LPHA will receive $3500 for each new case of Active TB disease documented in Orpheus for 
which the LPHA provides TB Case Management Services.  LPHA will receive $300 for each 
new B waiver follow-up. 

c. TB Case Management Services.  LPHA’s TB Case Management Services must include the 
following minimum components: 
(1) LPHA must investigate and monitor treatment for each Case and Suspected Case of 

Active TB Disease identified by or reported to LPHA whose residence is in LPHA’s 
jurisdiction, to confirm the diagnosis of TB and ensure completion of adequate therapy. 

(2) LPHA must require individuals who reside in LPHA’s jurisdiction and who LPHA 
suspects of having Active TB Disease, to receive appropriate Medical Examinations and 
laboratory testing to confirm the diagnosis of TB and response to therapy, through the 
completion of treatment.  LPHA must assist in arranging the laboratory testing and 
Medical Examination, as necessary.  

(3) LPHA must provide medication for the treatment of TB disease to all individuals who 
reside in LPHA’s jurisdiction and who have TB disease but who do not have the means to 
purchase TB medications or for whom obtaining or using identified means is a barrier to 
TB treatment compliance.  LPHA must monitor, at least monthly and in person, 
individuals receiving medication(s) for adherence to treatment guidelines, medication 
side effects, and clinical response to treatment. 

(4) DOT is the standard of care for the treatment of TB disease.  Cases of TB disease should 
be treated via DOT.  If DOT is not utilized, OHA’s TB Program must be consulted.  

(5) OHA’s TB Program must be consulted prior to initiation of any TB treatment regimen 
which is not recommended by the most current CDC, American Thoracic Society and 
Infectious Diseases Society of America TB treatment guideline. 

(6) LPHA may assist the patient in completion of treatment for TB disease by utilizing the 
below methods.  Methods to ensure adherence should be documented. 
(a) Proposed interventions for assisting the individual to overcome obstacles to 

treatment adherence (e.g. assistance with transportation).  
(b) Proposed use of incentives and enablers to encourage the individual’s compliance 

with the treatment plan.  
(7) With respect to each Case of TB disease within LPHA’s jurisdiction that is identified by 

or reported to LPHA, LPHA must perform a Contact investigation to identify Contacts, 
Associated Cases and source of infection.  The LPHA must evaluate all located Contacts 
or confirm that all located Contacts were advised of their risk for TB infection and 
disease. 

(8) LPHA must offer or advise each located Contact identified with TB infection or disease, 
or confirm that all located Contacts were offered or advised, to take Appropriate Therapy 
and must monitor each Contact who starts treatment through the completion of treatment 
(or discontinuation of treatment). 

d. If LPHA receives in-kind resources under this Agreement in the form of medications for treating 
TB, LPHA must use those medications to treat individuals for TB.  In the event of a non-TB 
related emergency (i.e. meningococcal contacts), with notification to TB Program, the LPHA 
may use these medications to address the emergent situation. 

e. LPHA must present TB Cases through participation in the quarterly Cohort Review.  If the 
LPHA is unable to present the Case at the designated time, other arrangements must be made in 
collaboration with OHA. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #03 – TUBERCULOSIS SERVICES PAGE 19 OF 129 PAGES 

f. LPHA must accept B-waivers Immigrants and Interjurisdictional Transfers for evaluation and 
follow-up, as appropriate for LPHA capabilities. 

g. If LPHA contracts with another person to provide the services required under this Program 
Element, the in-kind resources in the form of medications received by LPHA from OHA must be 
provided, free of charge, to the contractor for the purposes set out in this Program Element and 
the contractor must comply with all requirements related to such medications unless OHA 
informs LPHA in writing that the medications cannot be provided to the contractor. The LPHA 
must document the medications provided to a contractor under this Program Element. 

5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting.  In lieu of the LPHA completing an “Oregon Health 
Authority Public Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” located in Exhibit C of this Agreement, 
OHA-PHD will send a pre-populated invoice to the LPHA for review and signature on or before the 5th 
business day of the month following the  end of the first, second, third and fourth fiscal year quarters. The 
LPHA must submit the signed invoice no later than 30 calendar days after receipt of the invoice from 
OHA-PHD.  The invoice will document the number of new Active TB cases and/or B-waiver follow ups 
for which the LPHA provided services in the previous quarter.  Pending approval of the invoice, OHA-
PHD will remit FFS payment to LPHA.  Funds under this program element will not be paid in advance 
or on a 1/12th schedule. 

6. Reporting Requirements. LPHA must prepare and submit the following reports to OHA: 
a. LPHA must notify OHA’s TB Program of each Case or Suspected Case of Active TB Disease 

identified by or reported to LPHA no later than 5 business days within receipt of the report (OR 
– within 5 business days of the initial case report), in accordance with the standards established 
pursuant to OAR 333-018-0020. In addition, LPHA must, within 5 business days of a status 
change of a Suspected Case of TB disease previously reported to OHA, notify OHA of the 
change.  A change in status occurs when a Suspected Case is either confirmed to have TB 
disease or determined not to have TB disease.  LPHA must utilize OHA’s  ORPHEUS TB case 
module for this purpose using the case reporting instructions located at 
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DISEASESCONDITIONS/COMMUNICABLEDISEASE/TUB
ERCULOSIS/Pages/tools.aspx . After a Case of TB disease has concluded treatment, case 
completion information must be entered into the ORPHEUS TB case module within 5 business 
days of conclusion of treatment.  

b. LPHA must submit data regarding Contact investigation via ORPHEUS or other mechanism 
deemed acceptable. Contact investigations are not required for strictly extrapulmonary cases.  
Consult with local medical support as needed. 

7. Performance Measures.  If LPHA uses funds provided under this Agreement to support its TB 
investigation and control program, LPHA must operate its program in a manner designed to achieve the 
following national TB performance goals: 
a. For patients with newly diagnosed TB disease for whom 12 months or less of treatment is 

indicated, 95.0% will complete treatment within 12 months. 
b. For TB patients with positive acid-fast bacillus (AFB) sputum-smear results, 100.0% (of 

patients) will be interviewed to elicit Contacts. 
c. For Contacts of sputum AFB smear-positive TB Cases, 93.0% will be evaluated for infection 

and disease. 
d. For Contacts of sputum AFB smear-positive TB Cases with newly diagnosed LTBI, 91.0% will 

start treatment. 
e. For Contacts of sputum AFB smear-positive TB Cases that have started treatment for newly 

diagnosed LTBI, 81.0% will complete treatment. 
f. For TB Cases in patients ages 12 years or older with a pleural or respiratory site of disease, 98% 

will have a sputum culture result reported.

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DISEASESCONDITIONS/COMMUNICABLEDISEASE/TUBERCULOSIS/Pages/tools.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DISEASESCONDITIONS/COMMUNICABLEDISEASE/TUBERCULOSIS/Pages/tools.aspx


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #10 – SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASE PAGE 20 OF 129 PAGES 

Program Element #10: Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD) Client Services 
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:    
Public Health Division/Center for Public Health Practice/HIV, STD and TB Section 
1. Description. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to deliver Sexually 
Transmitted Diseases (STD) Client Services to protect the health of Oregonians from infectious disease 
and to prevent the long-term adverse consequences of failing to identify and treat STDs. Services may 
include, but are not limited to, case finding and disease surveillance, partner services, medical supplies, 
health care provider services, examination rooms, clinical and laboratory diagnostic services, treatment, 
prevention, intervention, education activities, and medical follow-up. 
STDs are a significant health problem in Oregon, with over 22,000 new cases reported every year. STDs 
pose a threat to immediate and long-term health and well-being. In addition to increasing a person’s risk 
for acquiring and transmitting HIV infection, STDs can lead to severe reproductive health 
complications, including poor pregnancy outcomes. Protecting the population from communicable 
disease by reducing rates of gonorrhea and early syphilis is a public health priority and is included in the 
State Health Improvement Plan (http://www.oregon.gov/oha/ph/about/pages/healthimprovement.aspx). 
This Program Element, and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the month 
noted in Issue Date section of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted in 
Comments and Footnotes of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Specific to Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD) Client Services. 
a. Reportable STDs: A Reportable STD is the diagnosis of an individual infected with any of the 

following: Chancroid, Chlamydia, Gonorrhea, and Syphilis, as further described in Division 18 
of OAR Chapter 333, and HIV, as further described in ORS Chapter 433. 

b. In-Kind Resources: Tangible goods or supplies having a monetary value that is determined by 
OHA. Examples of such In-Kind Resources include goods such as condoms, lubricant packages, 
pamphlets, and antibiotics for treating STDs. If the LPHA receives In-Kind Resources under this 
Agreement in the form of medications for treating STDs, LPHA must use those medications to 
treat individuals for STDs as outlined in Section 4.d. of this Program Element. In the event of a 
non-STD related emergency, with notification to the OHA STD program, the LPHA may use 
these medications to address the emergent situation. If the LPHA self-certifies as a 340B STD 
clinic site and receives reimbursement for 340B medications from OHA, they shall ensure these 
medications are used in accordance with the Health Resources and Services Administration 
(HRSA) Office of Pharmacy Affairs regulations regarding “340B Drug Pricing Program.”   

c. Technical Assistance Resources:  Those services of OHA HIV/STD Prevention staff that OHA 
makes available to LPHA to support the LPHA’s delivery of STD Client Services, which include 
advice, training, problem solving and consultation in applying standards, protocols, investigative 
and/or treatment guidelines to STD case work, partner services follow-up, and STD Outbreak 
response. 

d. STD Outbreak: The occurrence of an increase in cases of previously targeted priority disease 
type in excess of what would normally be expected in a defined community, geographical area or 
season, and, by mutual agreement of the LPHA and OHA, exceeds the expected routine capacity 
of the LPHA to address. 

  

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/ph/about/pages/healthimprovement.aspx


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #10 – SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASE PAGE 21 OF 129 PAGES 

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities. The 
activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics (if 
applicable), as follows (see Oregon’s Public Health Modernization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man
ual.pdf):   
a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization 

Manual) 

Program Components  Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 

 
C

D
 C

on
tro

l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that 
aligns with each component 
X = Other applicable foundational programs 

X = Foundational capabilities that align with 
each component 

Epidemiological 
investigations that report, 
monitor and control 
Sexually Transmitted 
Diseases and HIV.  

*      X  X    

STD client services 
(screening, testing, 
treatment, prevention).  

*    X  X  X    

Condom and lubricant 
distribution. *      X X     

b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric:  
Gonorrhea rates 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Modernization Process Measure:  
(1) Percent of gonorrhea cases that had at least one contact that received treatment; and 
(2) Percent of gonorrhea case reports with complete “priority” fields. As used herein, 

priority fields are defined as: race, ethnicity, gender of patient’s sex partners, HIV status 
or date of most recent HIV test, and pregnancy status for females of childbearing age 
(15-44). 

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #10 – SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASE PAGE 22 OF 129 PAGES 

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements. By accepting and using the Financial Assistance awarded 
under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in accordance 
with the following requirements:  
a. LPHA acknowledges and agrees that the LPHA bears the primary responsibility, as described in 

Divisions 17, 18, and 19, of Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) Chapter 333, for identifying 
potential STD Outbreaks within LPHA’s service area, for preventing the incidence of STDs 
within LPHA’s service area, and for reporting in a timely manner (as in 6.a.) the incidence of 
Reportable STDs within LPHA’s service area. 

b. LPHA will be reimbursed according to the following model for each new case of the following 
categories of syphilis infection documented in Orpheus for which LPHA provides STD Client 
Services: 
(1) Pregnant female syphilis case = $1,125 
(2) Female syphilis case of reproductive age (15-44) = $1,125 
(3) Male early syphilis case with female partner of reproductive age = $500 

c. LPHA must provide or refer client for STD Client Services in response to an individual seeking 
such services from LPHA. STD Client Services consist of screening individuals for Reportable 
STDs and treating individuals infected with Reportable STDs and their sexual partners for the 
disease.  

d. As required by applicable law, LPHA must provide STD Client Services including case finding, 
treatment (not applicable for HIV) and prevention activities, to the extent that local resources 
permit, related to HIV, syphilis, gonorrhea, and chlamydia in accordance with: 
(1) Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR), Chapter 333, Divisions 17, 18, and 19; 
(2) “OHA Investigative Guidelines for Notifiable Diseases” which can be found at: 

http://bit.ly/OR-IG ; 
(3) Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS), Chapters 431 & 433; and  
(4) Current “Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Sexually Transmitted Disease 

Guidelines,” which can be found at: https://www.cdc.gov/std/treatment/.   
e. OHA may provide, pursuant to this agreement, In-Kind Resources or Technical Assistance to 

assist LPHA in delivering STD Client Services. If LPHA receives In-Kind Resources under this 
Agreement in the form of medications for treating STDs, LPHA may use those medications to 
treat individuals infected with or suspected of having Reportable STDs or to treat the sex 
partners of individuals infected with Reportable STDs, subject to the following requirements: 
(1) The medications must be provided at no cost to the individuals receiving treatment. 
(2) LPHA must perform a monthly medication inventory and maintain a medication log of 

all medications supplied to LPHA under this Agreement.  Specifically, LPHA must log-
in and log-out each dose dispensed. 

(3) LPHA must log and document appropriate disposal of medications supplied to LPHA 
under this Agreement which have expired and thereby, prevent their use. 

(4) If the LPHA self certifies as a 340B STD clinic site and receives reimbursement for 
340B medications from OHA, they must only use “340B medications” to treat 
individuals for STDs in accordance with the Health Resources and Services 
Administration (HRSA) Office of Pharmacy Affairs regulations regarding “340B Drug 
Pricing Program”. 

http://bit.ly/OR-IG
https://www.cdc.gov/std/treatment/


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #10 – SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASE PAGE 23 OF 129 PAGES 

(5) If LPHA Subcontracts with another person to provide STD Client Services required 
under this Program Element, the In-Kind Resources in the form of medications received 
by LPHA from OHA must be provided, free of charge, to the Subcontractor for the 
purposes set out in this section and the Subcontractor must comply with all requirements 
related to such medications unless OHA informs LPHA in writing that the medications 
cannot be provided to the Subcontractor. The LPHA must document the medications 
provided to a Subcontractor under this section 

(6) If LPHA receives In-Kind Resources under this Agreement in the form of condoms and 
lubricant, LPHA may distribute those supplies at no cost to individuals infected with an 
STD and to other individuals who are at risk for STDs.  LPHA may not, under any 
circumstances, sell condoms supplied to LPHA under this Agreement. LPHA shall store 
condoms in a cool, dry place to prevent damage and shall check expiration date of 
condoms at least once annually.  

5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting. In lieu of the LPHA completing an “Oregon Health 
Authority Public Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” located in Exhibit C of this 
Agreement, OHA will send a pre-populated invoice to the LPHA for review and signature on or before 
the 5th business day of the month following the end of the first, second, third and fourth fiscal year 
quarters. The LPHA must submit the signed invoice no later than 30 calendar days after receipt of the 
invoice from OHA. The invoice will document the number of pregnant female syphilis cases, female 
syphilis cases of reproductive age, and male early syphilis cases with a female partner of reproductive 
age for which the LPHA provided services in the previous quarter. Pending approval of the invoice, 
OHA will remit payment to the LPHA. Funds under this program element will not be paid in advance or 
on a 1/12th schedule. 

6. Reporting Requirements.   
a. LPHA must review laboratory and health care provider case reports by the end of the calendar 

week in which initial laboratory or physician report is made. All confirmed and presumptive 
cases shall be reported to the OHA HIV/ STD/TB (HST) Program by recording the case in the 
Oregon Public Health Epi User System (Orpheus), the State’s online integrated disease reporting 
system.  

b. LPHA must submit data regarding STD Client Services, risk criteria and demographic 
information to OHA via direct entry into the centralized ORPHEUS database.  

7. Performance Measures.  
LPHA must operate the STD Client Services program in a manner designed to make progress toward 
achieving the following Public Health Modernization Process Measure:  
a. Percent of gonorrhea cases that had at least one contact that received treatment; and 
b. Percent of gonorrhea case reports with complete “priority” fields.  

 
 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 24 OF 129 PAGES 

Program Element #12: Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response (PHEPR) Program 
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:    
Public Health Division/Center for Public Health Practice/Health Security, Preparedness & Response Section 
1. Description. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below to deliver the 
Oregon Health Authority (OHA) Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response (PHEPR) 
Program.  
The PHEPR Program shall address prevention, protection, mitigation, response, and recovery 
phases for threats and emergencies that impact the health of people in its jurisdiction through plan 
development and revision, exercise and response activities based on the 15 Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC) Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities.1 
Emergency Preparedness and Response is one of the seven foundational capabilities described in 
the Oregon Public Health Modernization Manual. The foundational capabilities are needed for 
governmental public health to meet its charge to improve the health of everyone in Oregon. The 
vision for this foundational capability is as follows: A healthy community is a resilient community 
that is prepared and able to respond to and recover from public health threats and emergencies.2 
This Program Element, and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the 
month noted in Issue Date section of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted 
in Comments and Footnotes of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Relevant to PHEPR Programs Specific to Public Health Emergency Preparedness 
and Response. 
a. Access and Functional Needs:  Population defined as those whose members  may have 

additional response assistance needs that interfere with their ability to access or receive medical 
care before, during, or after a disaster or public health emergency,3 including but not limited to 
communication, maintaining health, independence, support and safety, and transportation. 
Individuals in need of additional response assistance may include children, people who live in 
institutional settings, older adults, pregnant and postpartum women, people with disabilities,4 
people with chronic conditions, people with pharmacological dependency, people with limited 
access to transportation, people with limited English proficiency or non-English speakers, people 
with social and economic limitations, and individuals experiencing homelessness.5 

b. Base Plan: A plan that is maintained by the Local Public Health Authority (LPHA), describing 
fundamental roles, responsibilities, and activities performed during preparedness, mitigation, 
response and recovery phases. This plan may be titled as the Emergency Support Function #8, an 
annex to the County Emergency Operations Plan, Public Health All-Hazards Plan, or other title 
that fits into the standardized county emergency preparedness nomenclature. 

c. Budget Period: The intervals of time (usually 12 months) into which a multi-year project period 
is divided for budgetary/ funding use. For purposes of this Program Element, Budget Period is 
July 1 through June 30. 

 
1 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2018). Public health emergency preparedness and response capabilities. Atlanta, GA: U.S. Department of Health and 

Human Services. Retrieved from https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm 
2 Oregon Public Health Division (September 2017) Public Health Modernization Manual. Retrieved from 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf. 58-62. 
3 US Department of Health & Human Services, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response. At-Risk Individuals With Access and Functional 
Needs. Retrieved from  
4 Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C.A. § 12101 et seq. Retrieved from   
5 Ira P. Robbins, Lessons from Hurricane Katrina: Prison Emergency Preparedness as a Constitutional Imperative, 42 U. MICH. J. L. REFORM 1 (2008). Retrieved 

from: https://repository.law.umich.edu/mjlr/vol42/iss1/2 
 

https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 25 OF 129 PAGES 

d. CDC: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention. 

e. CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities: The 15 capabilities 
developed by the CDC to serve as national public health preparedness standards for state and 
local planning.6 

f. Due Date: If a Due Date falls on a weekend or holiday, the Due Date will be the next business 
day following. 

g. Health Alert Network (HAN): A web-based, secure, redundant, electronic communication and 
collaboration system operated by OHA, available to all Oregon public health officials, hospitals, 
labs and other health service providers. The data it contains is maintained jointly by OHA and all 
LPHAs. This system provides continuous, high-speed electronic access to public health 
information including the capacity for broadcasting information to registered partners in an 
emergency, 24 hours per day, 7 days per week, 365 days per year. The secure HAN has a call-
down engine that can be activated by state or local HAN administrators. 

h. Health Security Preparedness and Response (HSPR): A state-level program that is a joint 
effort with the Conference of Local Health Officials (CLHO) and Native American Tribes 
(Tribes) to develop public health systems to prepare for and respond to major threats, acute 
threats, and emergencies that impact the health of people in Oregon.  

i. Health Care Coalition (HCC): A coordinating body that incentivizes diverse and often 
competitive health care organizations and other community partners with differing priorities and 
objectives and reach to community members to work together to prepare for, respond to, and 
recover from emergencies and other incidents that impact the public’s health. 

j. Medical Countermeasures (MCM): Vaccines, antiviral drugs, antibiotics, antitoxin, etc. in 
support of treatment or prophylaxis to the identified population in accordance with public health 
guidelines or recommendations. This includes the Strategic National Stockpile (SNS), a CDC 
program developed to provide rapid delivery of pharmaceuticals, medical supplies and 
equipment for an ill-defined threat in the early hours of an event, a large shipment of specific 
items when a specific threat is known or technical assistance to distribute SNS material.  

k. National Incident Management System (NIMS): The U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
system for integrating effective practices in emergency preparedness and response into a 
comprehensive national framework for incident management. The NIMS enables emergency 
responders at all levels and in different disciplines to effectively manage incidents no matter 
what the cause, size or complexity.7  

l. Public Information Officer (PIO):  The person responsible for communicating with the public, 
media, and/or coordinating with other agencies, as necessary, with incident-related information.8 

m. Public Health Accreditation Board: A non-profit organization dedicated to improving and 
protecting the health of the public by advancing the quality and performance of tribal, state, local 
and territorial public health departments.9 

n. Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response (PHEPR): Local public health 
programs designed to better prepare Oregon to prevent, protect, mitigate, respond to, and recover 
from emergencies with public health impacts. 

 
6 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2018). Public health emergency preparedness and response capabilities. Atlanta, GA: U.S. Department of Health and 

Human Services. Retrieved from https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm 
7 National Incident Management System. (2017). Retrieved from https://www.fema.gov/national-incident-management-system  
8 Federal Emergency Management Agency. (2007). Basic Guidance for Public Information Officers. Retrieved from https://www.fema.gov/media-library-

data/20130726-1623-20490-0276/basic_guidance_for_pios_final_draft_12_06_07.pdf 
9 Public Health Accreditation Board. Retrieved from https://phaboard.org/ 

https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm
https://www.fema.gov/national-incident-management-system
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/20130726-1623-20490-0276/basic_guidance_for_pios_final_draft_12_06_07.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/20130726-1623-20490-0276/basic_guidance_for_pios_final_draft_12_06_07.pdf
https://phaboard.org/


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 26 OF 129 PAGES 

o. Public Health Preparedness Capability Surveys: A series of surveys sponsored by HSPR for 
capturing information from LPHAs for HSPR to report to CDC and inform trainings and 
planning for local partners. 

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities. The 
activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics 
(if applicable), as follows (see Oregon’s Public Health Modernization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization
_manual.pdf):     
a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization 

Manual) 

Program Components Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 

 

C
D

 C
on

tro
l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that aligns 
with each component 
X = Other applicable foundational programs 

X = Foundational capabilities that align with each 
component 

Planning X X X X  X X X X X X X 
Partnerships and MOUs X X X X  X X X X X X X 
Surveillance and 
Assessment X X X X  X X X X X X X 

Response and Exercises X X X X  X X X X X X X 
Training and Education X X X X  X X X X X X X 
Note: Emergency preparedness crosses over all foundational programs.   

b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric: Not applicable 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Modernization Process Measure:  Not applicable 

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements. By accepting and using the Financial Assistance awarded 
under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in accordance 
with the following requirements:  
a. Engage in activities as described in its approved PHEPR Work Plan and multi-year training and 

exercise plan (MYTEP), which are due to OHA HSPR on or before August 15 and which has 
been approved by OHA HSPR by September 15. LPHA must use the PHEPR Work Plan 
Template Instructions and Guidance which OHA will provide to LPHA. 

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 27 OF 129 PAGES 

b. Use funds for this Program Element in accordance with its approved PHEPR budget, which is 
due to OHA HSPR on or before August 15 and which has been approved by OHA HSPR by 
September 15.  LPHA must use the PHEPR Budget Template which is set forth in Attachment 1, 
incorporated herein with this reference.  
(1) Contingent Emergency Response Funding: Such funding is subject to restrictions 

imposed by CDC at the time of the emergency and would provide funding under 
circumstances when a delay in award would result in serious injury or other adverse 
impact to the public. 
Since the funding is contingent upon Congressional appropriations, whether contingent 
emergency response funding awards can be made will depend upon the facts and 
circumstances that exist at the time of the emergency; the particular appropriation from 
which the awards would be made, including whether it contains limitations on its use; 
authorities for implementation; or other relevant factors. No activities are specified for 
this authorization at this time. 

(2) Non-Supplantation. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element 
must not be used to supplant state, local, other non-federal, or other federal funds.  

(3) Public Health Preparedness Staffing. LPHA must identify a PHEPR Coordinator who 
is directly funded from PHEPR grant. LPHA staff who receive PHEPR funds must have 
planned activities identified within the approved PHEPR Work Plan. The PHEPR 
Coordinator will be the OHA’s chief point of contact related to grant deliverables. LPHA 
must implement its PHEPR activities in accordance with its approved PHEPR Work 
Plan.  

(4) Use of Funds. Funds awarded to the LPHA under this Agreement for this Program 
Element may only be used for activities related to the CDC Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness and Response Capabilities in accordance with an approved PHEPR budget 
using the template set forth as Attachments 1 and 2 to this Program Element.  

(5) Modifications to Budget.  Modifications to the budget exceeding a total of $5,000 or 
modifications that add a new line item require submission of a revised budget to the 
liaison and final receipt of approval from the HSPR fiscal officer.  

(6) Conflict between Documents. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the 
provisions of the approved PHEPR Work Plan or PHEPR Budget and the provisions of 
this Agreement, this Agreement shall control. 

(7) Unspent funds. PHEPR funding is not guaranteed as a carryover to a subsequent fiscal 
year if funds are unspent in any given fiscal year. 

c. Statewide and Regional Coordination: LPHA must coordinate and participate with state, 
regional, and local Emergency Support Function partners and stakeholders to include, but not 
limited to, other public health and health care programs, HCCs, emergency management 
agencies, EMS providers, behavioral/mental health agencies, community organizations, older 
adult-serving organizations, and educational agencies and state child care lead agencies as 
applicable.10 
(1) Attendance by LPHA leadership, PHEPR coordinator, or other staff involved in 

preparedness activities is strongly encouraged at one of the HSPR co-sponsored 
preparedness conferences, which includes the Oregon Epidemiologists’ Meeting (OR-

 
10 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019) Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Cooperative 

Agreement (CDC-RFA-TP19-1901). Retrieved from https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318. 10. 

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 28 OF 129 PAGES 

Epi) and the Oregon Prepared Conference. 
(2) Participation in emergency preparedness subcommittees, work groups and projects for the 

sustainment of public health emergency preparedness and response as appropriate. 
(3) Collaboration with HCC partners to develop and maintain plans, conduct training and 

exercises, and respond to public health threats and emergencies using a whole-
community approach to preparedness management that includes:11  
(a) Identification of populations at risk of being disproportionately impacted by 

incidents or events. 
(b) Coordination with community-based organizations. 
(c) Integration of Access and Functional needs of individuals. 
(d) Development or expansion of child-focused planning and partnerships. 
(e) Engaging field/area office on aging. 
(f) Engaging mental/behavioral health partners and stakeholders. 

(4) Participation and planning at the local level in all required statewide exercises as 
referenced in the Workplan Minimum Requirements and MYTEP Blank Template tabs, 
which OHA has provided to LPHA. 

(5) Participation in a minimum of 75% of statewide HSPR-hosted monthly conference calls 
for LPHAs and Tribes. 

(6) Participation in activities associated with local, regional, or statewide emerging threats or 
incidents as identified by HSPR or LPHA that includes timely assessment and sharing of 
essential elements of information for identification and investigation of an incident with 
public health impact, as agreed upon by HSPR and the CLHO Emergency Preparedness 
and Response subcommittee.12 

(7) Work to develop and maintain a portfolio of community partnerships to support 
preparedness, mitigation, response and recovery efforts.13 Portfolio must include viable 
contact information from community sectors as defined by the CDC: business; 
community leadership; cultural and faith-based groups and organizations; emergency 
management; healthcare; human services; housing and sheltering; media; 
mental/behavioral health; office of aging or its equivalent; education and childcare 
settings.14 

d. Public Health Preparedness Capability Survey: LPHA must complete all applicable Public 
Health Preparedness Capability Survey(s) sponsored by HSPR by December 1 each year or 
applicable Due Date based on CDC requirements.15  

 
11 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019) Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Cooperative 

Agreement (CDC-RFA-TP19-1901). Retrieved from https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318. 8-9. 
12 Public Health Accreditation Board. Retrieved from https://phaboard.org/ 
State and Local Administration and Enforcement of Public Health Laws 36 O.R.S § 431.133-134 (2015). Retrieved from 

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html 
Public Health Preparedness 3 O.A.R. § 333-003-0050 (2008). Retrieved from https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/ 
13 Oregon Public Health Division. (2017) Public health modernization manual. Oregon Health Authority. Retrieved from 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf.62. 
14 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2018). Public health emergency preparedness and response capabilities. Atlanta, GA: U.S. Department of Health and 

Human Services. Retrieved from https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm 
15 Oregon Public Health Division. (2017) Public health modernization manual. Oregon Health Authority. Retrieved from 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf. 58-62. 
State and Local Administration and Enforcement of Public Health Laws. 36 O.R.S § 431.138. (2015) Retrieved from 

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html 

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318
https://phaboard.org/
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selectedDivision=1219
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 29 OF 129 PAGES 

e. PHEPR Work Plan: PHEPR Work Plans must be written with clear and measurable objectives 
in support of the CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities with 
timelines and include: 
(1) At least three broad program goals that address gaps, operationalize plans, and guide 

PHEPR Work Plan activities. 
(a) Planning 
(b) Training and education 
(c) Exercises. 
(d) Community Education and Outreach and Partner Collaboration. 
(e) Administrative and Fiscal activities. 

(2) Activities will include or address persons with Access and Functional Needs.16 
(3) Local public health leadership will review and approve PHEPR Work Plans. 

f. PHEPR Work Plan Performance:  LPHA must complete all minimum requirements of the PE-
12 by June 30 each year. If LPHA does not meet the minimum requirements of the PE-12 for 
each of the three years during a triennial review period, not due to unforeseen public health 
events, it may not be eligible to receive funding under this Program Element in the next fiscal 
year.  Minimum requirements are delineated in the designated tab of the PHEPR Work Plan 
Template which OHA has provided to LPHA. Work completed in response to a HSPR-required 
exercise, a response to an uncommon disease outbreak, or other uncommon event of significance 
that requires an LPHA response and is tied to the CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness 
and Response Capabilities may, upon HSPR approval, be used to replace PHEPR Work Plan 
activities interrupted or delayed. 

g. 24/7/365 Emergency Contact Capability. 
(1) LPHA must establish and maintain a single telephone number whereby, physicians, 

hospitals, other health care providers, OHA and the public can report public health 
emergencies within the LPHA service area. 
(a) The contact number must be easy to find through sources in which the LPHA 

typically makes information available including local telephone directories, 
traditional websites and social media pages. It is acceptable for the publicly listed 
phone number to provide after-hours contact information by means of a recorded 
message. LPHA must list and maintain both the switchboard number and the 
24/7/365 numbers on the HAN.17 

  

 
16 Oregon Public Health Division. (2017) Public health modernization manual. Oregon Health Authority. Retrieved from 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf. 58-59. 
17 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019) Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Cooperative 

Agreement (CDC-RFA-TP19-1901). Retrieved from https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318. Domain 3. 
State and Local Administration and Enforcement of Public Health Laws 36 O.R.S § 431.133-134 (2015). Retrieved from 

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html 
Oregon Public Health Division (September 2017) Public Health Modernization Manual. Retrieved from 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf. 58-62. 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 30 OF 129 PAGES 

(b) The telephone number must be operational 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 
days a year and be an eleven-digit telephone number available to callers from 
outside the local emergency dispatch. LPHA may use an answering service or 
their Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) in this process, provided that the 
eleven-digit telephone number of the PSAP is made available for callers from 
outside the locality.18 

(c) The LPHA telephone number described above must be answered by a 
knowledgeable person with the ability to properly route the call to a local public 
health administrator or designee.  

(2) An LPHA official must respond within 60 minutes, to calls received on 24/7/365 
telephone number, during statewide communication drills and quarterly tests.19  
(d) Quarterly test calls to the 24/7/365 telephone line will be conducted by HSPR 

program staff. 
(e) Following a quarterly test, LPHA must take any corrective action needed within 

30 days of notification of any deficiency to the best of their ability. 
h. HAN 

(1) A HAN Administrator must be appointed for LPHA and this person’s name and contact 
information must be provided to the HSPR liaison and the State HAN Coordinator.20 

(2) The HAN Administrator must: 
(a) Agree to the HAN Security Agreement and State of Oregon Terms and 

Conditions. 
(b) Complete appropriate HAN training for their role. 
(c) Ensure local HAN user and county role directory is maintained (add, modify and 

delete users; make sure users have the correct license). 
(d) Act as a single point of contact for all LPHA HAN issues, user groups, and 

training. 
(e) Serve as the LPHA authority on all HAN related access (excluding hospitals and 

Tribes). 
(f) Coordinate with the State HAN Coordinator to ensure roles are correctly 

distributed within each county. 
(g) Ensure participation in OHA Emergency Support Function 8 (Health and 

Medical) tactical communications exercises. Deliverable associated with this 
exercise will be the test of the LPHA HAN system roles via alert confirmation 

 
18 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019) Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Cooperative 

Agreement (CDC-RFA-TP19-1901). Retrieved from https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318. Domain 3. 
State and Local Administration and Enforcement of Public Health Laws 36 O.R.S § 431.133-134 (2015). Retrieved from 

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html 
Oregon Public Health Division (September 2017) Public Health Modernization Manual. Retrieved from 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf. 58-62. 
19 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2018). Public health emergency preparedness and response capabilities. Atlanta, GA: U.S. Department of Health and 

Human Services. Retrieved from https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm 
20 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019) Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Cooperative 

Agreement (CDC-RFA-TP19-1901). Retrieved from https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318. Domain 3. 
State and Local Administration and Enforcement of Public Health Laws 36 O.R.S § 431.133 (2015). Retrieved from 

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html 
Oregon Public Health Division (September 2017) Public Health Modernization Manual. Retrieved from 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf. 58-62. 
 

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 31 OF 129 PAGES 

for: Health Officer, Communicable Disease (CD) Coordinator(s), Preparedness 
Coordinator, PIO and LPHA County HAN Administrator within one hour.21  

(h) Initiate at least one local call down exercise/ drill for LPHA staff annually. If the 
statewide HAN is not used for this process, LPHA must demonstrate through 
written procedures how public health staff and responding partners are notified 
during emergencies. 

(i) Perform general administration for all local implementation of the HAN system in 
their respective organizations. 

(j) Review LPHA HAN users two times annually to ensure users are updated, 
assigned their appropriate roles and that appropriate users are deactivated. 

(k) Facilitate in the development of the HAN accounts for new LPHA users. 
i. Multi-Year Training and Exercise Plan (MYTEP): LPHA must annually submit to HSPR on 

or before August 15, an updated MYTEP as part of their annual work plan update.22 The 
MYTEP must meet the following conditions: 
(1) Demonstrate continuous improvement and progress toward increased capability to 

perform functions and tasks associated with the CDC Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness and Response Capabilities. 

(2) Include priorities that address lessons learned from previous exercises events, or incidents 
as described in the LPHA’s After Action Reports (AAR)/ Improvement Plans (IP). 

(3) LPHA must work with Emergency Management, local health care partners and other 
community partners to integrate exercises and align MYTEPs, as appropriate. 

(4) Identify at least two exercises per year if LPHA’s population is greater than 10,000 and 
one exercise per year if LPHA’s population is less than 10,000.  

(5) Identify a cycle of exercises that increase in complexity over a three-year period, 
progressing from discussion-based exercises (e.g. seminars, workshops, tabletop 
exercises, games) to operation-based exercises (e.g. drills, functional exercises and full-
scale exercises); exercises of similar complexity are permissible within any given year of 
the plan.  

(6) A HSPR-required exercise, a response to an uncommon disease outbreak, or other 
uncommon event of significance that requires an LPHA response and is tied to the CDC 
Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities may, upon HSPR 
approval, be used to satisfy exercise requirements.  

(7) For an exercise or incident to qualify, under this requirement the exercise or incident 
must:   
(a) Exercise: 

LPHA must: 

• Submit to HSPR Liaison 30 days in advance of each exercise an exercise 
notification or exercise plan that includes a description of the exercise, 

 
21 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2018). Public health emergency preparedness and response capabilities. Atlanta, GA: U.S. Department of Health and 

Human Services. Retrieved from https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm 
22 Oregon Public Health Division (September 2017) Public Health Modernization Manual. Retrieved from 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf. 58-62. 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019) Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Cooperative 

Agreement (CDC-RFA-TP19-1901). Retrieved from https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318. Domain 1,2. 
State and Local Administration and Enforcement of Public Health Laws 36 O.R.S § 431.138 (2015). Retrieved from 

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html 

https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 32 OF 129 PAGES 

exercise objectives, CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness and 
Response Capabilities addressed, a list of invited participants, and a list of 
exercise planning team members. An incident/exercise notification form 
that includes the required notification elements is included in Attachment 
3 and is incorporated herein with this reference. 

• Involve two or more participants in the planning process.  

• Involve two or more public health staff and/ or related partners as active 
participants. 

• Submit to HSPR Liaison an After Action Report that includes an 
Improvement Plan within 60 days of every exercise completed. An 
improvement plan template is included as part of the incident/exercise 
notification form in Attachment 3. 

(b) Incident: 
During an incident LPHA must: 

• Submit LPHA incident objectives or Incident Action Plan to HSPR 
Liaison within 48 hours of receiving notification of an incident that 
requires an LPHA response. An incident/exercise notification form that 
includes the required notification elements is included in Attachment 3. 

• Submit to HSPR Liaison an After Action Report that includes an 
Improvement Plan within 60 days of every incident or public health 
response completed. An improvement plan template is included as part of 
the incident/exercise notification form in Attachment 3. 

(8) LPHA must coordinate exercise design and planning with local Emergency Management 
and other partners for community engagement, as appropriate.23 

(9) Staff responsible for emergency planning and response roles must be trained for their 
respective roles consistent with their local emergency plans and according to CDC Public 
Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities,24 the Public Health 
Accreditation Board, and the National Incident Management System.25 The training 
portion of the plan must: 
(a) Include training on how to discharge LPHA statutory responsibility to take 

measures to control communicable disease in accordance with applicable law. 
(b) Identify and train appropriate LPHA staff26 to prepare for public health 

emergency response roles and general emergency response based on the local 
identified hazards. 

j. Maintaining Training Records: LPHA must maintain training records that demonstrate NIMS 
compliance for all local public health staff for their respective emergency response roles.27 

 
23 Oregon Public Health Division. (2017) Public health modernization manual. Oregon Health Authority. Retrieved from 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf. 58-62. 
24 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2018). Public health emergency preparedness and response capabilities. Atlanta, GA: U.S. Department of Health and 

Human Services. Retrieved from https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm. Capability 1. 
25 National Incident Management System. (2017). Retrieved from https://www.fema.gov/national-incident-management-system 
26 State and Local Administration and Enforcement of Public Health Laws 36 O.R.S § 431.134 (2015). Retrieved from 

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html 
27 Oregon Office of Emergency Management. (2014). National Incident Management System – Who takes what? 
 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm
https://www.fema.gov/national-incident-management-system
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 33 OF 129 PAGES 

k. Plans: LPHA must maintain and execute emergency preparedness procedures and plans as a 
component of its jurisdictional Emergency Operations Plan.  
(1) LPHA must establish and maintain at a minimum the following plans:28  

(a) Base Plan. 
(b) Medical Countermeasure Dispensing and Distribution (MCMDD) plan.29  
(c) Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP)30  
(d) Communications and Information Plan.31  

(2) All plans, annexes, and appendices must: 
(a) Be updated whenever an After Action Report improvement item is identified as 

requiring a change or biennially at a minimum, 
(b) Address, as appropriate, the CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness and 

Response Capabilities based on the local identified hazards, 
(c) Be functional and operational by June 30, 2022,32 
(d) Comply with the NIMS,33  
(e) Include a record of changes that includes a brief description, the date, and the 

author of the change made, and 
(f) Include planning considerations for persons with Access and Functional Needs. 

5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting. LPHA must complete an “Oregon Health Authority Public 
Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” located in Exhibit C of this Agreement. These 
reports must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the following schedule:  

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First:  July 1 – September 30 October 30 

Second:  October 1 – December 31 January 30 

Third:  January 1 – March 31 April 30 

Fourth:  April 1 – June 30 August 20 

 
28 Public Health Preparedness, 3 O.A.R. § 333-003-0050 (2008). Retrieved from https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/  
Presidential Policy Directive-8: National Preparedness (2011). Retrieved from https://www.dhs.gov/presidential-policy-directive-8-national-preparedness 
29 Oregon Public Health Division (September 2017) Public Health Modernization Manual. Retrieved from 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf. 58-62. 
State and Local Administration and Enforcement of Public Health Laws 36 O.R.S § 431.132,138 (2015). Retrieved from 

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019) Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Cooperative 

Agreement (CDC-RFA-TP19-1901). Retrieved from https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318. Domain 1. 
Public Health Preparedness, 3 O.A.R. § 333-003-0200 (2008). Retrieved from https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/  
Presidential Policy Directive-8: National Preparedness (2011). Retrieved from https://www.dhs.gov/presidential-policy-directive-8-national-preparedness 
30 Oregon Public Health Division (September 2017) Public Health Modernization Manual. Retrieved from 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf. 58-62. 
Federal Emergency Management Agency. (2018) Continuity Guidance Circular. Retrieved from https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1520878493235-

1b9685b2d01d811abfd23da960d45e4f/ContinuityGuidanceCircularMarch2018.pdf 
State and Local Administration and Enforcement of Public Health Laws 36 O.R.S § 431.138 (2015). Retrieved from 

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html 
31 State and Local Administration and Enforcement of Public Health Laws 36 O.R.S § 431.133 (2015). Retrieved from 

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html 
32 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019) Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Cooperative 

Agreement (CDC-RFA-TP19-1901). Retrieved from https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318. Domain 2,4. 
Presidential Policy Directive-8: National Preparedness (2011). Retrieved from https://www.dhs.gov/presidential-policy-directive-8-national-preparedness 
33 National Incident Management System. (2017). Retrieved from https://www.fema.gov/national-incident-management-system  
Office of Emergency Management. (2014) 10 O.A.R. § 104-010-0005. Retrieved from https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/ 
 

https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selectedDivision=1219
https://www.dhs.gov/presidential-policy-directive-8-national-preparedness
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selectedDivision=1219
https://www.dhs.gov/presidential-policy-directive-8-national-preparedness
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf.%2058-62
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1520878493235-1b9685b2d01d811abfd23da960d45e4f/ContinuityGuidanceCircularMarch2018.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1520878493235-1b9685b2d01d811abfd23da960d45e4f/ContinuityGuidanceCircularMarch2018.pdf
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors431.html
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318
https://www.dhs.gov/presidential-policy-directive-8-national-preparedness
https://www.fema.gov/national-incident-management-system
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 34 OF 129 PAGES 

6. Reporting Requirements. 
a. PHEPR Work Plan. LPHA must implement its PHEPR activities in accordance with its OHA 

HSPR-approved PHEPR Work Plan. Dependent upon extenuating circumstances, modifications 
to this PHEPR Work Plan may only be made with OHA HSPR agreement and approval. 
Proposed PHEPR Work Plan will be due on or before August 15. Final approved PHEPR Work 
Plan will be due on or before September 15.  

b. Mid-year and end of year PHEPR Work Plan reviews. LPHA must complete PHEPR Work 
Plan updates in coordination with their HSPR liaison on at least a minimum of a semi-annual 
basis.   
(1) Mid-year work plan reviews may be conducted between October 1 and March 31. 
(2) End of year work plan reviews may be conducted between April 1 and August 15. 

c. Triennial Review. This review will be completed in conjunction with the statewide Triennial 
Review schedule as determined by the Office of the State Public Health Director.  A year-end 
work plan review may be scheduled in conjunction with a triennial review. This Agreement will 
be integrated into the Triennial Review Process.  

d. Multi-Year Training and Exercise Plan (MYTEP). LPHA must annually submit a MYTEP to 
HSPR Liaison on or before August 15. Final approved MYTEP will be due on or before 
September 15.  

e. Exercise Notification. LPHA must submit to HSPR Liaison 30 days in advance of each exercise 
an exercise notification that includes a description of the exercise, exercise objectives, CDC 
Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities addressed, a list of invited 
participants, and a list of exercise planning team members.  

f. Response Documentation. LPHA must submit LPHA incident objectives or Incident Action 
Plan to HPSR Liaison within 48 hours of receiving notification of an incident that requires an 
LPHA response. 

g. After Action Report / Improvement Plan. LPHA must submit to HSPR Liaison an After 
Action Report/Improvement Plan within 60 days of every exercise, incident, or public health 
response completed.  

7. Performance Measures: LPHA will progress local emergency preparedness planning efforts in a 
manner designed to achieve the 15 CDC National Standards for State and Local Planning for Public 
Health Emergency Preparedness and is evaluated by Mid-year, End of Year and Triennial Reviews.34  

 
34 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2018). Public health emergency preparedness and response capabilities. Atlanta, GA: U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services. Retrieved from https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm 

https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 35 OF 129 PAGES 

ATTACHMENT 135 

 
 

 
35 A fillable template is available from HSPR Liaison. 

PHEPR Program Annual Budget 
County I 

J uly 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021 

Opti onal Use : 
Other Funds to 

Total SUDDOrt PHEPR 
PERSONNEL Subtotal so 

List as an Annual % FTE base d 
Salary on 12 months 0 

(Position Title and Name; 0 
Bri ef descri pti on of activiti es, for example, This pos ition has pri ma ry 
responsibility for ___ County PHEPR activiti es . 

Frln11e Benefits ta>. / \% of descri be rate or meth od 0 

TRAVEL so 
Tot a.I In-State Travel:: (descri be travel to inclu de meals, reg istration, lodg ing 

and mil eaael $0 

Hotel Costs: 
Per Diem Costs: 
Mileage or car Rental Costs: 
R811istration Costs: 
Misc. Costs: 

Out-of-State Travel: (descri be travel to include location, mode of 
transportati on with cost, meals, registrati on, lod'ging and incidentals along with 
number of travelers) $0 

Air Travel Costs: 
Hotel Costs: 
Per Diem Costs: 
Mileage or car Rental Costs: 
R811istration Costs: 
Misc. Costs: 

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT (individual items that cost $5 000 or morel $0 so 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 36 OF 129 PAGES 

 
 
  

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT (individual items that cost $5.000 or morel $0 $0 

SUPPLIES $0 $0 

CONTRACTUAL (list each Contract separately and provide a brief 
descriotionl $0 $0 
Contract with (__J Company for $~ for r 1 seNices. 
Contract with (__J Company for $~ for r seNices. 
Contract with (__J Company for $~ for r 1 seNices. 

OTHER $0 $0 

TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES 
r 

$0 

~ 

TOTAL INDIRECT CHARGES @I _ % of Direct Expenses or describe method $0 

TOTAL BUDGET: $0 
Date, Name and phone number of person who prepared budget 

>--

NOTES: I I T 
$62,500 (annual salary) which would computer to the ~ub-total column as $_50,000 
b_e 5_0•t 2120_8_0-'"'-2 9 EIE 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 37 OF 129 PAGES 

Attachment 2: Use of Funds 
 
Subject to CDC grant requirements, funds may be used for the following:   

a. Reasonable program purposes, including personnel, travel, supplies, and services. 
b. To supplement but not supplant existing state or federal funds for activities described in the budget. 
c. To purchase basic, non-motorized trailers with prior approval from the CDC OGS. 
d. For overtime for individuals directly associated (listed in personnel costs) with the award with prior 

approval from HSPR. 
e. For deployment of PHEPR-funded personnel, equipment, and supplies during a local emergency, in-

state governor-declared emergency, or via the Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC).  
f. To lease vehicles to be used as means of transportation for carrying people or goods, e.g., passenger cars 

or trucks and electrical or gas-driven motorized carts with prior approval from HSPR. 
g. To purchase material-handling equipment (MHE) such as industrial or warehouse-use trucks to be used 

to move materials, such as forklifts, lift trucks, turret trucks, etc. Vehicles must be of a type not licensed 
to travel on public roads with prior approval from HSPR. 

h. To purchase caches of antibiotics for use by first responders and their families to ensure the health and 
safety of the public health workforce. 

i. To support appropriate accreditation activities that meet the Public Health Accreditation Board's 
preparedness-related standards 

 
Subject to CDC grant requirements, funds may not be used for the following: 

a. Research. 
b. Clinical care except as allowed by law. Clinical care, per the FOA, is defined as "directly managing the 

medical care and treatment of patients." 
c. The purchase of furniture or equipment - unless clearly identified in grant application. 
d. Reimbursement of pre-award costs (unless approved by CDC in writing). 
e. Publicity or propaganda purposes, for the preparation, distribution, or use of any material designed to 

support or defeat the enactment of legislation before any legislative body. 
f. The salary or expenses of any grant or contract recipient, or agent acting for such recipient, related to 

any activity designed to influence the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation, administrative 
action, or Executive order proposed or pending before any legislative body. 

g. Construction or major renovations. 
h. Payment or reimbursement of backfilling costs for staff. 
i. Paying the salary of an individual at a rate in excess of Executive Level II or $187,000.00 per year. 
j. The purchase of clothing such as jeans, cargo pants, polo shirts, jumpsuits, or t-shirts. 
k. The purchase or support of animals for labs, including mice. 
l. The purchase of a house or other living quarter for those under quarantine. 
m. To purchase vehicles to be used as means of transportation for carrying people or goods, such as 

passenger cars or trucks and electrical or gas-driven motorized carts. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 38 OF 129 PAGES 

ATTACHMENT 336

  

 
36 A fillable template is available from HSPR Liaison. 

Name of Exercise or 
Incident: 

Notification 
Exercise: Due 30 Days Before Exercise 

Incident: Within 48 hours of notification of incident requiring a response 
· , , · . , I • Date(s) of LPHA 

, · Play: 
Dates of Play 

Type of 
Exercise/Event: 

0 Drill D Fu nctional Exercise D Pla nned Event/Training 

D Tabletop Exercise D Fu ll Sca le Exercise D Incident/Declared Emergency 

Participating 
8_ Organizations: 
0 
.X Duration: 

Objectives: 

Primary 
Activities: 

List all the names (if available) and agencies participating in your exercise 

How long will the exercise last? Or start/end 

time 

List 1 to 3 SMART objectives 

Location 

List primary activities to be conducted with this incident or exercise 

Location of exercise, 

if known 

Design Team: List people who are participating in designing the exercise by name, agen_c~y _______ _, 

Point of Contact: Typically, the PHEP Coordinator's name Agency Name 

POC Email: Enter POC's email address Phone 

Capabilities Addressed 
BIOSURVEILLANCE 

• 12: Pub lic Health La boratory Testing 

D 13 : Pub lic Health Surve illa nce and 
Epidemio logical Investigation 

COMMUNITY RESILIENCE 

D 1: Community Preparedness 

D 2: Community Recovery 

COUNTERMEASURES AND MITIGATION 

D 8: M edica l Co unt ermeasure 

Dispensing and Administ ration 

D 9: Medica l Materiel Management 

and Dist ribution 

D 11: Nonpharmaceut ica l Intervent ions 

• 14: Responder Safety and Health 

INCIDENT MANAGEMENT 

D 3: Emerge ncy Operat ions 

Coordination 

INFORMATION MANAGEMENT 

• 4: Emergency Public Information and 
Warn ing 

D 6: Information Sharing 

SURGE MANAGEMENT 

D 5: Fatality M anagement 

• 7: M ass Care 

• 10: Medical Surge 

• 15: Volunteer Management 

After Action Report 
To be completed within 60 days of exercise or incident completion 

Strengths: 
Areas of 
Improvement: 

What were the strengths identified during this exercise or incident? 

Were there any areas of improvement identified? List all in this space, then complete 

improvement plan on next page. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #12 – PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE PAGE 39 OF 129 PAGES 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Improvement Plan 
To be completed with action review 

and submitted to liaison within 60 days of exercise or incident completion 
Name of Event or Exercise Date(s) 

CDC Public 
Health Capability 
Addressed 

Capability Name 

Capability Name 

Capability Name 

lssue(s)/Area(s) of 
Improvement 

Corrective Action 

Corrective action or planned activity 

Describe the issue or refer 
to an item number in the 
after action report 

Corrective action or planned activity 

Corrective action or planned activity 
Describe the issue or refer 
to an item number in the 
after action report Corrective action or planned activity 

Corrective action or planned activity 

Describe the issue or refer 
to an item number in the 
after action report 

Corrective action or planned activity 

Corrective action or planned activity 
Describe the issue or refer 
to an item number in the 
after action report Corrective action or planned activity 

Corrective action or planned activity 

Describe the issue or refer 
to an item number in the 
after action report 

Corrective action or planned activity 

Corrective action or planned activity 
Describe the issue or refer 
to an item number in the 
after action report Corrective action or planned activity 

Date(s) of Exercise or Incident 

Timeframe 

When do you 
To be filled in 

expect to 
complete this 

when 

activity? 
completed 

When do you 
To be filled in 

expect to 
complete this 

when 

activity? 
completed 

When do you 
To be filled in 

expect to 
when 

complete this 
activity? 

completed 

To be filled in To be filled in 
when when 
completed completed 

When do you 
To be filled in 

expect to 
complete this 

when 

activity? 
completed 

When do you 
To be filled in 

expect to 
complete this 

when 

activity? 
completed 

When do you 
To be filled in 

expect to 
when 

complete this 
completed 

activity? 
To be filled in To be filled in 
when when 
completed completed 

When do you 
To be filled in 

expect to 
complete this 

when 

activity? 
completed 

When do you 
To be filled in 

expect to 
complete this 

when 

activity? 
completed 

When do you 
To be filled in 

expect to 
when 

complete this 
completed 

activity? 
To be filled in To be filled in 
when when 
completed completed 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #13 – TOBACCO PREVENTION EDUCATION PROGRAM PAGE 40 OF 129 PAGES 

Program Element #13: Tobacco Prevention Education Program (TPEP) 
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element: 
Public Health Division/Center for Health Prevention & Health Promotion/ Health Promotion and Chronic 
Disease Prevention Section 
1. Description.  Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to deliver the 
Tobacco Prevention Education Program (TPEP). As described in the local program plan, activities are 
in the following areas: 
a. Facilitation of Community and Statewide Partnerships: Accomplish movement toward 

tobacco-free communities through a coalition or other group dedicated to the pursuit of 
agreed upon local and statewide tobacco control objectives. Community partnerships should 
include local public health leadership, health system partners, non-governmental entities as 
well as community leaders.  
(1) TPEP program should demonstrate ability to mobilize timely community support for 

local tobacco prevention objectives.  
(2) TPEP program should be available and ready to respond to statewide policy 

opportunities and threats.  
b. Creating Tobacco-Free Environments: Promote the adoption of tobacco-free policies, 

including policies in schools, workplaces and public places. Demonstrate community 
progress towards establishing jurisdiction-wide tobacco-free policies (e.g. local ordinances) 
for workplaces that still allow indoor smoking or expose employees to secondhand smoke. 
Establish tobacco-free policies for all county and city properties and government campuses.  

c. Countering Pro-Tobacco Influences: Reduce the promotion of tobacco in retail 
environments by educating and aligning decision makers about policy options for addressing 
the time, place and manner tobacco products are sold. Counter tobacco industry advertising 
and promotion. Reduce youth access to tobacco products, including advancing tobacco retail 
licensure and other evidence-based point of sale strategies.  

d. Promoting Quitting Among Adults and Youth: Promote evidence-based practices for 
tobacco cessation with health system partners and implementation of Health Evidence 
Review Commission initiatives, including cross-sector interventions. Integrate the promotion 
of the Oregon Tobacco Quit Line into other tobacco control activities. 

e. Enforcement: Assist OHA with the enforcement of statewide tobacco control laws, 
including the Indoor Clean Air Act, minors’ access to tobacco and restrictions on smoking 
through formal agreements with OHA, Public Health Division. 

f. Reducing the Burden of Tobacco-Related Chronic Disease: Address tobacco use reduction 
strategies in the broader context of chronic diseases and other risk factors for tobacco-related 
chronic diseases including cancer, asthma, cardiovascular disease, diabetes, arthritis, and 
stroke. Ensure LPHA decision making processes are based on data highlighting local, 
statewide and national tobacco-related disparities. Ensure processes engage a wide variety of 
perspectives from those most burdened by tobacco including representatives of racial/ethnic 
minorities, Medicaid users, LGBTQ community members, and people living with disabilities, 
including mental health and substance use challenges.  

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #13 – TOBACCO PREVENTION EDUCATION PROGRAM PAGE 41 OF 129 PAGES 

The statewide Tobacco Prevention and Education Program (TPEP) is grounded in evidence-based 
best practices for tobacco control. The coordinated movement involves state and local programs 
working together to achieve sustainable policy, systems and environmental change in local 
communities that mobilize statewide. Tobacco use remains the number one cause of preventable death 
in Oregon and nationally. It is a major risk factor in developing asthma, arthritis, diabetes, stroke, 
tuberculosis and ectopic pregnancy – as well as liver, colorectal and other forms of cancer. It also 
worsens symptoms for people already living with chronic diseases.  
Funds provided under this Agreement are to be used to reduce exposure to secondhand smoke, 
prevent youth from using tobacco, promote evidence-based practices for tobacco cessation, educate 
decision makers about the harms of tobacco, and limit the tobacco industry’s influence in the retail 
environment.  Funds allocated to Local Public Health Authorities are to complement the statewide 
movement towards population-level outcomes including reduced tobacco disparities.  
This Program Element, and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the 
month noted in Issue Date section of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted in 
Comments and Footnotes of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Specific to Tobacco Prevention Education Program (TPEP). 
a. Oregon Indoor Clean Air Act (ICAA) (also known as the Smokefree Workplace Law) protects 

workers and the public from secondhand smoke exposure in public, in the workplace, and within 
10 feet of all entrances, exits, accessibility ramps that lead to and from an entrance or exit, 
windows that open and air-intake vents. The ICAA includes the use of "inhalant delivery 
systems." Inhalant delivery systems are devices that can be used to deliver nicotine, cannabinoids 
and other substances, in the form of a vapor or aerosol. These include e-cigarettes, vape pens, e-
hookah and other devices. Under the law, people may not use e-cigarettes and other inhalant 
delivery systems in workplaces, restaurants, bars and other indoor public places in Oregon. 

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities. The 
activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics (if 
applicable), as follows (see Oregon’s Public Health Modernization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man
ual.pdf):   

  

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #13 – TOBACCO PREVENTION EDUCATION PROGRAM PAGE 42 OF 129 PAGES 

a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization 
Manual) 

Program Components  Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 

 

C
D

 C
on

tro
l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that 
aligns with each component 
X = Other applicable foundational programs 

X = Foundational capabilities that align with 
each component 

Facilitation of 
Community Partnerships  *  X  X X X X X X  

Creating Tobacco-free 
Environments  *  X  X X X X X X  

Countering Pro-Tobacco 
Influences  *    X X X X X X  

Promoting Quitting 
Among Adults and Youth  X  *  X X X X X X  

Enforcement  * X   X X X X X X  
Reducing the Burden of 
Tobacco-Related Chronic 
Disease 

 *  X  X X X X X X  

b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric: 
Adults who smoke cigarettes 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Modernization Process Measure: 
Percent of community members reached by local (tobacco retail/smoke free) policies 

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements. By accepting and using the Financial Assistance awarded 
under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in accordance 
with the following requirements:  
a. Engage in activities as described in its local program plan and local program budget, which has 

been approved by OHA and on file based on a schedule to be determined by OHA. OHA will 
supply the required format and current service data for use in completing the plans. LPHA must 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #13 – TOBACCO PREVENTION EDUCATION PROGRAM PAGE 43 OF 129 PAGES 

implement its TPEP activities in accordance with its approved local program plan and local 
program budget. Modifications to the plans may only be made with OHA approval. 

b. Ensure that LPHA leadership is appropriately involved and its local tobacco program is staffed at 
the appropriate level, depending on its level of funding, as specified in the award of funds for this 
Program Element. 

c. Use the funds awarded under this Agreement for this Program Element in accordance with its 
local program budget as approved by OHA and incorporated herein by this reference. 
Modifications to the local program budget may only be made with OHA approval. Funds 
awarded for this Program Element may not be used for treatment, direct cessation delivery, other 
disease control programs, or other efforts not devoted to tobacco prevention and education. 

d. Attend all TPEP meetings reasonably required by OHA. 
e. Comply with OHA’s TPEP Guidelines and Policies. 
f. Coordinate its TPEP activities and collaborate with other entities receiving TPEP funds or 

providing TPEP services. 
g. In the event of any omission from, or conflict or inconsistency between, the provisions of the 

local program plan and local program budget on file at OHA, the provisions of the Agreement 
and this Program Element, the provisions of this Agreement and this Program Element shall 
control. 

5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting. LPHA must complete an “Oregon Health Authority Public 
Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” located in Exhibit C of this Agreement.  These 
reports must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the following schedule:   

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First:  July 1 – September 30 October 30 

Second:  October 1 – December 31 January 30 

Third:  January 1 – March 31 April 30 

Fourth:  April 1 – June 30 August 20 

6. Reporting Requirements. LPHA must submit local program plan reports on a semi-annual schedule to 
be determined by OHA. The reports must include, at a minimum, LPHA’s progress during the reporting 
period towards completing activities described in its local program plan. Upon request by OHA, LPHA 
must also submit reports that detail quantifiable outcomes of activities and data accumulated from 
community-based assessments of tobacco use. LPHA leadership and program staff must participate in 
reporting interviews on a schedule to be determined by OHA and LPHA. 

7. Performance Measures.  
a. LPHA must operate the Tobacco Prevention Education Program (TPEP) described in its local 

program plan and in a manner designed to make progress toward achieving the following Public 
Health Modernization Process Measure:  
Percent of community members reached by local (tobacco retail/smoke free) policies  

b. If LPHA completes fewer than 75% of the planned activities in its local program plan for two 
consecutive reporting periods in one state fiscal year LPHA will not be eligible to receive 
funding under this Program Element during the next state fiscal year. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #42 – MATERNAL, CHILD AND ADOLESCENT HEALTH SERVICES PAGE 44 OF 129 PAGES 

Program Element #42:  Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) Services 
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element: 
Public Health Division/Center for Health Prevention & Health Promotion/Maternal and Child Health Section 
1. Description. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to deliver 
Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) Services. 
General Description. Funding provided under this Agreement for this Program Element shall only 
be used in accordance with and subject to the restrictions and limitations set forth below and the 
Federal Title V Maternal and Child Health Block Grant Services (Title V) to provide the following 
services: 
a. Title V MCH Block Grant Services; 
b. Perinatal, Child and Adolescent Health General Fund Preventive Health Services;  
c. Oregon Mothers Care (OMC) Services; 
d. MCH Public Health Nurse Home Visiting Services (Babies First!, Family Connects,  Nurse 

Family Partnership). 
If funds awarded for MCAH Services, in the Financial Assistance Award located in Exhibit C to 
this Agreement, are restricted to a particular MCAH Service, those funds shall only be used by 
LPHA to support delivery of that specific service. All performance by LPHA under this Program 
Element, including but not limited to reporting obligations, shall be to the satisfaction of OHA. 
This Program Element, and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the 
month noted in Issue Date section of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted 
in Comments and Footnotes of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Specific to Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) Services. 
a. Title V MCH Block Grant Services:  The purpose of Title V MCH Block grant is to provide a 

foundation for ensuring the health of the Nation’s mothers, women, children, and youth. Services 
delivered using Federal Title V MCH funding will comply with Federal Title V MCH statute and 
Oregon’s Title V MCH implementation guidance, and address Oregon’s Title V priorities. 

b. Perinatal, Child and Adolescent Health General Fund Preventive Health Services: : 
Activities, functions, or services that support the optimal health outcomes for women before and 
between pregnancies, during the perinatal time period, infants, children and adolescents. 

c. OMC Services: Referral services to prenatal care and related services provided to pregnant 
women as early as possible in their pregnancies, with the goal of improving access to early 
prenatal care services in Oregon. OMC Services shall include an ongoing outreach campaign, 
utilization of the statewide toll-free 211 Info telephone hotline system, and local access sites to 
assist women to obtain prenatal care services. 

d. MCH Public Health Nurse Home Visiting Services (Babies First!, Family Connects, Nurse 
Family Partnership: The primary goal of MCH Public Health Nurse Home Visiting Services 
are  to strengthen families and improve the health status of women and children.. Services are 
delivered or directed by public health nurses (PHNs) and are provided during home visits.  

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #42 – MATERNAL, CHILD AND ADOLESCENT HEALTH SERVICES PAGE 45 OF 129 PAGES 

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational. The activities and 
services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with Foundational 
Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics (if applicable), 
as follows (see Oregon’s Public Health Modernization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_
manual.pdf):   
a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health 

Modernization Manual) 
 

Program Components Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 

 
C

D
 C

on
tro

l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

siv
en

es
s 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program 
that aligns with each component 

X = Other applicable foundational programs 

X = Foundational capabilities that align 
with each component 

(Component 1) 
Title V MCH Block 
Grant Services  

 *  X X X X X X X X  

(Component 2) 
Perinatal, Child and 
Adolescent Health 
General Fund Preventive 
Health Services 

 

 *  X X  X X X  X  

(Component 3) 
Oregon Mothers 
CareServices 

 *  X X  X X X  X  

(Component 4) 

MCH PHN Home 
Visiting Services  

 *  X X  X X X  X  

b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health 
system achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric: Not Applicable 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health 
system achieve the following Public Health Modernization Process Measure: Not 
Applicable 

  

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #42 – MATERNAL, CHILD AND ADOLESCENT HEALTH SERVICES PAGE 46 OF 129 PAGES 

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements. By accepting and using the Financial Assistance 
awarded under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in 
accordance with the following requirements: 
a. General Requirements 

(1) Data Collection. LPHA must provide MCAH client data, in accordance with Title V 
Section 506 [42 USC 706], defined by revised 2015 Federal Guidance, to OHA with 
respect to each individual receiving any MCAH Service supported in whole or in part 
with MCAH Service funds provided under this Agreement. 

(2) MCAH Services must be implemented with a commitment to racial equity as 
demonstrated by the use of policies, procedures and tools for racial equity and cultural 
responsiveness. 

(3) Funding Limitations. Funds awarded under this Agreement for this Program Element 
and listed in the Exhibit C, Financial Assistance Award must be used for services or 
activities described in this Program Element according to the following limitations: 
(a) MCAH Title V CAH (PE42-07, PE42-08):  

i. Funds are designated for services for women, infants, children, and 
adolescents less than 21 years of age (Title V, Section 505 [42 USC 
705(a)(3)(A)]).  

ii. Title V funds shall not be used as match for any federal funding source.  
iii. Title V funds must be used for services that support federal or state- 

identified Title V MCAH priorities as outlined in section.  
iv. LPHA shall not use more than 10% of the Title V funds awarded for a 

particular MCAH Service on indirect costs. For purposes of this 
Program Element, indirect costs are defined as “costs incurred by an 
organization that are not readily identifiable but are nevertheless 
necessary to the operation of the organization and the performance of its 
programs.” These costs include, but are not limited to, “costs of 
operating and maintaining facilities, for administrative salaries, 
equipment, depreciation, etc.” in accordance with Title V, Section 504 
[42 USC 704(d)]. 

v. Charges imposed by a State for services under this program must be 
pursuant to a published schedule of charges and adjusted to reflect the 
income, resources, and family size of the recipients. No charges may be 
imposed for low-income mothers or children (42 USC 705(a)(5)(D)). 
The official poverty guideline, as revised annually by HHS, shall be 
used to determine whether an individual is considered low-income for 
this purpose. 

(b) MCAH Perinatal General Funds and Title XIX (PE42-03): Funds must be 
used for public health services for women during the perinatal period (one year 
prior to conception through two years postpartum). 

(c) MCAH Babies First! General Funds (PE42-04):  Funds are limited to 
expenditures for MCH PHN Home Visiting Services (Babies First!, Family 
Connects, Nurse Family Partnership). 

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #42 – MATERNAL, CHILD AND ADOLESCENT HEALTH SERVICES PAGE 47 OF 129 PAGES 

(d) MCAH Oregon Mother’s Care Title V (PE42-09, PE42-10): Funds must be 
used for implementing OMC. 

i. Funds are designated for services for women, infants, children, and 
adolescents less than 21 years of age (Title V, Section 505 [42 USC 
705(a)(3)(A)]).  

ii. Title V funds shall not be used as match for any federal funding source.  
iii. Title V funds must be used for services that support federal or state- 

identified Title V MCAH priorities as outlined in section.  
iv. LPHA shall not use more than 10% of the Title V funds awarded for a 

particular MCAH Service on indirect costs. For purposes of this 
Program Element, indirect costs are defined as “costs incurred by an 
organization that are not readily identifiable but are nevertheless 
necessary to the operation of the organization and the performance of 
its programs.” These costs include, but are not limited to, “costs of 
operating and maintaining facilities, for administrative salaries, 
equipment, depreciation, etc.” in accordance with Title V, Section 504 
[42 USC 704(d)]. 

v. Charges imposed by a State for services under this program must be 
pursuant to a published schedule of charges and adjusted to reflect the 
income, resources, and family size of the recipients. No charges may be 
imposed for low-income mothers or children (42 USC 705(a)(5)(D)). 
The official poverty guideline, as revised annually by HHS, shall be 
used to determine whether an individual is considered low-income for 
this purpose. 

(e) MCAH CAH General Funds and Title XIX (PE42-06): Funds must be used 
for public health services for infants, children and adolescents. 

b. Title V MCH Block Grant Services. All Title V MCH Block Grant Services supported in 
whole or in part with funds provided under this Agreement must be delivered in accordance with 
the following procedural and operational requirements: 
(1) Medicaid Application. Title V of the Social Security Act mandates that all maternal and 

child health-related programs identify and provide application assistance for pregnant 
women and children potentially eligible for Medicaid services. LPHA must collaborate 
with OHA to assure Medicaid application assistance to pregnant women and children 
who receive MCAH Services supported in whole or in part with funds provided under 
this Agreement for this Program Element and who are potentially eligible for Medicaid 
services, according to Title V Section 505 [42 USC 705]. 

(2) LPHA must submit an annual plan for use of Title V funds demonstrating how Title V 
funds support activities directly related to Oregon’s Title V Priorities as operationalized 
by the Title V online reporting form. The Title V Plan shall include: 
(a) Rationale for priorities selected reflecting the health needs of the MCAH 

population; 
(b) Strategies, measures and timelines that coordinate with and support Oregon’s 

Title V priorities, strategies and Action Plan; 
(c) Plan to measure progress and outcomes of the Title V funded activities; 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #42 – MATERNAL, CHILD AND ADOLESCENT HEALTH SERVICES PAGE 48 OF 129 PAGES 

(d) Prior year use of Title V funds; and 
(e) Projected use of Title V funds and other funds supporting the Title V annual 

plan. 
(3) LPHA must provide Title V MCH Block Grant Services administered or approved by 

OHA that support optimal health outcomes for women, infants, children, adolescents, 
and families. Title V MCH Block Grant Services include strategies and activities aligned 
with:  
(a) Oregon’s current Title V MCH Block Grant Application including:  

i. Oregon’s Title V MCH national and state-specific priorities and 
performance measures based on findings of Oregon’s 5 year Title V 
MCH Block Grant Needs Assessment as defined across six population 
domains: Maternal/Women’s health, Perinatal/Infant Health, Child 
Health, Children and Youth with Special Healthcare Needs, Adolescent 
Health, Cross- Cutting or Systems. 

ii. Oregon’s evidence-based/informed Title V strategies and measures 
iii. Other MCAH Services identified through the annual plan and approved 

by OHA (up to 20% of Title V funding). 
c. Perinatal, Child and Adolescent Health General Fund Preventive Health Services.   

(1) State MCAH Perinatal, Child and Adolescent Health General funded work may be used 
to address the following: 
(a) Title V MCH Block Grant Services as described above.  
(b) Preconception health services such as screening, counseling and referral for safe 

relationships, domestic violence, alcohol, substance and tobacco use and 
cessation, and maternal depression and mental health.  

(c) Perinatal health services such as MCH Public Health Nurse Home Visiting 
Services, Oregon MothersCare (OMC) Services, Oral Health; or other 
preventive health services that improve pregnancy outcomes and health. 

(d) Infant and child health services such as MCH Public Health Nurse Home 
Visiting Services, child care health consultation, Sudden Infant Death 
Syndrome/Sudden Unexplained Infant Death follow-up, Child Fatality 
Review/Child Abuse Multi-Disciplinary Intervention, Early Hearing Detection 
and Intervention follow-up, oral health including dental sealant services; or 
other health services that improve health outcomes for infants and young 
children; and 

(e) Adolescent health services such as School-Based Health Centers; teen 
pregnancy prevention; or other adolescent preventive health services that 
improve health outcomes for adolescents. 

d. OMC Services. All OMC Services supported in whole or in part with funds provided under this 
Agreement must be delivered in accordance with the following procedural and operational 
requirements: 
(1) LPHA must designate a staff member as its OMC Coordinator to work with OHA on 

developing a local delivery system for OMC Services. LPHA’s OMC Coordinator must 
work closely with OHA to promote consistency around the state in the delivery of OMC 
Services. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #42 – MATERNAL, CHILD AND ADOLESCENT HEALTH SERVICES PAGE 49 OF 129 PAGES 

(2) LPHA must follow the OMC Protocols, as described in OHA’s Oregon MothersCare 
Manual provided to LPHA and its locations at which OMC Services are available, when 
providing OMC Services such as outreach and public education about the need for and 
availability of first trimester prenatal care, home visiting, prenatal care, including dental 
care, and other services as needed by pregnant women. 

(3) As part of its OMC Services, LPHA must develop and maintain an outreach and referral 
system and partnerships for local prenatal care and related services. 

(4) LPHA must assist all women seeking OMC Services in accessing prenatal services as 
follows: 
(a) Provide follow up services to clients and women who walk in or are referred to 

the OMC Site by the 211 Info and other referral sources; inform these 
individuals of the link to the local prenatal care provider system; and provide 
advocacy and support to individuals in accessing prenatal and related services. 

(b) Provide facilitated and coordinated intake services and referral to the following 
services: Clinical Prenatal Care (CPC) Services (such as pregnancy testing, 
counseling, Oregon Health Plan (OHP) application assistance, first prenatal care 
appointment); MCH Home Visiting Services); WIC Services; screening for 
health risks such as Intimate Partner Violence, Smoking, Alcohol and other 
Drug use; other pregnancy support programs; and other prenatal services as 
needed. 

(5) LPHA must make available OMC Services to all pregnant women within the county. 
Special outreach shall be directed to low-income women and women who are members 
of racial and ethnic minorities or who receive assistance in finding and initiating CPC. 
Outreach includes activities such as talks at meetings of local minority groups, exhibits 
at community functions to inform the target populations, and public health education 
with a focus on the target minorities. Low-income is defined as having an annual 
household income which is 190% or less of the federal poverty level (“FPL”) for an 
individual or family. 

(6) LPHA must make available to all low-income pregnant women and all pregnant women 
within the county who are members of racial and ethnic minorities assistance in 
applying for OHP coverage and referrals to additional perinatal health services. 

(7) LPHA must designate a representative who shall attend OMC site meetings conducted 
by OHA. 

e. MCH PHN Home Visiting Services (Babies First!, Family Connects and Nurse Family 
Partnership) Services. All Babies First!/Nurse Family Partnership Services supported in whole 
or in part with funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element must be delivered 
in accordance with the following procedural and operational requirements. 
(1) Staffing Requirements and Staff Qualifications  

(a) Babies First!  
i. LPHA must designate a staff member as its Babies First! Supervisor.   
ii. Babies First! Services must be delivered by or under the direction of a 

RN/PHN. Minimum required staffing is .5 FTE RN/PHN with a required 
minimum caseload of 20. RN/PHN BSN staff are preferred but not 
required.   



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #42 – MATERNAL, CHILD AND ADOLESCENT HEALTH SERVICES PAGE 50 OF 129 PAGES 

iii. If a local program is unable to meet the minimum staffing or caseload 
requirement, a variance request completed in consultation with the an 
MCH Nurse Consultant and approved by an MCH Section manager 
must be in place. 

iv. If a local program is implemented through a cross county collaboration 
with shared staff across jurisdictions a subcontract and/or Memorandum 
of Understanding must be in place defining the staffing and supervision 
agreements.   

(b) Family Connects: LPHA must designate a staff member as its Family Connects 
Supervisor.  If Family Connect Program is implemented through a cross county 
collaboration with shared staff across jurisdictions a subcontract and/or 
Memorandum of Understanding must be in place defining the staffing and 
supervision agreements.   

(c) Nurse Family Partnership: LPHA must designate a staff member as its Nurse 
Family Partnership Supervisor. If the Nurse Family Partnership program is 
implemented through a cross county collaboration with shared staff across 
jurisdictions a subcontract and/or Memorandum of Understanding must be in 
place defining the supervision agreements.   

(2) Activities and Services  
(a) Babies First!: services may be provided to eligible perinatal women, infants and 

children through four years of age who have one or more risk factors for poor 
health or growth and development outcomes. Services may also be provided to a 
parent or primary caregiver of an eligible child. Services must be delivered in 
accordance with Babies First! Program Guidance provided by the Maternal and 
Child Health Section.  

(b) Family Connects: Services must be delivered in accordance with the Family 
Connects model as defined by Family Connects International.  

(3) Nurse Family Partnership: Services must be delivered in accordance with Nurse Family 
Partnership model elements and LPHA contract with the Nurse Family Partnership 
National Service Office. 

(4) Nursing Practice. All PHNs working in the Babies First!, Family Connects, or Nurse 
Family Partnership programs must adhere to nursing practice standards as defined by the 
Oregon State Board of Nursing. 

(5) Targeted Case Management. If the LPHA, as a provider of Medicaid services, chooses 
to bill for Targeted Case Management-eligible services, the LPHA must comply with the 
Targeted Case Management billing policy and codes in OAR 410-138-0000 through 
410- 138-0390.  

(6) Early Hearing Detection and Intervention (EHDI) Notifications: Babies First!/Family 
Connects/Nurse Family Partnership Services must receive notifications made by OHA 
for Early Hearing Detection and Intervention as described in ORS 433.321 and 433.323 
and report back to OHA on planned follow-up   

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #42 – MATERNAL, CHILD AND ADOLESCENT HEALTH SERVICES PAGE 51 OF 129 PAGES 

5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting. LPHA must complete an “Oregon Health Authority 
Public Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” located in Exhibit C of the Agreement. 
These reports must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the following schedule: 

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First: July 1 – September 30 October 30 

Second: October 1 – December 31 January 30 

Third: January 1 – March 31 April 30 

Fourth: April 1 – June 30 August 20 

6. Reporting Requirements. 

a. Reporting Obligations and Periodic Reporting Requirements for MCAH Services. 
Title V Block Grant Services 
A report on the prior year annual plan must be submitted by September 30 of every year. 
If LHA provides MCH PHN Home Visiting Services using these funds, see reporting obligations 
for MCH PHN Home Visiting services.  

b. Reporting Obligations and Periodic Reporting Requirements for State Perinatal Child and 
Adolescent Health General Funds 
If LHA provides MCH PHN Home Visiting services using these funds, see reporting obligations 
for MCH PHN Home Visiting Services. 

c. Reporting Obligations and Periodic Reporting Requirements for OMC Services. LPHA 
must collect and submit client encounter data quarterly using the Web-based Interface Tracking 
System (WTI) on individuals who receive OMC Services supported in whole or in part with fund 
provided under this Agreement. LPHA must ensure that t their quarterly data is entered into 
WTI, cleaned and available for analysis to OHA on a quarterly basis. Sites may use the OMC 
client tracking forms approved by OHA prior to entering their data into WTI.  

d. Reporting Obligations and Periodic Reporting Requirements for MCH PHN Home Visiting 
Services (Babies First!, Family Connects and Nurse Family Partnership Services.  

For all individuals who receive MCH PHN Home Visiting Services, LPHA must ensure that 
Supervisors and Home Visitors collect required data on client visits and enter it into the state-
designated data system in a timely manner that is aligned with expectations defined by each 
program and within no more than thirty (30) business days of visiting the client and 45 days 
of case closure.  
LPHA must take all appropriate steps to maintain client confidentiality and obtain any 
necessary written permissions or agreements for data analysis or disclosure of protected 
health information, in accordance with HIPAA (Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996) regulations.  

7. Performance Measures. 
LPHA must operate the Title V funded work under this Program Element in a manner designed to make 
progress toward achieving Title V state and national performance measures as specified in Oregon’s 
MCH Title V Block Grant annual application/report to the DHHS Maternal and Child Health Bureau. 

 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #43 – IMMUNIZATION SERVICES PAGE 52 OF 129 PAGES 

Program Element #43: Immunization Services 
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:   
Public Health Division/Center for Public Health Practice, Immunization Section 
1. Description.  Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to deliver 
Immunization Services.  
Immunization services are provided in the community to prevent and mitigate vaccine-preventable 
diseases for all people by reaching and maintaining high lifetime immunization rates.  Services include 
population-based services including public education, enforcement of school immunization 
requirements, and technical assistance for healthcare providers that provide vaccines to their client 
populations; as well as vaccine administration to vulnerable populations with an emphasis on ensuring 
access and equity in service delivery.  
This Program Element, and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the month 
noted in Issue Date section of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted in 
Comments and Footnotes of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Specific to Immunization Services. 
a. ALERT IIS:  OHA’s statewide immunization information system. 
b. Assessment, Feedback, Incentives, & eXchange or AFIX:  See IQIP definition.   
c. Billable Doses:  Vaccine doses given to individuals who opt to pay out of pocket or are insured 

for vaccines. 
d. Case Management: An individualized plan for securing, coordinating, and monitoring disease-

appropriate treatment interventions. 
e.  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention or CDC: Federal Centers for Disease Control 

and Prevention. 
f. Clinical Immunization Staff:  LPHA staff that administer immunizations or who have authority 

to order immunizations for patients. 
g. Delegate Addendum: A document serving as a contract between LPHAs and an outside agency 

agreeing to provide Immunization Services under the umbrella of the LPHA. The Addendum is 
signed in addition to a Public Provider Agreement and Profile. 

h. Delegate Agency:  An immunization clinic that is subcontracted with the LPHA for the purpose 
of providing Immunization Services to targeted populations.  

i. Deputization: The process that allows Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC) and Rural 
Health Clinics (RHC) to authorize local health departments (LHDs) to vaccinate underinsured 
VFC-eligible children. 

j. Electronic Health Record (EHR) or Electronic Medical Record (EMR):  Aa digital version 
of a patient’s paper medical chart.  

k. Exclusion Orders:  Legal notification to a parent or guardian of their child’s noncompliance 
with the School/Facility Immunization Law.  

l. Forecasting:  Determining vaccines due for an individual, based on immunization history and 
age. 

m. HBsAg Screening:  Testing to determine presence of Hepatitis B surface antigen, indicating the 
individual carries the disease. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #43 – IMMUNIZATION SERVICES PAGE 53 OF 129 PAGES 

n. IQIP, Immunization Quality Improvement for Providers: A continuous quality improvement 
process developed by CDC to improve clinic immunization rates and practices. Previously called 
AFIX. 

o. Oregon Vaccine Stewardship Statute: State law requiring all VFC-enrolled providers to:  
(1) Submit all vaccine administration data, including dose level eligibility codes, to ALERT 

IIS;  
(2) Use ALERT IIS ordering and inventory modules; and 
(3) Verify that at least two employees have current training and certification in vaccine 

storage, handling and administration, unless exempt under statute. 
p. Orpheus: An electronic communicable disease database and surveillance system intended for 

local and state public health epidemiologists and disease investigators to manage communicable 
disease reporting. 

q. Public Provider Agreement and Profile:  Signed agreement a between OHA and LPHA that 
receives State-Supplied Vaccine/IG.  Agreement includes clinic demographic details, program 
requirements and the number of patients vaccinated.  

r. Service Area:  Geographic areas in Oregon served by immunization providers. 
s. State-Supplied Vaccine/IG:  Vaccine or Immune Globulin provided by the OHA procured with 

federal and state funds.   
t. Surveillance:  The routine collection, analysis and dissemination of data that describe the 

occurrence and distribution of disease, events or conditions. 
u. Vaccine Adverse Events Reporting System or VAERS:  Federal system for reporting adverse 

events following vaccine administration.  
v. Vaccine Eligibility:  An individual’s eligibility for State-Supplied Vaccine/IG based on 

insurance coverage for immunization.  
w. Vaccines for Children (VFC) Program:  A Federal entitlement program providing no-cost 

vaccines to children 0 through 18 years who are:  
(1) American Indian/Alaskan Native; or, 
(2) Uninsured; or, 
(3) Medicaid-enrolled; or, 
(4) Underinsured and are served in Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC) or Rural 

Health Centers (RHC); or, 
(5) Underinsured and served by LPHAs that have Deputization agreements with 

FQHCs/RHCs. 
x. Vaccines for Children Site Visit: An on-site visit conducted at least every two years to ensure 

compliance with state and federal VFC requirements.  
y. Vaccine Information Statement or VIS: Federally-required patient handouts produced by CDC 

with information about the risks and benefits of each vaccine. 
  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #43 – IMMUNIZATION SERVICES PAGE 54 OF 129 PAGES 

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities. The 
activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics (if 
applicable), as follows (see Oregon’s Public Health Modernization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man
ual.pdf):   
a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization 

Manual) 
 

Program Components  Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 
 

C
D

 C
on

tro
l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that 
aligns with each component 
X = Other applicable foundational programs 

X = Foundational capabilities that align with 
each component 

Vaccines for Children 
Program Enrollment     *  X     X 

Oregon Vaccine 
Stewardship Statute     * X       

Vaccine Management     *       X 
Billable Doses/IG     *  X      
Delegate Agencies     *   X     
Vaccine Administration     *       X 
Immunization Rates, 
Outreach and Education    *         

Tracking and Recall    *     X    
Surveillance of Vaccine-
Preventable Diseases *        X    

Adverse Events 
Following Immunizations     *        

Perinatal Hepatitis B 
Prevention, Screening 
and Documentation 

*        X    

School/Facility 
Immunization Law    *     X    

 
  

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #43 – IMMUNIZATION SERVICES PAGE 55 OF 129 PAGES 

b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric:  
Two-year-old vaccination rates. 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Modernization Process Measure:  
IQIP program. 

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements. By accepting and using the Financial Assistance awarded 
under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in accordance 
with the following requirements:   
a. State-Supplied Vaccine/IG Provider OR Vaccines for Children Program Enrollment. 

LPHA must maintain enrollment as an active State-Supplied Vaccine/IG provider or VFC 
Provider. In addition, if LPHA contracts out for clinical services, LPHA must ensure that 
Subcontractor maintains enrollment as an active VFC Provider. 

b. Oregon Vaccine Stewardship Statute. LPHA must comply with all sections of the Oregon 
Vaccine Stewardship Statute. 

c. Vaccine Management. 
(1) LPHA must conduct a monthly, physical inventory of all vaccine storage units and must 

reconcile their inventory in ALERT IIS. Inventories must be kept for a minimum of three 
years.  

(2) LPHA must submit vaccine orders according to the tier assigned by the OHA’s 
Immunization Program. 

d. Billable Doses/IG. 
(1) OHA will bill LPHA quarterly for Billable Doses of vaccine.  
(2) OHA will bill the published price in effect at the time the vaccine dose is administered. 
(3) LPHA may not charge or bill a patient more for the vaccine than the published price. 
(4) Payment is due 30 days after the invoice date. 

e. Delegate Agencies.   
(1) If LPHA has a Subcontract for Immunization Services LPHA must complete a Delegate 

Addendum. A new Delegate Addendum must be signed when either of the authorized 
signers changes or upon request. 

(2) (Quality Assurance only) LPHA must participate in Delegate Agency’s biennial VFC 
compliance site visits with an OHA site visit reviewer. 

f. Vaccine Administration. 
(1) Vaccines must be administered as directed in the most current, signed version of OHA’s 

Model Standing Orders for Immunizations. 
(2) LPHA must ensure that Clinical Immunization Staff annually view a minimum of one hour 

of immunization-specific continuing education like the Epidemiology and Prevention of 
Vaccine-Preventable Diseases program or the annual Immunization Update. Other 
immunization continuing education from sources like the CDC, Children’s Hospital of 
Philadelphia, American Academy of Pediatrics, etc. are also acceptable.  

  

-



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #43 – IMMUNIZATION SERVICES PAGE 56 OF 129 PAGES 

(3) In connection with the administration of a vaccine, LPHA must: 
(a) Confirm that a recipient, parent, or legal representative has read, or has had read 

to them, the VIS and has had their questions answered prior to the administration 
of the vaccine.  

(b) Make the VIS available in other languages or formats when needed (e.g., when 
English is not a patient’s primary language or for those needing the VIS in 
braille.) 

(c) Provide to the recipient, parent or legal representative, documentation of vaccines 
received at visit.  LPHA may provide a new immunization record or update the 
recipient’s existing handheld record.   

(d) Screen for contraindications and precautions prior to administering vaccine and 
document that screening has occurred. 

(e) Document administration of an immunization using a vaccine administration 
record or electronic equivalent, including all federally-required charting elements. 
(Note- ALERT IIS does not record all federally-required elements and cannot be 
used as a replacement for this requirement.) 

(f) If LPHA documents vaccine administration electronically LPHA must 
demonstrate the ability to override a VIS date in their EHR system.  

(g) Comply with state and federal statutory and regulatory retention schedules, 
available for review at 
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/doc/recmgmt/sched/special/state/sched/20120011oha
phdrrs.pdf, or OHA’s office located at 800 NE Oregon St, Suite 370, Portland, 
OR  97232.  

(h) Comply with Vaccine Billing Standards.  See Attachment 1 to this Program 
Element, incorporated herein by this reference. 

g. Immunization Rates, Outreach and Education.   
(1) OHA will provide annually to LPHA their IQIP rates and other population-based county 

rates.  
(2) LPHA must, during the state fiscal year, design and implement two educational or 

outreach activities in their Service Area (either singly or in collaboration with other 
community and service provider organizations) designed to raise immunization rates.  
Activities may include: 

• Activities intended to reduce barriers to immunization, or special immunization 
clinics that provide vaccine for flu prevention or school children. 

• One of these activities must be related to promoting IQIP participation with local 
VFC-enrolled clinics. This activity may also be outreach to a local coordinated-
care organization to promote IQIP activities.  

h. Tracking and Recall.  
(1) LPHA must Forecast immunizations due for clients requiring Immunization Services using 

the ALERT IIS electronic Forecasting system. 
(2) LPHA must review their patients on the statewide recall list(s) in the first two weeks of the 

month and make any necessary demographic or immunization updates. 

http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/doc/recmgmt/sched/special/state/sched/20120011ohaphdrrs.pdf
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/doc/recmgmt/sched/special/state/sched/20120011ohaphdrrs.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #43 – IMMUNIZATION SERVICES PAGE 57 OF 129 PAGES 

(3) LPHA must cooperate with OHA to recall a client if a dose administered by LPHA to such 
client is found by LPHA or OHA to have been mishandled and/or administered incorrectly, 
thus rendering such dose invalid.  

i. Surveillance of Vaccine-Preventable Diseases.  LPHA must conduct Surveillance within its 
Service Area in accordance with the Communicable Disease Administrative Rules, the 
Investigation Guidelines for Notifiable Diseases, the Public Health Laboratory User’s Manual, 
and the Model Standing Orders for Vaccine, available for review at: 
http://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease 
http://public.health.oregon.gov/LaboratoryServiceshttp://public.health.oregon.gov/PreventionWe
llness/VaccinesImmunization/ImmunizationProviderResources/Pages/provresources.aspx  

j. Adverse Events Following Immunizations.   
LPHA must complete and electronically file a VAERS form if:  
(1) An adverse event following immunization administration occurs, as listed in "Reportable 

Events Following Immunization”, available for review at  
http://vaers.hhs.gov/professionals/index#Guidance1  

(2) An event occurs that the package insert lists as a contraindication to additional vaccine 
doses. 

(3) OHA requests a 60-day and/or one year follow-up report to an earlier reported adverse 
event; or 

(4) Any other event LPHA believes to be related directly or indirectly to the receipt of any 
vaccine administered by LPHA or others occurs within 30 days of vaccine administration, 
and results in either the death of the person or the need for the person to visit a licensed 
health care provider or hospital. 

k. Perinatal Hepatitis B Prevention, Screening and Documentation 
(1) LPHA must provide Case Management services to all confirmed or suspect HBsAg-positive 

mother-infant pairs identified by LPHA or OHA in LPHA’s Service Area. 
(2) Case Management will be performed in accordance with the Perinatal Hepatitis B 

Prevention Program Guidelines posted on the OHA website at 
https://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCom
municableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Documents/hepbperi.pdf and must include, at a 
minimum: 
(a) Screen for HBsAg status, or refer to a health care provider for screening of 

HBsAg status, all pregnant women receiving prenatal care from public prenatal 
programs.  

(b) Work with birthing hospitals within LPHA’s Service Area when maternal 
screening and documentation of hepatitis B serostatus in the Electronic Birth 
Registration System drops below 95%.  

(c) Work with birthing hospitals within LPHA’s Service Area when administration of 
the birth dose of hepatitis B vaccine drops below 80% as reported in the 
Electronic Birth Registration System. 

(d) Ensure that laboratories and health care providers promptly report HBsAg-
positive pregnant women to LPHA. 

http://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease
http://public.health.oregon.gov/LaboratoryServices
http://public.health.oregon.gov/PreventionWellness/VaccinesImmunization/ImmunizationProviderResources/Pages/provresources.aspx
http://public.health.oregon.gov/PreventionWellness/VaccinesImmunization/ImmunizationProviderResources/Pages/provresources.aspx
http://vaers.hhs.gov/professionals/index#Guidance1
https://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommunicableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Documents/hepbperi.pdf
https://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommunicableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Documents/hepbperi.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #43 – IMMUNIZATION SERVICES PAGE 58 OF 129 PAGES 

(e) Provide Case Management services to HBsAg-positive mother-infant pairs to 
track administration of hepatitis B immune globulin, hepatitis B vaccine doses 
and post-vaccination serology. 

(f) Provide HBsAg-positive mothers with initial education and referral of all 
susceptible contacts for hepatitis B vaccination. 

l. School/Facility Immunization Law 
(1) LPHA must comply with the Oregon School Immunization Law, Oregon Revised Statutes 

433.235 - 433.284, available for review at 
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors433.html   

(2) LPHA must take orders for and deliver Certificate of Immunization Status (CIS) forms to 
schools and children’s facilities located in their jurisdiction. Bulk orders of CIS forms will 
be provided to the LPHA by the state. 

(3) LPHA must cover the cost of mailing/shipping all Exclusion Orders to parents and to 
schools, school-facility packets which are materials for completing the annual 
school/facility exclusion process as required by the Oregon School Immunization Law, 
Oregon Revised Statutes 433.235 - 433.284 and the administrative rules promulgated 
pursuant thereto, which can be found at 
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action%3bJSESSIONID_OARD=2r
AGjMwAFKyKGiwIdp_03oUv7xaI6kjlhXdVWS78XLgPdYNa0jj7%21479495115?selecte
dDivision=1265. LPHA may use electronic mail as an alternative or an addition to 
mailing/shipping if the LPHA has complete electronic contact information for all schools 
and children’s facilities, and can confirm receipt of materials. 

(4) LPHA may use electronic mail as an alternative or an addition to mailing/shipping if the 
LPHA has complete electronic contact information for all schools and children’s facilities 
and can confirm receipt of materials 

(5) LPHA must complete an annual Immunization Status Report that contains the immunization 
levels for attendees of: certified childcare facilities; preschools; Head Start facilities; and all 
schools within LPHA’s Service Area. LPHA must submit this report to OHA no later than 
23 days after the third Wednesday of February of each year in which LPHA receives 
funding for Immunization Services under this Agreement. 

m. Affordable Care Act Grants/Prevention and Public Health Project Grants 
(1) If one-time only funding becomes available, LPHA may opt in by submitting an application 

outlining activities and timelines.  The application is subject to approval by the OHA 
Immunization Program. 

(2) LPHA may on occasion receive mini-grant funds from the Immunize Oregon Coalition.  If 
LPHA is awarded such funds, it will fulfill all activities required to meet the mini-grant’s 
objectives, submit reports as prescribed by Immunize Oregon, and utilize the funds in 
keeping with mini-grant guidance. 

n. State Sponsored Conferences: LPHA must participate in State-sponsored immunization 
conference(s) and other training(s).  LPHA will receive dedicated funds for one person from 
LPHA to attend required conference(s) and training(s).  If one staff person's travel expenses 
exceed the dedicated award (based on State of Oregon per diem rates), the OHA will amend the 
LPHA's annual award to cover the additional costs.  LPHA may use any balance on the dedicated 
award (after all State-required trainings are attended) to attend immunization-related 

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors433.html
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action%3bJSESSIONID_OARD=2rAGjMwAFKyKGiwIdp_03oUv7xaI6kjlhXdVWS78XLgPdYNa0jj7%21479495115?selectedDivision=1265
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action%3bJSESSIONID_OARD=2rAGjMwAFKyKGiwIdp_03oUv7xaI6kjlhXdVWS78XLgPdYNa0jj7%21479495115?selectedDivision=1265
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action%3bJSESSIONID_OARD=2rAGjMwAFKyKGiwIdp_03oUv7xaI6kjlhXdVWS78XLgPdYNa0jj7%21479495115?selectedDivision=1265


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #43 – IMMUNIZATION SERVICES PAGE 59 OF 129 PAGES 

conference(s) and training(s) of their choice, or further support activities included in this 
Program Element. 

5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting. LPHA must complete an “Oregon Health Authority Public 
Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” located in Exhibit C of the Agreement. These reports 
must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the following schedule: 

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First: July 1 – September 30 October 30 

Second: October 1 – December 31 January 30 

Third: January 1 – March 31 April 30 

Fourth: April 1 – June 30 August 20 

6. Reporting Requirements.  
a. LPHA must submit vaccine orders according to the ordering tier assigned by OHA.  
b. If LPHA is submitting vaccine administration data electronically to ALERT IIS, LPHA must 

electronically flag clients who are deceased or have moved out of the Service Area or the LPHA 
jurisdiction.  

c. LPHA must complete and return a VAERS form to OHA if any of the conditions precedent set 
forth at Section 4.j. of this Program Element occur. 

d. LPHA must complete and submit an Immunization Status Report as required in Section 4.l.(4) of 
this Program Element. 

e. LPHA must submit a written corrective action plan to address any compliance issues identified at 
the triennial review site visit. 

7. Performance Measures.  
a. LPHA must operate Immunization Services in a manner designed to achieve the following public 

health accountability process measure: Percent of Vaccines for Children clinics that participate in 
the IQIP program. 

b. If LPHA provides Case Management to 5 births or more to HBsAg-positive mothers annually 
LPHA must ensure that 90% of babies receive post-vaccination serology by 15 months of age. If 
LPHA’s post-vaccination serology rate is lower than 90% LPHA must increase the percentage of 
babies receiving post-vaccination serology by at least one percentage point. 

c. LPHA must achieve VFC vaccine accounting excellence in all LPHA-operated clinics in the 
most recent quarter. Clinics achieve vaccine accounting excellence by: 
(1) Accounting for 95% of all vaccine inventory in ALERT IIS. 
(2) Reporting fewer than 5% of accounted for doses as expired, spoiled or wasted during the 

quarter. 
(3) Recording the receipt of vaccine inventory in ALERT IIS. 

d. LPHA must receive 95% of Primary Review Summary follow-up reports (Sections E-H) from 
schools and children’s facilities within 21 days of the annual exclusion day. LPHA must follow 
the steps outlined in OAR 333-050-0095 with any school or facility that does not submit a 
follow-up report in a timely manner.    



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #43 – IMMUNIZATION SERVICES PAGE 60 OF 129 PAGES 

Attachment 1 
 
 
 
 

OREGON’S IMMUNIZATION BILLING STANDARDS 
 
 

Standards for providing and billing for immunization services in Oregon’s Local Public Health 
Authorities (LPHAs) 

 
 Purpose: To standardize and assist in improving immunization billing practice 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Guiding Principles  
 

A modern LPHA understands their actual costs of doing business and dedicates 
resources to assuring continued financially viable operations. As such: 
 

1. LPHAs should continually assess immunization coverage in their respective 
communities, assure that vaccine is accessible to all across the lifespan, 
and bill appropriately for services provided by the LPHA. 
 

2. LPHAs who serve insured individuals should work to develop and 
continuously improve immunization billing capacity that covers the cost of 
providing services to those clients (e.g., develop agreements or contracts 
with health plans, set up procedures to screen clients appropriately, and bill 
vaccine administration fees that reflect the actual cost of services). 

 
3. Public and private health plans should reimburse LPHAs for the covered 

services of their members, with vaccine serum and administration fees 
reimbursed at 100% of actual costs. 

 
4. Each LPHA is uniquely positioned to assess the appropriate 

implementation of these standards. For example, Federally Qualified Health 
Centers (FQHCs) and Rural Health Clinics (RHCs) are obligated to follow a 
certain set of rules that may differ from these standards.  

 
5. LPHAs that contract out some or all clinical immunization services should 

consider including these standards in their contracts as expectations of the 
contracted service provider. 
 
 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #43 – IMMUNIZATION SERVICES PAGE 61 OF 129 PAGES 

Standards require that an LPHA that provides immunization services: 
 

 Identify staff responsible for billing and contracting activities, dedicating at least a portion of 
one or more full-time equivalent (FTEs) positions to meet agency billing needs  

 Determine vaccine administration fees based on the actual cost of service and document how 
fees were determined  

 Charge the actual costs for vaccine administration fees for all clients and discount the fee(s) as 
needed by contract, rule, or internal policy approved by OIP 

 Develop immunization billing policies and procedures that address: 

o Strategies to manage clients who require vaccines by state law, are not eligible 
for VFC or 317 and are unable to meet the cost of immunizations provided (out of 
network or unaffordable cost sharing) 

o The purchasing of privately owned vaccine and how fees are set for vaccine charges to 
the client 

o The appropriate charge for vaccine purchased from OIP, by including a statement that 
says, “We will not charge more than the OIP-published price for billable vaccine.” 

o Billing processes based on payor type (Medicaid/CCOs, private insurance, etc.), 
patient age, and vaccine eligibility  

 With certain limited exceptions as published in vaccine eligibility charts, use no federally 
funded vaccine on insured clients, including adult Medicaid and all Medicare clients 

 Identify and develop contracts or other appropriate agreements with relevant payors – 
including Coordinated Care Organizations (CCOs) to assure access to immunization services 
for insured members of the community 

 Bill private and public health plans directly for immunization services, when feasible, rather 
than collecting fees from the client and having them submit for reimbursement  

 Conduct regular quality assurance measures to ensure costs related to LPHA’s immunization 
services are being covered 

 Work to assure access to immunizations for Medicare-eligible members of the community 
and, if access is poor, provide Medicare Part B and/or Part D vaccines, as needed, and bill 
appropriately to cover the cost 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #44 – SCHOOL-BASED HEALTH CENTERS PAGE 62 OF 129 PAGES 

Program Element #44: School-Based Health Centers (SBHC) 
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:   
Public Health Division/Center for Prevention & Health Promotion/Adolescent, Genetic & Reproductive Health 
Section  
1. Description. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to deliver School-Based 
Health Centers (SBHC) Services.  SBHC Services must only be used to support activities related to 
planning, oversight, maintenance, administration, operation, and delivery of services within one or more 
SBHC as required by OHA’s SBHC funding formula. 
Many school-aged youth do not routinely access preventive health care services due to barriers such as 
insurance, cost, transportation and concerns around confidentiality. According to the 2017 Oregon 
Healthy Teens Survey, approximately 62% of both 8th and 11th graders reported having not seen a 
doctor or nurse for a check-up in the last 12 months.  SBHCs provide physical, mental and preventive 
health services to all students regardless of their ability to pay at in easily accessible location for 
students and families.  
This Program Element, and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the month 
noted in Issue Date section of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted in 
Comments and Footnotes of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Specific to School-Based Health Centers. 
Biennium June 1 to June 30 of the specified years as set forth on the first page of this Agreement. 
School- Based Health Center (“SBHC”) has the meaning given the term in ORS 413.225 
SBHC Standards for Certification In order to be certified as a SBHC, a SBHC must meet all 
requirements for certification in the following sections of the SBHC Standards for Certification.  SBHC 
Standards for Certification are found at:  
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOL
BASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Documents/SBHC%20Certification/SBHCstandardsforcertificationV4.pdf  

  

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Documents/SBHC%20Certification/SBHCstandardsforcertificationV4.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Documents/SBHC%20Certification/SBHCstandardsforcertificationV4.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #44 – SCHOOL-BASED HEALTH CENTERS PAGE 63 OF 129 PAGES 

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities. The 
activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics (if 
applicable), as follows (see Oregon’s Public Health Modernization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man
ual.pdf):   
a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization 

Manual) 

Program Components  Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 

 
C

D
 C

on
tro

l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that aligns 
with each component 

X = Other applicable foundational programs 

X = Foundational capabilities that align with 
each component 

Compliance of SBHC 
Standards for Certification X X  X * X X X X X   

Planning Grant for SBHCs    *  X X X  X   

Mental Health Expansion 
Grants  X  X * X X X X X   

b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric: 
Communicable Disease Control – Gonorrhea rates; and  
Access to Clinical Preventive Services – Effective Contraceptive Use. 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Modernization Process Measure: 
Not applicable 

  

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #44 – SCHOOL-BASED HEALTH CENTERS PAGE 64 OF 129 PAGES 

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements. By accepting and using the Financial Assistance awarded 
under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in accordance 
with the following requirements:  
a. Funds provided under this Agreement for SBHC Services must only be used to support activities 

related to planning, oversight, maintenance, administration, operation, and delivery of services 
within one or more SBHC as required by OHA’s SBHC funding formula. 

b. All SBHC Services must be delivered in accordance with OAR 333-028-0220, a copy of which 
are accessible on the Internet at 
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_300/oar_333/333_028.html  

c. The SBHC Standards for Certification includes administrative, operations and reporting guidance, 
and minimum standards and requirements in the areas of: Certification Process, Sponsoring 
Agency, Facility, Operations/Staffing, Comprehensive Pediatric Care, Data Collection/Reporting, 
and Billing.  

d. LPHA must provide oversight and technical assistance so that each SBHC in its jurisdiction meets 
SBHC Certification Requirements as set forth in OAR 333-028-0220. 

e. LPHA must assure to OHA that all certification documentation and subsequent follow-up items 
are completed by the requested date(s) in accordance with the OHA’s certification review cycle as 
set forth in OAR 333-028-0230. 

f. This Section 4.f. is applicable only to LPHA if LPHA has been selected to receive a SBHC 
Planning Grant from OHA. LPHA will be notified if the 2018 Oregon Legislative Assembly 
approves and appropriates funds for SBHC Planning Grants or if the OHA SBHC State Program 
Office (SPO) has other funds available for SBHC development. 
An SBHC Planning Grant provides one-time funds to assist the LPHA in developing a strategic 
plan for implementing SBHC Services in the LPHA county jurisdiction. The following terms and 
conditions apply if the OHA selects a LPHA to receive a SBHC Planning Grant: 
(1) Strategic Planning 

(a) LPHA must create and implement a collaborative strategic plan in partnership 
with community agencies in order to develop, implement, and maintain SBHC 
Services to serve school-age children. This plan must have the SBHC sites open, 
operational and ready for certification before the end of the Biennium.  

(b) LPHA must participate in monthly technical assistance calls at times mutually 
agreed to between SPO and LPHA Planning grantees. In addition each SBHC site 
may have at least two technical assistance visits by a SPO staff member. 

(c) LPHA must implement the OHA approved SBHC strategic plan and have the 
planned SBHC Services operational and ready for certification before the end of 
the Biennium. Sites must become certified the last day of the Biennium to be 
eligible to receive SBHC awards in accordance with the approved funding 
formula in effect, provided certification standards are maintained and contingent 
on legislatively adopted budgets.  

  

http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_300/oar_333/333_028.html


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #44 – SCHOOL-BASED HEALTH CENTERS PAGE 65 OF 129 PAGES 

(2) Advance Phase Strategic Planning 
(a) LPHA must create and implement a collaborative strategic plan in partnership 

with community agencies in order to develop, implement, and maintain SBHC 
Services to serve school-age children. This plan’s target must have the SBHC 
sites operational and ready for certification within the first fiscal year of the 
award.  

(b) LPHA must participate in monthly technical assistance calls at times mutually 
agreed to between SPO and LPHA Advance Phase Planning grantee. In addition, 
each SBHC site may have at least one technical assistance visit by a SPO staff 
member. 

(c) LPHA must become certified within the first year of the award to be eligible to 
receive SBHC awards in accordance with the approved funding formula in effect, 
provided certification standards are maintained and contingent upon legislatively 
approved budgets.  

g. This Section 4.g. is only applicable to LPHA if LPHA is selected to receive a Mental Health 
Expansion Grant from OHA. LPHA will be notified if the 2018 Oregon Legislative Assembly 
approves and appropriates funds for SBHC Mental Health Expansion Grants. 
(1) Funds provided under this Agreement must be used to support mental health capacity 

within the SBHC system by: 
(a) Adding mental health staff or expanding current mental health staff hours, with 

the ability to collect and report on mental health encounter visits; and/or 
(b) Supporting mental health projects (as defined by grant proposal) within the 

SBHC system 
(2) LPHA must provide services that are culturally and linguistically appropriate to their 

target population 
5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting. LPHA must complete an “Oregon Health Authority Public 

Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” located in Exhibit C of the Agreement.  These 
reports must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the following schedule: 

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First:  July 1 – September 30 October 30 

Second:  October 1 – December 31 January 30 

Third:  January 1 – March 31 April 30 

Fourth:  April 1 – June 30 August 20 

 
  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #44 – SCHOOL-BASED HEALTH CENTERS PAGE 66 OF 129 PAGES 

6. Reporting Requirements.  
a. LPHA must submit client encounter data in a form acceptable to OHA and in accordance with the 

SBHC Standards for Certification two times a year, no later than January 31 for the previous 
calendar year (July 1 – Dec 31) and no later than July 15th for the preceding service year (July 1 –
June 30). 

b. LPHA must submit annual SBHC Key Performance Measure (KPM) data in a form acceptable to 
OHA and in accordance with the SBHC Standards for Certification no later than October 1st for 
the preceding service year (July 1 –June 30). The current list of KPMs can be found at: 
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/S
CHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Pages/data-requirements.aspx  

c. LPHA must submit annual SBHC financial data via the SPO’s online Operational Profile in the 
form acceptable to OHA no later than October 1st for the preceding service year (July 1-June 30). 

d. LPHA must submit annual hours of operation and staffing via the SPO’s online Operational 
Profile in the form acceptable to OHA no later than October 1st for the current service year. 

e. LPHA must submit completed annual patient satisfaction survey data no later than June 30. 
f. LPHA must complete the triennial School-Based Health Alliance SBHC Census Survey. Current 

SBHC Census Survey timeline and details can be found at http://www.sbh4all.org/  
g. If LPHA received a SBHC Planning Grant from OHA, LPHA must submit a copy of its SBHC 

strategic plan and proposed implementation budget to OHA for approval. OHA will supply the 
due date and required format for the reports. 

h. If LPHA received a Mental Health Expansion Grant from OHA, LPHA must track data related to 
mental health encounters as outlined in the SBHC Standards for Certification.  

i. If LPHA received a Mental Health Expansion Grant from OHA, LPHA must participate in an 
evaluation for their support project in collaboration with the SPO. 

j. If LPHA received a Mental Health Expansion Grant from OHA, LPHA must participate in check-
in meetings (via phone or email) with the SPO and submit 3 mid-project reports and a final 
project report. OHA will work with the LPHA to schedule calls and supply the due date and 
required format for the reports  

7. Performance Measures.  
a. LPHA must submit annual SBHC KPM data in a form acceptable to OHA and in accordance 

with the SBHC Standards for Certification no later than October 1st for the preceding service 
year (July 1 –June 30).  

 
 
 

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Pages/data-requirements.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Pages/data-requirements.aspx
http://www.sbh4all.org/


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #46 – REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH PAGE 67 OF 129 PAGES 

Program Element # 46:  Reproductive Health 
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:   
Public Health Division/Center for Prevention & Health Promotion/Adolescent, Genetic & Reproductive Health 
Section  
1. Description. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to deliver 
Reproductive Health services.  
Funds provided through this Program Element support LPHA’s efforts toward ensuring community-
wide participation in the delivery of, and assurance of access to, culturally responsive, high-quality, and 
evidence-based reproductive health services. 
This Program Element uses a systems approach to ensure that LPHAs lead efforts to develop a 
community-based approach to ensuring that equitable access to family planning services is available – 
capitalizing upon the presence of other service providers to assist in meeting the need.  
Health disparity data highlight pre-existing, deeply entrenched societal inequities that may inhibit 
individuals’ ability to access services and to plan and make decisions regarding their reproductive health 
goals. Therefore, it is critical that interventions aimed at access to services be wide-reaching and 
sensitive to the unique circumstances and challenges of different communities. 
This Program Element, and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the month 
noted in Issue Date section of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted in 
Comments and Footnotes of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Specific to Reproductive Health. Not applicable.  
3. Program with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities. The 

activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics (if 
applicable), as follows (see Oregon’s Public Health Modernization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man
ual.pdf):   

  

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #46 – REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH PAGE 68 OF 129 PAGES 

a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization 
Manual) 

Program Components  Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 

 

C
D

 C
on

tro
l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that 
aligns with each component 
X = Other applicable foundational programs 

X = Foundational capabilities that align with each 
component 

Develop and maintain 
strategic partnerships 
with shared 
accountability driving 
collective impact to 
support public health 
goals related to 
reproductive health 

   *   X X X X   

Identify barriers to access 
and gaps in reproductive 
health services 

 X  *   X X X    

Develop and implement 
strategic plans to address 
these gaps and barriers to 
access to reproductive 
health services 

 X  *   X X  X X  

Evaluate the impact of 
the strategic plan.  X  *   X X X X   

b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric:  
Effective Contraceptive Use 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Modernization Process Measure:   
Effective Contraceptive Use 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #46 – REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH PAGE 69 OF 129 PAGES 

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements.  By accepting and using the Financial Assistance 
awarded under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in 
accordance with the following requirements:  
a. All RH services supported in whole or in part with funds provided under this Agreement must be 

delivered in compliance with the requirements set forth in Oregon Reproductive Health Program 
Administrative Rules, Chapter 333, Division 4, and in the Oregon Reproductive Health Program 
Certification Requirements for RH Services available at: 
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/REPRODUCTIVESEXUALH
EALTH/RESOURCES/Documents/RH-Program-Certification/Certification-Requirements-
RHServices.pdf . 

b. LPHA must deliver all RH services supported in whole or in part with funds provided under this 
Agreement in compliance with ORS 431.145 and ORS 435.205 which defines the responsibility 
of LPHA to ensure access to clinical preventive services including family planning.  

c. LPHA must develop and engage in activities as described in its Local Program Plan as follows: 
(1) The Local Program Plan must be developed using the guidance provided in Attachment 

1, Local Program Plan Guidance, incorporated herein with this reference.  
(2) The Local Program Plan must address the Program Components as defined in Section 3 

of this Program Element, that meet the needs of their specific community 
(3) The Local Program Plan must include activities that address community need and 

readiness and are reasonable based upon funds approved in the OHA approved local 
program budget.  

(4) The Local Program Plan must outline how LPHA intends to assure provision of 
comprehensive, culturally responsive and high-quality, evidence-based reproductive 
health services with a focus on serving those with limited resources and experiencing 
health disparities. 

(5) The Local Program Plan must be submitted to OHA by June 15th of each year for OHA 
approval. 

(6) OHA will review and approve all Local Program Plans to ensure that they meet statutory 
and funding requirements relating to assurance of access to Reproductive Health services. 

d. LPHA must use funds for this Program Element in accordance with its local program budget, 
which has been approved by OHA.  LPHA must complete and submit its local program budget 
for PE 46 funds, by June 15th of each year for OHA approval, using the Local Program Budget 
Template and as set forth in Attachment 2, incorporated herein with this reference.  Modification 
to the approved local program budget may only be made with OHA approval. 

  

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/REPRODUCTIVESEXUALHEALTH/RESOURCES/Documents/RH-Program-Certification/Certification-Requirements-RHServices.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/REPRODUCTIVESEXUALHEALTH/RESOURCES/Documents/RH-Program-Certification/Certification-Requirements-RHServices.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/REPRODUCTIVESEXUALHEALTH/RESOURCES/Documents/RH-Program-Certification/Certification-Requirements-RHServices.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #46 – REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH PAGE 70 OF 129 PAGES 

5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting. LPHA must complete an “Oregon Health Authority Public 
Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” located in Exhibit C of the Agreement.  These 
reports must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the following schedule: 

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First:  July 1 – September 30 October 30 

Second:  October 1 – December 31 January 30 

Third:  January 1 – March 31 April 30 

Fourth:  April 1 – June 30 August 20 

6. Reporting Requirements.  
LPHA must provide progress reports as included in the OHA approved local program plan.  

7. Performance Measures.  
LPHA must operate the RH program in a manner designed to make progress toward achieving the 
following Public Health Modernization Process Measure:  
Effective Contraceptive Use. 

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #46 – REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH PAGE 71 OF 129 PAGES 

Attachment 1 
Reproductive Health Program – FY 21 Local Program Plan Guidance 

Community Participation and Assurance of Access to 
Reproductive Health Services 

 
Overarching Goal:  Ensure regional access to reproductive health services with a focus on serving 
individuals with limited resources. 
 
Instructions 
LPHA should determine where 
their agency best fits on the 
continuum of program 
components identified to meet the 
overarching goal. LPHA should 
identify at least one objective and 
associated activities to support 
work at that stage, with the goal 
of eventually moving to the next 
component on the continuum.   
 
It is understood that the work may 
not necessarily be linear but may 
identify the need to circle back to 
an earlier step, such as the need 
to bring in additional partners. 
 
 
 
 
Program Component 1:  Develop and maintain strategic partnerships with shared accountability to 
drive a collective impact to support public health goals related to RH. 

Objective 1A:   Convene on-going partnership meetings focused on assuring access to RH 
services, minimizing gaps and barriers, and/or improving the quality of reproductive health 
services within your community.  
Objective 1B:  Create your own objective related to developing strategic partnerships, with 
shared accountability, to drive a collective impact in support of public health goals related to RH.  
Suggested Activities: Create partnership agreements with community providers identifying 
roles and areas of collaboration; host or co-host community forums/outreach events; develop 
preliminary community plan; establish coalition with regular meetings; create charter and/or 
workplan. 

 
  

Establish
Partnerships

Assess Gaps 
and Barriers

Develop and 
Implement Plan

Evaluate 
Impact



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #46 – REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH PAGE 72 OF 129 PAGES 

Program Component 2: Identify barriers to access and gaps in RH services   
Objective 2A:  In collaboration with the OR RH Program and community partners, conduct local 
assessment(s) of access to culturally responsive, high-quality, evidence-based RH services to 
identify barriers to access and gaps in services.  
Objective 2B:   Evaluate the impact of local policies, interventions, and programs on access to 
culturally responsive, high-quality, evidenced-based RH services and associated barriers and 
gaps.  
Objective 2C: Following assessment and/or evaluation, share data, summaries and reports, 
following assessment and/or evaluation, with community members, partners, policy makers, and 
others.  
Objective 2D:  Create your own objective to identify barriers to access and gaps in RH 
services.  
Suggested Activities: Conduct survey or focus groups; interview key stakeholders and/or 
consumers; present findings and other data to community partners, members, and decision-
makers; review regional policies and evaluate effectiveness in addressing gaps or barriers in 
access; share data/results through community meetings, written reports, and/or online 
resources. 

 
Program Component 3: Develop and implement strategic plans to address gaps and barriers to 
accessing RH services 

Objective 3A: With community partners and, as needed, the OR RH Program, develop a plan 
for improving access to RH services, addressing how to reduce or eliminate health disparities. 
Objective 3B: Specifically engage communities experiencing health disparities so they can 
actively participate in planning to address their needs.  
Objective 3C: With community partners, implement plan for improved access to RH services.  
Objective 3D: Assure that community members are aware of RH providers within the 
community through multiple communication channels.   
Objective 3E: Create your own objective to develop and implement strategic plans to address 
gaps and barriers to accessing RH services. 

     Suggested Activities: Host community listening and planning sessions to create a strategic                    
plan; collaboratively develop and implement strategic outreach/marketing plan; develop online or 
print materials with information about RH providers within the community; develop evaluation 
plan or process; utilize evaluation findings to make system improvements; hold a forum; create a 
website. 

 
Program Component 4: Evaluate the impact of your plan 

Objective 4A: With community partners, evaluate previously implemented plan to improve 
access to RH services.    

     Objective 4B: Consult with the RH Program to determine evaluation process. 
     Objective 4C: Determine your own evaluation process. 
     Suggested Activities: Evaluate impact of community coalitions; evaluate existing resources/ 

tools. 
 

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #46 – REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH PAGE 73 OF 129 PAGES 

Attachment 2 
Local Program Budget Template 

 
 
 

OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY Fiscal Year:
Program Element #46
Reproductive Health Program
EMAIL TO:  RH.program@state.or.us

Sub Recipient Organization Name:

Budget period From: To:

Categories OHA/PHD Non-OHA/PHD Total Budget

Salaries -$                                     

Benefits -$                                     

Personal Services (Salaries and Benefits) -$                                 -$                         -$                                     

Professional Services/Contracts -$                                     

Travel -$                                     

Supplies -$                                     

Facilities -$                                     

Telecommunications -$                                     

Catering/Food -$                                     

Other -$                                     

Total Services and Supplies -$                                 -$                         -$                                     

Capital Outlay -$                                     

Indirect:     Rate (%):_____________ -$                                     

TOTAL Budget -$                                 -$                         -$                                     

Email

Budget

Telephone

Prepared by (print name)

-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-: -:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-: -:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-: -:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-: 

-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-: -:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-: -:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-: -:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-: 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #51 – PUBLIC HEALTH MODERNIZATION PAGE 74 OF 129 PAGES 

Program Element #51: Public Health Modernization: Leadership, Governance and Program 
Implementation 
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:   
Public Health Division/Office of the State Public Health Director/Policy and Partnerships Unit 
1. Description. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to deliver Public 
Health Modernization: Leadership, Governance and Program Implementation.   
Section 1: LPHA Leadership, Governance and Program Implementation 
a. Establish leadership and governance to plan for full implementation of public health 

modernization. Develop business models for the effective and efficient delivery of public health 
services, develop and/or enhance partnerships to build a sustainable public health system, and 
implement workforce and leadership development initiatives.  

b. Implement strategies to improve local infrastructure to control communicable disease and 
reduce health disparities. Implement local strategies to control communicable disease. Place 
emphasis on reducing communicable disease-related disparities.  

Section 2: Regional Partnership Implementation 
a. Establish and maintain a Regional Partnership of local public health authorities (LPHAs) 

and other stakeholders. Develop and sustain Regional Infrastructure through a Regional 
Partnership of LPHAs and other stakeholders. 

b. Implement regional strategies to control communicable disease and reduce health 
disparities. Implement regional strategies to control communicable disease within the region. 
Place emphasis on reducing communicable disease-related disparities. 

c. Demonstrate Regional approaches for providing public health services. Plan and develop 
business models that support regional infrastructure, share emerging practices and demonstrate 
how these practices can be applied across the public health system.  

The 2016 public health modernization assessment37 showed that health equity and cultural 
responsiveness is the least implemented foundational capability across Oregon’s public health system, 
and that one in four people live in an area in which communicable disease control programs are limited 
or minimal. 
Each LPHA is eligible to receive funding under two sections. LPHAs funded under Section 1: LPHA 
Leadership, Governance, and Program Implementation must use funds provided through this 
Program Element to plan for full implementation of public health modernization and to implement 
strategies to improve local infrastructure to control communicable disease and reduce health disparities.  
LPHAs funded as Fiscal Agents for Regional Partnerships under Section 2: Regional Partnership 
Implementation must use funds provided through this Program Element to establish and maintain a 
regional approach for communicable disease control that is tailored to a specific communicable disease 
risk within the region.  LPHA must place emphasis on identifying and reducing communicable disease-
related disparities. LPHA must demonstrate models for Regional Infrastructure that are scalable in other 
areas of the state or for other public health programs.   

 
37 2016. Oregon Health Authority. State of Oregon Public Health Modernization Assessment Report. Available 
at www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/PHModernizationFullDetailedReport.pdf. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #51 – PUBLIC HEALTH MODERNIZATION PAGE 75 OF 129 PAGES 

This Program Element, and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the month 
noted in Issue Date section of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted in 
Comments and Footnotes of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Specific to Public Health Modernization 
a. Foundational Capabilities. The knowledge, skills and abilities needed to successfully implement 

Foundational Programs.  
b. Foundational Programs. The public health system’s core work for communicable disease control, 

prevention and health promotion, environmental health, and assuring access to clinical 
preventive services.  

c. Public Health Accountability Outcome Metrics. A set of data used to monitor statewide progress 
toward population health goals.  

d. Public health accountability process measures. A set of data used to monitor local progress 
toward implementing public health strategies that are necessary for meeting Public Health 
Accountability Outcome Metrics.  

e. Public Health Modernization Manual (PHMM). A document that provides detailed definitions 
for each Foundational Capability and program for governmental public health, as identified in 
ORS 431.131-431.145. The Public Health Modernization Manual is available at: 
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernizatio
n_manual.pdf.  

f. Regional Partnership. A group of two or more LPHAs and at least one other organization that is 
not an LPHA that is convened for the purpose of implementing strategies for communicable 
disease control and reducing health disparities. 

g. Regional Infrastructure. The formal relationships established between LPHAs and other 
organizations to implement strategies under this funding.  

h. Regional Governance. The processes and tools put in place for decision-making, resource 
allocation, communication and monitoring of the Regional Partnership. 

  

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #51 – PUBLIC HEALTH MODERNIZATION PAGE 76 OF 129 PAGES 

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities. The 
activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics (if 
applicable), as follows (see Oregon’s Public Health Modernization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man
ual.pdf):   
a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in the Public Health Modernization 

Manual) 

Program Components  Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 

 
C

D
 C

on
tro

l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that 
aligns with each component 

 
X = Other applicable foundational programs 

X = Foundational capabilities that align with each 
component 

Use Leadership and 
Governance to plan for 
full implementation of 
public health 
modernization (Section 1) 

*     X X X X X X X 

Implement strategies for 
local communicable 
disease and health equity 
infrastructure (Section 1) 

*      X X X  X X 

Establish and maintain a 
Regional Partnership 
(Section 2 

*     X  X  X   

Implement 
communicable disease 
control strategies (Section 
2) 

*      X X X X X X 

Demonstrate new 
approaches for providing 
public health services 
(Section 2) 

*     X  X  X  X 

 
 

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #51 – PUBLIC HEALTH MODERNIZATION PAGE 77 OF 129 PAGES 

b. Public Health Accountability Outcome Metrics:  
The 2017-2019 public health accountability metrics adopted by the Public Health Advisory 
Board for communicable disease control are:  

• Two-year old immunization rates 

• Gonorrhea rates 
LPHA is not required to select two-year old immunization rates or gonorrhea rates as areas of 
focus for funds made available through this Program Element. LPHA is not precluded from 
using funds to address other high priority communicable disease risks based on local 
epidemiology and need.    

c. Public Health Accountability Process Measure:   
The 2017-19 public health accountability process measures adopted by the Public Health 
Advisory Board for communicable disease control are listed below. LPHA must select a high 
priority communicable disease risk based on local epidemiology and need, the following process 
measures may not be relevant to all LPHAs. 
• Percent of Vaccines for Children clinics that participate in the Assessment, Feedback, 

Incentives and eXchange (AFIX) program 
• Percent of gonorrhea cases that had at least one contact that received treatment 
• Percent of gonorrhea case reports with complete “priority” fields 

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements. By accepting and using the Financial Assistance awarded 
under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in accordance 
with the following requirements:  
Requirements that apply to Section 1 and Section 2 funding: 
a. Implement activities in accordance with this Program Element.  
b. Engage in activities as described in its Section 1 and/or Section 2 work plan, once approved by 

OHA and incorporated herein with this reference.  See Attachment 1 for work plan requirements 
for Section 1. 

c. Use funds for this Program Element in accordance with its Section 1 and/or Section 2 Program 
Budget, once approved by OHA and incorporated herein with this reference.  Modification to the 
Section 1 and/or Section 2 Program Budget of 10% or more for any line item may only be made 
with OHA approval. 

d. Ensure the LPHA and/or Regional Partnership is staffed at the appropriate level to address all 
requirements in this Program Element and to fulfill Section 1 and/or Section 2 work plan 
objectives, strategies and activities. 

e. Implement and use a performance management system to monitor achievement of Section 1 
and/or Section 2 work plan objectives, strategies, activities, deliverables and outcomes.  

f. Participate in calls with OHA to discuss progress toward work plan activities, deliverables and 
milestones.  
(1) Section 1: Calls scheduled on an as needed basis. 
(2) Section 2: Calls scheduled quarterly. 

  

---



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #51 – PUBLIC HEALTH MODERNIZATION PAGE 78 OF 129 PAGES 

g. Ensure LPHA administrator, LPHA staff, and/or other partner participation in shared learning 
opportunities or communities of practice focused on governance and public health system-wide 
planning and change initiatives, in the manner prescribed by OHA.  This includes sharing work 
products with OHA and other LPHAs and may include public posting.  

h. Participate in evaluation of public health modernization implementation in the manner prescribed 
by OHA.  

Requirements that apply to Section 1: LPHA Leadership, Governance and Program 
Implementation  
i. Implement strategies for Leadership and Governance, Health Equity and Cultural 

Responsiveness, and Communicable Disease Control, as described in Attachment 1 of this 
Program Element.  
Requirements that apply to Section 2: Regional Partnership Implementation  

j. Develop Regional Infrastructure through formation and maintenance of a Regional Partnership 
of LPHA and other partners. 
(1) Use a formal Regional Governance structure that includes the Fiscal Agent, other 

participating LPHAs and non-LPHA partners for decision-making, resource allocation 
and implementation of OHA-approved regional work plan.  

(2) Ensure funding is used to support Regional Partnership goals as well as meet the needs of 
all participating LPHA and partners. 

(3) Engage with appropriate governing entities to develop business models that support 
regional infrastructure.  

k. Implement regional strategies to address a specific communicable disease risk for the region with 
an emphasis on reducing communicable disease-related health disparities. 
(1) Engage local and/or regional organizations as strategic partners to control communicable 

disease transmission. 
(2) Develop and implement a regional system for identification and control of communicable 

disease with strategic partners. 
(3) Use established best practices whenever possible. 
(4) Develop and/or enhance partnerships with Regional Health Equity Coalitions, Federally 

recognized Tribes, local and regional community-based organizations and other entities 
in order to develop meaningful relationships with populations experiencing a 
disproportionate burden of communicable disease and poor health outcomes.  

(5) Work directly with communities to co-create strategies to control communicable disease 
transmission. Ensure that health interventions are culturally responsive.   

(6) Communicate to the general public and/or at risk populations about communicable 
disease risks.  

(7) Provide regional training to health care and other strategic partners about communicable 
disease risks and methods of control. Provide technical assistance to health care and other 
strategic partners to implement best and emerging practices. 

(8) Develop and implement a regional system for communications with strategic partners 
about disease transmission. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #51 – PUBLIC HEALTH MODERNIZATION PAGE 79 OF 129 PAGES 

(9) Demonstrate capacity to routinely evaluate regional communicable disease control 
systems through the response to disease reports and make changes to practice based on 
evaluation findings.  

(10) Work with the state and other local and tribal authorities to plan for and develop regional 
systems for responding to environmental health threats. 

(11) Complete an assessment of the region’s capacity to apply a health equity lens to programs 
and services and to provide culturally responsive programs and services within the last 
five years.  

(12) Complete and implement an action plan that addresses key findings from the regional 
health equity assessment. 

5. General Budget and Expense Reporting. LPHAs funded under Section 1 and/or Section 2  must 
complete an “Oregon Health Authority Public Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” 
located in Exhibit C of the Agreement.  These reports must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the 
following schedule: 

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First:  July 1 – September 30 October 30 

Second:  October 1 – December 31 January 30 

Third:  January 1 – March 31 April 30 

Fourth:  April 1 – June 30 August 20 

6. Reporting Requirements.  
a. Have on file with OHA an approved Section 1 and/or Section 2 Work Plan and Budget using the 

format prescribed by OHA no later than 60 days after OHA notifies LPHA of anticipated 
funding allocation for the biennium. 

b. Submit Section 1 and Section 2 Work Plan progress reports using the timeline and format 
prescribed by OHA. 

c. Submit to OHA the following deliverables, in the timeframe specified: 
(1) For Section 2, A minimum of one new policy (e.g., Memorandum of Understanding, 

Joint Agreement, County Resolution) describing the Regional Partnership by March 31, 
2021 

(2) If Regional Health Equity assessment and Action Plan have not been submitted to OHA 
within the past five year, must submit regional health equity assessment and action plan 
by June 30, 2021 

(3) For Section 2, At least two additional products (e.g., regional policies for implementation 
of a best or emerging practice, data sharing agreements, or communication materials) by 
June 30, 2021 

7. Performance Measures.  
If LPHA funded as Fiscal Agents for Regional Partnerships complete and submit to OHA fewer than 
75% of the planned deliverables in its approved Section 1 and/or Section 2 work plan for the funding 
period, LPHA or Fiscal Agent shall not be eligible to receive funding under this Program Element 
during the next funding period. The deliverables will be mutually agreed upon as part of the work plan 
approval process. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #51 – PUBLIC HEALTH MODERNIZATION PAGE 80 OF 129 PAGES 

Attachment 1 
 

Work Plan Menu Options for all LPHAs Receiving funding through 
Section 1:  LPHA Leadership, Governance and Program Implementation 

 
An OHA-approved 2019-21 work plan for Program Element 51 Section 1 requires each LPHA to include 
Objectives and Strategies under Subsections 1.1 through 1.3 as described in the following tables. 
 
Subsection 1.1: Leadership and Governance  
Instructions: 

- Each LPHA must include Objective 1.1.1 in the PE51 work plan. 
- Each LPHA must include at least one additional Objective (1.1.2 through 1.1.5) in the PE51 work 

plan. 
1. Participate in shared learning opportunities or communities of practice focused on governance and 

public health system-wide planning. (Required) 
 
Strategies will include: 

a. Participation in in-person and remote learning communities.  
b. Project or work plan implementation in between learning community meetings. 
c. Engagement of leadership, staff and/or partners in learning community activities, as 

appropriate. 
 

2. Plan for full implementation of public health modernization across foundational capabilities and 
programs. Assess and develop models for effective and efficient delivery of public health services 
 
Strategies may include: 

a. Engage with appropriate governing entities to develop business models that support 
partnership infrastructure.  

b. Ensure the effective management of organizational change.  
c. Support the performance of public health functions with strong operational infrastructure, 

including standardized written policies and procedures that are regularly reviewed and 
revised.  

d. Collect, analyze and report data for data-driven decision-making to manage organizational 
and system activities.  

e. LPHAs may propose other strategies consistent with Public Health Modernization Manual 
roles and deliverables. 
 

3. Develop and/or enhance partnerships to build sustainable public health system (e.g., tribes, regional 
health equity coalitions, CCOs, health systems, early learning hubs 
 
Strategies may include: 

a. Ensure participation of community partners in local public health planning efforts.  
b. Work with the state and other local and tribal authorities to improve the health of the 

community.  
c. LPHAs may propose other strategies consistent with Public Health Modernization Manual 

roles and deliverables. 
 
 

 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #51 – PUBLIC HEALTH MODERNIZATION PAGE 81 OF 129 PAGES 

4. Implement workforce and leadership development initiatives 
 
Strategies may include: 

a. Establish workforce development strategies that promote the skills and experience needed to 
perform public health duties and to carry out governmental public health’s mission.  

b. Commit to the recruitment and hiring of a diverse workforce. Develop an ongoing plan for 
workforce diversity with goals and metrics to track progress.  

c. Assess staff competencies; provide training and professional development opportunities.  
d. LPHAs may propose other strategies consistent with Public Health Modernization Manual 

roles and deliverables. 
 

5. Develop and implement technology improvements that support effectiveness and efficiency of 
public health operations. 
 
Strategies may include: 

a. Access local and statewide information and surveillance systems to evaluate the 
effectiveness of public health policies, strategies and interventions.  

b. LPHAs may propose other strategies consistent with Public Health Modernization Manual 
roles and deliverables. 

 
 
  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #51 – PUBLIC HEALTH MODERNIZATION PAGE 82 OF 129 PAGES 

Section 1.2: Health Equity and Cultural Responsiveness: Engage public health staff, community 
members and stakeholders in the implementation of health equity plans. 
Instructions: 

- Each LPHA must include Objectives 1.2.1 and 1.2.2 in the PE51 work plan. 
- LPHAs that have completed a health equity assessment and developed and implemented a health 

equity action plan (regionally or as an individual LPHA) must select at least two additional 
Objectives (#1.2.3 through 1.2.7) to include in the PE51 work plan: 

o One Objective must reflect work internal to the health department (#1.2.3 through 1.2.4); 
o One Objective must reflect work with partners or community members (#1.2.5 through 1.2.7) 

 
1. Complete an assessment of the LPHA’s capacity to apply a health equity lens to programs and 

services and to provide culturally responsive programs and services within the last five years. 
Participation in a health equity assessment (e.g., with 2017-19 public health modernization funding) 
within the past five years fulfills this requirement. (Required) 

2. Complete and implement an action plan that addresses key findings from health equity assessment. 
(Required) 

3. Develop an ongoing process of continuous learning, training and structured dialogue for all staff.  

4. Commit and invest existing and additional resources in recruitment, retention and advancement 
efforts to improve workplace equity. Establish parity goals and create specific metrics with 
benchmarks to track progress. 

5. Develop and/or enhance partnerships with Regional Health Equity Coalitions, federally recognized 
tribes, community-based organizations and other entities in order to develop meaningful 
relationships with populations experiencing a disproportionate burden of communicable disease and 
poor health outcomes.  

6. Work directly with communities to co-create policies, programs and strategies. Ensure that health 
interventions are culturally responsive.   

7. Collect and maintain data, or use data provided by PHD that reveal inequities in the distribution of 
disease. Focus on the social conditions (including strengths, assets and protective factors) that 
influence health.  

 
  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT B – PROGRAM ELEMENT #51 – PUBLIC HEALTH MODERNIZATION PAGE 83 OF 129 PAGES 

Subsection 1.3: Communicable Disease Control: Implement strategies to improve infrastructure to 
prevent and control communicable disease 
Instructions: 

- Each LPHA must include Objective 1.3.1 in the PE51 work plan. 
- Each LPHA must select at least one additional Objective (1.3.2 through 1.3.4) to include in the 

PE51 work plan. 
1. Conduct jurisdiction-specific communicable disease control and prevention for communicable 

diseases. (Required) 
Strategies may include: 

a. Demonstrate infrastructure for achieving public health accountability metrics, local public 
health process measures for communicable disease control. 

b. Communicate to the general public and/or at-risk populations about communicable disease 
risks.  

c. Provide training to health care and other strategic partners about communicable disease risks 
and methods of control. Provide technical assistance to health care and other strategic 
partners to implement best and emerging practices.  

d. Demonstrate capacity to routinely evaluate communicable disease control systems through 
the response to disease reports and make changes to practice based on evaluation findings.  

e. LPHAs may propose other strategies consistent with Public Health Modernization Manual 
roles and deliverables. 

2. Work with partners within a specific jurisdiction to implement communicable disease prevention 
initiatives. 
Strategies may include: 

a. Engage local organizations as strategic partners to control communicable disease 
transmission. 

b. Develop and implement a system for identification and control of communicable disease 
with strategic partners. 

c. Develop and implement a system for communications with strategic partners about disease 
transmission.  

d. LPHAs may propose other strategies consistent with Public Health Modernization Manual 
roles and deliverables. 

3. Implement workforce development initiatives. 
Strategies may include: 

a. Training for providers to implement communicable disease prevention initiatives. 
b. LPHAs may propose other strategies consistent with Public Health Modernization Manual 

roles and deliverables. 
4. Utilize local communicable disease investigation and response and emergency preparedness systems 

to begin planning for environmental health threats. 
Strategies may include: 

a. Collect and/or utilize local data to assess potential for environmental health threats.  
b. Work with the state and other local and tribal authorities to plan for and develop regional 

systems for responding to environmental health threats, including all hazards surge response.  
c. LPHAs may propose other strategies consistent with Public Health Modernization Manual 

roles and deliverables. 
 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT C PAGE 84 OF 129 PAGES 

EXHIBIT C 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AWARD AND 

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORTING FORMS 
This Exhibit C of this Agreement consists of and contains the following Exhibit sections: 
1. Financial Assistance Award. 
2. Oregon Health Authority Public Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report (for all 

Programs). 
3. Explanation of the Financial Assistance Award. 

 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT C PAGE 85 OF 129 PAGES 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AWARD 
 

 
 
 
 

State of Oregon 
Oregon Health Authority 

Public Health Division 

1) Grantee 2) Issue Date This Action 

Name: Morrow County July 01 , 2020 Award 

Street: 110 N Court Street FY 2021 

City: Heppner 3) Award Period 

State: OR Zip: 97836-7328 From July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 

4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved 

Number 
Current 

Previous Increase I Award 
Program Award Balance Decrease Balance 

PE01 -01 State Support for Public Health 0 $14,354.00 $1 4,354.00 

PE12 Public Health Emergency Preparedness and 0 $65,873.00 $65,873.00 
Response (PHEP) 

PE13-01 Tobacco Prevention and Education Prgram 0 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 
(TPEP) 

PE42-03 MCAH Perinatal General Funds & Title XIX 0 $1,890.00 $1,890.00 

PE42-04 MCAH Babies First ! Genera l Funds 0 $6,044.00 $6,044.00 

PE42-06 MCAH General Funds & Title XIX 0 $3,548.00 $3,548.00 

PE42-11 MCAH Title V 0 $18,366.00 $18,366.00 

PE42-12 MCAH Oregon Mothers Care Title V 0 $3,441.00 $3,441.00 

PE43-01 Public Health Practice (PHP) - Immunization 0 $8,455.00 $8,455.00 
Services 

PE44-01 SBHC Base 0 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 

PE44-02 SBHC - Mental Health Expansion 0 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 

PE46-05 RH Community Participation & Assurance of 0 $12,470.00 $12,470.00 
Access 

Page 1 of 3 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT C PAGE 86 OF 129 PAGES 

 

 
 
 

PES 1-01 LPHA Leadership, Governance and Program 0 $32,577.00 $32,577.00 
Implementation 

0 $274,51 8.00 $274,518.00 

5) Foot Notes: 

PE42-11 Initial SFY21 : LPHA sha ll not use more than 10% of the Tit le V funds awarded for a 

particula r MCAH Service on ind irect costs. See PE42 language under 4. a. (3) Funding 
Limitat ions for details. 

PE42-12 Initial SFY21: LPHA sha ll not use more than 10% of the Tit le V funds awarded for a 
particula r MCAH Service on ind irect costs. See PE42 language under 4. a. (3) Funding 
Limitat ions for details. 

PE42-12 Initial SFY21: Due to COVID-19 pandemic, addit ional one-t ime funding was allocated 
to OMC sites in FY21 to support outreach and service provision efforts. 

6) Comments: 

PE01-01 

PE12 

PE13-01 

PE42-03 

PE42-04 

PE42-06 

PE42-11 

PE42-12 

PE43-01 

PE44-01 

PE44-02 

PE46-05 

Page 2 of 3 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT C PAGE 87 OF 129 PAGES 

 

 
 
 

PES 1-01 

7) Capital outlay Requested in this action: 

Prior approval is required for Capital Outlay. Capital Outlay is defined as an expenditure fo r equipment with a 
purchase price in excess of $5,000 and a life expectancy greater t han one year. 

Program Item Description Cost PROGAPPROV 

Page 3 of 3 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT C PAGE 88 OF 129 PAGES 

 

 
 

EMAIL TO:

Agency:

Program:

Fiscal Year: July 1, [start year] to June 30, [end year]

REVENUE

A. PROGRAM INCOME/REVENUE
Non-OHA/PHD 

Revenue LPHA Revenue
Non-OHA/PHD 

Revenue LPHA Revenue
Non-OHA/PHD 

Revenue LPHA Revenue
Non-OHA/PHD 

Revenue LPHA Revenue
Non-OHA/PHD 

Revenue LPHA Revenue
1. Revenue from Fees ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -$                      
2. Donations ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -$                      
3. 3rd Party Insurance ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -$                      
4. Other Program Revenue ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -$                      

TOTAL PROGRAM INCOME ------------- -$                      ------------- -$                      ------------- -$                      ------------- -$                      ------------- -$                      
5. Other Local Funds (Identify) ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -$                      -------------

5a. ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -$                      -------------
5b. ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -$                      -------------

6. Medicaid/OHP/Ccare ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -$                      -------------
7. Volunteer and In-Kind (estimate value) ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -$                      -------------
8. Other (Specify) ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -$                      -------------
9. Other (Specify) ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -$                      -------------
10 Other (Specify) ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -$                      -------------

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES

B. EXPENDITURES
Non-OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

Non-OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

Non-OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

Non-OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

Non-OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

1. Personal Services (Salaries and Benefits) -$                      -$                      
2. Services and Supplies (Total) -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

2a. Professional Services/Contracts -$                      -$                      
2b. Travel & Training -$                      -$                      
2c. General Supplies -$                      -$                      
2d. Medical Supplies -$                      -$                      
2e. Other (enter total from the "Other 
Services & Supplies Expenditures" Form) -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

3. Capital Outlay -$                      -$                      
4. Indirect Cost ($) -$                      -$                      

4a. Indirect Rate (               %) ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -------------
TOTAL EXPENDITURES -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Less Total Program Income ------------- -$                      ------------- -$                      ------------- -$                      ------------- -$                      ------------- -$                      
TOTAL REIMBURSABLE EXPENDITURES ------------- -$                      ------------- -$                      ------------- -$                      ------------- -$                      ------------- -$                      

C. CATEGORY
1. Client Services
2. Nutrition Education
3. Breastfeeding Promotion
4. General Administration

TOTAL WIC PROGRAM
D. CERTIFICATE

PREPARED BY PHONE AUTHORIZED AGENT SIGNATURE DATE
Form Number 23-152 Revised July 2019

OHA-PHD.ExpendRevReport@dhsoha.state.or.us

OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY
PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION EXPENDITURE AND REVENUE REPORT

[Enter your agency name]

[Enter the Program Element Number / Sub Element and Title]

BREAKDOWN BY FISCAL YEAR QUARTER
Q1: Jul, Aug, Sep Q2: Oct, Nov, Dec Q3: Jan, Feb, Mar Q4: Apr, May, Jun Fiscal Year To Date

WIC PROGRAM ONLY: Enter the Public Health Division Expenditures breakdown in the following categories for each quarter.
** General Ledger report is required effective 1/1/19 and first report will be due with FY19 Quarter 3 Expenditure reports**

-$                                                        -$                                                        -$                                                        -$                                                        -$                                                        

Q1: Jul, Aug, Sep Q2: Oct, Nov, Dec Q3: Jan, Feb, Mar Q4: Apr, May, Jun Fiscal Year To Date

Check Box if amounts have been revised since 
report previously submitted

Q1: Jul, Aug, Sep Q2: Oct, Nov, Dec Q3: Jan, Feb, Mar Q4: Apr, May, Jun Fiscal Year To Date

-$                                                        
-$                                                        

-$                                                        
-$                                                        

in the terms and conditions of the federal award. I am aware that any false, fictitious or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or 
administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise. (2 CFR 200.415)

-$                                                        -$                                                        -$                                                        -$                                                        -$                                                        

I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is true, complete and accurate, and the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes and objectives set forth

+-

• • • • • • • • 
l- +- +-

f 
I 

1 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT C PAGE 89 OF 129 PAGES 

 

 
 

EMAIL TO:

Agency:

Program:

Fiscal Year: July 1, [start year] to June 30, [end year]

OTHER SERVICES & SUPPLIES EXPENDITURES

2e. OTHER SERVICES & SUPPLIES*
Non-OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

Non-OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

Non-OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

Non-OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

Non-OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

OHA/PHD 
Expenditures

Enter Other S&S Category -$                      -$                      
Enter Other S&S Category -$                      -$                      
Enter Other S&S Category -$                      -$                      
Enter Other S&S Category -$                      -$                      
Enter Other S&S Category -$                      -$                      
Enter Other S&S Category -$                      -$                      
Enter Other S&S Category -$                      -$                      
Enter Other S&S Category -$                      -$                      
Enter Other S&S Category -$                      -$                      
Enter Other S&S Category -$                      -$                      

TOTAL OTHER S&S EXPENDITURES** -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Form Number 23-152 Other S&S Expenditures Revised July 2019
*Note: For each line under 2e. OTHER SERVICES & SUPPLIES, enter the type of other expenditures and the amount for both the Non-OHA/PHD Expenditures column and OHA/PHD Expenditures Column.
**Note: The Total Other S&S Expenditures for each quarter here needs to be entered into the corresponding cells in Line 2e. Other under the Expenditure Section of the Expenditure and Revenue Report.

BREAKDOWN BY FISCAL YEAR QUARTER

OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY
PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION EXPENDITURE AND REVENUE REPORT

[Enter your agency name]

[Enter the Program Element Number / Sub Element and Title]

OTHER SERVICES & SUPPLIES EXPENDITURES FORM

OHA-PHD.ExpendRevReport@dhsoha.state.or.us

Q1: Jul, Aug, Sep Q2: Oct, Nov, Dec Q3: Jan, Feb, Mar Q4: Apr, May, Jun Fiscal Year To Date



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT C PAGE 90 OF 129 PAGES 

TITLE OF FORM: OHA Public Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report 
FORM NUMBER: 23-152 (Instructions) 
WHO MUST COMPLETE 
THE FORM 23-152: 

All agencies receiving funds awarded through Oregon Health Authority Intergovernmental 
Agreement for Financing Public Health Services must complete this report for each grant- 
funded program.  Agencies are responsible for assuring that each report is completed accurately, 
signed and submitted in a timely manner. 

WHERE TO SUBMIT 
REPORT: OHA-PHD.ExpendRevReport@dhsoha.state.or.us 

WHEN TO SUBMIT: Reports for grants are due 30 days following the end of the 3-, 6-, and 9-month periods (10/30, 
1/30, 4/30) and 51 days after the 12-month period (8/20) in each fiscal year.  Any expenditure 
reports due and not received by the specified deadline could delay payments until reports have 
been received from the payee for the reporting period.   

REPORT REVISIONS: OHA will accept revised revenue and expenditure reports up to 30 calendar days after the due 
date for the first, second and third quarter expenditure reports.  OHA will accept revised reports 
up to 14 days after the fourth quarter expenditure report due date.   

WHAT TO SUBMIT: Submit both the main Expenditure and Revenue Report and the Other Services & Supplies 
Expenditures (Other S&S) Form. WIC programs must submit a general ledger report quarterly. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE FORM 

Report expenditures for both Non-OHA/PHD and OHA/PHD funds for which reimbursement is being claimed. This reporting 
feature is necessary for programs due to the requirement of matching federal dollars with state and/or local dollars.  

• YEAR TO DATE expenditures are reported when payment is made or a legal obligation is incurred.  
• YEAR TO DATE revenue is reported when recognized.        

 
OHA/PHD:  Oregon Health Authority/Public Health Division 
Enter your Agency name, Program Element Number and Title, and Fiscal Year start and end dates. 
Gray shaded areas do not need to be filled out. 
  
A. REVENUE Revenues that support program are to be entered for each quarter of the state fiscal year 

as either Program Revenue or Non-OHA/PHD Revenue. 
Program Revenue 
 
 

Report this income in Section A. PROGRAM INCOME/REVENUE, Program Revenue column, 
Lines 1 through 4, for each quarter. Program income will be deducted from total OHA/PHD 
expenditures. 

TOTAL PROGRAM 
INCOME 

The total Program Revenue for each quarter and fiscal year to date. On the Excel report template, 
this is an auto sum field. 

Non-OHA/PHD Revenue Report this revenue in Section A. PROGRAM INCOME/REVENUE, Non-OHA/PHD Revenue 
column Lines 5 to 10, for each quarter. If applicable, identify sources of Line 5. Other Local 
Funds and specify type of Other for Lines 8 - 10. Non-OHA revenue are not subtracted from 
OHA/PHD expenditures. 

TOTAL REVENUE The total of Program and Non-OHA/PHD revenue for each quarter and fiscal year to date. On 
the Excel report template, this is an auto sum field. 

Fiscal Year To Date The YTD total Program or Non-OHA/PHD revenue for each line for the fiscal year. On the 
Excel report template, this is an auto sum field. 

  
B. EXPENDIUTRES Expenditures are to be entered for each quarter of the state fiscal year as either Non-

OHA/PHD Expenditures or OHA/PHD Expenditures. 
Non-OHA/PHD 
Expenditures 

Program expenditures not reimbursed by the OHA Public Health Division. 

OHA/PHD Expenditures Reimbursable expenditures less program income. 
Line 1. Personal Services Report total salaries and benefits that apply to the program for each quarter. 

Payroll expenses may vary from month to month. Federal guidelines, 2 CFR 225_Appendix B.8. 
(OMB Circular A-87), require the maintenance of adequate time activity reports for individuals 
paid from grant funds. 

Line 2. Services and Supplies 
(Total) 

The total from the four subcategories (Lines 2a. through 2e.) below this category. On the Excel 
report template, this is an auto sum field. 

Line 2a. Professional 
Services/Contracts 

Report contract and other professional services expenditures for each quarter. 

Line 2b. Travel & 
Training 

Report travel and training expenditures for each quarter. 

mailto:OHA-PHD.ExpendRevReport@dhsoha.state.or.us


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT C PAGE 91 OF 129 PAGES 

Line 2c. General 
Supplies 

Report expenditures for materials & supplies costing less than $5,000 per unit for each quarter. 

Line 2d. Medical 
Supplies 

Report expenditures for medical supplies for each quarter. 
 

Line 2e. Other Report the Total Other S&S Expenditures from the Other S&S Expenditures Form. Data entry is 
done in the ‘Other S&S Expenditures’ Form by entering the type and amount of other services 
and supplies expenses. 

Line 3. Capital Outlay Report capital outlay expenditures for each quarter. Capital Outlay is defined as expenditure of a 
single item costing more than $5,000 with a life expectancy of more than one year. Itemize all 
capital outlay expenditures by cost and description. Federal regulations require that capital 
equipment (desk, chairs, laboratory equipment, etc.) continue to be used within the program area. 
Property records for non-expendable personal property shall be maintained accurately per 
Subtitle A-Department of Health and Human Services, 45 Code of Federal Regulation (CFR) 
Part 92.32 and Part 74.34.  
Prior approval must be obtained for any purchase of a single item or special purpose 
equipment having an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more (PHS Grants Policy Statement; WIC, 
see Federal Regulations Section 246.14).  

Line 4. Indirect Cost ($) Report indirect costs for each quarter. 

Line 4a. Indirect Rate 
(%) 

Report the approved indirect rate percent within the (____%) area, in front of the % symbol. If 
no indirect rate or if you have a cost allocation plan, enter “N/A”. 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES The total of OHA/PHD and Non-OHA/PHD expenditures for each quarter and fiscal year to 
date. On the Excel report template, this is an auto sum field. 

Less Total Program Income Take from the Program Revenue, TOTAL PROGRAM INCOME line in the Revenue section for 
each quarter and fiscal year to date. This is the OHA/PHD income that gets deducted from 
OHA/PHD total expenditures. On the Excel report template, this is an auto fill field. 

TOTAL REIMBURSALBE 
EXPENDITURES 

The total OHA/PHD expenditures less total program income for each quarter and fiscal YTD. 
The amount reimbursed by OHA-PHD. On the Excel report template, this is an auto calculate 
field. 

Fiscal Year To Date The YTD total of each expenditure category/subcategory of both OHA/PHD and Non-
OHA/PHD for the fiscal year. On the Excel report template, this is an auto sum field. 

  
C. WIC PROGRAM 

ONLY 
Report the Public Health Division expenditures for the 4 categories listed in the WIC Program 
section for each quarter. Refer to Policy 315: Fiscal Requirements of the Oregon WIC Program 
Policy and Procedure Manual for definitions of the categories. 

WIC GENERAL LEDGER 
REPORTING 

Effective 1/1/19 General Ledger reports must be submitted with quarterly Expenditure and 
Revenue Report.  First report due is for FY19 Quarter 3.  Reports should be cumulative for FY. 

TOTAL WIC PROGRAM The total of the four WIC expenditure categories for each quarter and fiscal year. On the Excel 
report template, this is an auto sum field. 

Fiscal Year to Date The YTD total of each WIC category for the fiscal year. On the Excel report template, this is an 
auto sum field. 

  
D. CERTIFICATE Certify the report. 
Prepared By Enter the name and phone number of the person preparing the report. 
Authorized Agent Signature Obtain the signature, name and date of the authorized agent. 
Where to Submit Report Email the report to the Email To: address indicated on the form. 
REIMBURSEMENT FROM 
THE STATE 

Transfer document will be forwarded to the county treasurer (where appropriate) with a copy to 
the local agency when OHA Public Health Division makes reimbursement 

WHEN A BUDGET 
REVISION IS REQUIRED 

It is understood that the pattern of expenses will follow the estimates set forth in the approved 
budget application. To facilitate program development, however, transfers between expense 
categories may be made by the local agency except in the following instances, when a budget 
revision will be required: 
● If a transfer would result in or reflect a significant change in the character or scope of the 
program.  
● If there is a significant expenditure in a budget category for which funds were not initially 
budgeted in approved application.  

Form Number: 23-152   Revised July 2019 
  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT C PAGE 92 OF 129 PAGES 

EXPLANATION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AWARD 
The Financial Assistance Award set forth above and any Financial Assistance Award amendment must be read 
in conjunction with this explanation for purposes of understanding the rights and obligations of OHA and 
LPHA reflected in the Financial Assistance Award. 
1. Format and Abbreviations in Financial Assistance Award 

The Financial Assistance Award consists of the following Items and Columns:  
a. Item 1 “Grantee” is the name and address of the LPHA;  
b. Item 2 “Issue Date” and “This Action” is the date upon which the Financial Assistance Award 

is issued, and, if the Financial Assistance Award is a revision of a previously issued Financial 
Assistance Award; and  

c. Item 3 “Award Period” is the period of time for which the financial assistance is awarded and 
during which it must be expended by LPHA, subject to any restrictions set forth in the Footnotes 
section (see “Footnotes” below) of the Financial Assistance Award.  Subject to the restrictions 
and limitations of this Agreement and except as otherwise specified in the Footnotes, the 
financial assistance may be expended at any time during the period for which it is awarded 
regardless of the date of this Agreement or the date the Financial Assistance Award is issued. 

d. Item 4 “OHA Public Health Funds Approved” is the section that contains information 
regarding the Program Elements for which OHA is providing financial assistance to LPHA under 
this Agreement and other information provided for the purpose of facilitating LPHA 
administration of the fiscal and accounting elements of this Agreement. Each Program Element 
for which financial assistance is awarded to LPHA under this Agreement is listed by its Program 
Element number and its Program Element name (full or abbreviated).  In certain cases, funds 
may be awarded solely for a sub-element of a Program Element.  In such cases, the sub-element 
for which financial assistance is awarded is listed by its Program Element number, its Program 
Element name (full or abbreviated) and its sub-element name (full or abbreviated) as specified in 
the Program Element. The awarded funds, administrative information and restrictions on a 
particular line are displayed in a columnar format as follows: 
(1) Column 1 “Program” will contain the Program Element name and number for each 

Program Element (and sub-element name, if applicable) for which OHA has awarded 
financial assistance to LPHA under this Agreement.  Each Program Element name and 
number set forth in this section of the Financial Assistance Award corresponds to a 
specific Program Element Description set forth in Exhibit B.  Each sub-element name (if 
specified) corresponds to a specific sub-element of the specified Program Element. 

(2) Column 2 “Award Balance” in instances in which a revision to the Financial Assistance 
Award is made pursuant to an amendment duly issued by OHA and executed by the 
parties, the presence of an amount in this column will indicate the amount of financial 
assistance that was awarded by OHA to the LPHA, for the Program Element (or sub-
element) identified on that line, prior to the issuance of an amendment to this Agreement. 
The information contained in this column is for information only, for purpose of 
facilitating LPHA’s administration of the fiscal and accounting elements of this 
Agreement, does not create enforceable rights under this Agreement and shall not be 
considered in the interpretation of this Agreement. 

(3) Column 3 “Increase/(Decrease)” in instances in which a revision to the Financial 
Assistance Award is made pursuant to an amendment duly issued by OHA and executed 
by the parties, the presence of an amount in this column will indicate the amount by 
which the financial assistance awarded by OHA to the LPHA, for the Program Element 
(or sub-element) identified on that line, is increased or decreased by an amendment to 
this Agreement. The information contained in this column is for information only, for 
purpose of facilitating LPHA’s administration of the fiscal and accounting elements of 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT C PAGE 93 OF 129 PAGES 

this Agreement, does not create enforceable rights under this Agreement and shall not be 
considered in the interpretation of this Agreement. 

(4) Column 4 “New Award Balance” the amount set forth in this column is the amount of 
financial assistance awarded by OHA to LPHA for the Program Element (or sub-element) 
identified on that line and is OHA’s maximum financial obligation under this Agreement 
in support of services comprising that Program Element (or sub-element). In instances in 
which OHA desires to limit or condition the expenditure of the financial assistance 
awarded by OHA to LPHA for the Program Element (or sub-element) in a manner other 
than that set forth in the Program Element Description or elsewhere in this Agreement, 
these limitations or conditions shall be indicated by a letter reference(s) to the 
“Footnotes” section, in which an explanation of the limitation or condition will be set 
forth. 

e. Item 5 “Footnotes” this section sets forth any special limitations or conditions, if any, 
applicable to the financial assistance awarded by OHA to LPHA for a particular Program 
Element (or sub-element). The limitations or conditions applicable to a particular award are 
indicated by corresponding Program Element (PE) number references appearing in the 
“Footnotes” section and on the appropriate line of the “New Award Balance” column of the 
“OHA Public Health Funds Approved” section. LPHA must comply with the limitations or 
conditions set forth in the “Footnotes” section when expending or utilizing financial assistance 
subject thereto. 

f. Item 6 “Comments” this section sets forth additional footnotes, if any, applicable to the 
financial assistance awarded to OHA to LPHA for a particular Program Element. The limitations 
or conditions applicable to a particular award are indicated by corresponding Program Element 
(PE) number references appearing in the “Comments” section and on the appropriate line of the 
“New Award Balance” column of the “OHA Public Health Funds Approved” section. LPHA 
must comply with the limitations or conditions set forth in the “Comments” section when 
expending or utilizing financial assistance subject thereto. 

g. Item 7 “Capital Outlay Requested in This Action” in instances in which LPHA requests, and 
OHA approves an LPHA request for, expenditure of the financial assistance provided hereunder 
for a capital outlay, OHA’s approval of LPHA’s capital outlay request will be set forth in this 
section of the Financial Assistance Award. This section contains a section heading that explains 
the OHA requirement for obtaining OHA approval for an LPHA capital outlay prior to LPHA’s 
expenditure of financial assistance provided hereunder for that purpose, and provides a brief 
OHA definition of a capital outlay. The information associated with OHA’s approval of LPHA’s 
capital outlay request are displayed in a columnar format as follows: 
(1) Column 1 “Program” the information presented in this column indicates the particular 

Program Element (or sub-element), the financial assistance for which LPHA may expend 
on the approved capital acquisition. 

(2) Column 2 “Item Description” the information presented in this column indicates the 
specific item that LPHA is authorized to acquire. 

(3) Column 3 “Cost” the information presented in this column indicates the amount of 
financial assistance LPHA may expend to acquire the authorized item. 

(4) Column 4 “Prog Approv” the presence of the initials of an OHA official approves the 
LPHA request for capital outlay. 

2. Financial Assistance Award Amendments.  Amendments to the Financial Assistance Award are 
implemented as a full restatement of the Financial Assistance Award modified to reflect the amendment 
for each fiscal year. Therefore, if an amendment to this Agreement contains a new Financial Assistance 
Award, the Financial Assistance Award in the amendment supersedes and replaces, in its entirety, any 
prior Financial Assistance Award for that fiscal year.   



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT D PAGE 94 OF 129 PAGES 

EXHIBIT D 
SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Enforcement of the Oregon Indoor Clean Air Act.  This section is for the purpose of providing for 
the enforcement of laws by LPHA relating to smoking and enforcement of the Oregon Indoor Clean Air 
Act (for the purposes of this section, the term “LPHA” will also refer to local government entities e.g. 
certain Oregon counties that agree to engage in this activity.)  
a. Authority.  Pursuant to ORS 190.110, LPHA may agree to perform certain duties and 

responsibilities related to enforcement of the Oregon Indoor Clean Air Act, 433.835 through 
433.875 and 433.990(D) (hereafter “Act”) as set forth below.  

b. LPHA Enforcement Functions.  LPHA shall assume the following enforcement functions: 
(1) Maintain records of all complaints received using the complaint tracking system provided 

by OHA’s Tobacco Prevention and Education Program (TPEP).   
(2) Comply with the requirements set forth in OAR 333-015-0070 to 333-015-0085 using 

OHA enforcement procedures.  
(3) Respond to and investigate all complaints received concerning noncompliance with the 

Act or rules adopted under the Act.  
(4) Work with noncompliant sites to participate in the development of a remediation plan for 

each site found to be out of compliance after an inspection by the LPHA. 
(5) Conduct a second inspection of all previously inspected sites to determine if remediation 

has been completed within the deadline specified in the remediation plan.  
(6) Notify TPEP within five business days of a site’s failure to complete remediation, or a 

site’s refusal to allow an inspection or refusal to participate in development of a 
remediation plan. See Section c.(3) “OHA Responsibilities.”  

(7) For each non-compliant site, within five business days of the second inspection, send the 
following to TPEP: intake form, copy of initial response letter, remediation form, and all 
other documentation pertaining to the case.  

(8) LPHA shall assume the costs of the enforcement activities described in this section. In 
accordance with an approved Community-based work plan as prescribed in OAR 333-
010-0330(3)(b), LPHAs may use Ballot Measure 44 funds for these enforcement 
activities.  

(9) If a local government has local laws or ordinances that prohibit smoking in any areas 
listed in ORS 433.845, the local government is responsible to enforce those laws or 
ordinances using local enforcement procedures. In this event, all costs of enforcement 
will be the responsibility of the local government.  Ballot Measure 44 funds may apply; 
see Subsection (8) above.  

c. LPHA Training. LPHA is responsible for ensuring that all staff engaging in LPHA enforcement 
functions under this Agreement have appropriate training to conduct inspections safely and 
effectively including, but not limited to, de-escalation training. 

d. OHA Responsibilities.  OHA shall:  
(1) Provide an electronic records maintenance system to be used in enforcement, including 

forms used for intake tracking, complaints, and site visit/remediation plan, and templates 
to be used for letters to workplaces and/or public places. 

(2) Provide technical assistance to LPHAs.  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT D PAGE 95 OF 129 PAGES 

(3) Upon notification of a failed remediation plan, a site’s refusal to allow a site visit, or a 
site’s refusal to develop a remediation plan, review the documentation submitted by the 
LPHA and issue citations to non-compliant sites as appropriate.  

(4) If requested by a site, conduct contested case hearings in accordance with the 
Administrative Procedures Act, ORS 183.411 to 183.470.  

(5) Issue final orders for all such case hearings.  
(6) Pursue, within the guidelines provided in the Act and OAR 333-015-0070 through OAR 

333-015-0085, cases of repeat offenders to assure compliance with the Act. 
2. HIPAA/HITECH COMPLIANCE. 

a. The health care component of OHA is a Covered Entity and must comply with the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act and the federal regulations implementing the Act 
(collectively referred to as HIPAA).  When explicitly stated in the Program Element definition 
table located in Exhibit A, LPHA is a Business Associate of the health care component of OHA 
and therefore must comply with OAR 943-014-0400 through OAR 943-014-0465 and the 
Business Associate requirements set forth in 45 CFR 164.502 and 164.504. LPHA’s failure to 
comply with these requirements shall constitute a default under this Agreement.   
(1) Consultation and Testing. If LPHA reasonably believes that the LPHA’s or OHA’s data 

transactions system or other application of HIPAA privacy or security compliance policy 
may result in a violation of HIPAA requirements, LPHA shall promptly consult the OHA 
Information Security Office. LPHA or OHA may initiate a request for testing of HIPAA 
transaction requirements, subject to available resources and the OHA testing schedule. 

(2) Data Transactions Systems. If LPHA intends to exchange electronic data transactions 
with a health care component of OHA in connection with claims or encounter data, 
eligibility or enrollment information, authorizations, or other electronic transaction, 
LPHA shall execute an Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) Trading Partner Agreement 
with OHA and shall comply with OHA EDI Rules set forth in OAR 943-120-0100 
through 943-120-0200. 

b. LPHA agrees that use and disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) and Electronic 
Protected Health Information (EPHI) in the performance of its obligations shall be governed by 
the Agreement. When acting as a Business Associate of the health care component of OHA as 
described in Paragraph a. of this section, LPHA further agrees that it shall be committed to 
compliance with the standards set forth in the Privacy Rule and Security Rule as amended by the 
HITECH Act, and as they may be amended further from time to time, in the performance of its 
obligations related to the Agreement, and that it shall make all subcontractors and Providers 
comply with the same requirements. 

3. OHA intends to request reimbursement from FEMA for all allowable costs, and will provide Recipient 
with FEMA reporting forms and requirements for the grant. Recipient shall complete such reports with 
sufficient detail and within the deadlines necessary to comply with FEMA grant requirements for 
reimbursement. 

 
 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT E PAGE 96 OF 129 PAGES 

EXHIBIT E 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Disbursement and Recovery of Financial Assistance.   
a. Disbursement Generally.  Subject to the conditions precedent set forth below and except as 

otherwise specified in an applicable footnote in the Financial Assistance Award, OHA shall 
disburse financial assistance awarded for a particular Program Element, as described in the 
Financial Assistance Award, to LPHA in substantially equal monthly allotments during the 
period specified in the Financial Assistance Award for that Program Element, subject to the 
following: 
(1) Upon written request of LPHA to the OHA Contract Administrator and subsequent OHA 

approval, OHA may adjust monthly disbursements of financial assistance to meet LPHA 
program needs. 

(2) OHA may reduce monthly disbursements of financial assistance as a result of, and 
consistent with, LPHA’s Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure of prior disbursements. 

(3) After providing LPHA 30 calendar days advance notice, OHA may withhold monthly 
disbursements of financial assistance if any of LPHA’s reports required to be submitted 
to OHA under this Exhibit E, Section 6 “Reporting Requirements” or that otherwise are 
not submitted in a timely manner or are incomplete or inaccurate. OHA may withhold the 
disbursements under this subsection until the reports have been submitted or corrected to 
OHA’s satisfaction. 

OHA may disburse to LPHA financial assistance for a Program Element in advance of LPHA’s 
expenditure of funds on delivery of the services within that Program Element, subject to OHA 
recovery at Agreement Settlement of any excess disbursement.  The mere disbursement of 
financial assistance to LPHA in accordance with the disbursement procedures described above 
does not vest in LPHA any right to retain those funds.  Disbursements are considered an advance 
of funds to LPHA which LPHA may retain only to the extent the funds are expended in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

b. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement.  OHA’s obligation to disburse financial assistance to 
LPHA under this Agreement is subject to satisfaction, with respect to each disbursement, of each 
of the following conditions precedent:  
(1) No LPHA default as described in Exhibit F, Section 6 “LPHA Default” has occurred. 
(2) LPHA’s representations and warranties set forth in Exhibit F, Section 4 “Representations 

and Warranties” of this Exhibit are true and correct on the date of disbursement with the 
same effect as though made on the date of disbursement. 

c. Recovery of Financial Assistance.  
(1) Notice of Underexpenditure, Overexpenditure or Misexpenditure. If OHA believes 

there has been an Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure (as defined in Exhibit A) of 
moneys disbursed under this Agreement, OHA shall provide LPHA with written notice 
thereof and OHA and LPHA shall engage in the process described in “Recover of 
Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure” below.  If OHA believes there has been a 
Misexpenditure (as defined in Exhibit A) of moneys disbursed to LPHA under this 
Agreement, OHA shall provide LPHA with written notice thereof and OHA and LPHA 
shall engage in the process described in “Recover of Misexpenditure” below. 

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT E PAGE 97 OF 129 PAGES 

(2) Recovery of Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure. 
(a) LPHA’s Response.  LPHA shall have 90 calendar days from the effective date of 

the notice of Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure to pay OHA in full or notify 
the OHA that it wishes to engage in the appeals process set forth in Section 
1.c.(2)(b) below. If LPHA fails to respond within that 90-day time period, LPHA 
shall promptly pay the noticed Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure amount. 

(b) Appeals Process.  If LPHA notifies OHA that it wishes to engage in an appeal 
process, LPHA and OHA shall engage in non-binding discussions to give the 
LPHA an opportunity to present reasons why it believes that there is no 
Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure, or that the amount of the 
Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure is different than the amount identified by 
OHA, and to give OHA the opportunity to reconsider its notice. LPHA and OHA 
may negotiate an appropriate apportionment of responsibility for the repayment of 
an Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure. At LPHA request, OHA will meet and 
negotiate with LPHA in good faith concerning appropriate apportionment of 
responsibility for repayment of an Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure. In 
determining an appropriate apportionment of responsibility, LPHA and OHA may 
consider any relevant factors.  An example of a relevant factor is the extent to 
which either party contributed to an interpretation of a statute, regulation or rule 
prior to the expenditure that was officially reinterpreted after the expenditure. If 
OHA and LPHA reach agreement on the amount owed to OHA, LPHA shall 
promptly repay that amount to OHA by issuing payment to OHA or by directing 
OHA to withhold future payments pursuant to “Recover from Future Payments” 
below. If OHA and LPHA continue to disagree about whether there has been an 
Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure or the amount owed, the parties may agree 
to consider further appropriate dispute resolution processes, including, subject to 
Oregon Department of Justice (DOJ) and LPHA counsel approval, arbitration. 

(c) Recovery From Future Payments.  To the extent that OHA is entitled to recover 
an Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure pursuant to “Appeal Process” above), 
OHA may recover the Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure by offsetting the 
amount thereof against future amounts owed to LPHA by OHA, including, but not 
limited to, any amount owed to LPHA by OHA under any other contract or 
agreement between LPHA and OHA, present or future. OHA shall provide LPHA 
written notice of its intent to recover the amounts of the Underexpenditure or 
Overexpenditure from amounts owed LPHA by OHA as set forth in this 
subsection), and shall identify the amounts owed by OHA which OHA intends to 
offset, (including contracts or agreements, if any, under which the amounts owed 
arose) LPHA shall then have 14 calendar days from the date of OHA's notice in 
which to request the deduction be made from other amounts owed to LPHA by 
OHA and identified by LPHA. OHA shall comply with LPHA’s request for 
alternate offset, unless the LPHA’s proposed alternative offset would cause OHA 
to violate federal or state statutes, administrative rules or other applicable 
authority, or would result in a delay in recovery that exceeds three months.  In the 
event that OHA and LPHA are unable to agree on which specific amounts, owed 
to LPHA by OHA, the OHA may offset in order to recover the amount of the 
Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure, then OHA may select the particular 
contracts or agreements between OHA and LPHA and amounts from which it will 
recover the amount of the Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure, within the 
following limitations:  OHA shall first look to amounts owed to LPHA (but 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT E PAGE 98 OF 129 PAGES 

unpaid) under this Agreement.  If that amount is insufficient, then OHA may look 
to any other amounts currently owing or owed in the future to LPHA by OHA.  In 
no case, without the prior consent of LPHA, shall OHA deduct from any one 
payment due LPHA under the contract or agreement from which OHA is 
offsetting funds an amount in excess of twenty-five percent (25%) of that 
payment.  OHA may look to as many future payments as necessary in order to 
fully recover the amount of the Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure.  

(3) Recovery of Misexpenditure. 
(a) LPHA’s Response. From the effective date of the notice of Misexpenditure, 

LPHA shall have the lesser of: (i) 60 calendar days; or (ii) if a Misexpenditure 
relates to a Federal Government request for reimbursement, 30 calendar days 
fewer than the number of days (if any) OHA has to appeal a final written decision 
from the Federal Government, to either: 
i. Make a payment to OHA in the full amount of the noticed Misexpenditure 

identified by OHA;  
ii. Notify OHA that LPHA wishes to repay the amount of the noticed 

Misexpenditure from future payments pursuant to “Recovery from Future 
Payments”) below; or 

iii. Notify OHA that it wishes to engage in the applicable appeal process set 
forth in “Appeal Process for Misexpenditure” below.  

If LPHA fails to respond within the time required by “Appeal Process for 
Misexpenditure” below, OHA may recover the amount of the noticed 
Misexpenditure from future payments as set forth in “Recovery from Future 
Payments” below.   

(b) Appeal Process for Misexpenditure.  If LPHA notifies OHA that it wishes to 
engage in an appeal process with respect to a noticed Misexpenditure, the parties 
shall comply with the following procedures, as applicable:  
i. Appeal from OHA-Identified Misexpenditure. If OHA’s notice of 

Misexpenditure is based on a Misexpenditure solely of the type described 
in Sections 15.b. or c. of Exhibit A, LPHA and OHA shall engage in the 
process described in this subsection to resolve a dispute regarding the 
noticed Misexpenditure. First, LPHA and OHA shall engage in non-
binding discussions to give LPHA an opportunity to present reasons why 
it believes that there is, in fact, no Misexpenditure or that the amount of 
the Misexpenditure is different than the amount identified by OHA, and to 
give OHA the opportunity to reconsider its notice. LPHA and OHA may 
negotiate an appropriate apportionment of responsibility for the repayment 
of a Misexpenditure. At LPHA request, OHA will meet and negotiate with 
LPHA in good faith concerning appropriate apportionment of 
responsibility for repayment of a Misexpenditure. In determining an 
appropriate apportionment of responsibility, LPHA and OHA may 
consider any relevant factors. An example of a relevant factor is the extent 
to which either party contributed to an interpretation of a statute, 
regulation or rule prior to the expenditure that was officially reinterpreted 
after the expenditure.  If OHA and LPHA reach agreement on the amount 
owed to OHA, LPHA shall promptly repay that amount to OHA by 
issuing payment to OHA or by directing OHA to withhold future 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT E PAGE 99 OF 129 PAGES 

payments pursuant to “Recovery from Future Payments” below. If OHA 
and LPHA continue to disagree as to whether or not there has been a 
Misexpenditure or as to the amount owed, the parties may agree to 
consider further appropriate dispute resolution processes including, subject 
to Oregon Department of Justice (DOJ) and LPHA counsel approval, 
arbitration.   

ii. Appeal from Federal-Identified Misexpenditure.  
A. If OHA’s notice of Misexpenditure is based on a Misexpenditure 

of the type described in Exhibit A, Section 15.a. and the relevant 
Federal Agency provides a process either by statute or 
administrative rule to appeal the determination of improper use of 
federal funds, the notice of disallowance or other federal 
identification of improper use of funds and if the disallowance is 
not based on a federal or state court judgment founded in 
allegations of Medicaid fraud or abuse, then LPHA may, prior to 
30 calendar days prior to the applicable federal appeals deadline, 
request that OHA appeal the determination of improper use, notice 
of disallowance or other federal identification of improper use of 
funds in accordance with the process established or adopted by the 
Federal Agency.  If LPHA so requests that OHA appeal the 
determination of improper use of federal funds, federal notice of 
disallowance or other federal identification of improper use of 
funds, the amount in controversy shall, at the option of LPHA, be 
retained by the LPHA or returned to OHA pending the final federal 
decision resulting from the initial appeal  If the LPHA does 
request, prior to the deadline set forth above, that OHA appeal, 
OHA shall appeal the determination of improper use, notice of 
disallowance or other federal identification of improper use of 
funds in accordance with the established process and shall pursue 
the appeal until a decision is issued by the Departmental Grant 
Appeals Board of the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services (HHS) (the “Grant Appeals Board”) pursuant to the 
process for appeal set forth in 45 CFR. Subtitle A, Part 16, or an 
equivalent decision is issued under the appeal process established 
or adopted by the Federal Agency.  LPHA and OHA shall 
cooperate with each other in pursuing the appeal. If the Grant 
Appeals Board or its equivalent denies the appeal then either 
LPHA, OHA, or both may, in their discretion, pursue further 
appeals.  Regardless of any further appeals, within 90 calendar 
days of the date the federal decision resulting from the initial 
appeal is final, LPHA shall repay to OHA the amount of the 
noticed Misexpenditure (reduced, if at all, as a result of the appeal) 
by issuing payment to OHA or by directing OHA to withhold 
future payments pursuant to “Recovery From Future Payments” 
below.  To the extent that LPHA retained any of the amount in 
controversy while the appeal was pending, the LPHA shall pay to 
OHA the interest, if any, charged by the Federal Government on 
such amount.   

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT E PAGE 100 OF 129 PAGES 

B. If the relevant Federal Agency does not provide a process either by 
statute or administrative rule to appeal the determination of 
improper use of federal funds, the notice of disallowance or other 
federal identification of improper use of funds or LPHA does not 
request that OHA pursue an appeal prior to 30 calendar days prior 
to the applicable federal appeals deadline, and if OHA does not 
appeal, then within 90 calendar days of the date the federal 
determination of improper use of federal funds, the federal notice 
of disallowance or other federal identification of improper use of 
funds is final LPHA shall repay to OHA the amount of the noticed 
Misexpenditure by issuing a payment to OHA or by directing OHA 
to withhold future payments pursuant to “Recovery From Future 
Payments” below.   

C. If LPHA does not request that OHA pursue an appeal of the 
determination of improper use of federal funds, the notice of 
disallowance, or other federal identification of improper use of 
funds, prior to 30 calendar days prior to the applicable federal 
appeals deadline but OHA nevertheless appeals, LPHA shall repay 
to OHA the amount of the noticed Misexpenditure (reduced, if at 
all, as a result of the appeal) within 90 calendar days of the date the 
federal decision resulting from the appeal is final, by issuing 
payment to OHA or by directing OHA to withhold future payments 
pursuant to “Recover From Future Payments” below.   

D. Notwithstanding Subsection a, i. through iii. above, if the 
Misexpenditure was expressly authorized by an OHA rule or an 
OHA writing signed by an authorized person that applied when the 
expenditure was made, but was prohibited by federal statutes or 
regulations that applied when the expenditure was made, LPHA 
will not be responsible for repaying the amount of the 
Misexpenditure to OHA, provided that: 
I. Where post-expenditure official reinterpretation of federal 

statutes or regulations results in a Misexpenditure, LPHA 
and OHA will meet and negotiate in good faith an 
appropriate apportionment of responsibility between them 
for repayment of the Misexpenditure. 

II. For purposes of this Subsection D., an OHA writing must 
interpret this Agreement or an OHA rule and be signed by 
the Director of the OHA or by one of the following OHA 
officers concerning services in the category where the 
officers are listed:  
Public Health Services: 

• Public Health Director 

• Public Health Director of Fiscal and Business 
Operations 

OHA shall designate alternate officers in the event the 
offices designated in the previous sentence are abolished.  
Upon LPHA request, OHA shall notify LPHA of the names 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT E PAGE 101 OF 129 PAGES 

of individual officers with the above titles.  OHA shall send 
OHA writings described in this paragraph to LPHA by mail 
and email. 

III. The writing must be in response to a request from LPHA 
for expenditure authorization, or a statement intended to 
provide official guidance to LPHA or counties generally for 
making expenditures under this Agreement. The writing 
must not be contrary to this Agreement or contrary to law 
or other applicable authority that is clearly established at 
the time of the writing. 

IV. If OHA writing is in response to a request from LPHA for 
expenditure authorization, the request must be in writing 
and signed by the director of an LPHA department with 
authority to make such a request or by the LPHA Counsel.  
It must identify the supporting data, provisions of this 
Agreement and provisions of applicable law relevant to 
determining if the expenditure should be authorized. 

V. An OHA writing expires on the date stated in the writing, 
or if no expiration date is stated, six years from the date of 
the writing.  An expired OHA writing continues to apply to 
LPHA expenditures that were made in compliance with the 
writing and during the term of the writing. 

VI. OHA may revoke or revise an OHA writing at any time if it 
determines in its sole discretion that the writing allowed 
expenditure in violation of this Agreement or law or any 
other applicable authority. 

VII. OHA rule does not authorize an expenditure that this 
Agreement prohibits. 

(c) Recovery From Future Payments.  To the extent that OHA is entitled to recover 
a Misexpenditure pursuant to “Appeal Process for Misexpenditure” above, OHA 
may recover the Misexpenditure by offsetting the amount thereof against future 
amounts owed to LPHA by OHA, including but not limited to, any amount owed 
to LPHA by OHA under this Agreement or any amount owed to LPHA by OHA 
under any other contract or agreement between LPHA and OHA, present or 
future. OHA shall provide LPHA written notice of its intent to recover the amount 
of the Misexpenditure from amounts owed LPHA by OHA as set forth in this 
Subsection (c) and shall identify the amounts owed by OHA that OHA intends to 
offset (including the contracts or agreements, if any, under which the amounts 
owed arose and from those OHA wishes to deduct payments from).  LPHA shall 
then have 14 calendar days from the date of OHA's notice in which to request the 
deduction be made from other amounts owed to LPHA by OHA and identified by 
LPHA. OHA shall comply with LPHA’s request for alternate offset, unless the 
LPHA’s proposed alternative offset would cause OHA to violate federal or state 
statutes, administrative rules or other applicable authority.  In the event that OHA 
and LPHA are unable to agree on which specific amounts are owed to LPHA by 
OHA, that OHA may offset in order to recover the amount of the Misexpenditure, 
then OHA may select the particular contracts or agreements between OHA and 
County and amounts from which it will recover the amount of the 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT E PAGE 102 OF 129 PAGES 

Misexpenditure, after providing notice to LPHA, and within the following 
limitations: OHA shall first look to amounts owed to LPHA (but unpaid) under 
this Agreement.  If that amount is insufficient, then OHA may look to any other 
amounts currently owing or owed in the future to LPHA by OHA.  In no case, 
without the prior consent of LPHA, shall OHA deduct from any one payment due 
LPHA under the contract or agreement from which OHA is offsetting funds an 
amount in excess of twenty-five percent (25%) of that payment.  OHA may look 
to as many future payments as necessary in order to fully recover the amount of 
the Misexpenditure.   

d. Additional Provisions With Respect to Underexpenditures, Overexpenditures and 
Misexpenditures. 
(1) LPHA shall cooperate with OHA in the Agreement Settlement process. 
(2) OHA's right to recover Underexpenditures, Overexpenditures and Misexpenditures from 

LPHA under this Agreement is not subject to or conditioned on LPHA’s recovery of any 
money from any other entity. 

(3) If the exercise of the OHA's right to offset under this provision requires the LPHA to 
complete a re-budgeting process, nothing in this provision shall be construed to prevent 
the LPHA from fully complying with its budgeting procedures and obligations, or from 
implementing decisions resulting from those procedures and obligations. 
(a) Nothing in this provision shall be construed as a requirement or agreement by the 

LPHA or the OHA to negotiate and execute any future contract with the other. 
(b) Nothing in this Section 1.d. shall be construed as a waiver by either party of any 

process or remedy that might otherwise be available. 
2. Use of Financial Assistance.  LPHA may use the financial assistance disbursed to LPHA under this 

Agreement solely to cover actual Allowable Costs reasonably and necessarily incurred to implement 
Program Elements during the term of this Agreement.  LPHA may not expend financial assistance 
provided to LPHA under this Agreement for a particular Program Element (as reflected in the Financial 
Assistance Award) on the implementation of any other Program Element. 

3. Subcontracts.  Except when the Program Element Description expressly requires a Program Element 
Service or a portion thereof to be delivered by LPHA directly, and except for the performance of any 
function, duty or power of the LPHA related to governance as that is described in OAR 333-014-0580, 
LPHA may use the financial assistance provided under this Agreement for a particular Program Element 
service to purchase that service, or portion thereof, from a third person or entity (a “Subcontractor”) 
through a contract (a “Subcontract”).  Subject to “Subcontractor Monitoring” below, LPHA may permit 
a Subcontractor to purchase the service, or a portion thereof, from another person or entity under a 
subcontract and such subcontractors shall also be considered Subcontractors for purposes of this 
Agreement and the subcontracts shall be considered Subcontracts for purposes of this Agreement.  
LPHA shall not permit any person or entity to be a Subcontractor unless the person or entity holds all 
licenses, certificates, authorizations and other approvals required by applicable law to deliver the 
Program Element service.   The Subcontract must be in writing and contain each of the provisions set 
forth in Exhibit H, in substantially the form set forth therein, in addition to any other provisions that 
must be included to comply with applicable law, that must be included in a Subcontract under the terms 
of this Agreement or that are necessary to implement Program Element service delivery in accordance 
with the applicable Program Element Descriptions and the other terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
LPHA shall maintain an originally executed copy of each Subcontract at its office and shall furnish a 
copy of any Subcontract to OHA upon request. LPHA must comply with OAR 333-014-0570 and 333-
014-0580 and ensure that any subcontractor of a Subcontractor comply with OAR 333-014-0570. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT E PAGE 103 OF 129 PAGES 

4. Subcontractor Monitoring. In accordance with 2 CFR §200.331, LPHA shall monitor each 
Subcontractor’s delivery of Program Element services and promptly report to OHA when LPHA 
identifies a major deficiency in a Subcontractor’s delivery of a Program Element service or in a 
Subcontractor’s compliance with the Subcontract between the Subcontractor and LPHA.  LPHA shall 
promptly take all necessary action to remedy any identified deficiency.  LPHA shall also monitor the 
fiscal performance of each Subcontractor and shall take all lawful management and legal action 
necessary to pursue this responsibility.  In the event of a major deficiency in a Subcontractor’s delivery 
of a Program Element service or in a Subcontractor’s compliance with the Subcontract between the 
Subcontractor and LPHA, nothing in this Agreement shall limit or qualify any right or authority OHA 
has under state or federal law to take action directly against the Subcontractor. LPHA must monitor its 
Subcontractors itself and may not enter into a contract with another entity for monitoring Subcontracts. 

5. Alternative Formats and Translation of Written Materials, Interpreter Services.  In connection 
with the delivery of Program Element services, LPHA shall: 
a. Make available to an LPHA Client, without charge to the LPHA Client, upon the LPHA Client’s 

or OHA’s request, any and all written materials in alternate, if appropriate, formats as required 
by OHA’s administrative rules or by OHA’s written policies made available to LPHA. 

b. Make available to an LPHA Client, without charge to the LPHA Client, upon the LPHA Client’s 
or OHA’s request, any and all written materials in the prevalent non-English languages in 
LPHA’s service area. 

c. Make available to an LPHA Client, without charge to the LPHA Client, upon the LPHA Client’s 
or OHA’s request, oral interpretation services in all non-English languages in LPHA’s service 
area. 

d. Make available to an LPHA Client with hearing impairment, without charge to the LPHA Client, 
upon the LPHA Client’s or OHA’s request, sign language interpretation services and telephone 
communications access services. 

For purposes of the foregoing, “written materials” includes, without limitation, all written materials 
created by LPHA in connection with the Services and all Subcontracts related to this Agreement. The 
LPHA may develop its own forms and materials and with such forms and materials the LPHA shall be 
responsible for making them available to an LPHA Client, without charge to the LPHA Client or OHA, 
in the prevalent non-English language.  OHA shall be responsible for making its forms and materials 
available, without charge to the LPHA Client or LPHA, in the prevalent non-English language.  

6. Reporting Requirements.  For each calendar quarter or portion thereof, during the term of this 
Agreement, in which LPHA expends and receives financial assistance awarded to LPHA by OHA under 
this Agreement, LPHA shall prepare and deliver to OHA the reports outlined below on October 30 (after 
end of three month period), January 30 (after end of six month period), April 30 (after end of nine month 
period) and August 20 (after end of 12 month period).  The required reports are: : 
A separate expenditure report for each Program in which LPHA expenditures and receipts of financial 
assistance occurred during the quarter as funded by indication on the original or formally amended 
Financial Assistance Award located in the same titled section of Exhibit C of this Agreement.  Each 
report, must be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit C titled “Oregon Health Authority, Public 
Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report.” 
All reports must be completed in accordance with the associated instructions and must provide 
complete, specific and accurate information on LPHA’s use of the financial assistance disbursed to 
LPHA hereunder.  In addition, LPHA shall comply with all other reporting requirements set forth in this 
Agreement, including but not limited to, all reporting requirements set forth in applicable Program 
Element descriptions. OHA may request information and LPHA shall provide if requested by OHA, the 
amount of LPHA’s, as well as any of LPHA’s Subcontractors’ and sub recipients’, administrative costs 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT E PAGE 104 OF 129 PAGES 

as part of either direct or indirect costs, as defined by federal regulations and guidance. OHA will accept 
revised revenue and expenditure reports up to 30 calendar days after the due date for the first, second 
and third quarter’s expenditure reports.  OHA will accept revised reports up to 14 days after the fourth 
quarter expenditure report due date.  If LPHA fails to comply with these reporting requirements, OHA 
may withhold future disbursements of all financial assistance under this Agreement, as further described 
in Section 1 of this Exhibit E. 

7. Operation of Public Health Program.  LPHA shall operate (or contract for the operation of) a public 
health program during the term of this Agreement. If LPHA uses financial assistance provided under this 
Agreement for a particular Program Element, LPHA shall include that Program Element in its public 
health program from the date it begins using the funds provided under this Agreement for that Program 
Element until the earlier of (a) termination or expiration of this Agreement, (b) termination by OHA of 
OHA’s obligation to provide financial assistance for that Program Element, in accordance with Exhibit 
F, Section 8 “Termination”  or (c) termination by LPHA, in accordance with Exhibit F, Section 8 
“Termination” , of LPHA’s obligation to include that Program Element in its public health program. 

8. Technical Assistance.  During the term of this Agreement, OHA shall provide technical assistance to 
LPHA in the delivery of Program Element services to the extent resources are available to OHA for this 
purpose.  If the provision of technical assistance to the LPHA concerns a Subcontractor, OHA may 
require, as a condition to providing the assistance, that LPHA take all action with respect to the 
Subcontractor reasonably necessary to facilitate the technical assistance. 

9. Payment of Certain Expenses.  If OHA requests that an employee of LPHA, or a Subcontractor or a 
citizen providing services or residing within LPHA’s service area, attend OHA training or an OHA 
conference or business meeting and LPHA has obligated itself to reimburse the individual for travel 
expenses incurred by the individual in attending the training or conference, OHA may pay those travel 
expenses on behalf of LPHA but only at the rates and in accordance with the reimbursement procedures 
set forth in the Oregon Accounting Manual http://www.oregon.gov/DAS/Pages/Programs.aspx  as of the 
date the expense was incurred and only to the extent that OHA determines funds are available for such 
reimbursement.   

10. Effect of Amendments Reducing Financial Assistance.  If LPHA and OHA amend this Agreement to 
reduce the amount of financial assistance awarded for a particular Program Element, LPHA is not 
required by this Agreement to utilize other LPHA funds to replace the funds no longer received under 
this Agreement as a result of the amendment, and LPHA may, from and after the date of the amendment, 
reduce the quantity of that Program Element service included in its public health program commensurate 
with the amount of the reduction in financial assistance awarded for that Program Element.  Nothing in 
the preceding sentence shall affect LPHA’s obligations under this Agreement with respect to financial 
assistance actually disbursed by OHA under this Agreement or with respect to Program Element 
services actually delivered. 

11. Resolution of Disputes over Additional Financial Assistance Owed LPHA After Termination or 
Expiration. If, after termination or expiration of this Agreement, LPHA believes that OHA 
disbursements of financial assistance under this Agreement for a particular Program Element are less 
than the amount of financial assistance that OHA is obligated to provide to LPHA under this Agreement 
for that Program Element, as determined in accordance with the applicable financial assistance 
calculation methodology, LPHA shall provide OHA with written notice thereof.  OHA shall have 90 
calendar days from the effective date of LPHA's notice to pay LPHA in full or notify LPHA that it 
wishes to engage in a dispute resolution process.  If OHA notifies LPHA that it wishes to engage in a 
dispute resolution process, LPHA and OHA's Public Health Director (or delegate) shall engage in non-
binding discussion to give OHA an opportunity to present reasons why it believes that it does not owe 
LPHA any additional financial assistance or that the amount owed is different than the amount identified 
by LPHA in its notices, and to give LPHA the opportunity to reconsider its notice.  If OHA and LPHA 

http://www.oregon.gov/DAS/Pages/Programs.aspx


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT E PAGE 105 OF 129 PAGES 

reach agreement on the additional amount owed to LPHA, OHA shall promptly pay that amount to 
LPHA.  If OHA and LPHA continue to disagree as to the amount owed, the parties may agree to 
consider further appropriate dispute resolution processes, including, subject to Oregon Department of 
Justice and LPHA counsel approval, binding arbitration.  Nothing in this section shall preclude the 
LPHA from raising underpayment concerns at any time prior to termination of this Agreement under 
“Resolution of Disputes, Generally” below. 

12. Resolution of Disputes, Generally.  In addition to other processes to resolve disputes provided in this 
Exhibit, either party may notify the other party that it wishes to engage in a dispute resolution process.  
Upon such notification, the parties shall engage in non-binding discussion to resolve the dispute.  If the 
parties do not reach agreement as a result of non-binding discussion, the parties may agree to consider 
further appropriate dispute resolution processes, including, subject to Oregon Department of Justice and 
LPHA counsel approval, binding arbitration.  The rights and remedies set forth in this Agreement are not 
intended to be exhaustive and the exercise by either party of any right or remedy does not preclude the 
exercise of any other rights or remedies at law or in equity. 

13. Nothing in this Agreement shall cause or require LPHA or OHA to act in violation of state or federal 
constitutions, statutes, regulations or rules.  The parties intend this limitation to apply in addition to any 
other limitation in this Agreement, including limitations in Section 1 of this Exhibit E. 

14. Purchase and Disposition of Equipment. 
a. For purposes of this section, “Equipment” means tangible, non-expendable personal property 

having a useful life of more than one year and a net acquisition cost of more than $5,000 per 
unit. However, for purposes of information technology equipment, the monetary threshold does 
not apply. Information technology equipment shall be tracked for the mandatory line categories 
listed below: 
(1) Network 
(2) Personal Computer  
(3) Printer/Plotter 
(4) Server  
(5) Storage 
(6) Software 

b. For any Equipment authorized by OHA for purchase with funds from this Agreement, ownership 
shall be in the name of the LPHA and LPHA is required to accurately maintain the following 
Equipment inventory records:  
(1) description of the Equipment; 
(2) serial number; 
(3) where Equipment was purchased; 
(4) acquisition cost and date; and 
(5) location, use and condition of the Equipment 

c. LPHA shall provide the Equipment inventory list to the Agreement Administrator annually by 
June 30th of each year.  LPHA shall be responsible to safeguard any Equipment and maintain the 
Equipment in good repair and condition while in the possession of LPHA or any subcontractors. 
LPHA shall depreciate all Equipment, with a value of more than $5,000, using the straight line 
method. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT E PAGE 106 OF 129 PAGES 

d. Upon termination of this Agreement, or any service thereof, for any reason whatsoever, LPHA 
shall, upon request by OHA, immediately, or at such later date specified by OHA, tender to OHA 
any and all Equipment purchased with funds under this Agreement as OHA may require to be 
returned to the State.  At OHA’s direction, LPHA may be required to deliver said Equipment to a 
subsequent Subcontractor for that Subcontractor’s use in the delivery of services formerly 
provided by LPHA.  Upon mutual agreement, in lieu of requiring LPHA to tender the Equipment 
to OHA or to a subsequent Subcontractor, OHA may require LPHA to pay to OHA the current 
value of the Equipment.  Equipment value will be determined as of the date of Agreement or 
service termination. 

e. If funds from this Agreement are authorized by OHA to be used as a portion of the purchase 
price of Equipment, requirements relating to title, maintenance, Equipment inventory reporting 
and residual value shall be negotiated and the agreement reflected in a special condition or 
Footnote authorizing the purchase. 

f. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, LPHA shall comply with CFR Subtitle B with 
guidance at 2 CFR Part 200 as amended, which generally describes the required maintenance, 
documentation, and allowed disposition of equipment purchased with federal grant funds. 

g. Equipment provided directly by OHA to the LPHA and/or its Subcontractor(s) to support 
delivery of specific program services is to be used for those program services.  If the LPHA 
and/or its Subcontractor(s) discontinue providing the program services for which the equipment 
is to be used, the equipment must be returned to OHA or transferred to a different provider at the 
request of OHA. 

 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT F PAGE 107 OF 129 PAGES 

EXHIBIT F 
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of conflicts of law.  Any 
claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, “Claim”) between the parties that arises from or relates to 
this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within a circuit court for the State 
of Oregon of proper jurisdiction.  THE PARTIES, BY EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT, 
HEREBY CONSENT TO THE IN PERSONAM JURISDICTION OF SAID COURTS.  Except as 
provided in this section neither party waives any form of defense or immunity, whether sovereign 
immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of 
the United States or otherwise, from any Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court.  The parties 
acknowledge that this is a binding and enforceable agreement and, to the extent permitted by law, 
expressly waive any defense alleging that either party does not have the right to seek judicial 
enforcement of this Agreement. 

2. Compliance with Law.  Both parties shall comply with laws, regulations and executive orders to which 
they are subject and which are applicable to the Agreement or to the delivery of Program Element 
services.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, both parties expressly agree to comply with 
the following laws, rules, regulations and executive orders to the extent they are applicable to the 
Agreement:  (a) OAR 943-005-0000 through 943-005-0007, prohibiting discrimination against 
individuals with disabilities, as may be revised, and all applicable requirements of state civil rights and 
rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations; (b) all state laws governing operation of locally 
administered public health programs, including without limitation, all administrative rules adopted by 
OHA related to public health programs; (c) all state laws requiring reporting of LPHA Client abuse; (d) 
ORS 659A.400 to 659A.409, ORS 659A.145; (e) 45 CFR 164 Subpart C; and all regulations and 
administrative rules established pursuant to those laws in the construction, remodeling, maintenance and 
operation of any structures and facilities, and in the conduct of all programs, services and training 
associated with the delivery of Program Element services. These laws, regulations and executive orders 
are incorporated by reference herein to the extent that they are applicable to the Agreement and required 
by law to be so incorporated. All employers, including LPHA and OHA, that employ subject workers 
who provide Program Element services in the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and 
provide the required Workers’ Compensation coverage, unless such employers are exempt under ORS 
656.126.  

3. Independent Contractors.  The parties agree and acknowledge that their relationship is that of 
independent contracting parties and that LPHA is not an officer, employee, or agent of the State of 
Oregon as those terms are used in ORS 30.265 or otherwise. 

4. Representations and Warranties.  
a. LPHA represents and warrants  as follows: 

(1) Organization and Authority.  LPHA is a political subdivision of the State of Oregon duly 
organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of Oregon.  LPHA has full 
power, authority and legal right to make this Agreement and to incur and perform its 
obligations hereunder. 

(2) Due Authorization.  The making and performance by LPHA of this Agreement (a) have 
been duly authorized by all necessary action by LPHA; (b) do not and will not violate any 
provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any court, regulatory 
commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision of LPHA’s charter or 
other organizational document; and (c) do not and will not result in the breach of, or 
constitute a default or require any consent under any other agreement or instrument to 
which LPHA is a party or by which LPHA may be bound or affected.  No authorization, 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT F PAGE 108 OF 129 PAGES 

consent, license, approval of, filing or registration with or notification to any 
governmental body or regulatory or supervisory authority is required for the execution, 
delivery or performance by LPHA of this Agreement. 

(3) Binding Obligation.  This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by LPHA and 
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of LPHA, enforceable in accordance with 
its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar laws affecting the 
enforcement of creditors’ rights generally. 

(4) Program Element Services. To the extent Program Element services are performed by 
LPHA, the delivery of each Program Element service will comply with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and meet the standards for such Program Element service as 
set forth herein, including but not limited to, any terms, conditions, standards and 
requirements set forth in the Financial Assistance Award and applicable Program 
Element Description. 

b. OHA represents and warrants  as follows: 
(1) Organization and Authority.  OHA has full power, authority and legal right to make this 

Agreement and to incur and perform its obligations hereunder. 
(2) Due Authorization.  The making and performance by OHA of this Agreement: (a) have 

been duly authorized by all necessary action by OHA; (b) do not and will not violate any 
provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any court, regulatory 
commission, board, or other administrative agency; and (c) do not and will not result in 
the breach of, or constitute a default or require any consent under any other agreement or 
instrument to which OHA is a party or by which OHA may be bound or affected.  No 
authorization, consent, license, approval of, filing or registration with or notification to 
any governmental body or regulatory or supervisory authority is required for the 
execution, delivery or performance by OHA of this Agreement, other than approval by 
the Department of Justice if required by law. 

(3) Binding Obligation. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by OHA and 
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of OHA, enforceable in accordance with 
its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar laws affecting the 
enforcement of creditors’ rights generally. 

c. Warranties Cumulative.  The warranties set forth in this section are in addition to, and not in lieu 
of, any other warranties provided. 

5. Ownership of Intellectual Property. 
a. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, or as otherwise required by state or federal law, 

OHA will not own the right, title and interest in any intellectual property created or delivered by 
LPHA or a Subcontractor in connection with the Program Element services with respect to that 
portion of the intellectual property that LPHA owns, LPHA grants to OHA a perpetual, 
worldwide, non-exclusive, royalty-free and irrevocable license, subject to any provisions in this 
Agreement that restrict or prohibit dissemination or disclosure of information, to (1) use, 
reproduce, prepare derivative works based upon, distribute copies of, perform and display the 
intellectual property, (2) authorize third parties to exercise the rights set forth in Section 5.a.(1) 
on OHA’s behalf, and (3) sublicense to third parties the rights set forth in Section 5.a.(1). 

b. If state or federal law requires that OHA or LPHA grant to the United States a license to any 
intellectual property, or if state or federal law requires that OHA or the United States own the 
intellectual property, then LPHA shall execute such further documents and instruments as OHA 
may reasonably request in order to make any such grant or to assign ownership in the intellectual 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT F PAGE 109 OF 129 PAGES 

property to the United States or OHA.  To the extent that OHA becomes the owner of any 
intellectual property created or delivered by LPHA in connection with the Program Element 
services, OHA will grant a perpetual, worldwide, non-exclusive, royalty-free and irrevocable 
license, subject to any provisions in this Agreement that restrict or prohibit dissemination or 
disclosure of information, to LPHA to use, copy, distribute, display, build upon and improve the 
intellectual property. 

c. LPHA shall include in its Subcontracts terms and conditions necessary to require that 
Subcontractors execute such further documents and instruments as OHA may reasonably request 
in order to make any grant of license or assignment of ownership that may be required by federal 
or state law. 

6. LPHA Default.  LPHA shall be in default under this Agreement upon the occurrence of any of the 
following events: 
a. LPHA fails to perform, observe or discharge any of its covenants, agreements or obligations set 

forth herein. 
b. Any representation, warranty or statement made by LPHA herein or in any documents or reports 

made by LPHA in connection herewith that are reasonably relied upon by OHA to measure the 
delivery of Program Element services, the expenditure of financial assistance or the performance 
by LPHA is untrue in any material respect when made; 

c. LPHA: (1) applies for or consents to the appointment of, or taking of possession by, a receiver, 
custodian, trustee, or liquidator of itself or all of its property; (2) admits in writing its inability, or 
is generally unable, to pay its debts as they become due; (3) makes a general assignment for the 
benefit of its creditors; (4) is adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent; (5) commences a voluntary 
case under the federal Bankruptcy Code (as now or hereafter in effect); (6) files a petition 
seeking to take advantage of any other law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
winding-up, or composition or adjustment of debts; (7) fails to controvert in a timely and 
appropriate manner, or acquiesces in writing to, any petition filed against it in an involuntary 
case under the Bankruptcy Code; or (8) takes any action for the purpose of effecting any of the 
foregoing; or 

d. A proceeding or case is commenced, without the application or consent of LPHA, in any court of 
competent jurisdiction, seeking: (1) the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, or the 
composition or readjustment of debts, of LPHA; (2) the appointment of a trustee, receiver, 
custodian, liquidator, or the like of LPHA or of all or any substantial part of its assets; or (3) 
similar relief in respect to LPHA under any law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, winding-up, or composition or adjustment of debts, and such proceeding or case 
continues undismissed, or an order, judgment, or decree approving or ordering any of the 
foregoing is entered and continues unstayed and in effect for a period of sixty consecutive days, 
or an order for relief against LPHA is entered in an involuntary case under the Federal 
Bankruptcy Code (as now or hereafter in effect). 

e. The delivery of any Program Element fails to comply satisfactorily to OHA with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement or fails to meet the standards for a Program Element as set forth 
herein, including but not limited to, any terms, condition, standards and requirements set forth in 
the Financial Assistance Award and applicable Program Element Description. 

7. OHA Default.  OHA shall be in default under this Agreement upon the occurrence of any of the 
following events: 
a. OHA fails to perform, observe or discharge any of its covenants, agreements, or obligations set 

forth herein; or 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT F PAGE 110 OF 129 PAGES 

b. Any representation, warranty or statement made by OHA herein or in any documents or reports 
made in connection herewith or relied upon by LPHA to measure performance by OHA is untrue 
in any material respect when made. 

8. Termination. 
a. LPHA Termination.  LPHA may terminate this Agreement in its entirety or may terminate its 

obligation to include one or more particular Program Elements in its public health program: 
(1) For its convenience, upon at least three calendar months advance written notice to OHA, 

with the termination effective as of the first day of the month following the notice period; 
(2) Upon 45 calendar days advance written notice to OHA, if LPHA does not obtain funding, 

appropriations and other expenditure authorizations from LPHA’s governing body, 
federal, state or other sources sufficient to permit LPHA to satisfy its performance 
obligations under this Agreement, as determined by LPHA in the reasonable exercise of 
its administrative discretion; 

(3) Upon 30 calendar days advance written notice to OHA, if OHA is in default under this 
Agreement and such default remains uncured at the end of said 30 calendar day period or 
such longer period, if any, as LPHA may specify in the notice; or 

(4) Immediately upon written notice to OHA, if Oregon statutes or federal laws, regulations 
or guidelines are modified, changed or interpreted by the Oregon Legislative Assembly, 
the federal government or a court in such a way that LPHA no longer has the authority to 
meet its obligations under this Agreement. 

b. OHA Termination.  OHA may terminate this Agreement in its entirety or may terminate its 
obligation to provide financial assistance under this Agreement for one or more particular 
Program Elements described in the Financial Assistance Award: 
(1) For its convenience, upon at least three calendar months advance written notice to LPHA, 

with the termination effective as of the first day of the month following the notice period; 
(2) Upon 45 calendar days advance written notice to LPHA, if OHA does not obtain funding, 

appropriations and other expenditure authorizations from federal, state or other sources 
sufficient to meet the payment obligations of OHA under this Agreement, as determined 
by OHA in the reasonable exercise of its administrative discretion.  Notwithstanding the 
preceding sentence, OHA may terminate this Agreement in its entirety or may terminate 
its obligation to provide financial assistance under this Agreement for one or more 
particular Program Elements immediately upon written notice to LPHA, or at such other 
time as it may determine, if action by the federal government to terminate or reduce 
funding or if action by the Oregon Legislative Assembly or Emergency Board to 
terminate or reduce OHA’s  legislative authorization for expenditure of funds to such a 
degree that OHA will no longer have sufficient expenditure authority to meet its payment 
obligations under this Agreement, as determined by OHA in the reasonable exercise of its 
administrative discretion, and the effective date for such reduction in expenditure 
authorization is less than 45 calendar days from the date the action is taken; 

(3) Immediately upon written notice to LPHA if Oregon statutes or federal laws, regulations 
or guidelines are modified, changed or interpreted by the Oregon Legislative Assembly, 
the federal government or a court in such a way that OHA no longer has the authority to 
meet its obligations under this Agreement or no longer has the authority to provide the 
financial assistance from the funding source it had planned to use; 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT F PAGE 111 OF 129 PAGES 

(4) Upon 30 calendar days advance written notice to LPHA, if LPHA is in default under this 
Agreement and such default remains uncured at the end of said 30 calendar day period or 
such longer period, if any, as OHA may specify in the notice; 

(5) Immediately upon written notice to LPHA, if any license or certificate required by law or 
regulation to be held by LPHA or a Subcontractor to deliver a Program Element service 
described in the Financial Assistance Award is for any reason denied, revoked, 
suspended, not renewed or changed in such a way that LPHA or a Subcontractor no 
longer meets requirements to deliver the service.  This termination right may only be 
exercised with respect to the particular Program Element impacted by the loss of 
necessary licensure or certification; or 

(6) Immediately upon written notice to LPHA, if OHA determines that LPHA or any of its 
Subcontractors have endangered or are endangering the health or safety of an LPHA 
Client or others in performing the Program Element services covered in this Agreement. 

9. Effect of Termination   
a. Upon termination of this Agreement in its entirety, OHA shall have no further obligation to pay 

or disburse financial assistance to LPHA under this Agreement, whether or not OHA has paid or 
disbursed to LPHA all financial assistance described in the Financial Assistance Award except:  
(1) with respect to funds described in the Financial Assistance Award, to the extent OHA’s 
disbursement of financial assistance for a particular Program Element service, the financial 
assistance for which is calculated on a rate per unit of service or service capacity basis, is less 
than the applicable rate multiplied by the number of applicable units of the Program Element 
service or Program Element service capacity of that type performed or made available from the 
effective date of this Agreement through the termination date; and (2) with respect to funds 
described in the Financial Assistance Award, to the extent OHA’s disbursement of financial 
assistance for a particular Program Element service, the financial assistance for which is 
calculated on a cost reimbursement basis, is less than the cumulative actual Allowable Costs 
reasonably and necessarily incurred with respect to delivery of that Program Element service, 
from the effective date of this Agreement through the termination date.   

b. Upon termination of LPHA’s obligation to perform under a particular Program Element service, 
OHA shall have: (1) no further obligation to pay or disburse financial assistance to LPHA under 
this Agreement for administration of that Program Element service whether or not OHA has paid 
or disbursed to LPHA all financial assistance described in the Financial Assistance Award for 
administration of that Program Element; and (2) no further obligation to pay or disburse any 
financial assistance to LPHA under this Agreement for such Program Element service whether or 
not OHA has paid or disbursed to LPHA all financial assistance described in the Financial 
Assistance Award for such Program Element service except: (a) with respect to funds described 
in the Financial Assistance Award,  to the extent OHA’s disbursement of financial assistance for 
the particular Program Element service, the financial assistance for which is calculated on a rate 
per unit of service or service capacity basis, is less than the applicable rate multiplied by the 
number of applicable units of the Program Element service or Program Element service capacity 
of that type performed or made available during the period from the effective date of this 
Agreement through the termination date; and (b) with respect to funds described in the Financial 
Assistance Award, to the extent OHA’s disbursement of financial assistance for a particular 
Program Element service, the financial assistance for which is calculated on a cost 
reimbursement basis, is less than the cumulative actual Allowable Costs reasonably and 
necessarily incurred by LPHA with respect to delivery of that Program Element service during 
the period from the effective date of this Agreement through the termination date.  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT F PAGE 112 OF 129 PAGES 

c. Upon termination of OHA’s obligation to provide financial assistance under this Agreement for a 
particular Program Element service, LPHA shall have no further obligation under this 
Agreement to provide that Program Element service. 

d. Disbursement Limitations.  Notwithstanding Subsections a. and b. above, under no 
circumstances will OHA be obligated to provide financial assistance to LPHA for a particular 
Program Element service in excess of the amount awarded under this Agreement for that 
Program Element service as set forth in the Financial Assistance Award. 

e. Survival.  Exercise of a termination right set forth in Section 8 “Termination” of this Exhibit F 
in accordance with its terms, shall not affect LPHA’s right to receive financial assistance to 
which it is entitled hereunder as described in Subsections a. and b. above or the right of OHA or 
LPHA to invoke the dispute resolution processes under “Resolution of Disputes over Additional 
Financial Assistance Owed to LPHA After Termination” or “Resolution of Disputes, Generally” 
below.  Notwithstanding Subsections a. and b. above, exercise of the termination rights in the 
“Termination” above or termination of this Agreement in accordance with its terms, shall not 
affect LPHA’s obligations under this Agreement or OHA’s right to enforce this Agreement 
against LPHA in accordance with its terms, with respect to financial assistance actually 
disbursed by OHA under this Agreement, or with respect to Program Element services actually 
delivered.  Specifically, but without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, exercise of 
a termination right set forth in “Termination” above or termination of this Agreement in 
accordance with its terms shall not affect LPHA’s representations and warranties; reporting 
obligations; record-keeping and access obligations; confidentiality obligations; obligation to 
comply with applicable federal requirements; the restrictions and limitations on LPHA’s 
expenditure of financial assistance actually disbursed by OHA hereunder, LPHA’s obligation to 
cooperate with OHA in the Agreement Settlement process; or OHA’s right to recover from 
LPHA; in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; any financial assistance disbursed by 
OHA under this Agreement that is identified as an Underexpenditure or Misexpenditure.  If a 
termination right set forth in the “Termination” above is exercised, both parties shall make 
reasonable good faith efforts to minimize unnecessary disruption or other problems associated 
with the termination. 

10. Insurance.  LPHA shall require first-tier Subcontractors, which are not units of local government, to 
maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit I, “Subcontractor Insurance Requirements”, which is attached 
hereto. 

11. Records Maintenance, Access, and Confidentiality. 
a. Access to Records and Facilities.  OHA, the Secretary of State’s Office of the State of Oregon, 

the Federal Government, and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the books, 
documents, papers and records of LPHA that are directly related to this Agreement, the financial 
assistance provided hereunder, or any Program Element service for the purpose of making audits, 
examinations, excerpts, copies and transcriptions.  In addition, upon 24 hour prior notice to 
LPHA, LPHA shall permit authorized representatives of OHA to perform site reviews of all 
Program Element services delivered by LPHA. 

b. Retention of Records.  LPHA shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, papers, and 
records that are directly related to this Agreement, the financial assistance provided hereunder or 
any Program Element service, for a minimum of six years, or such longer period as may be 
required by other provisions of this Agreement or applicable law, following the termination or 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. If there are unresolved audit or Agreement 
Settlement questions at the end of the applicable retention period, LPHA shall retain the records 
until the questions are resolved.  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT F PAGE 113 OF 129 PAGES 

c. Expenditure Records.  LPHA shall establish such fiscal control and fund accounting procedures 
as are necessary to ensure proper expenditure of and accounting for the financial assistance 
disbursed to LPHA by OHA under this Agreement.  In particular, but without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, LPHA shall (i) establish separate accounts for each Program Element 
for which LPHA receives financial assistance from OHA under this Agreement and (ii) 
document expenditures of financial assistance provided hereunder for employee compensation in 
accordance with CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200 and, when required by OHA, 
utilize time/activity studies in accounting for expenditures of financial assistance provided 
hereunder for employee compensation.  LPHA shall maintain accurate property records of non-
expendable property, acquired with Federal Funds, in accordance with CFR Subtitle B with 
guidance at 2 CFR Part 200. 

d. Safeguarding of LPHA Client Information.  LPHA shall maintain the confidentiality of LPHA 
Client records as required by applicable state and federal law.  Without limiting the generality of 
the preceding sentence, LPHA shall comply with the following confidentiality laws, as 
applicable:  ORS 433.045, 433.075, 433.008, 433.017, 433.092, 433.096, 433.098, 42 CFR Part 
2 and any administrative rule adopted by OHA implementing the foregoing laws, and any written 
policies made available to LPHA by OHA.  LPHA shall create and maintain written policies and 
procedures related to the disclosure of LPHA Client information and shall make such policies 
and procedures available to OHA for review and inspection as reasonably requested by OHA.   

12. Information Privacy/Security/Access. If the Program Element Services performed under this 
Agreement requires LPHA or its Subcontractor(s) to access or otherwise use any OHA Information 
Asset or Network and Information System to which security and privacy requirements apply, and OHA 
grants LPHA, its Subcontractors(s) or both access to such OHA Information Assets or Network and 
Information Systems, LPHA shall comply and require its Subcontractor(s) to which such access has 
been granted to comply with the terms and conditions applicable to such access or use, including OAR 
943-014-0300 through OAR 943-014-0320, as such rules may be revised from time to time. For 
purposes of this section, “Information Asset” and “Network and Information System” have the meaning 
set forth in OAR 943-014-0305, as such rule may be revised from time to time. 

13. Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by fire, civil unrest, 
labor unrest, natural causes, or war which is beyond the reasonable control of the parties.  Each party 
shall, however, make all reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such cause of delay or default and 
shall, upon the cessation of the cause, diligently pursue performance of its obligations under this 
Agreement. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the other party after 
reasonably determining that the delay or breach will likely prevent successful performance of this 
Agreement. 

14. Assignment of Agreement, Successors in Interest.   
a. LPHA shall not assign or transfer its interest in this Agreement without prior written approval of 

OHA.  Any such assignment or transfer, if approved, is subject to such conditions and provisions 
as OHA may deem necessary.  No approval by OHA of any assignment or transfer of interest 
shall be deemed to create any obligation of OHA in addition to those set forth in this Agreement. 

b. The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 
parties to this Agreement, and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

15. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  OHA and LPHA are the only parties to this Agreement and are the only 
parties entitled to enforce its terms.  The parties agree that LPHA’s performance under this Agreement is 
solely for the benefit of OHA to assist and enable OHA to accomplish its statutory mission.  Nothing in 
this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right, 
whether directly, indirectly or otherwise, to third persons any greater than the rights and benefits 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT F PAGE 114 OF 129 PAGES 

enjoyed by the general public unless such third persons are individually identified by name herein and 
expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of this Agreement. 

16. Amendment.  No amendment, modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either party 
unless in writing and signed by both parties and when required by the Department of Justice.  Such 
amendment, modification or change, if made, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the 
specific purpose given.   

17. Severability.  The parties agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and 
provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and 
enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid. 

18. Notice.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any communications between the 
parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile, 
or mailing the same, postage prepaid to County or OHA at the address or number set forth below, or to 
such other addresses or numbers as either party may indicate pursuant to this section.  Any 
communication or notice so addressed and mailed shall be effective five calendar days after mailing.  
Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be effective on the day the transmitting 
machine generates a receipt of the successful transmission, if transmission was during normal business 
hours of the recipient, or on the next business day, if transmission was outside normal business hours of 
the recipient.  To be effective against the other party, any notice transmitted by facsimile must be 
confirmed by telephone notice to the other party at number listed below.  Any communication or notice 
given by personal delivery shall be effective when actually delivered to the addressee. 
OHA:   Office of Contracts & Procurement 
 635 Capitol Street NE, Room 350 
 Salem, OR   97301 
 Telephone:  503-945-5818  Facsimile: 503-373-7889 
COUNTY:  Morrow County, Morrow County 

DianeKilkenny 
 PO Box 799, 110 N Court Street 
 Heppner, Oregon 97836 
 Telephone: (541) 676-5421 Facsimile: (541) 676-5652 
 Email:  dkilkenny@co.morrow.or.us 

19. Headings.  The headings and captions to sections of this Agreement have been inserted for 
identification and reference purposes only and shall not be used to construe the meaning or to interpret 
this Agreement. 

20. Counterparts.  This Agreement and any subsequent amendments may be executed in several 
counterparts, all of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, 
notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories to the same counterpart.  Each copy of this Agreement 
and any Amendments so executed shall constitute an original. 

21. Integration and Waiver.  This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the entire Agreement 
between the parties on the subject matter hereof.  There are no understandings, agreements, or 
representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement.    The failure of either 
party to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by that party of that or any 
other provision.  No waiver or consent shall be effective unless in writing and signed by the party 
against whom it is asserted. 

22. Construction.  This Agreement is the product of extensive negotiations between OHA and 
representatives of county governments.  The provisions of this Agreement are to be interpreted and their 
legal effects determined as a whole.  An arbitrator or court interpreting this Agreement shall give a 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT F PAGE 115 OF 129 PAGES 

reasonable, lawful and effective meaning to this Agreement to the extent possible, consistent with the 
public interest. 

23. Contribution. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a tort 
as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against a party (the "Notified Party") 
with respect to which the other party ("Other Party") may have liability, the Notified Party must 
promptly notify the Other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver to the Other Party a copy 
of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to the Third Party Claim. Either party is 
entitled to participate in the defense of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with 
counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by the Other Party of the notice and copies required in this 
paragraph and meaningful opportunity for the Other Party to participate in the investigation, defense and 
settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to the 
Other Party’s liability with respect to the Third Party Claim. 
With respect to a Third Party Claim for which the State is jointly liable with the LPHA (or would be if 
joined in the Third Party Claim ), the State shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including 
attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and 
paid or payable by the Agency in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the 
State on the one hand and of the Agency on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted 
in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable 
considerations. The relative fault of the State on the one hand and of the LPHA on the other hand shall 
be determined by reference to, among other things, the parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to 
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, 
judgments, fines or settlement amounts. The State’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to the 
same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if the State had sole liability in the 
proceeding. 
With respect to a Third Party Claim for which the LPHA is jointly liable with the State (or would be if 
joined in the Third Party Claim), the LPHA shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including 
attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and 
paid or payable by the State in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the LPHA 
on the one hand and of the State on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. 
The relative fault of the LPHA on the one hand and of the State on the other hand shall be determined by 
reference to, among other things, the parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and 
opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or 
settlement amounts. The LPHA’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it 
would have been capped under Oregon law if it had sole liability in the proceeding. 

24. Indemnification by LPHA Subcontractor.  LPHA shall take all reasonable steps to cause its 
subcontractor, that are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to indemnify, 
defend, save and hold harmless the State of Oregon and its officers, employees and agents 
(“Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses 
(including attorneys’ fees) arising from a tort (as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260) caused, or 
alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of LPHA’s 
subcontractors or any of the officers, agents, employees or subcontractors of the subcontractor ( 
“Claims”).  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for 
Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified 
by the subcontractor from and against any and all Claims. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT G PAGE 116 OF 129 PAGES 

EXHIBIT G 
REQUIRED FEDERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

In addition to the requirements of Section 2 of Exhibit F, LPHA shall comply and, as indicated, require all 
Subcontractors to comply with the following federal requirements to the extent that they are applicable to this 
Agreement, to LPHA, or to the Work, or to any combination of the foregoing. For purposes of this Agreement, 
all references to federal and state laws are references to federal and state laws as they may be amended from 
time to time. 
1. Miscellaneous Federal Provisions.  LPHA shall comply and require all Subcontractors to comply with 

all federal laws, regulations, and executive orders applicable to the Agreement or to the delivery of 
Program Element Services.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, LPHA expressly agrees to 
comply and require all Subcontractors to comply with the following laws, regulations and executive 
orders to the extent they are applicable to this Agreement:  (a) Title VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1964, as amended, (b) Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, (c) the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, (d) Executive Order 11246, as amended, (e) the 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended, (f) the Age Discrimination in 
Employment Act of 1967, as amended, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (g) the 
Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, (h) all regulations and 
administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws, (i) all other applicable requirements of 
federal civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations, and (j) all federal laws requiring 
reporting of Client abuse. These laws, regulations and executive orders are incorporated by reference 
herein to the extent that they are applicable to this Agreement and required by law to be so incorporated.  
No federal funds may be used to provide Services in violation of 42 U.S.C 14402. 

2. Equal Employment Opportunity.  If this Agreement, including amendments, is for more than $10,000, 
then LPHA shall comply and require all Subcontractors to comply with Executive Order 11246, entitled 
“Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as supplemented in U.S. 
Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR Part 60).  

3. Clean Air, Clean Water, EPA Regulations.  If this Agreement, including amendments, exceeds 
$100,000 then LPHA shall comply and require all Subcontractors to comply with all applicable 
standards, orders, or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7606), the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (commonly known as the Clean Water Act) (33 U.S.C. 
1251 to 1387), specifically including, but not limited to Section 508 (33 U.S.C. 1368),  Executive Order 
11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (2 CFR Part 1532), which prohibit the use 
under non-exempt Federal contracts, grants or loans of facilities included on the EPA List of Violating 
Facilities. Violations shall be reported to OHA, United States Department of Health and Human 
Services, and the appropriate Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency.  LPHA shall 
include and require all Subcontractors to include in all contracts with Subcontractors receiving more 
than $100,000, language requiring the Subcontractor to comply with the federal laws identified in this 
section. 

4. Energy Efficiency.  LPHA shall comply and require all Subcontractors to comply with applicable 
mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency that are contained in the Oregon energy 
conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act 42 U.S.C. 6201 
et.seq. (Pub. L. 94-163). 

  
= 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT G PAGE 117 OF 129 PAGES 

5. Truth in Lobbying.  By signing this Agreement, the LPHA certifies, to the best of the LPHA's 
knowledge and belief that:   
a. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of LPHA, to any 

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the 
making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 

b. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person 
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement, the LPHA shall 
complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying” in accordance 
with its instructions. 

c. The LPHA shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients and Subcontractors shall 
certify and disclose accordingly. 

d. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
Agreement was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this Agreement imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code. Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

e. No part of any federal funds paid to LPHA under this Agreement shall be used, other than for 
normal and recognized executive legislative relationships, for publicity or propaganda purposes, 
for the preparation, distribution, or use of any kit, pamphlet, booklet, publication, electronic 
communication, radio, television, or video presentation designed to support or defeat the 
enactment of legislation before the United States Congress or any State or local legislature itself, 
or designed to support or defeat any proposed or pending regulation, administrative action, or 
order issued by the executive branch of any State or local government. 

f. No part of any federal funds paid to LPHA under this Agreement shall be used to pay the salary 
or expenses of any grant or contract recipient, or agent acting for such recipient, related to any 
activity designed to influence the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation, 
administrative action, or Executive order proposed or pending before the United States Congress 
or any State government, State legislature or local legislature or legislative body, other than for 
normal and recognized executive-legislative relationships or participation by an agency or officer 
of a State, local or tribal government in policymaking and administrative processes within the 
executive branch of that government. 

g. The prohibitions in Subsections (e) and (f) of this section shall include any activity to advocate 
or promote any proposed, pending or future Federal, State or local tax increase, or any proposed, 
pending, or future requirement or restriction on any legal consumer product, including its sale or 
marketing, including but not limited to the advocacy or promotion of gun control. 

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT G PAGE 118 OF 129 PAGES 

h. No part of any federal funds paid to LPHA under this Agreement may be used for any activity 
that promotes the legalization of any drug or other substance included in schedule I of the 
schedules of controlled substances established under Section 202 of the Controlled Substances 
Act except for normal and recognized executive congressional communications. This limitation 
shall not apply when there is significant medical evidence of a therapeutic advantage to the use 
of such drug or other substance or that federally sponsored clinical trials are being conducted to 
determine therapeutic advantage. 

6. Resource Conservation and Recovery.  LPHA shall comply and require all Subcontractors to comply 
with all mandatory standards and policies that relate to resource conservation and recovery pursuant to 
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (codified at 42 U.S.C. 6901 et.seq.).  Section 6002 of that 
Act (codified at 42 U.S.C. 6962) requires that preference be given in procurement programs to the 
purchase of specific products containing recycled materials identified in guidelines developed by the 
Environmental Protection Agency.  Current guidelines are set forth in 40 CFR Part 247. 

7. Audits.  Sub-recipients, as defined in 45 CFR 75.2, which includes, but is not limited to LPHA, shall 
comply, and LPHA shall require all Subcontractors to comply, with applicable Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) governing expenditure of Federal funds including, but not limited to, if a sub-
recipient expends $500,000 or more in Federal funds (from all sources) in its fiscal year beginning prior 
to December 26, 2014, a sub-recipient shall have a single organization-wide audit conducted in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act. If a sub-recipient expends $750,000 or more in federal funds 
(from all sources) in a fiscal year beginning on or after December 26, 2014, it shall have a single 
organization-wide audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 45 CFR Part 75, Subpart F. 
Copies of all audits must be submitted to OHA within 30 calendar days of completion. If a sub-recipient 
expends less than $500,000 in Federal funds in a fiscal year beginning prior to December 26, 2014, or 
less than $750,000 in a fiscal year beginning on or after that date, it is exempt from Federal audit 
requirements for that year.  Records must be available for review or audit by appropriate officials. 

8. Debarment and Suspension.  LPHA shall not permit any person or entity to be a Subcontractor if the 
person or entity is listed on the non-procurement portion of the General Service Administration’s “List 
of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs” in accordance with 
Executive Orders No. 12549 and No. 12689, “Debarment and Suspension” (see 2 CFR Part 180).  This 
list contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, and 
contractors declared ineligible under statutory authority other than Executive Order No. 12549.  
Subcontractors with awards that exceed the simplified acquisition threshold shall provide the required 
certification regarding their exclusion status and that of their principals prior to award. 

9. Drug-Free Workplace.  LPHA shall comply and require all Subcontractors to comply with the 
following provisions to maintain a drug-free workplace: (i) LPHA certifies that it will provide a drug-
free workplace by publishing a statement notifying its employees that the unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance, except as may be present in 
lawfully prescribed or over-the-counter medications, is prohibited in LPHA's workplace or while 
providing services to OHA clients.  LPHA's notice shall specify the actions that will be taken by LPHA 
against its employees for violation of such prohibitions; (ii) Establish a drug-free awareness program to 
inform its employees about: the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, LPHA's policy of maintaining a 
drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, 
and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations; (iii) Provide each 
employee to be engaged in the performance of services under this Agreement a copy of the statement 
mentioned in paragraph (i) above; (iv) Notify each employee in the statement required by paragraph (i) 
above that, as a condition of employment to provide services under this Agreement, the employee will: 
abide by the terms of the statement, and notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a 
violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) calendar days after such conviction; (v) Notify 
OHA within ten (10) calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (iv) above from an 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT G PAGE 119 OF 129 PAGES 

employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction; (vi) Impose a sanction on, or require 
the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program by any employee who 
is so convicted as required by Section 5154 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988; (vii) Make a 
good-faith effort to continue a drug-free workplace through implementation of subparagraphs (i)  
through (vi) above; (viii) Require any Subcontractor to comply with subparagraphs (i) through (vii) 
above; (ix) Neither LPHA, or any of LPHA's employees, officers, agents or Subcontractors may provide 
any service required under this Agreement while under the influence of drugs.  For purposes of this 
provision, "under the influence" means: observed abnormal behavior or impairments in mental or 
physical performance leading a reasonable person to believe the LPHA or LPHA's employee, officer, 
agent or Subcontractor has used a controlled substance, prescription or non-prescription medication that 
impairs the LPHA or LPHA's employee, officer, agent or Subcontractor's performance of essential job 
function or creates a direct threat to LPHA Clients or others.  Examples of abnormal behavior include, 
but are not limited to: hallucinations, paranoia or violent outbursts.  Examples of impairments in 
physical or mental performance include, but are not limited to: slurred speech, difficulty walking or 
performing job activities; and (x) Violation of any provision of this subsection may result in termination 
of this Agreement. 

10. Pro-Children Act.  LPHA shall comply and require all sub-contractors to comply with the Pro-Children 
Act of 1994 (codified at 20 U.S.C. Section 6081 et. seq.). 

11. Medicaid Services.  To the extent LPHA provides any Service whose costs are paid in whole or in part 
by Medicaid, LPHA shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulation pertaining to 
the provision of Medicaid Services under the Medicaid Act, Title XIX, 42 U.S.C. Section 1396 et. seq., 
including without limitation: 
a. Keep such records as are necessary to fully disclose the extent of the services provided to 

individuals receiving Medicaid assistance and shall furnish such information to any state or 
federal agency responsible for administering the Medicaid program regarding any payments 
claimed by such person or institution for providing Medicaid Services as the state or federal 
agency may from time to time request. 42 U.S.C. Section 1396a(a)(27); 42 CFR Part 
431.107(b)(1) & (2). 

b. Comply with all disclosure requirements of 42 CFR Part 1002.3(a) and 42 CFR 455 Subpart (B). 
c. Maintain written notices and procedures respecting advance directives in compliance with 42 

U.S.C. Section 1396(a)(57) and (w), 42 CFR Part 431.107(b)(4), and 42 CFR Part 489 subpart I. 
d. Certify when submitting any claim for the provision of Medicaid Services that the information 

submitted is true, accurate and complete.  LPHA shall acknowledge LPHA’s understanding that 
payment of the claim will be from federal and state funds and that any falsification or 
concealment of a material fact may be prosecuted under federal and state laws. 

e. Entities receiving $5 million or more annually (under this Agreement and any other Medicaid 
agreement) for furnishing Medicaid health care items or services shall, as a condition of 
receiving such payments, adopt written fraud, waste and abuse policies and procedures and 
inform employees, Subcontractors and agents about the policies and procedures in compliance 
with Section 6032 of the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(68). 

12. ADA.  LPHA shall comply with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (codified at 42 
U.S.C. 12131 et. seq.) in the construction, remodeling, maintenance and operation of any structures and 
facilities, and in the conduct of all programs, services and training associated with the delivery of 
Services. 

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT G PAGE 120 OF 129 PAGES 

13. Agency-Based Voter Registration.  If applicable, LPHA shall comply with the Agency-based Voter 
Registration sections of the National Voter Registration Act of 1993 that require voter registration 
opportunities be offered where an individual may apply for or receive an application for public 
assistance. 

14. Disclosure. 
a. 42 CFR 455.104 requires the State Medicaid agency to obtain the following information from 

any provider of Medicaid or CHIP services, including fiscal agents of providers and managed 
care entities: (1) the name and address (including the primary business address, every business 
location and P.O. Box address) of any person (individual or corporation) with an ownership or 
control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity; (2) in the case of an 
individual, the date of birth and Social Security Number, or, in the case of a corporation, the tax 
identification number of the entity, with an ownership interest in the provider, fiscal agent or 
managed care entity or of any subcontractor in which the provider, fiscal agent or managed care 
entity has a 5% or more interest; (3) whether the person (individual or corporation) with an 
ownership or control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity is related to 
another person with ownership or control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care 
entity as a spouse, parent, child or sibling, or whether the person (individual or corporation) with 
an ownership or control interest in any subcontractor in which the provider, fiscal agent or 
managed care entity has a 5% or more interest is related to another person with ownership or 
control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity as a spouse, parent, child or 
sibling; (4) the name of any other provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity in which an 
owner of the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity has an ownership or control interest; 
and, (5) the name, address, date of birth and Social Security Number of any managing employee 
of the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity. 

b. 42 CFR 455.434 requires as a condition of enrollment as a Medicaid or CHIP provider, to 
consent to criminal background checks, including fingerprinting when required to do so under 
state law, or by the category of the provider based on risk of fraud, waste and abuse under federal 
law. As such, a provider must disclose any person with a 5% or greater direct or indirect 
ownership interest in the provider whom has been convicted of a criminal offense related to that 
person's involvement with the Medicare, Medicaid, or title XXI program in the last 10 years. 

c. 45 CFR 75.113 requires applicants and recipients of federal funds to disclose, in a timely 
manner, in writing to the United States Health and Human Services (HHS) awarding agency or 
pass-through entity all information related to violations of federal criminal law involving fraud, 
bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the federal award. Disclosures must be sent in 
writing to the HHS Office of the Inspector General at the following address:  
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
Office of the Inspector General 
Attn:  Mandatory Grant Disclosures, Intake Coordinator 
330 Independence Ave, SW 
Cohen Building, Room 5527 
Washington, DR 20201 

OHA reserves the right to take such action required by law, or where OHA has discretion, it deems 
appropriate, based on the information received (or the failure to receive) from the provider, fiscal agent 
or managed care entity. 

  



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT G PAGE 121 OF 129 PAGES 

15. Super Circular Requirements. 2 CFR Part 200, or the equivalent applicable provision adopted by the 
awarding federal agency in 2 CFR Subtitle B, including but not limited to the following: 
a. Property Standards. 2 CFR 200.313, or the equivalent applicable provision adopted by the 

awarding federal agency in 2 CFR Subtitle B, which generally describes the required 
maintenance, documentation, and allowed disposition of equipment purchased with federal 
funds. 

b. Procurement Standards. When procuring goods or services (including professional consulting 
services), applicable state procurement regulations found in the Oregon Public Contracting Code, 
ORS chapters 279A, 279B and 279C or 2 CFR §§ 200.318 through 200.326, or the equivalent 
applicable provision adopted by the awarding federal agency in 2 CFR Subtitle B, as applicable. 

c. Contract Provisions. The contract provisions listed in 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II, or the 
equivalent applicable provision adopted by the awarding federal agency in 2 CFR Subtitle 
B,  that are hereby incorporated into this Exhibit, are, to the extent applicable, obligations of 
Contractor, and Contractor shall also include these contract provisions in its contracts with non-
Federal entities. 

16. FEMA. This Agreement is subject to the additional federal terms and conditions located at: 
https://www.oregon.gov/das/Procurement/Documents/COVIDFederalProvisions.pdf as may be 
applicable to this Agreement. 

 

https://www.oregon.gov/das/Procurement/Documents/COVIDFederalProvisions.pdf


OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT H PAGE 122 OF 129 PAGES 

EXHIBIT H 
REQUIRED SUBCONTRACT PROVISIONS 

1. Expenditure of Funds.  Subcontractor may expend the funds paid to Subcontractor under this Contract 
solely on the delivery of ________________, subject to the following limitations (in addition to any 
other restrictions or limitations imposed by this Contract): 
a. Subcontractor may not expend on the delivery of ______________ any funds paid to 

Subcontractor under this Agreement in excess of the amount reasonable and necessary to provide 
quality delivery of _____________. 

b. If this Agreement requires Subcontractor to deliver more than one service, Subcontractor may 
not expend funds paid to Subcontractor under this Contract for a particular service on the 
delivery of any other service. 

c. Subcontractor may expend funds paid to Subcontractor under this Contract only in accordance 
with federal 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200 as those regulations are 
applicable to define allowable costs. 

2. Records Maintenance, Access and Confidentiality. 
a. Access to Records and Facilities.  LPHA, the Oregon Health Authority, the Secretary of State’s 

Office of the State of Oregon, the Federal Government, and their duly authorized representatives 
shall have access to the books, documents, papers and records of Subcontractor that are directly 
related to this Contract, the funds paid to Subcontractor hereunder, or any services delivered 
hereunder for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, copies and transcriptions.  In 
addition, Subcontractor shall permit authorized representatives of LPHA and the Oregon Health 
Authority to perform site reviews of all services delivered by Subcontractor hereunder. 

b. Retention of Records.  Subcontractor shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, 
papers, and records, that are directly related to this Contract, the funds paid to Subcontractor 
hereunder or to any services delivered hereunder, for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer 
period as may be required by other provisions of this Contract or applicable law, following the 
termination or expiration of this Contract.  If there are unresolved audit or other questions at the 
end of the above period, Subcontractor shall retain the records until the questions are resolved. 

c. Expenditure Records.  Subcontractor shall establish such fiscal control and fund accounting 
procedures as are necessary to ensure proper expenditure of and accounting for the funds paid to 
Subcontractor under this Contract.  In particular, but without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, Subcontractor shall (i) establish separate accounts for each type of service for which 
Subcontractor is paid under this Contract and (ii) document expenditures of funds paid to 
Subcontractor under this Contract for employee compensation in accordance with 2 CFR Subtitle 
B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200 and, when required by LPHA, utilize time/activity studies in 
accounting for expenditures of funds paid to Subcontractor under this Contract for employee 
compensation.  Subcontractor shall maintain accurate property records of non-expendable 
property, acquired with Federal Funds, in accordance with 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 
CFR Part 200. 

d. Safeguarding of Client Information.  Subcontractor shall maintain the confidentiality of client 
records as required by applicable state and federal law.  Without limiting the generality of the 
preceding sentence, Subcontractor shall comply with the following confidentiality laws, as 
applicable:  ORS 433.045, 433.075, 433.008, 433.017, 433.092, 433.096, 433.098, 42 CFR Part 
2 and any administrative rule adopted by OHA implementing the foregoing laws, and any written 
policies made available to LPHA by OHA.  Subcontractor shall create and maintain written 
policies and procedures related to the disclosure of client information, and shall make such 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT H PAGE 123 OF 129 PAGES 

policies and procedures available to LPHA and the Oregon Health Authority for review and 
inspection as reasonably requested.  

e. Information Privacy/Security/Access. If the services performed under this Agreement requires 
Subcontractor to access or otherwise use any  OHA Information Asset or Network and 
Information System to which  security and privacy requirements apply, and OHA grants LPHA, 
its Subcontractor(s), or both access to such OHA Information Assets or Network and Information 
Systems, Subcontractor(s) shall comply and require its staff to which such access has been 
granted to comply with the terms and conditions applicable to such access or use, including OAR 
943-014-0300 through OAR 943-014-0320, as such rules may be revised from time to time. For 
purposes of this section, “Information Asset” and “Network and Information System” have the 
meaning set forth in OAR 943-014-0305, as such rule may be revised from time to time.   

3. Alternative Formats of Written Materials.  In connection with the delivery of Program Element 
services, LPHA shall make available to LPHA Client, without charge, upon the LPHA Client’s 
reasonable request: 
a. All written materials related to the services provided to the LPHA Client in alternate formats. 
b. All written materials related to the services provided to the LPHA Client in the LPHA Client’s 

language. 
c. Oral interpretation services related to the services provided to the LPHA Client to the LPHA 

Client in the LPHA Client’s language. 
d. Sign language interpretation services and telephone communications access services related to 

the services provided to the LPHA Client. 
For purposes of the foregoing, “written materials” means materials created by LHPA, in connection with 
the Service being provided to the requestor. The LPHA may develop its own forms and materials and 
with such forms and materials the LPHA shall be responsible for making them available to an LPHA 
Client, without charge to the LPHA Client in the prevalent non-English language(s) within the LPHA 
service area.  OHA shall be responsible for making its forms and materials available, without charge to 
the LPHA Client or LPHA, in the prevalent non-English language(s) within the LPHA service area.  

4. Compliance with Law.  Subcontractor shall comply with all state and local laws, regulations, executive 
orders and ordinances applicable to the Contract or to the delivery of services hereunder.  Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, Subcontractor expressly agrees to comply with the following 
laws, regulations and executive orders to the extent they are applicable to the Contract:  (a) all applicable 
requirements of state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations; (b) all state laws 
governing operation of public health programs, including without limitation, all administrative rules 
adopted by the Oregon Health Authority related to public health programs; and (d) ORS 659A.400 to 
659A.409, ORS 659A.145 and all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to those laws 
in the construction, remodeling, maintenance and operation of any structures and facilities, and in the 
conduct of all programs, services and training associated with the delivery of services under this 
Contract. These laws, regulations and executive orders are incorporated by reference herein to the extent 
that they are applicable to the Contract and required by law to be so incorporated.  All employers, 
including Subcontractor, that employ subject workers who provide services in the State of Oregon shall 
comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required Workers’ Compensation coverage, unless such 
employers are exempt under ORS 656.126.  In addition, Subcontractor shall comply, as if it were LPHA 
thereunder, with the federal requirements set forth in Exhibit G to that certain 2009-2010 
Intergovernmental Agreement for the Financing of Public Health Services between LPHA and the 
Oregon Health Authority dated as of July 1, 2010, which Exhibit is incorporated herein by this 
reference.  For purposes of this Contract, all references in this Contract to federal and state laws are 
references to federal and state laws as they may be amended from time to time. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT H PAGE 124 OF 129 PAGES 

5. Grievance Procedures.   If Subcontractor employs fifteen (15) or more employees to deliver the 
services under this Contract, Subcontractor shall establish and comply with employee grievance 
procedures. In accordance with 45 CFR 84.7, the employee grievance procedures must provide for 
resolution of allegations of discrimination in accordance with applicable state and federal laws. The 
employee grievance procedures must also include “due process” standards, which, at a minimum, shall 
include: 
a. An established process and time frame for filing an employee grievance. 
b. An established hearing and appeal process. 
c. A requirement for maintaining adequate records and employee confidentiality. 
d. A description of the options available to employees for resolving disputes. 
Subcontractor shall ensure that its employees and governing board members are familiar with the civil 
rights compliance responsibilities that apply to Subcontractor and are aware of the means by which 
employees may make use of the employee grievance procedures. Subcontractor may satisfy these 
requirements for ensuring that employees are aware of the means for making use of the employee 
grievance procedures by including a section in the Subcontractor employee manual that describes the 
Subcontractor employee grievance procedures, by publishing other materials designed for this purpose, 
or by presenting information on the employee grievance procedures at periodic intervals in staff and 
board meetings. 

6. Independent Contractor.  Unless Subcontractor is a State of Oregon governmental agency, 
Subcontractor agrees that it is an independent contractor and not an agent of the State of Oregon, the 
Oregon Health Authority or LPHA. 

7. Indemnification.  To the extent permitted by applicable law, Subcontractors that are not units of local 
government as defined in ORS 190.003, shall defend (in the case of the State of Oregon and the Oregon 
Health Authority, subject to ORS chapter 180), save and hold harmless the State of Oregon, the Oregon 
Health Authority, LPHA, and their officers, employees, and agents from and against all claims, suits, 
actions, losses, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses of any nature whatsoever resulting from, arising 
out of or relating to the operations of the Subcontractor, including but not limited to the activities of 
Subcontractor or its officers, employees, Subcontractors or agents under this Contract.  

8. Required Subcontractor Insurance Language.   
a. First tier Subcontractor(s) that are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003 shall 

obtain, at Subcontractor’s expense, and maintain in effect with respect to all occurrences taking 
place during the term of the contract, insurance requirements as specified in Exhibit I of the 
2019-2021 Intergovernmental Agreement for the Financing of Public Health Services between 
LPHA and the Oregon Health Authority and incorporated herein by this reference.  

b. Subcontractor(s) that are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003, shall 
indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the State of Oregon and its officers, employees and 
agents (“Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, 
or expenses (including attorneys’ fees) arising from a tort (as now or hereafter defined in ORS 
30.260) caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or 
omissions of Subcontractor or any of the officers, agents, employees or subcontractors of the 
contractor (“Claims”).  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all 
instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
Indemnitee, be indemnified by the Subcontractor from and against any and all Claims. 

9. Subcontracts.  Subcontractor shall include Sections 1 through 7, in substantially the form set forth 
above, in all permitted subcontracts under this Agreement. 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT I PAGE 125 OF 129 PAGES 

EXHIBIT I 
SUBCONTRACTOR INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

General Requirements.  LPHA shall require its first tier Subcontractors(s) that are not units of local 
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES AND 
AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE 
OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before the Subcontractors 
perform under contracts between LPHA and the Subcontractors (the "Subcontracts"), and ii) maintain the 
insurance in full force throughout the duration of the Subcontracts. The insurance must be provided by 
insurance companies or entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in 
the State of Oregon and that are acceptable to OHA. LPHA shall not authorize Subcontractors to begin work 
under the Subcontracts until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, LPHA shall monitor continued 
compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent basis. LPHA shall incorporate 
appropriate provisions in the Subcontracts permitting it to enforce Subcontractor compliance with the insurance 
requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance. Examples of "reasonable steps" 
include issuing stop work orders (or the equivalent) until the insurance is in full force or terminating the 
Subcontracts as permitted by the Subcontracts, or pursuing legal action to enforce the insurance requirements. 
In no event shall LPHA permit a Subcontractor to work under a Subcontract when the LPHA is aware that the 
Subcontractor is not in compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, a “first tier” 
Subcontractor is a Subcontractor with whom the LPHA directly enters into a Subcontract. It does not include a 
subcontractor with whom the Subcontractor enters into a contract. 
TYPES AND AMOUNTS. 
1. WORKERS COMPENSATION. Insurance in compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires all 

employers that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, to provide workers’ compensation 
coverage for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2).  
Employers Liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000 must be included. 

2. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 
 Required by OHA     Not required by OHA. 

Professional Liability Insurance covering any damages caused by an error, omission or negligent act 
related to the services to be provided under the Subcontract, with limits not less than the following, as 
determined by OHA, or such lesser amount as OHA approves in writing:  

  Per occurrence for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence:  

Subcontract not-to-exceed under this 
Agreement: 

Required Insurance Amount: 

$0 - $1,000,000. $1,000,000. 

$1,000,001. - $2,000,000. $2,000,000. 

$2,000,001. - $3,000,000. $3,000,000. 

In excess of $3,000,001. $4,000,000. 

 
  

• 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT I PAGE 126 OF 129 PAGES 

3. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
 Required by OHA     Not required by OHA. 

Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury, death, and property damage in a form and 
with coverages that are satisfactory to OHA. This insurance shall include personal injury liability, products 
and completed operations. Coverage shall be written on an occurrence form basis, with not less than the 
following amounts as determined by OHA, or such lesser amount as OHA approves in writing: 
Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage: 

  Per occurrence for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence:  

Subcontract not-to-exceed under this 
Agreement: 

Required Insurance Amount: 

$0 - $1,000,000. $1,000,000. 

$1,000,001. - $2,000,000. $2,000,000. 

$2,000,001. - $3,000,000. $3,000,000. 

In excess of $3,000,001. $4,000,000. 

 
4. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE  

 Required by OHA     Not required by OHA. 
Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles.  This coverage 
may be written in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits 
for “Commercial General Liability” and “Automobile Liability”). Automobile Liability Insurance 
must be in not less than the following amounts as determined by OHA, or such lesser amount as 
OHA approves in writing: 
Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage: 

  Per occurrence for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence:  

Subcontract not-to-exceed under this 
Agreement: 

Required Insurance Amount: 

$0 - $1,000,000. $1,000,000. 

$1,000,001. - $2,000,000. $2,000,000. 

$2,000,001. - $3,000,000. $3,000,000. 

In excess of $3,000,001. $4,000,000. 

 
5. ADDITIONAL INSURED.  The Commercial General Liability insurance and Automobile Liability 

insurance must include the State of Oregon, its officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds 
but only with respect to the Subcontractor's activities to be performed under the Subcontract.  Coverage 
must be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance. 

  

• 

• 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT I PAGE 127 OF 129 PAGES 

6. "TAIL" COVERAGE.  If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as 
professional liability insurance,  the Subcontractor shall maintain either “tail" coverage or continuous 
"claims made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous “claims made” coverage 
is on or before the effective date of the Subcontract, for a minimum of 24 months following the later of : 
(i) the Subcontractor’s completion and LPHA ’s acceptance of all Services required under the Subcontract 
or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under the Subcontract.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing 24-month requirement, if the Subcontractor elects to maintain “tail” coverage and if the 
maximum time period “tail” coverage reasonably available in the marketplace is less than the 24-month 
period described above, then the Subcontractor may request and OHA may grant approval of  the maximum 
“tail “ coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace. If OHA approval is granted, the 
Subcontractor shall maintain “tail” coverage for the maximum time period that “tail” coverage is reasonably 
available in the marketplace.  

7. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. The Subcontractor or its insurer must provide 30 
calendar days’ written notice to LPHA before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of 
aggregate limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s).  

8. CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. LPHA shall obtain from the Subcontractor a certificate(s) of 
insurance for all required insurance before the Subcontractor performs under the Subcontract. The 
certificate(s) or an attached endorsement must specify: i)  all entities and individuals who are endorsed 
on the policy as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a “claims made” basis, the extended 
reporting period applicable to “tail” or continuous “claims made” coverage. 
 



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT J PAGE 128 OF 129 PAGES 

EXHIBIT J 
Information required by CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200 

 

 
 

 
 

Agency DUNS No.
Morrow 010741189

Amount Grand Total:
$65,873.00 $65,873.00

Research and Development (T/F): FALSE
PCA: TBD

Index: 50407

Total Federal Aw ard: $8,106,290
Project Description: Public Health Emergency 

Preparedness
Aw arding Official: LCDR Erin Grasso
Indirect Cost Rate: 17.86%

Performance Period: 07/01/2019-06/30/2024
Aw arding Agency: CDC

CDFA Number: 93.069
CFDFA Name: Public Health Emergency 

Preparedness

PE12 Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness and Response (PHEP)

Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number: NU90TP922036
Federal Aw ard Date: 09/26/2019

Agency DUNS No.
Morrow 010741189

Amount Grand Total:
$18,366.00 $18,366.00

Research and Development (T/F): FALSE
PCA: 52235

Index: 50336

Total Federal Aw ard: 4647190
Project Description: Maternal and Child Health 

Services
Aw arding Official: Carolyn Gleason
Indirect Cost Rate: 10%

Performance Period: 10/01/2019 - 09/30/2021
Aw arding Agency: DHHS/HRSA

CDFA Number: 93.994
CFDFA Name: MCH Title V Block Grant

PE42-11 MCAH Title V
Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number: B04MC33862

Federal Aw ard Date: 03/17/2020

,.. 

,.. 

,.. 

,.. 

--



OHA - 2019-2021 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
159824-13 TLH EXHIBIT J PAGE 129 OF 129 PAGES 

 

 
 
 

 
 

Agency DUNS No.
Morrow 010741189

Amount Grand Total:
$3,441.00 $3,441.00

Index: 50336

Research and Development (T/F): FALSE
PCA: 52238

Aw arding Official: Carolyn Gleason
Indirect Cost Rate: 10%

Total Federal Aw ard: $4,647,190
Project Description: Maternal and Child Health 

Services

CDFA Number: 93.994
CFDFA Name: MCH Title V Block Grant

Performance Period: 10/01/2019 - 09/30/2021
Aw arding Agency: DHHS/HRSA

PE42-12 MCAH Oregon Mothers Care Title V
Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number: 20-3893050

Federal Aw ard Date: 03/17/2020

Agency DUNS No.
Morrow 010741189

Amount Grand Total:
$8,455.00 $8,455.00

Research and Development (T/F): FALSE
PCA: TBD

Index: 50404

Total Federal Aw ard: TBD
Project Description: Immunization and 

Vaccines for Children
Aw arding Official: Elizabeth Sullivan
Indirect Cost Rate: 17.86%

Performance Period: 07/01/2020-06/30/2021
Aw arding Agency: HHS/CDC

CDFA Number: 93.268
CFDFA Name: Immunization Cooperative 

Agreements

PE43-01 Public Health Practice (PHP) - 
Immunization Services

Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number: NH23IP922626
Federal Aw ard Date: TBD

~ 

~ 

~ 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of2) 

(F orifOt: Use)
ltem # 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners 
(See notations at bottom of form) 

Presenter at BOC: Mike Gorman Phone Number (Ext): 5607 
Department: Assessment & Tax Requested Agenda Date: 6/24/20 
Short Title of Agenda Item: 

( o acronyms ph.:a e) Helion Software Contract Renewal 

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 
D Order or Resolution D Appointments 
D Ordinance/Public Hearing: D Update on Project/Committee 
D 1st Reading D 2nd Reading 00 Consent Agenda Eligible 
D Public Comment Anticipated: D Discussion & Action 

Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 
D Document Recording Required D Purchase Pre-Authorization 
00 Contract/ Agreement D Other 

D N/ A Purchase Prt-Aa1horizations, Contracts & Agreements 

Contractor/Entity: Helion Software, Inc 
Contractor/Entity Address: PO Box 3506 Salem, OR 97302 
Effective Dates - From: 7 /1 /20 Through: 6/30/21 
Total Contract Amount: $ 1,855 Budget Line: Io 1-103-5-20-3718 
Does the contract amount exceed $5 000? Ii] Yes D No 

Reviewed By: 

Justin Nelson 

Kate Kno~ 

6/11/20 Department Director Required for all BOC meetings 

dm inistrator Required for all BOC meetings 

6/12/20 County Counsel *Required for all legal documents 
DATE 

6/16/20 Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other 
DATE items as appropriate. 

Human Resources *If appropriate 
DATE *.\llow I week for review (suhmit to all .,imullancously). When each orticc has notilictl the suhmittinjl 

di;partmcn( of llUfll'OI al, l[/(11 ,uhmH th,• f'fOJll' )I lo thf BOC fnr nlacr11 u•1!1 Ill\ thg i!"\'!ll!a , 
Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals 
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. 

Rev: 3/30/20 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of2) 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY): 

Annual maintenance contract for our assessment and tax software. 

2. FISCAL IMPACT: 

Contract Amount $51,855 Budgeted Amount $70,000 

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S): 

Approve contract with Helion Software and authorize Mike Gorman to sign. 

~ Attach additional background documentation as needed. 

Rev: 3/30/20 



Mike Gorman 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Mike, 

Kate Knop 
Tuesday, June 16, 2020 3:47 PM 
Mike Gorman 
RE: Morrow contract 
W9 Helion Software.pdf 

It looks like Ramona signed it but missed adding the date. I can have Sa Brina follow up (she issues the 1099's). 

Kate Knop 
Finance Director 
Morrow County 
P.O. Box867 
Heppner, OR 97836 
541-676-5615 or x5302 
kknop@co.morrow.or.us 

From: Mike Gorman 
Sent: Tuesday, June 16, 2020 3:38 PM 
To: Kate Knop <kknop@co.morrow.or.us> 
Subject: RE: Morrow contract 

Ok thanks, do I need to get that from Helion? 

M ~ GOYWUM'\I 

Morrow Co-tM'\ty A»effO"Y/r~ CoUed:or 
100 Cat.Vt S"tYe.et" 
PO 1301t/ 2 If 7 
1-!e:ppn.er, ()'R, 67836 
5'1-1-6 76-5607 

From: Kate Knop 
Sent: Tuesday, June 16, 2020 3:24 PM 
To: Mike Gorman <mgorman@co.morrow.or.us> 
Subject: RE: Morrow contract 

Mike, 

I only saw one minor thing and that is the W-9 is not dated but we can follow up after the contract is approved. 

1 



Thank you, 

Kate Knop 
Finance Director 
Morrow County 
P.O. Box867 
Heppner, OR 97836 
541-676-5615 or x5302 
kkno @co.morrow.or.us 

From: Mike Gorman 
Sent: Monday, June 15, 2020 3:12 PM 
To: Kate Knop <kknop@co.morrow.or.us> 
Subject: FW: Morrow contract 

Kate, attached is our annual contract with Helion for software maintenance. Please review and get back to me, as I wish 
to have this contract on the agenda for next week. 

Thanks, 

M C/c.e,, GOYWUU'\.I 

Morrow Cou+'l.ty A~/T Cit1',' coUect-or 
100 CO'W"t S!Yeet 
PO 'Bc,,t,, 2 '+ 7 
H.~pvuw, O'R. 6 7836 
5'+1-676-5607 

From: Justin Nelson 
Sent: Friday, June 12, 2020 12:10 PM 
To: Mike Gorman <mgorman@co.morrow.or.us>; Richard Tovey <rtovey@co.morrow.or.us> 
Cc: Roberta Lutcher <rlutcher@co.morrow.or.us>; Darrell Green <dgreen@co.morrow.or.us> 
Subject: RE: Morrow contract 

I have reviewed the attached and do not have concerns. This is basically the same (besides slight increase in price) as 
the 2019-2020 version. 

-Justin 

Justin W. Nelson 
Morrow County District Attorney 

2 



Morrow County Counsel 
100 S. Court St. 
P.O. Box 664 
Heppner, OR 97836 
Office: (541) 676-5626 
Fax: (541) 676-5660 
Email: inelson@co. morrow. or. us 

From: Mike Gorman 
Sent: Friday, June 5, 2020 3:10 PM 
To: Justin Nelson <jne lson@co.morrow.or.us>; Richard Tovey <rtovey@co.morrow.or.us> 
Subject: FW: Morrow contract 

Justin/Rich, it is that time again for renewal of my contract with He lion. Helion is a sole source provider, so we need that 
documentation. 

THanks, 

M~Go-rmaw 
Morr-ow County A~/T et-,v Cdiled:o-r 
100 C01M"t St..-eet 
PO 'B0%12lf7 
Heppvi,er, O'R. 67836 
Slfl-6 76-5607 

From: Ramona Qualls <ramonaq@helionsoft.com> 
Sent: Friday, June 5, 2020 2:36 PM 
To: Mike Gorman <mgor111an@co.morrow.or.us> 
Subject: Morrow contract 

STOP and VERIFY - This message came from outside of Morrow County Government. 

Hi Mike, 

Here is the signed 2020-2021 Contract. 
Have a great weekend! 

Ramona 

Ramona Qualls I CFO 

bi ramonaq@hell onsoft.com 

·~ 503.930.7071 (direct) 

~ 503.362.9394 (office) 

~ 503.584.0608 (fax) 
www.helionsoftware.com 

3 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

This contract is between Morrow County ("County") and Helion Software, Inc. ("Contractor"). County's 
supervising representative for this contract is the County Administrator or the Administrator's designee as 
noted in Paragraph 21 , Notices. County and Contractor agree to the following: 

1. Effective Date and Duration . This contract shall become effective on the date it has been signed by 
every party and when required, approved by the Morrow County Board of Commissioners , and once 
approved has an effective date starting July 1, 2020. Unless extended or earlier terminated , this contract 
shall expire when County has accepted Contractor's completed performance or on June 30, 2021, 
whichever date occurs last. However, expiration or termination shall not extinguish or prejudice County's 
right to enforce this contract with respect to: (a) any breach of Contractor warranty or indemnity; or (b) any 
default or defect in Contractor performance that has not been cured. 

2. Statement of Work. The County and Contractor intend to contract for Assessment and Taxation 
Computer Software Services. Contractor shall perform the work ("Work") as set forth in the Statement of 
Work and these terms and conditions. The Statement of Work, including the delivery schedule for the 
Work, is contained in the attached Exhibit A. 

3. Consideration. 
(a) The maximum, not-to-exceed compensation payable to Contractor under this Contract, which includes 
any allowable expenses, is $51,855 payable according to Exhibit A. County will not pay Contractor any 
amount in excess of the not-to-exceed compensation for completing the Work, and will not pay for Work 
performed before the date this Contract becomes effective or after the termination of this Contract. If the 
maximum compensation is increased by amendment of this Contract, the amendment must be fully 
effective before Contractor performs Work subject to the amendment. 

(b) All interim payments to Contractor shall be made only in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
this contract. Unless another schedule is stated in Exhibit A, the Statement of Work, Contractor shall 
submit monthly invoices to County for Work performed. 

(c) Invoices shall describe all Work performed with particularity and by whom it was performed and shall 
itemize and explain all expenses that this Contract requires County to pay and for which Contractor 
claims reimbursement. Each invoice also shall include the total amount invoiced to date by Contractor 
prior to the current invoice. Contractor will specifically note in the appropriate invoice when it has 
requested payment for one-third and two-thirds of the maximum, not-to-exceed compensation. Contractor 
shall send invoices to the person designated in Paragraph 21, Notices. 

4. Travel and Other Expenses. Travel and other expenses of the Contractor shall not be reimbursed by 
the County. 

5. Independent Contractor; Responsibility for Taxes and Withholding; Retirement System Status. 
(a) Contractor shall perform all Work as an independent contractor. Although the County reserves the 
right (i) to determine (and modify) the delivery schedule for the Work and (ii) to evaluate the quality of the 
completed performance, the County cannot and will not control the means or manner of the Contractor's 
performance. The Contractor is responsible for determining the appropriate means and manner of 
performing the Work. 

(b) If Contractor is currently performing work for the State of Oregon or the federal government, Contractor 
by signature to this Contract, represents and warrants that: Contractor's Work to be performed under this 
Contract creates no potential or actual conflict of interest as defined by ORS 244 and no statutes, rules or 
regulations of the state or federal agency for which Contractor currently performs work would prohibit 
Contractor's Work under this Contract. 

(c) Contractor is not an "officer," "employee" or "agent" of the County, as those terms are used in ORS 
30.265. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

Page 1 of 17 



(d) Contractor shall be responsible for all federal or state taxes applicable to compensation or payments 
paid to Contractor under this Contract and, unless Contractor is subject to backup withholding, County will 
not withhold from such compensation or payments any amount(s) to cover Contractor's federal or state tax 
obligations. Contractor is not eligible for any social security, unemployment insurance or workers' 
compensation benefits from compensation or payments paid to Contractor under this Contract, except as a 
self-employed individual. 

6. Subcontracts and Assignment; Successors in Interest. Contractor shall not enter into any 
subcontracts for any of the Work, and shall not assign, delegate or transfer any of its rights or obligations 
under this Contract without County's prior written consent. The provisions of this contract shall be binding 
upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, and their respective successors and assigns, if 
any. 

7. No Third Party Beneficiaries. County and Contractor are the only parties to this contract and are the 
only parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this contract gives, is intended to give, or shall be 
construed to give or provide any benefit or right not held by or made generally available to the public, 
whether directly, indirectly or otherwise, to third persons unless such third persons are individually 
identified by name herein and expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of this contract. 

8. Funds Available and Authorized. County has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for 
expenditure to finance the costs of this contract within the County's current annual budget. Contractor 
understands and agrees that County's payment of amounts under this contract attributable to work 
performed is contingent on County budgetary limitations and other expenditure authority sufficient to allow 
County, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative discretion, to continue to make payments under 
this contract. County may terminate this contract without penalty or liability to County, effective upon the 
delivery of written notice to Contractor, with no further liability if County determines that there are 
insufficient funds available to make payments under this contract. 

9. Representations and Warranties. Contractor represents and warrants to County that (a) Contractor 
has the power and authority to enter into and perform this Contract, (b) this Contract, when executed and 
delivered, shall be a valid and binding obligation of Contractor enforceable in accordance with its terms, 
(c) Contractor has the skill and knowledge possessed by well-informed members of its industry, trade or 
profession and Contractor will apply that skill and knowledge with care and diligence to perform the Work 
in a professional manner and in accordance with standards prevalent in Contractor's industry, trade or 
profession, and (d) Contractor shall, at all times during the term of this Contract, be qualified, 
professionally competent, and duly licensed to perform the work. The warranties set forth in this section 
are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other warranties provided. 

10. Default; Remedies; Tennlnation. 
(a} Default by Contractor. Contractor shall be in default under this Contract if: 

(i} Contractor institutes or has instituted against it insolvency, receivership or bankruptcy proceedings, 
makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or ceases doing business on a regular basis; or 
(ii} Contractor no longer holds a license or certificate that is required for Contractor to perform its 
obligations under the Contract and Contractor has not obtained such license or certificate within 
fourteen (14) calendar days after County's notice or such longer period as County may specify in 
such notice; or 
(iii} Contractor commits any material breach or default of any covenant, warranty, obligation or 
agreement under this Contract, fails to perform the Work under this Contract within the time specified 
herein or any extension thereof, or so fails to pursue the Work as to endanger Contractor's 
performance under this Contract in accordance with its terms, and such breach, default or failure is 
not cured within fourteen (14} calendar days after County's notice, or such longer period as County 
may specify in such notice. 

(b) County's Remedies for Contractor's Default. In the event Contractor is in default under Section 
1 O.a, County may, at its option, pursue any or all of the remedies available to it under this Contract and at 
law or in equity, including, but not limited to: 

(i} termination of this Contract under Section 1 Oe(ii} ; 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

Page 2 of 17 



(ii) withholding all monies due for Work and Work Products that Contractor has failed to deliver within 
any scheduled completion dates or has performed inadequately or defectively; 
(iii) initiation of an action or proceeding for damages, specific performance, or declaratory or 
injunctive relief; 
(iv) exercise of its right of setoff. 

These remedies are cumulative to the extent the remedies are not inconsistent, and County may pursue 
any remedy or remedies singly, collectively, successively or in any order whatsoever. If a court 
determines that Contractor was not in default under Sections 1 0a, then Contractor shall be entitled to the 
same remedies as if this Contract was terminated pursuant to Section 1 0e(i) . 

(c) Default by County. County shall be in default under this Contract if: 
(i) County fails to pay Contractor any amount pursuant to the terms of this Contract, and County fails 
to cure such failure within thirty (30) calendar days after Contractor's notice or such longer period as 
Contractor may specify in such notice; or 
(ii) County commits any material breach or default of any covenant, warranty, or obligation under this 
Contract, and such breach or default is not cured within thirty (30) calendar days after Contractor's 
notice or such longer period as Contractor may specify in such notice. 

(d) Contractor's Remedies for County's Default. In the event County terminates the Contract under 
Section 1 Oe(i), or in the event County is in default under Section 1 0c and whether or not Contractor elects 
to exercise its right to terminate the Contract under Section 1 0e(iii), Contractor's sole monetary remedy 
shall be (a) with respect to services compensable on an hourly basis, a claim for unpaid invoices, hours 
worked within any limits set forth in this Contract but not yet billed, authorized expenses incurred, and (b) 
with respect to deliverable-based Work, a claim for the sum designated for completing the deliverable 
multiplied by the percentage of Work completed and accepted by County, less previous amounts paid and 
any claim(s) that Count has against Contractor. In no event shall County be liable to Contractor for any 
expenses related to termination of this Contract or for anticipated profits. If previous amounts paid to 
Contractor exceed the amount due to Contractor under this Section 1 0d, Contractor shall pay immediately 
any excess to County upon written demand. 

(e) Termination. 
(i) County's Right to Terminate at its Discretion. At its sole discretion, County may terminate this 
Contract: 

(A) For its convenience upon thirty (30) days' prior written notice by County to Contractor; 
(B) Immediately upon written notice if County fails to receive funding, appropriations, 
limitations, allotments or other expenditure authority at levels sufficient to pay for the Work or 
Work Products; or 
(C) Immediately upon written notice if federal or state laws, regulations, or guidelines are 
modified or interpreted in such a way that the County's purchase of the Work or Work 
Products under this Contract is prohibited or County is prohibited from paying for such Work 
or Work Products from the planned funding source. 

(ii) County's Right to Terminate for Cause. In addition to any other rights and remedies County 
may have under this Contract, County may terminate this Contract immediately upon written notice by 
County to Contractor, or at such later date as County may establish in such notice, or upon expiration 
of the time period and with such notice as provided in Section 1 Oe(ii)(B) and 1 0e(ii)(C) below, upon 
the occurrence of any of the following events: 

(A) Contractor is in default under Section 1 0a(i) because Contractor institutes or has 
instituted against it insolvency, receivership or bankruptcy proceedings, makes an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or ceases doing business on a regular basis; 
(B) Contractor is in default under Section 1 0a(ii) because Contractor no longer holds a 
license or certificate that is required for it to perform services under the Contract and 
Contractor has not obtained such license or certificate within fourteen (14) calendar days 
after County's notice or such longer period as County may specify in such notice; or 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

Page 3 of 17 



{C) Contractor is in default under Section 1 0a(iii) because Contractor commits any material 
breach or default of any covenant, warranty, obligation or agreement under this Contract, fails 
to perform the Work under this Contract within the time specified herein or any extension 
thereof, or so fails to pursue the Work as to endanger Contractor's performance under this 
Contract in accordance with its terms, and such breach, default or failure is not cured within 
fourteen {14) calendar days after County's notice, or such longer period as County may 
specify in such notice. 

{iii) Contractor's Right to Tenninate for Cause. Contractor may terminate this Contract with such 
written notice to County as provided in Sections 1 0e{iii){A) and 1 0e{iii){B) below, or at such later date 
as Contractor may establish in such notice, upon the occurrence of the following events: 

{A) County is in default under Section 1 0c{i) because County fails to pay Contractor any 
amount pursuant to the terms of this Contract, and County fails to cure such failure within 
thirty {30) calendar days after Contractor's notice or such longer period as Contractor may 
specify in such notice; or 
{B) County is in default under Section 1 0c{ii) because County commits any material breach or 
default of any covenant, warranty, or obligation under this Contract, fails to perform its 
commitments hereunder within the time specified or any extension thereof, and County fails 
to cure such failure within thirty (30) calendar days after Contractor's notice or such longer 
period as Contractor may specify in such notice. 

(iv) Return of Property. Upon termination of this Contract for any reason whatsoever, Contractor 
shall immediately deliver to County all of County's property (including without limitation any Work or 
Work Products for which County has made payment in whole or in part) that is in the possession or 
under the control of Contractor in whatever stage of development and form of recordation such 
County property is expressed or embodied at that time. Upon receiving a notice of termination of this 
Contract, Contractor shall immediately cease all activities under this Contract, unless County expressly 
directs otherwise in such notice of termination. Upon County's request, Contractor shall surrender to 
anyone County designates, all documents, research or objects or other tangible things needed to 
complete the Work and the Work Products. 

11. Records Maintenance; Access. Contractor shall maintain all financial records relating to this 
contract in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, Contractor shall 
maintain any other records pertinent to this contract in such a manner as to clearly document Contractor's 
performance. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that County and their duly authorized representative 
shall have access to such financial records and to all other books, documents, papers, plans and writings 
of Contractor that are pertinent to this contract for the purpose of performing examinations and audits, 
and making excerpts and transcripts. All such financial records, books, documents, papers, plans, and 
writings shall be retained by Contractor and kept accessible for a minimum of 6 years, except as required 
longer by law, following final payment and termination of this contract, or until the conclusion of any audit, 
controversy or litigation arising out of or related to this contract, whichever date is later. 

12. Compliance with Applicable Law. Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, 
regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Contract. Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing, Contractor expressly agrees to comply with the following laws, regulations and executive 
orders to the extent they are applicable to the Contract: (a) Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, as amended; (b) Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; (c) the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended; (d) Executive Order 11246, as amended; {e) the 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996; (f) the Age Discrimination in Employment Act 
of 1967, as amended, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended; (g) the Vietnam Era 
Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended; (h) ORS Chapter 659, as amended; (i) all 
regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and U) all other applicable 
requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations. These laws, 
regulations and executive orders are incorporated by reference herein to the extent that they are 
applicable to the Contract and required by law to be so incorporated. County's performance under the 
Contract is conditioned upon Contractor's compliance with the provisions of ORS 279B.220, 279B.225, 
279B.230 and 279B.235 which are incorporated by reference herein. 

13. Foreign Contractor. If the Contractor is not domiciled in or registered to do business in the State of 
Oregon, Contractor shall promptly provide to the Oregon Department of Revenue and the Secretary of 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

Page 4 of 17 



State Corporation Division all information required by those agencies relative to this Contract. The 
Contractor shall demonstrate its legal capacity to perform these services in the State of Oregon prior to 
entering into this contract. 

14. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue. This contract shall be governed and construed in accordance 
with the laws of Morrow County and the State of Oregon without resort to any jurisdiction's conflict of laws 
rules or doctrines. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "claim") between the County and the 
Contractor that arises from or relates to this contract shall be brought and conducted solely and 
exclusively within the Circuit Court of Morrow County for the State of Oregon. Provided, however, if the 
claim must be brought in a federal forum, then it shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively 
with the United States District Court for the District of Oregon. Contractor by the signature below of its 
authorized representative, hereby consents to the in personam jurisdiction of said courts. 

15. Indemnity. Contractor shall defend (with legal counsel of County's choice), save, hold harmless, and 
indemnify the Morrow County its officers, employees, agents, and members, from all claims, suits, losses, 
damages, liabilities, costs, expenses or actions, of any nature whatsoever resulting from, arising out of or 
relating to the activities of Contractor or its officers, employees, subcontractors, or agents under this 
contract. 

16. Insurance. Contractor shall provide insurance as indicated on Exhibit C, attached hereto and 
incorporated by this reference. 

17. Ownership of Work Product. All work of Contractor that results from this Contract (the "Work 
Product") is covered under the ORCATS Consortium contract. 

18. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared to be illegal or in conflict with any 
law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected and the rights and obligations 
of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular term or 
provision held to be invalid. 

19. Waiver. The failure of the County to enforce any provision of this contract shall not constitute a 
waiver by the County of that or any other provision. 

20. Amendments. County may amend this Contract to the extent permitted by applicable statutes, 
administrative rule, and as provided in the solicitation documents, if any. The terms of this contract shall 
not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever, except by written 
instrument signed by the parties. 

21. Notices. All notices to the respective parties shall either be personally delivered or sent certified mail 
to the following addresses: 

Morrow County 
Mike Gorman 
Tax and Assessment 
PO Box247 
Heppner, OR 97836 
phone: 541-676-5607 

Helion Software, Inc. 
Murray Giesbrecht 
P.O. Box 3506 
Salem, OR 97302 

phone: 503.362.9394 

22. Survival. All rights and obligations shall cease upon termination or expiration of this Contract, 
except those rights and obligations set forth in Sections 1, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 , 14, 15, 16, 17, 19, 22, 24 and 
25. 

23. Time Is of the Essence. Contractor agrees that time is of the essence under this Contract. 

24. Force Majeure. Neither County nor Contractor shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by 
fire, riot, acts of God, terrorist acts, or other acts of political sabotage, or war where such cause was beyond 
the reasonable control of County or Contractor, respectively. Contractor shall, however, make all reasonable 
efforts to remove or eliminate such a cause of delay or default and shall, upon the cessation of the cause, 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

Page 5 of 17 



diligently pursue performance of its obligations under this Contract. 

25. Attorney Fees. In the event of a dispute between Contractor and County, each shall pay his or her 
own attorney fees. Attorney fees are not recoverable from the other party. 

26. Contractor Certification. Contractor, by execution of this Contract, acknowledges that s/he has 
read this Contract, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions. Contractor shall 
complete the full certification attached and incorporated as Exhibit B. 

IT IS SO AGREED: 

Morrow County 
Date Murray Giesbrecht 

Helion Software, Inc. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

Date 

Page 6 of 17 



Exhibit A: Statement of Work 

STATEMENT OF WORK, COMPENSATION 
PAYMENT TERMS and SCHEDULE 

Section 1. Contractor's Services 
Contractor's services are divided into TWO parts: 
Part 1 - ORCA TS Base and Support is for staff support per the agreement with the 
ORCATS consortium. Helion will work on and complete property assessment and tax 
projects and Support as described below in Section 2. Service Level Agreement. 

Part 2 - Discretionary Support Hours for a maximum of O hours (at $140.00/hour) of 
offsite/onsite staff for ORCATS support and program development for Morrow. 

Estimates or Fix Bid Quotes will be provided upon County request for work performed 
under Part 2. 
Work will be billed monthly. 
For those projects that require less than 20 hours to complete Helion will notify Morrow 
County and after authorization will work on them. These will be "not to exceed" projects 
and Morrow County will not be responsible for any hours over 20. 
For development projects that will require more than 20 hours to complete (or if Morrow 
County requests), Helion and Morrow County (and other consortium members) will work 
together to create a set of project requirements. Helion will then develop a fixed quote 
for the number of hours to complete the project. Helion will begin work on the project 
after Morrow County (and, if applicable, other consortium members) approve the quote. 
Project requirements should be sufficiently detailed to identify the deliverables, the cost 
in hours, and the timeframe for completion. The time required to develop the 
requirements will be charged directly against the Part 2 - Programming/Discretionary 
Support hours. The project requirements will include a project timeline indicating which 
tasks are the responsibility of Helion and which tasks are the responsibilities of the 
County(s). 
Upon using the software in production, programming bugs (any programming 
functionality that does not perform to specification) as identified by Morrow County (or 
other consortium members) within 45 days or within a specified project timeline as 
established by mutual agreement between the Contractor and the County will be will be 
considered part of the original quote. Identification of a bug does not extend the 
acceptance period. 
Any changes to requirements as agreed between Helion and Morrow County may cause 
an adjustment to the original quote. All Helion staff will be under the direct management 
of Helion and would be required to follow all of Helion's procedures and policies. Helion 
is in the process of developing these policies and procedures and will provide Morrow 
County a copy of those that are relevant to the work described in this contract as they 
become available or change. Helion will work on whatever Morrow County requested as 
long as it is within those policies and procedures. Typical uses would be programming 
projects unique to Morrow County (or groups of consortium members) and additional 
programming on projects of special interest to Morrow County (or groups of consortium 
members). 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

Page 7 of 17 



Additional 150 hour blocks of time may be purchased throughout the year given 60 days 
notice. Helion will give a good faith effort to provide the additional requested hours in as 
few a days as possible. 
The Contractor shall provide the County with monthly reports on hours of service by 
project and by description. Should multiple counties be paying for the program 
development, the service hour reports should include all hours assessed to the project 
for all of the involved counties. 

Section 2. Service Level Agreement 

1. Supported Software and Maintenance 

1.01 Supported Software: Unless stated otherwise, Helion will provide support for all 
software listed below: 

Helion Start Menu 
Deployer 
Account Manager 
Real Value Voucher 
Ratio Study 
Real Land Schedules 
Real Sales 
Trend Finder 
Real Librarian 
Real Value Indexes 
Real Value Recalc 
MS Ledger Voucher 
Personal Vouchers 
Utility Ledger Voucher 
Utility Values 
Utility Input 
Address Parser 
Appraisal Maintenance 
Appraisal Reports 
Assessor Reports 
Name Parser 
Lookup Table Maintenance 
Name Parser 
Property Query 
Web Property Query 
Custom Query 
Image Processing 
ORCATS Integration Services 
File Service 
Data Exchange 
Interested Party 
Lender Code Maintenance 
Tax Notation Maintenance 
Tax Receipts 
Tax Reports 
Tax Voucher 
Turnover Distribution 
Tax Receipt Image Loader 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BElWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFlWARE, INC. 

Page 8 of 17 



Tax Balance Service 
Prepaid Tax Processing 
Tax Rate Calculation 
Tax Amount Calculation 
Tax District Adjustments 
Tax Statements 
Assessment and Tax Database Views 

1.02 Maintenance shall include providing County with new releases, updates, and 
corrections to the Software, including the Software documentation. Maintenance 
shall also include necessary assistance and consultation to assist County in 
resolving problems with the use of the Software including the verification, diagnosis 
and correction of errors and defects in the Software. Maintenance shall include 
third party software bundled with the ORCA TS system, as well as updates to 
documentation. 

1.03 Helion shall correct any defect or error or non-conformity comprising a problem by, 
among other things, supplying to County and installing such corrective codes and 
making such additions, modifications or adjustments to the Software as may be 
necessary to keep the Software in operating order and in conformity with the 
warranties contained in this Agreement. 

The corrective services provided by Helion may include: 

• Providing a resolution to the problem immediately; or 

• Providing documented clear steps that county staff can reasonably take to 
correct the problem; or 

• Following analysis, providing documented clear steps toward problem 
resolution; or 

• Performing configuration changes to the Helion software; or 

• Modifying corrupt data caused by a defect in the software. 

1.04 Helion will provide support for modifications or specialized features made at the 
request of the County and performed by Helion. 

1.05 All modifications or specialized features made at the request of the County and 
performed by Helion will be ported to and supported in all future versions and 
releases of the Software unless authorized in writing from the County. 

1.06 Any changes to comply with legal requirements will be performed under Section 1, 
Part 1. 

1.07 Helion will assist County with the following Data Manipulation either directly or by 
providing an application so the County can perform the tasks themselves: 

• Changing a value from Entered to Calculated or Calculated to Entered at the 
following levels: 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

Page 9 of 17 



o Improvement 

o Accessories 

o Floor 

o Inventory 

o Land Fragment 

o OSD 

• Changing a Neighborhood Code 

• Changing an Improvement, Land Fragment or OSD from Trendable to Non
Trendable or Non-Trendable to Trendable 

• Change one RMV class to another 

• Bulk load LCM Schedules 

Selection will be by either a County selected set of Neighborhood Codes or by a 
County selected set of Property Account Id's. The Property Account Id's must be in 
a CR/LF delimited text file. (Map and Taxlots are not considered Property 
Account Id's.) 

2.00 Database Maintenance 

2.01 Helion will provide on-going consulting on procedures for the backup and restoration 
of all databases required to run the ORCATS software. 

2.02 Helion will consult with the County technical staff as needed on the status of all 
databases required to run the ORCATS software and ensure that all database 
indexes and database features are configured appropriately to ensure the proper 
functioning of all Helion supported software. 

2.03 If requested, Helion will ensure that database backups are performed prior to any 
modification to the database structure and/or schema as part the implementation of 
new ORCATS software through new version release or problem resolution. 

2.04 Helion will perform all database repair and recovery due to database corruption, 
malfunction, or inconsistency brought about by implementation of new ORCATS 
software through new version release or problem resolution, by defects in or 
improper functioning of the client software, or by third party software used within 
any Helion supported software. 

2.05 The obligations described in Sections 1.00 through 2.05 are hereafter referred to as 
"Maintenance." 

3.00 Response Times and System Access 

3.01 Unless visit was requested by the County, Helion will provide the County IT Division 
with 2 days notice prior to performing a site visit to perform software upgrades or 
modifications to the database or the client software. 

3.02 County shall notify Helion, either by telephone or in writing or email, of any 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

Page 10 of 17 



deficiency and shall provide any other information that Helion may reasonably 
request in determining the nature of the deficiency. Helion shall commence 
correction of such deficiency in accordance with this section. Helion will provide 
problem resolution through telephone, electronic, remote and onsite assistance to 
the County designated representatives. Resolving the problem may include the initial 
contact and any subsequent contact and actions necessary to address the initial 
issue for the County. Helion will provide the County with a local telephone or toll
free telephone number, an email address, and a designated point of contact to 
receive calls or e-mails for trouble reports. The County shall designate authorized 
callers (who may change from time to time) for access to the telephone support. 

3.03 The County agrees to provide Helion with VPN access or through other secure 
electronic access technology and services at the County's expense for purposes of 
Helion's fulfillment of its maintenance obligations. Such access shall not result in the 
unnecessary or unreasonable disruption of the County's business operations. 

3.04 Helion will respond to system problems that do not prevent normal daily operation of 
the system (Non- Emergency Response) within 16 business hours of the receipt of 
the trouble call. 

3.05 On-Site Support. In an emergency or if all other support options fail, Helion shall 
have a technician on-site within one (1) business day of a request from the County. 
This does not apply to Down System events, as described in Section 3.06. 

3.06 Down-System Response: The system is considered "down" when any part of the 
system prevents daily operation ("Down System"). Helion shall respond within two 
business hours of telephone notification. Response may be by telephone. 

3.07 Normal Support Hours: At all times from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 pm Pacific Standard 
Time (PST) (note: Pacific Daylight Saving Time (POST) when in effect) weekdays. 
The hours of Support shall not include New Year's Day, Memorial Day, 
Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving, and Christmas Day. 

3.08 Helion will provide Tax Season assistance to ensure the timely completion of tax 
amount calculation, statement printing and state reporting . 

3.09 Helion will provide support for and is solely responsible for the proper functioning, 
licensing and distribution of additional or third party software used within their 
products or distributed with their products as a component of their software. Helion 
guarantees the functioning of this third party software as a component of their 
software. 

3.1 O Helion is not liable for any failure or delay in performance due to any cause beyond 
its control. 

3.11 The obligations described in Sections 3.00 through 3.11 are hereafter referred to as 
"Support." 

4.00 County's Responsibilities 

4.01 To receive Maintenance and Support, the County is responsible for complying with 
the following: 

• The situation giving rise to the question is reproducible or a documented history 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BElWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFlWARE, INC. 

Page 11 of 17 



of the same event has been provided; 

• The hardware and client workstation operating systems meet minimum Helion 
requirements as published and distributed with each ORCATS version update; 

• County designated representatives will submit all questions to Helion; 

• County designated representatives must have knowledge regarding the facts and 
circumstances surrounding the incident; 

• The full system, including software and hardware, is available to the County 
representative and accessible by him or her without limit during any telephone 
discussions with Helion support personnel; 

• The County representative will follow the instructions and suggestions of Helion's 
support personnel, using the full system. 

4.02 County will provide remote electronic access using VPN access through Internet 
connection (this is the preferred method) or will provide remote electronic access 
using other technologies and services that meet County's security requirements. 

4.03 Helion must have received payment per this Agreement, Section 3, Paragraph 2. 

4.04 If the resolution of a problem requires the installation of a newer version of the 
product, the County agrees that Helion may install the new version as part of the 
resolution process, depending upon the urgency of the problem resolution. 

5.00 Services NOT Covered by Helion Under Part 1 

5.01 Helion is not responsible for support in instances in which the County has made 
significant changes to the computing environment without consultation with Helion or 
in which the County has made significant client workstation configuration changes, 
such as Operating System version updates or Microsoft Office version updates, 
without consultation with Helion. 

5.02 Helion is not responsible for remote or on-site training assistance unless specifically 
arranged through a separate services contract with Helion. 

5. 03 Helion is not responsible for software support on any products that are not part of 
the ORCATS system. Examples include Deschutes Download, County's web sites, 
Microsoft Office, etc. 

5.04 The following services are excluded from coverage under Part 1: 

• Creation of new Custom Queries 

• Importing data or images 

• Manipulation of data unless covered under section 1.03 or 1.07 above 

• Display changes to forms, reports, letters or export 

• Onsite Installation 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

Page 12 of 17 



• A& T View Access Database 

5.05 Helion is not responsible to maintain compatibility with any application not listed as 
part of the ORCATS system. Helion will make a good faith effort to notify the County 
of any incompatibility between ORCA TS and third party software. 

Section 3 Schedule and Payment Terms 
1. Effective Date and Duration: Contractor's services will begin on July 1, 2020. 

Unless earlier terminated or extended, this contract shall expire on June 30, 2021 or 
when Contractor's completed performance has been accepted by County. However, 
such expiration shall not extinguish or prejudice County's right to enforce this contract 
with respect to: (a) any breach of a Contractor warranty; or (b) any default or defect in 
Contractor's performance that has not been cured. 

2. Compensation by the County: Payment for all work performed under this contract 
shall be made as set forth below from available and authorized County funds, and shall 
not exceed the maximum sum of $51,855 for Part 1 and $0 for Part 2, $51,855 in Total. 
Travel and other expenses of the Contractor shall not be reimbursed by County unless 
specifically provided herein as a supplementary condition. 

1. Interim payments shall be made to Contractor following County's review and 
approval of billings submitted by Contractor. Contractor will also submit copies of 
other billings for work performed under the contract when such bills are to be paid by 
other parties. These other billings are not subject to the maximum compensation 
amount of this contract. 

2. Contractor shall not submit billings for, and County will not pay, any amount in 
excess of the maximum compensation amount of this contract, including any travel 
and other expense when noted below. If the maximum compensation amount is 
increased by amendment of this contract, the amendment must be fully effective 
before Contractor performs work subject to the amendment. Contractor shall notify 
County's supervising representative in writing 30 calendar days before this contract 
expires of the upcoming expiration of the contract. No payment will be made for any 
services performed before the beginning date or after the expiration date of this 
contract. This contract will not be amended after the expiration date. 

3. Contractor shall submit a separate annual billing for Part 1. Billing for Part 1 will be 
for the contract total for Part 1. Billing for Part 2 will be based upon projects 
identified. Projects done as "not to exceed" quotes and requirement development 
will be billed monthly as they occur. Contractor will bill monthly for other Part 2 
hours as they occur. Payment structure may be adjusted with advance consent of 
County and Contractor. Billings shall be sent to the supervising representative. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BElWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFlWARE, INC. 

Page 13 of 17 



STATUTORY PUBLIC 
CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

1. Contractor shall pay promptly, as due, all persons supplying labor or materials for 
the prosecution of the work provided for in the contract, and shall be responsible for 
such payment of all persons supplying such labor or material to any subcontractor. If 
Contractor fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt payment of any claim for labor 
or materials furnished to the contractor or a subcontractor by any person in 
connection with the contract as such claim becomes due, the Owner may pay such 
claim to the persons furnishing the labor or materials and charge the amount of 
payment against funds due or to become due contractor by reason of the contract. 
The payment of a claim in the manner authorized hereby shall not relieve the 
contractor or his surety from his or its obligation with respect to any unpaid claim. If 
the owner is unable to determine the validity of any claim for labor or materials 
furnished, the owner may withhold from any current payment due contractor an 
amount equal to said claim until its validity is determined and the claim, if valid, is 
paid. 

2. Contractor shall promptly pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial 
Accident Fund from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of 
the contract, and shall be responsible that all sums due the State Unemployment 
Compensation Fund from contractor or any subcontractor in connection with the 
performance of the contract shall promptly be paid. 

3. Contractor shall not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the 
owner on account of any labor or materials furnished and agrees to assume 
responsibility for satisfaction of any such lien so filed or prosecuted. 

4. Contractor and any subcontractor shall pay to the Department of Revenue all sums 
withheld from employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

5. If this contract involves lawn and landscape maintenance, Contractor shall salvage, 
recycle, compost or mulch yard waste material at an approved site, if feasible and 
cost effective. 

6. Contractor shall promptly, as due, make payment to any person, co-partnership, 
association, or corporation furnishing medical surgical and hospital care or other 
needed care and attention, incident to sickness or injury, to employees of such 
contractor, of all sums which the contractor agrees to pay for such services and all 
monies and sums which the contractor collected or deducted from the wages of 
employees pursuant to any law, contract or Agreement for the purpose of providing 
or paying for such service. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

Page 14 of 17 



7. Contractor shall employ no person for more than ten (10) hours in any one day, or 
forty (40) in any one week, except in cases of necessity, emergency or where public 
policy absolutely requires it. 

Contractor's employees shall be paid at least time and a half for all overtime worked 
in excess of forty (40) hours in any one week, except for individuals under Personal 
Services Contracts who are excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or under 29 
USC 201 to 209 from receiving overtime. 

Persons employed by Contractor shall receive at least time and a half pay for work 
performed on legal holidays specified in a collective bargaining agreement or in ORS 
279C.540(1 )(b)(B) to (G) and for all time worked in excess of ten (10) hours in any 
one day or in excess of forty (40) hours in any one week, whichever is greater. 

8. The contractor must give notice to employees who work on this contract in writing, 
either at the time of hire or before commencement of work on the contract, or by 
posting a notice in a location frequented by employees, of the number of hours per 
day and the days per week that the employees may be required to work. 

9. All employers working under the contract are either subject employers who will 
comply with ORS 656.017 or employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126. 

10. The contract may be cancelled at the election of owner for any willful failure on the 
part of contractor to faithfully perform the contract according to its terms. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BElWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFlWARE, INC. 

Page 15 of 17 



Exhibit B: W-9 FORM 

F~m W•9 
(Rev . Nov~ 200S) 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification 

Give form lo the 
requester. Do not 
send lo the IRS. :,,,1,ut'T1,1,1,!-r,,, 4 1, ,,;-, 

f"'l'fflllll'lilll ... ~ ... .,,,,,,. 

Name (GS &hcwln on your incom., tAw. return) 

Che~ appropriate bo11.: LJ ::i:iflor [~J Corpornbon 

AddrMS (number, atreet~ and apt. or &Orte no) 

Crty, &tete, and ZIP code 

Taxpayer Iden tification Number (TIN) 

Enter your TIN In th<I oppropnate box. The TIN provided mutt match the name given on Line 1 to avoid : Social eecurily nwnber 
beci<cp withholding For individuals, tin is your social secl.l'ity number (SSN) However, for a restdent I ' t' 
nhen. sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other entities, it is - - ' ____ L __ 1": - -
your employer iden1ilication number (EIN). II you do not have a number, He How to get a TIN on page 3 or 
Note. It th& aecounr II in more than one na.-ne aee the ch.lrt on page 4 for guid.._nae on whose 
number to enter. 

'Employer identiflootion ,-Jmber 

+ I l 
ldlll ~~tiltcatlon __ 
Under penalties ol perjl.l'y, I certify that 
1. The number shown on lhis form lo my correct ta,cpayer identification number (or I am waiting la • number to be issued to me), and 

2. I am not sul)joet to ba<.kl4> withholding boeaU11e' ta) I am e,empt lrom backup withholding, or (b) I haee not b&6n notlfted by the Internal 
Revenue Se<vice tlRS) tllat I am subject to ba~ withholding as a reeut of • failure to repert all lntereot or di'Ji-. or (e) the IRS has 
notified me that I am no longer aubj&<rt to backup withholding, ond 

3 I am a U S. pe,son (lnciudng a U S rHident alien). 
CertltlcaUon lnatrucUomo. You mU11I aou out item 2 above ii you have been notified by the IRS that you are c...-entiy subject to backup 
withholding because you have laded to report all ntereol and dividend,, on your ta. return For real oetale trarniacLiono, item 2 doea nol apply 
For mortgage lntereot paid, ecquisl«on or abandonment ol secured property, c-,celatlon ol debt, contributions to an individual retirement 
arrangement (IRA), and generally. paymenta other than inlerest and divi-. you ore not required to sign the Certification, but you muat 
provide your carect TIN. (See the lno1ruciiont on page 4.) 

Sign 
Here 1 9-.,...01 

U.S..ptit11on • 
Purpose of Form 
A pel'!IOn who is required to file an information retum wtth the 
IRS, must obtain your correct taxpayer 1dent1fication number 
(TIN) lo report, for example, income paid to you, real estate 
transactions. mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or 
abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt. or 
conlribut10ns you made to an IRA. 

U.S. person. U!18 Form W-9 only if you are a U.S person 
(including a resident alien). to provide your correct TIN to the 
peraon requesting it (the requester) and, when applicable. lo 

1 Certify that the TIN you are giving ,s correct (or you are 
waiting for o number to be issued), 

2 Certify that you rue not subJ9Ct to backup withholding, or 
3 Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are o 

US exempt payee 
In 3 above, if applicable. you are also certifying lhlll as a 

U S person, your allocable shore of any partnership income 
from a U S trade or business is not subject to the 
withholding tax on foreign partn~· share of effectively 
connected income 
Note. If a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to 
requellt your TIN, you must U98 the requ89ter's form ii ~ i9 
substantially similar to this Form W-9. 

For ledernl tax purposes, you are considered 11 person if you 
are: 

• An individual who is a c~izen or resident of the United 
Stoles. 
• A partner~lup, corporation, company, or asooc1at10n 
creoted or organized in the Unttad States or under the laws 
of the United States, or 
• Any estate (other than a foreign estate) or trust See 
Regulat10ns sections 301. 7701-6(11) and 7(a) for additional 
information 

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a 
trade or business in the United Slates are generally required 
lo pay a withholding tax on any foreign partners' share of 
income lrom such business Further, in certain cases where a 
Form W-9 has not been received, a partnership is required lo 
presume that a partner is a foreign person, and pay the 
withholding tax Therefore, if you are a U S person that 1s a 
partner in a partn~h,p conducting a trade or business 1n the 
United States, provide Form W-9 to the partne19hip to 
establish your U S status and avoid withholding on your 
share of partnership income. 

The person who gilles Form W-9 to the partnership !or 
purposes of establishing its U S. status and ""oiding 
withholding on its allocable share of net income lrom the 
partner.,h,p conducting a trade or business in the United 
States is in the following coses 

• The U S owner of a disregarded entity and not the entity, 

Cot. No. 1023 IX Fo,m W-9 (Rev, 1 HIXJ6I 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BElWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFlWARE, INC. 

Page 16 of 17 



Exhibit C: INSURANCE 

During the term of this contract Contractor shall maintain in force at Contractor's own expense, each 
insurance noted below: 

1. Workers Compensation Insurance is required for Contractors that employ subject 
workers, as defined in ORS 656.027. All those Contractors shall comply with ORS 
656.017 and shall provide workers' compensation insurance coverage for those workers, 
unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2). Contractor 
shall require and ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with these requirements. 

2. Professional Liability Insurance: 

_ is not required . 
_x_ is required with a combined single limit or the equivalent, of not less than: 

_ $200,000 _$500,000 _x_ $1,000,000 _ $2,000,000 

for each claim, incident or occurrence. This is to cover damages caused by error, omission or 
negligent acts related to the services to be provided under this contract. 

3. General Liability Insurance: 

_ is not required . 
_x_ is required with a combined single limit or the equivalent, of not less than: 

_$200,000 _x_ $500,000 _ $1,000,000 _ $2,000,000 

for each claim, incident or occurrence. 

4. Automobile Liability Insurance: 

_ is not required. 
_x_ is required with a combined single limit or the equivalent, of not less than: 

_ Oregon Financial Responsibility Law (ORS 806.070) 
_$200,000 
_x_ $500,000 
_ $1,000,000 

each accident for Bodily Injury and Property Damage, including coverage for owned, hired or non
owned vehicles, as applicable. 

5. Notice of cancellation or change. There shall be no cancellation, material change, reduction of 
limits or intent not to renew the insurance coverage(s) without 30 days written notice from the 
Contractor or its insurer(s) to County. 

6. Certificates of insurance. As evidence of the insurance coverages required by this contract, the 
Contractor shall furnish acceptable insurance certificates to County within 30 days of signing this 
contract. The certificate will specify all of the parties who are Additional Insureds. Insuring 
companies or entities are subject to County acceptance. If requested, complete copies of insurance 
policies, trust agreements, etc. shall be provided to the County. The Contractor shall be financially 
responsible for all pertinent deductibles, self-insured retentions and/or self-insurance. 

REVISED 11/2007 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN 
MORROW COUNTY AND HELION SOFTWARE, INC. 

Page 17 of 17 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of2) 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners 
(See notations at bottom of form) 

Phone Number (Ext): Presenter at BOC: Darrell Green 
Department: Administration 
Short Title of Agenda Item: 

Requested Agenda Date: 6/24/2020 

{ o a<.:ronyms plea c) Coronavirus Relief Fund Grant Agreement 

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 
D Order or Resolution D Appointments 
D Ordinance/Public Hearing: D Update on Project/Committee 
D 1st Reading D 2nd Reading 00 Consent Agenda Eligible 
D Public Comment Anticipated: D Discussion & Action 

Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 
D Document Recording Required D Purchase Pre-Authorization 
D Contract/ Agreement D Other 

D N/ A Purchase Prt-AuUioriZlltion , Conlract & Agrcemcnls 

Contractor/Entity: Department of Administrative Services 
Contractor/Entity Address: 155 Cottage Street NE, Salem OR 9730 l 
Effective Dates - From: March l , 2020 Through: December 30, 2020 
Total Contract Amount: e t lo be in e c , of.$ 191,0.Q.Q Budget Line: Variou 
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? l.i Yes LJ No 

Reviewed By: 

Department Director Required for all BOC meetings 
DATE 

Darrell Green 6/23/2020 Administrator Required for all BOC meetings 
DATE 

County Counsel *Required for all legal documents 
DATE 

Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other 
DATE items as appropriate. 

Human Resources * If appropriate 
DATE *.\llnw I week for re,·iew (submit lo all simultaneously). When each orfice has nolifiell lhe suhmilling 

deoa rtm,:nt of ;rnorova). ther, suhmjt the request to tbr BOC ro r placement on th e age nda. 

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals 
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. 

Rev: 3/28/18 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of 2) 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY): 

The Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) Grant Agreement is the document that will govern the 
disbursement of funds from the CRF to Morrow County for the First Cost Period. 
By executing this document, the State will reimburse the qualifying expenses we submitted at the 
end of May and the expectation of future reimbursements. 

On page 2. section 4.2, the Agreement is asking for the Grantee Grant Manger. I am 
recommending our Finance Director, Kate Knop to be the Grantee Grant Manager as she is 
tracking our COVID-19 expenses, tracking reduction in revenues and tracking other COVID-19 
grant dollars coming into the County. 

2. FISCAL IMPACT: 

The current reimbursement request is for $192,236 

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S): 

Motion to approve Finance Director, Kate Knop as the Grant Manager and authorize the Chair to 
sign the agreement. 

~ Attach additional background documentation as needed. 

Rev: 3/28/18 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

STATE OF OREGON 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Grant No. 1025 

This Grant Agreement ("Grant") is between the State of Oregon acting by and through its 
Department of Administrative Services ("Agency") and Morrow County ("Grantee"), each a "Party" 
and, together, the "Parties". 

SECTION 1: AUTHORITY 

Pursuant to funding available under section 601(a) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 
5001 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), Agency is authorized 
to enter into a grant agreement and provide funding for the purposes described in this Grant. 

SECTION 2: PURPOSE 

Section 5001 of the CARES Act provides funds to state, local and tribal governments through the 
Coronavirus Relief Fund to be used for expenditures incurred due to COVID-19 during the period of 
March 1, 2020 through December 30, 2020. This Grant governs the disbursement of funds from the 
Coronavirus Relief Fund to Grantee for the First Cost Period, as that term is defined below. 

SECTION 3: EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION 

When all Parties have executed this Grant, and all necessary approvals have been obtained 
("Executed Date"), this Grant is effective and has a Grant funding start date as of March 1, 2020 
("Effective Date"), and, unless extended or terminated earlier in accordance with its terms, will 
expire on December 30, 2020. 

SECTION 4: GRANT MANAGERS 

4.1 Agency's Grant Manager is: 

Gerold Floyd 
Department of Administrative Services 
Attention: Coronavirus Relief Fund 
155 Cottage Street NE, Salem, OR 97301 
Phone: 503-378-2709 
Email: CoronavirusReliefFund@Oregon.gov 

DAS Grant vl, updated 20200513 Page 1 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025- Coronavirus Relief Fund 

4.2 Grantee's Grant Manager is: 

Name: _________________________ _ 

Address: _________________________ _ 

Phone: _________________________ _ 

Email: __________________________ _ 

4.3 A Party may designate a new Grant Manager by written notice to the other Party. 

SECTION 5: PROJECT ACTIVITIES 

Grantee must perform the project activities set forth in Exhibit A (the "Project"), attached hereto 
and incorporated in this Grant by this reference, for the period beginning on the Effective Date and 
ending on the expiration date set forth in Section 3 (the "Performance Period"). 

SECTION 6: GRANT FUNDS 

In accordance with the terms and conditions of this Grant, Agency will provide Grantee up to an 
amount not to exceed the amount of eligible costs for the Project incurred during the period March 
1, 2020, to May 15, 2020 (the "First Cost Period"). Agency will pay the Grant Funds from monies 
available through its Coronavirus Relief Fund ("Funding Source"). Future disbursements from the 
Funding Source for cost periods after the First Cost Period will require an amendment to this Grant 
pursuant to Section 19.3. 

SECTION 7: DISBURSEMENT GENERALLY 

7.1 Disbursement. 

7 .1.1 Subject to the availability of sufficient moneys in and from the Funding Source based on 
Agency's reasonable projections of moneys accruing to the Funding Source, Agency will 
disburse Grant Funds to Grantee for the allowable Project activities described in Exhibit A that 
are undertaken during the First Cost Period. 

7.1.2 Grantee must provide to Agency any information or detail regarding the expenditure of Grant 
Funds required under Exhibit A prior to disbursement or as Agency may request 

7.2 Conditions Precedent to Disbursement. Agency's obligation to disburse Grant Funds to Grantee 
under this Grant is subject to satisfaction of each of the following conditions precedent: 

7.2.1 Agency has received sufficient funding, appropriations, expenditure limitation, allotments or 
other necessary expenditure authorizations to allow Agency, in the exercise of its reasonable 
administrative discretion, to make the disbursement from the Funding Source; 

DAS Grantvl, updated 20200513 Page 2 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

7.2.2 No default as described in Section 15 has occurred; and 

7.2.3 Grantee's representations and warranties set forth in Section 8 are true and correct on the date 
of disbursement( s) with the same effect as though made on the date of disbursement. 

7.3 No Duplicate Payment. Grantee may use other funds in addition to the Grant Funds to complete 
the Project; provided, however, funds received pursuant to this Grant are not used for expenditures 
for which a local government entity has received any other supplemental funding (whether state, 
federal or private in nature) for that same expense unless otherwise authorized by Agency in 
writing. 

SECTION 8: REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

8.1 Organization/ Authority. Grantee represents and warrants to Agency that: 

8.1.1 Grantee is a local government or tribal government duly organized and validly existing; 

8.1.2 Grantee has all necessary rights, powers and authority under any organizational documents 
and under Oregon Law to (i) execute this Grant, (ii) incur and perform its obligations under this 
Grant, and (iii) receive financing, including the Grant Funds, for the Project; 

8.1.3 This Grant has been duly executed by Grantee and when executed by Agency, constitutes a legal, 
valid and binding obligation of Grantee enforceable in accordance with its terms; 

8.1.4 If applicable and necessary, the execution and delivery of this Grant by Grantee has been 
authorized by an ordinance, order or resolution of its governing body, or voter approval, that 
was adopted in accordance with applicable law and requirements for filing public notices and 
holding public meetings; and 

8.1.5 There is no proceeding pending or threatened against Grantee before any court or 
governmental authority that if adversely determined would materially adversely affect the 
Project or the ability of Grantee to carry out the Project. 

8.2 False Claims Act. Grantee acknowledges the Oregon False Claims Act, ORS 180.750 to 180.785, 
applies to any "claim" (as defined by ORS 180.750) made by (or caused by) Grantee that pertains 
to this Grant or to the Project. Grantee certifies that no claim described in the previous sentence is 
or will be a "false claim" (as defined by ORS 180.750) or an act prohibited by ORS 180.755. Grantee 
further acknowledges in addition to the remedies under Section 16, if it makes (or causes to be 
made) a false claim or performs ( or causes to be performed) an act prohibited under the Oregon 
False Claims Act, the Oregon Attorney General may enforce the liabilities and penalties provided by 
the Oregon False Claims Act against the Grantee. 

8.3 No limitation. The representations and warranties set forth in this Section are in addition to, and 
not in lieu of, any other representations or warranties provided by Grantee. 

SECTION 9: OWNERSHIP 

DAS Grant vl, updated 20200513 Page 3 of21 



.. 

DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

9.1 Intellectual Property Definitions. As used in this Section and elsewhere in this Grant, the 
following terms have the meanings set forth below: 

"Third Party Intellectual Property" means any intellectual property owned by parties other 
than Grantee or Agency. 

"Work Product" means every invention, discovery, work of authorship, trade secret or other 
tangible or intangible item Grantee is required to create or deliver as part of the Project, and 
all intellectual property rights therein . 

9.2 Grantee Ownership. Grantee must deliver copies of all Work Product as directed in Exhibit A 
Grantee retains ownership of all Work Product, and grants Agency an irrevocable, non-exclusive, 
perpetual, royalty-free license to use, to reproduce, to prepare derivative works based upon, to 
distribute, to perform and to display the Work Product, to authorize others to do the same on 
Agency's behalf, and to sublicense the Work Product to other entities without restriction. 

9.3 Third Party Ownership. If the Work Product created by Grantee under this Grant is a derivative 
work based on Third Party Intellectual Property, or is a compilation that includes Third Party 
Intellectual Property, Grantee must secure an irrevocable, non-exclusive, perpetual, royalty-free 
license allowing Agency and other entities the same rights listed above for the pre-existing element 
of the Third party Intellectual Property employed in the Work Product. If state or federal law 
requires that Agency or Grantee grant to the United States a license to any intellectual property in 
the Work Product, or if state or federal law requires Agency or the United States to own the 
intellectual property in the Work Product, then Grantee must execute such further documents and 
instruments as Agency may reasonably request in order to make any such grant or to assign 
ownership in such intellectual property to the United States or Agency. 

9.4 Real Property. If the Project includes the acquisition, construction, remodel or repair of real 
property or improvements to real property, and if such assets are disposed of prior to December 
30, 2020, the proceeds would be subject to the restrictions on the eligible use of payments from the 
Grant Funds provided by section 601(d) of the Social Security Act. 

SECTION 10: CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

10.1 Confidential Information Definition. Grantee acknowledges it and its employees or agents may, 
in the course of performing its responsibilities, be exposed to or acquire information that is: (i) 
confidential to Agency or Project participants or (ii) the disclosure of which is restricted under 
federal or state law, including without limitation: (a) personal information, as that term is used in 
ORS 646A.602(12) and (b) social security numbers (items (i) and (ii) separately and collectively 
"Confidential Information"). 

10.2 Nondisclosure. Grantee agrees to hold Confidential Information as required by any applicable law 
and in all cases in strict confidence, using at least the same degree of care Grantee uses in 
maintaining the confidentiality of its own confidential information. Grantee may not copy, 
reproduce, sell, assign, license, market, transfer or otherwise dispose of, give, or disclose 
Confidential Information to third parties, or use Confidential Information except as is allowed by 

DAS Grantvl, updated 20200513 Page 4 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

law and for the Project activities and Grantee must advise each of its employees and agents of these 
restrictions. Grantee must assist Agency in identifying and preventing any unauthorized use or 
disclosure of Confidential Information. Grantee must advise Agency immediately if Grantee learns 
or has reason to believe any Confidential Information has been, or may be, used or disclosed in 
violation of the restrictions in this Section. Grantee must, at its expense, cooperate with Agency in 
seeking injunctive or other equitable relief, in the name of Agency or Grantee, to stop or prevent 
any use or disclosure of Confidential Information. At Agency's request, Grantee must return or 
destroy any Confidential Information. If Agency requests Grantee to destroy any Confidential 
Information, Grantee must provide Agency with written assurance indicating how, when and what 
information was destroyed. 

10.3 Identity Protection Law. Grantee must have and maintain a formal written information security 
program that provides safeguards to protect Confidential Information from loss, theft, and 
disclosure to unauthorized persons, as required by the Oregon Consumer Information Protection 
Act, ORS 646A.600-628. If Grantee or its agents discover or are notified of a potential or actual 
"Breach of Security", as defined by ORS 646A.602(1)(a), or a failure to comply with the 
requirements of ORS 646A.600-628, ( collectively, "Breach") with respect to Confidential 
Information, Grantee must promptly but in any event within one calendar day (i) notify the Agency 
Grant Manager of such Breach and (ii) if the applicable Confidential Information was in the 
possession of Grantee or its agents at the time of such Breach, Grantee must (a) investigate and 
remedy the technical causes and technical effects of the Breach and (b) provide Agency with a 
written root cause analysis of the Breach and the specific steps Grantee will take to prevent the 
recurrence of the Breach or to ensure the potential Breach will not recur. For the avoidance of 
doubt, if Agency determines notice is required of any such Breach to any individual( s) or entity(ies ), 
Agency will have sole control over the timing, content, and method of such notice, subject to 
Grantee's obligations under applicable law. 

10.4 Subgrants/Contracts. Grantee must require any subgrantees, contractors or subcontractors 
under this Grant who are exposed to or acquire Confidential Information to treat and maintain such 
information in the same manner as is required of Grantee under subsections 10.1 and 10.2 of this 
Section. 

10.5 Background Check. If requested by Agency and permitted by law, Grantee's employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors, and volunteers that perform Project activities must agree to submit to 
a criminal background check prior to performance of any Project activities or receipt of Confidential 
Information. Background checks will be performed at Grantee's expense. Based on the results of 
the background check, Grantee or Agency may refuse or limit (i) the participation of any Grantee 
employee, agent, contractor, subgrantee, or volunteer, in Project activities or (ii) access to Agency 
Personal Information or Grantee premises. 

SECTION 11: INDEMNITY/LIABILITY 

11.1 Indemnity. Grantee must defend, save, hold harmless, and indemnify the State of Oregon and 
Agency and their officers, employees and agents from and against all claims, suits, actions, losses, 
damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses of any nature whatsoever, including attorneys' fees, 
resulting from, arising out of, or relating to the activities of Grantee or its officers, employees, 

DAS Grant vl, updated 20200513 Page 5 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

subgrantees, contractors, subcontractors, or agents under this Grant ( each of the foregoing 
individually or collectively a "Claim" for purposes of this Section). If legal limitations apply to the 
indemnification ability of Grantee, this indemnification must be for the maximum amount of funds 
available for expenditure, including any available contingency funds, insurance, funds available 
under ORS 30.260 to 30.300 or other available non-appropriated funds. 

11.2 Defense. Grantee may have control of the defense and settlement of any Claim subject to this 
Section. But neither Grantee nor any attorney engaged by Grantee may defend the Claim in the 
name of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal representative of the State of Oregon or any 
of its agencies, without first receiving from the Attorney General, in a form and manner determined 
appropriate by the Attorney General, authority to act as legal counsel for the State of Oregon. Nor 
may Grantee settle any Claim on behalf of the State of Oregon without the approval of the Attorney 
General. The State of Oregon may, at its election and expense, assume its own defense and 
settlement in the event the State of Oregon determines Grantee is prohibited from defending the 
State of Oregon, or is not adequately defending the State of Oregon's interests, or an important 
governmental principle is at issue and the State of Oregon desires to assume its own defense. 
Grantee may not use any Grant Funds to reimburse itself for the defense of or settlement of any 
Claim. 

11.3 Limitation. Except as provided in this Section, neither Party will be liable for incidental, 
consequential, or other direct damages arising out of or related to this Grant, regardless of whether 
the damages or other liability is based in contract, tort (including negligence), strict liability, 
product liability or otherwise. Neither Party will be liable for any damages of any sort arising solely 
from the termination of this Grant in accordance with its terms. 

SECTION 12: INSURANCE 

12.1 Private Insurance. If Grantee is a private entity, or if any contractors, subcontractors, or 
subgrantees used to carry out the Project are private entities, Grantee and any private contractors, 
subcontractors or subgrantees must obtain and maintain insurance covering Agency in the types 
and amounts indicated in Exhibit B. 

12.2 Public Body Insurance. If Grantee is a "public body" as defined in ORS 30.260, Grantee agrees to 
insure any obligations that may arise for Grantee under this Grant, including any indemnity 
obligations, through (i) the purchase of insurance as indicated in Exhibit B or (ii) the use of self
insurance or assessments paid under ORS 30.282 that is substantially similar to the types and 
amounts of insurance coverage indicated on Exhibit B, or (iii) a combination of any or all of the 
foregoing. 

12.3 Real Property. If the Project includes the construction, remodel or repair of real property or 
improvements to real property, Grantee must insure the real property and improvements against 
liability and risk of direct physical loss, damage or destruction at least to the extent that similar 
insurance is customarily carried by entities constructing, operating and maintaining similar 
property or facilities. 

DAS Grantvl, updated 20200513 Page 6 of21 



DAS GRANT #102 5 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

SECTION 13: GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION 

This Grant is governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without 
regard to principles of conflicts of law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding ( collectively "Claim") 
between Agency or any other agency or department of the State of Oregon, or both, and Grantee 
that arises from or relates to this Grant must be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within 
the Circuit Court of Marion County for the State of Oregon; provided, however, if a Claim must be 
brought in a federal forum, then it will be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within the 
United States District Court for the District of Oregon. In no event may this Section be construed as 
a waiver by the State of Oregon of any form of defense or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, 
governmental immunity, immunity based on the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the 
United States or otherwise, to or from any Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court. GRANTEE, BY 
EXECUTION OF THIS GRANT, HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE PERSONAL JURISDICTION OF SUCH 
COURTS. 

SECTION 14: ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

The Parties should attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of this Grant. This may 
be done at any management level, including at a level higher than persons directly responsible for 
administration of the Grant In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly selected mediator 
or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short of litigation. Each Party will 
bear its own costs incurred for any mediation or non-binding arbitration. 

SECTION 15: DEFAULT 

15.1 Grantee. Grantee will be in default under this Grant upon the occurrence of any of the following 
events: 

15.1.1 Grantee fails to use the Grant Funds for the intended purpose described in Exhibit A or 
otherwise fails to perform, observe or discharge any of its covenants, agreements or obligations 
under this Grant; 

15.1.2 Any representation, warranty or statement made by Grantee in this Grant or in any documents 
or reports relied upon by Agency to measure the Project, the expenditure of Grant Funds or the 
performance by Grantee is untrue in any material respect when made; or 

15.1.3 A petition, proceeding or case is filed by or against Grantee under any federal or state 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or other law relating to reorganization, liquidation, 
dissolution, winding-up or adjustment of debts; in the case of a petition filed against Grantee, 
Grantee acquiesces to such petition or such petition is not dismissed within 20 calendar days 
after such filing, or such dismissal is not final or is subject to appeal; or Grantee becomes 
insolvent or admits its inability to pay its debts as they become due, or Grantee makes an 
assignment for the benefit of its creditors. 

15.2 Agency. Agency will be in default under this Grant if, after 15 days written notice specifying the 

DAS Grant vl, updated 20200513 Page 7 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

nature of the default, Agency fails to perform, observe or discharge any of its covenants, 
agreements, or obligations under this Grant; provided, however, Agency will not be in default if 
Agency fails to disburse Grant Funds because there is insufficient expenditure authority for, or 
moneys available from, the Funding Source. 

SECTION 16: REMEDIES 

16.1 Agency Remedies. In the event Grantee is in default under Section 15.1, Agency may, at its option, 
pursue any or all of the remedies available to it under this Grant and at law or in equity, including, 
but not limited to: (i) termination of this Grant under Section 18.2, (ii) reducing or withholding 
payment for Project activities or materials that are deficient or Grantee has failed to complete by 
any scheduled deadlines, (iii) requiring Grantee to complete, at Grantee's expense, additional 
activities necessary to satisfy its obligations or meet performance standards under this Grant, (iv) 
initiation of an action or proceeding for damages, specific performance, or declaratory or injunctive 
relief, ( v) exercise of its right of recovery of overpayments under Section 17 of this Grant or setoff, 
or both, or (vi) declaring Grantee ineligible for the receipt of future awards from Agency. These 
remedies are cumulative to the extent the remedies are not inconsistent, and Agency may pursue 
any remedy or remedies singly, collectively, successively or in any order whatsoever. 

16.2 Grantee Remedies. In the event Agency is in default under Section 15.2 and whether or not 
Grantee elects to terminate this Grant, Grantee's sole monetary remedy will be, within any limits 
set forth in this Grant, reimbursement of Project activities completed and accepted by Agency and 
authorized expenses incurred, less any claims Agency has against Grantee. In no event will Agency 
be liable to Grantee for any expenses related to termination of this Grant or for anticipated profits. 

SECTION 17: WITHHOLDING FUNDS, RECOVERY 

Agency may withhold from disbursements of Grant Funds due to Grantee, or Grantee must return 
to Agency within 30 days of Agency's written demand: 

17.1 Any Grant Funds paid to Grantee under this Grant, or payments made under any other agreement 
between Agency and Grantee, that exceed the amount to which Grantee is entitled; 

17.2 Any Grant Funds received by Grantee that remain unexpended or contractually committed for 
payment of the Project at the end of the Performance Period; 

17 .3 Any Grant Funds determined by Agency to be spent for purposes other than allowable Project 
activities; or 

17 .4 Any Grant Funds requested by Grantee as payment for deficient activities or materials. 

SECTION 18: TERMINATION 

18.1 Mutual. This Grant may be terminated at any time by mutual written consent of the Parties. 

DAS Grantvl, updated 20200513 Page 8 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

18.2 By Agency. Agency may terminate this Grant as follows: 

18.2.1 At Agency's discretion, upon 30 days advance written notice to Grantee; 

18.2.2 Immediately upon written notice to Grantee, if Agency fails to receive funding, or 
appropriations, limitations or other expenditure authority at levels sufficient in Agency's 
reasonable administrative discretion, to perform its obligations under this Grant; 

18.2.3 Immediately upon written notice to Grantee, if federal or state laws, rules, regulations or 
guidelines are modified or interpreted in such a way that Agency's performance under this 
Grant is prohibited or Agency is prohibited from funding the Grant from the Funding Source; or 

18.2.4 Immediately upon written notice to Grantee, if Grantee is in default under this Grant and such 
default remains uncured 15 days after written notice thereof to Grantee. 

18.3 By Grantee. Grantee may terminate this Grant as follows: 

18.3.1 If Grantee is a governmental entity, immediately upon written notice to Agency, if Grantee fails 
to receive funding, or appropriations, limitations or other expenditure authority at levels 
sufficient to perform its obligations under this Grant 

18.3.2 If Grantee is a governmental entity, immediately upon written notice to Agency, if applicable 
laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in such a way that the Project 
activities contemplated under this Grant are prohibited by law or Grantee is prohibited from 
paying for the Project from the Grant Funds or other planned Project funding; or 

18.3.3 Immediately upon written notice to Agency, if Agency is in default under this Grant and such 
default remains uncured 15 days after written notice thereof to Agency. 

18.4 Cease Activities. Upon receiving a notice of termination of this Grant, Grantee must immediately 
cease all activities under this Grant, unless Agency expressly directs otherwise in such notice. Upon 
termination, Grantee must deliver to Agency all materials or other property that are or would be 
required to be provided to Agency under this Grant or that are needed to complete the Project 
activities that would have been performed by Grantee. 

SECTION 19: MISCELLANEOUS 

19.1 Conflict of Interest. Grantee by signature to this Grant declares and certifies the award of this 
Grant and the Project activities to be funded by this Grant, create no potential or actual conflict of 
interest, as defined by ORS Chapter 244, for a director, officer or employee of Grantee. 

19.2 Nonappropriation. Agency's obligation to pay any amounts and otherwise perform its duties 
under this Grant is conditioned upon Agency receiving funding, appropriations, limitations, 
allotments, or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow Agency, in the exercise of its 
reasonable administrative discretion, to meet its obligations under this Grant. Nothing in this Grant 
may be construed as permitting any violation of Article XI, Section 7 of the Oregon Constitution or 
any other law limiting the activities, liabilities or monetary obligations of Agency. 

DAS Grantvl, updated 20200513 Page 9 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

19.3 Amendments. The terms of this Grant may not be altered, modified, supplemented or otherwise 
amended, except by written agreement of the Parties. 

19.4 Notice. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Grant, any notices to be given under this 
Grant must be given in writing by email, personal delivery, or postage prepaid mail, to a Party's 
Grant Manager at the physical address or email address set forth in this Grant, or to such other 
addresses as either Party may indicate pursuant to this Section. Any notice so addressed and mailed 
becomes effective five (5) days after mailing. Any notice given by personal delivery becomes 
effective when actually delivered. Any notice given by email becomes effective upon the sender's 
receipt of confirmation generated by the recipient's email system that the notice has been received 
by the recipient's email system. 

19.5 Survival. All rights and obligations of the Parties under this Grant will cease upon termination of 
this Grant, other than the rights and obligations arising under Sections 11, 13, 14, 16, 17 and 
subsection 19.5 hereof and those rights and obligations that by their express terms survive 
termination of this Grant; provided, however, termination of this Grant will not prejudice any rights 
or obligations accrued to the Parties under this Grant prior to termination. 

19.6 Severability. The Parties agree if any term or provision of this Grant is declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms 
and provisions will not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties will be construed 
and enforced as if the Grant did not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid. 

19. 7 Counterparts. This Grant may be executed in several counterparts, all of which when taken 
together constitute one agreement, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same 
counterpart Each copy of the Grant so executed constitutes an original. 

19.8 Compliance with Law. In connection with their activities under this Grant, the Parties must 
comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws. 

19.9 Intended Beneficiaries. Agency and Grantee are the only parties to this Grant and are the only 
parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Grant provides, is intended to provide, or may 
be construed to provide any direct or indirect benefit or right to third persons unless such third 
persons are individually identified by name herein and expressly described as intended 
beneficiaries of this Grant. 

19.10 Assignment and Successors. Grantee may not assign or transfer its interest in this Grant without 
the prior written consent of Agency and any attempt by Grantee to assign or transfer its interest in 
this Grant without such consent will be void and of no force or effect Agency's consent to Grantee's 
assignment or transfer of its interest in this Grant will not relieve Grantee of any of its duties or 
obligations under this Grant The provisions of this Grant will be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the Parties hereto, and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

19.11 Contracts and Subgrants. Grantee may enter into contracts or subgrants for any of the Project 
activities required of Grantee under this Grant, however Grantee is required to communicate 
subgrantee information to Agency in such a manner and timing as prescribed by Agency that 
Agency considers necessary to fulfill its federal reporting obligations. 

DAS Grant vl, updated 20200513 Page 10 of21 



.. 

DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

19.12 Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in Grantee's performance of the Project activities 
under this Grant 

19.13 Records Maintenance and Access. Grantee must maintain all financial records relating to this 
Grant in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, Grantee must 
maintain any other records, whether in paper, electronic or other form, pertinent to this Grant in 
such a manner as to clearly document Grantee's performance. All financial records and other 
records, whether in paper, electronic or other form, that are pertinent to this Grant, are collectively 
referred to as "Records." Grantee acknowledges and agrees Agency and the Oregon Secretary of 
State's Office and the federal government and their duly authorized representatives will have 
access to all Records to perform examinations and audits and make excerpts and transcripts. 
Grantee must retain and keep accessible all Records for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer 
period as may be required by applicable law, following termination of this Grant, or until the 
conclusion of any audit, controversy or litigation arising out of or related to this Grant, whichever 
date is later. 

19.14 Headings. The headings and captions to sections of this Grant have been inserted for identification 
and reference purposes only and may not be used to construe the meaning or to interpret this 
Grant. 

19.15 Grant Documents. This Grant consists of the following documents, which are incorporated by this 
reference and listed in descending order of precedence: 

• This Grant less all exhibits 
• Exhibit A (the "Project") 
• Exhibit B (Insurance) 
• Exhibit C (Federal Terms and Conditions) 
• Exhibit D (Federal Award Identification) 

19.16 Merger, Waiver. This Grant and all exhibits and attachments, if any, constitute the entire 
agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, 
agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Grant. No 
waiver or consent under this Grant binds either Party unless in writing and signed by both Parties. 
Such waiver or consent, if made, is effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose 
given. 

DAS Grantvl, updated 20200513 Page 11 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

SECTION 20: SIGNATURES 

EACH PARTY, BY SIGNATURE OF ITS AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE, HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES 
IT HAS READ THIS GRANT, UNDERSTANDS IT, AND AGREES TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS. The Parties further agree that by the exchange of this Grant electronically, each has 
agreed to the use of electronic means, if applicable, instead of the exchange of physical documents 
and manual signatures. By inserting an electronic or manual signature below, each authorized 
representative acknowledges that it is their signature, that each intends to execute this Grant, and 
that their electronic or manual signature should be given full force and effect to create a valid and 
legally binding agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Grant as of the dates set forth below. 

STATE OF OREGON acting by and through its Department of Administrative 
Services 

By: ______ _______ _ 

Name, Title Date 

Morrow County 

By: ____________ _ 

Authorized Signature Date 

Printed Name Title 

93-6002308 010741189 
Federal Tax ID Number DUNS Number 

Approved for Legal Sufficiency in accordance with ORS 291.047 

By: s/ Sam Zeigler 
Senior Assistant Attorney General 
Oregon Department of Justice 

DAS Grant vl, updated 20200513 

by email dated 6/10 /20 
Date 

Page 12 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

EXHIBIT A 
THE PROJECT 

SECTION I. BACKGROUND AND GOALS 

To support local government actions in the statewide fight against the Coronavirus by providing 
reimbursement of federally eligible expenses under the CARES Act. Coronavirus Relief Funds may be used 
to cover costs that are: 

1. Necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19); 

2. Were not accounted for in the Grantee's budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020; and 

3. Were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020. 

SECTION II. PROJECT ACTIVITIES, SCHEDULE, AND BUDGET 

Agency will disburse Grant Funds only for eligible costs incurred by Grantee for the First Cost Period 
and in accordance with criteria and guidance established by US Treasury: 

(https ://home. treasury.gov /system/files/ 13 6/ Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Guidance-for-State
Territorial-Local-and-Tribal-Governments.pd0 

Additionally, the US Treasury has provided answers to frequently asked questions regarding eligible 
costs under the Coronavirus Relief Fund: 

https://home.treasm:y.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund -Frequently-Asked
Questions.pdf 

Indirect/ Administrative Costs. Grantee will not be reimbursed for any indirect costs with Grant Funds 
in accordance with U.S. Treasury guidance. The information described in this paragraph overrides any 
other verbal or written rate(s) or information provided by Agency 

SECTION III. RESERVED 

SECTION IV. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

In a form provided by Agency, Grantee shall report eligible costs to Agency when seeking 
reimbursement for costs incurred during the Performance Period. Agency may require additional 
reporting in form and at such times as Agency specifies by notification to Grantee through its Grant 
Manager identified in Section 4.2. 

If the Performance Period begins prior to the Executed Date, any reports for Project activities shown in 
this Exhibit A as due prior to the Executed Date must be provided to Agency, if not already provided to 
Agency despite the lack of an executed Grant. Grantee will not be in default for failure to perform any 
reporting requirements prior to the Executed Date. 

DAS Grant vl, updated 20200513 Page 13 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

SECTION V. DISBURSEMENT PROVISIONS 

Agency will disburse the Grant Funds upon receipt and approval of Grantee's request for disbursement. 

To be processed for payment, Grantee's request must include the following information at the minimum: 

• Request date; 
• Period covered by request; 
• Agency's Grant number; 
• Amount being requested; and 
• Aggregated costs by available cost category. 

Agency may request, at its discretion, additional information it considers necessary to determine the 
eligibility of costs for reimbursement. For the First Cost Period, Grantee must send its requests for 
disbursement via email to Agency's Grant Manager identified in Section 4. Future reimbursement 
requests shall be submitted via an Agency-developed grant website portal. 

DAS Grant vl, updated 20200513 Page 14 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

EXHIBIT B 
INSURANCE 

Grantee must obtain at Grantee's expense, and require its first tier contractors and sub grantees, if any, 
to obtain the insurance specified in this exhibit prior to performing under this Grant, and must maintain 
it in full force and at its own expense throughout the duration of this Grant, as required by any extended 
reporting period or tail coverage requirements, and all warranty periods that apply. Grantee must 
obtain and require its first tier contractors and subgrantees, if any, to obtain the following insurance 
from insurance companies or entities acceptable to Agency and authorized to transact the business of 
insurance and issue coverage in Oregon. Coverage must be primary and non-contributory with any 
other insurance and self-insurance, with the exception of professional liability and workers' 
compensation. Grantee must pay and require its first tier contractors and subgrantees to pay, if any, for 
all deductibles, self-insured retention and self-insurance, if any. 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION 

All employers, including Grantee, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, shall comply 
with ORS 656.017 and provide workers' compensation insurance coverage for those workers, unless 
they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2). Grantee shall require and ensure 
that each of its subgrantees, contractors, and subcontractors complies with these requirements. If 
Grantee is a subject employer, as defined in ORS 656.023, Grantee shall also obtain employers' liability 
insurance coverage with limits not less than $500,000 each accident. If Grantee is an employer subject 
to any other state's workers' compensation law, Grantee shall provide workers' compensation insurance 
coverage for its employees as required by applicable workers' compensation laws including employers' 
liability insurance coverage with limits not less than $500,000, and shall require and ensure that each 
of its out-of-state subgrantees, contractors, and subcontractors complies with these requirements. 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

t8J Required D Not required 

Commercial general liability insurance covering bodily injury and property damage in a form and with 
coverage that are satisfactory to Agency. This insurance must include personal and advertising injury 
liability, products and completed operations, contractual liability coverage for the indemnity provided 
under this Grant, and have no limitation of coverage to designated premises, project or operation. 
Coverage must be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence. Annual aggregate limit may not be less than $2,000,000. 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE 

t8J Required D Not required 

Automobile liability insurance covering Grantee's business use including coverage for all owned, non
owned, or hired vehicles with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 for bodily injury and 
property damage. This coverage may be written in combination with the commercial general liability 
insurance (with separate limits for commercial general liability and automobile liability). Use of 

DAS Grant vl, updated 20200513 Page 15 of21 



DAS GRANT #102 5 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

personal automobile liability insurance coverage may be acceptable if evidence that the policy includes 
a business use endorsement is provided. 

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 

D Required ~ Not required 

Professional liability insurance covering any damages caused by an error, omission or any negligent acts 
related to the activities performed under this Grant by the Grantee and Grantee's contractors, 
subgrantees, agents, officers or employees in an amount not less than $ ___ per claim. Annual 
aggregate limit may not be less than $ _ __ . If coverage is on a claims made basis, then either an 
extended reporting period of not less than 24 months must be included in the professional liability 
insurance coverage, or the Grantee must provide tail coverage as stated below. 

NETWORK SECURITY AND PRIVACY LIABILITY 

D Required ~ Not required 

Grantee must provide network security and privacy liability insurance for the duration of the Grant and 
for the period of time in which Grantee (or its business associates, contractors, or subgrantees) 
maintains, possesses, stores or has access to Agency or client data, whichever is longer, with a combined 
single limit of no less than $ ___ per claim or incident. This insurance must include coverage for third 
party claims and for losses, thefts, unauthorized disclosures, access or use of Agency or client data 
(which may include, but is not limited to, Personally Identifiable Information ("PII"), payment card data 
and Protected Health Information ("PHI")) in any format, including coverage for accidental loss, theft, 
unauthorized disclosure access or use of Agency data. 

POLLUTION LIABILITY 

D Required ~ Not required 

Pollution liability insurance covering Grantee's or appropriate contractor or subgrantee's liability for 
bodily injury, property damage and environmental damage resulting from sudden, accidental, or 
gradual pollution and related cleanup costs incurred by Grantee, all arising out of the Project activities 
(including transportation risk) performed under this Grant is required. Combined single limit per 
occurrence may not be less than $ ___ . Annual aggregate limit may not be less than $ __ _ 

An endorsement to the commercial general liability or automobile liability policy, covering Grantee's, 
contractor, or subgrantee's liability for bodily injury, property damage and environmental damage 
resulting from sudden, accidental, or gradual pollution and related clean-up costs incurred by Grantee 
that arise from the Project activities (including transportation risk) performed by Grantee under this 
Grant is also acceptable. 

DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION LIABILITY 

D Required ~ Not required 

Directors, officers and organization liability insurance covering the Grantee's organization, directors, 
officers, and trustees actual or alleged errors, omissions, negligent, or wrongful acts, including improper 
governance, employment practices and financial oversight- including improper oversight and/or use of 
Grant Funds and donor contributions - with a combined single limit of no less than $ ___ per claim. 

DAS Grantvl, updated 20200513 Page 16 of21 



DAS GRANT #102 5 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

CRIME PROTECTION COVERAGE: EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY or FIDELITY BOND 

D Required ~ Not required 

Employee dishonesty or fidelity bond covering loss of money, securities and property caused by 
dishonest acts of Grantee's employees. Coverage limits may not be less than $ __ _ 

PHYSICAL ABUSE AND MOLESTATION INSURANCE COVERAGE 

D Required ~ Not required 

Abuse and molestation insurance in a form and with coverage satisfactory to the State covering damages 
arising out of actual or threatened physical abuse, mental injury, sexual molestation, negligent: hiring, 
employment, supervision, investigation, reporting to proper authorities, and retention of any person for 
whom the Grantee, its contractors, subcontractors or subgrantees ("Covered Entity") is responsible 
including but not limited to any Covered Entity's employees and volunteers. Policy endorsement's 
definition of an insured must include the Covered Entity and its employees and volunteers. Coverage 
must be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $ _ __ per occurrence. Any 
annual aggregate limit may not be less than $ ___ . Coverage can be provided by a separate policy or 
as an endorsement to the commercial general liability or professional liability policies. The limits must 
be exclusive to this required coverage. Incidents related to or arising out of physical abuse, mental 
injury, or sexual molestation, whether committed by one or more individuals, and irrespective of the 
number of incidents or injuries or the time period or area over which the incidents or injuries occur, 
must be treated as a separate occurrence for each victim. Coverage must include the cost of defense and 
the cost of defense must be provided outside the coverage limit. 

EXCESS/UMBRELLA INSURANCE 

A combination of primary and excess/umbrella insurance may be used to meet the required limits of 
insurance. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED 

All liability insurance, except for workers' compensation, professional liability, and network security 
and privacy liability (if applicable), required under this Grant must include an additional insured 
endorsement specifying the State of Oregon, its officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds, 
including additional insured status with respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations and 
completed operations, but only with respect to Grantee's activities to be performed under this Grant. 
Coverage must be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance. The 
Additional Insured endorsement with respect to liability arising out of Grantee's ongoing operations 
must be on ISO Form CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent and the Additional Insured endorsement with respect 
to completed operations must be on ISO form CG 20 37 04 13 or equivalent. 

WAIVER OF SUBROGATION 

Grantee waives, and must require its first tier contractors and subgrantees waive, rights of subrogation 
which Grantee, Grantee's first tier contractors and subgrantees, if any, or any insurer of Grantee may 
acquire against the Agency or State of Oregon by virtue of the payment of any loss. Grantee must obtain, 
and require its first tier contractors and subgrantees to obtain, any endorsement that may be necessary 
to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Agency 
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the Grantee or the Grantee's insurer(s). 

DAS Grant vl, updated 20200513 Page 17 of21 



DAS GRANT #102 5 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

TAIL COVERAGE 

If any of the required insurance is on a claims made basis and does not include an extended reporting 
period of at least 24 months, Grantee must maintain, and require its first tier contractors and 
subgrantees, if any, maintain, either tail coverage or continuous claims made liability coverage, provided 
the effective date of the continuous claims made coverage is on or before the Effective Date of this Grant, 
for a minimum of 24 months following the later of (i) Grantee's completion and Agency's acceptance of 
all Project activities required under this Grant, or, (ii) Agency or Grantee termination of Grant, or, iii) 
the expiration of all warranty periods provided under this Grant. 

CERTIFICATE(S) AND PROOF OF INSURANCE 

At Agency's request, Grantee must provide to Agency a Certificate(s) of Insurance for all required 
insurance. The Certificate(s) must list the State of Oregon, its officers, employees and agents as a 
Certificate holder and as an endorsed Additional Insured. The Certificate(s) must also include all 
required endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this 
Grant. If excess/umbrella insurance is used to meet the minimum insurance requirement, the Certificate 
of Insurance must include a list of all policies that fall under the excess/umbrella insurance. As proof of 
insurance, Agency has the right to request copies of insurance policies and endorsements relating to the 
insurance requirements in this Grant. Grantee must furnish acceptable insurance certificates to: 
CoronavirusReliefFund@oregon.gov or by mail to: Department of Administrative Services, Attention: 
Coronavirus Relief Fund, 155 Cottage Street NE, Salem, OR, 97301 prior to commencing the work. 

NOTICE OF CHANGE OR CANCELLATION 

Grantee or its insurer must provide at least 30 days' written notice to Agency before cancellation of, 
material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance 
coverage( s). 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENT REVIEW 

Grantee agrees to periodic review of insurance requirements by Agency under this Grant, and to provide 
updated requirements as mutually agreed upon by Grantee and Agency. 

STATE ACCEPTANCE 

All insurance providers are subject to Agency acceptance. If requested by Agency, Grantee must provide 
complete copies of insurance policies, endorsements, self-insurance documents and related insurance 
documents to Agency's representatives responsible for verification of the insurance coverages required 
under this exhibit. 

DAS Grantvl, updated 20200513 Page 18 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

EXHIBITC 
FEDERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. FEDERAL FUNDS 

1.1. If specified below, Agency's payments to Grantee under this Grant will be paid in whole or in 
part by funds received by Agency from the United States Federal Government. If so specified 
then Grantee, by signing this Grant, certifies neither it nor its employees, contractors, 
subcontractors or subgrantees who will perform the Project activities are currently employed 
by an agency or department of the federal government. 

Payments ~ will D will not be made in whole or in part with federal funds. 

1.2. In accordance with the Chief Financial Office's Oregon Accounting Manual, policy 30.40.00.104, 
Agency has determined: 

~ Grantee is a subrecipient D Grantee is a contractor D Not applicable 

1.3. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #(s) of federal funds to be paid through this 
Grant: 21.019 

2. FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

2.1. The use of all federal funds paid under this Grant are subject to all applicable federal regulations, 
including the provisions described below. 

2.2. Grantee must ensure that any further distribution or payment of the federal funds paid under 
this Grant by means of any contract, subgrant, or other agreement between Grantee and another 
party for the performance of any of the activities of this Grant, includes the requirement that 
such funds may be used solely in a manner that complies with the provisions of this Grant. 

2.3. Grantee must include and incorporate the provisions described below in all contracts and 
subgrants that may use, in whole or in part, the funds provided by this Grant. 

2.4. Grantee must comply, and ensure the compliance by subcontractors or subgrantees, with 41 
U.S.C. 4712, Program for Enhancement of Employee Whistleblower Protection. Grantee must 
inform subrecipients, contractors and employees, in writing, in the predominant language of the 
workforce, of the employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 USC§ 4712. 

In accordance with U.S. Treasury guidance - Grantee is subject to the following provisions, as 
applicable. 

For purposes of these provisions, the following definitions apply: 

"Contract" means this Grant or any contract or subgrant funded by this Grant. 

"Contractor" and "Subrecipient" and "Non-Federal entity" mean Grantee or Grantee's 
contractors or subgrantees, if any. 

(A) 2 CFR §200.303 Internal Controls 

(B) 2 CFR §§ 200.330 through 200.332 Subrecipient Monitoring and Management 

DAS Grant vl, updated 20200513 Page 19 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

(C) Subpart F - Audit Requirements of 2 CFR §200.SXX 

i. Contractor must comply, and require any subcontractor to comply, with applicable audit 
requirements and responsibilities set forth in this Contract and applicable state or federal law. 

ii. If Contractor receives federal awards in excess of $750,000 in a fiscal year, Contractor is subject 
to audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F. Copies of all audits 
must be submitted to Agency within 30 days of completion. 

m. Contractor must save, protect and hold harmless Agency from the cost of any audits or special 
investigations performed by the Secretary of State with respect to the funds expended under this 
Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that any audit costs incurred by Contractor as a result of 
allegations of fraud, waste or abuse are ineligible for reimbursement under this or any other agreement 
between Contractor and State. 

(D) System for Award Management. Grantee must comply with applicable requirements regarding the 
System for Award Management (SAM), currently accessible at https://www.sam.gov. This includes 
applicable requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as maintaining current information in 
SAM. The Grantee also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first
tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do not 
acquire and provide (to the Grantee) the unique entity identifier required for SAM registration. 

3. ADDITIONAL FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS 

None. 

DAS Grantvl, updated 20200513 Page 20 of21 



DAS GRANT #1025- Coronavirus Relief Fund 

EXHIBITD 
FEDERAL AWARD IDENTIFICATION 

(Required by 2 CFR 200.331(a)) 
(i) Grantee Name: 

COUNTY OF MORROW 
(must match DUNS re,qistration) 

(ii) Grantee's DUNS number: 010741189 

(iii) Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): 

(iv) Federal award date: March 27, 2020 
( date of award to DAS bv federal agency) 

Start: March 1, 2020 
(v) Grant period of performance start and end dates: End: December 30, 2020 

(vi) Total amount of federal funds obligated by this Grant: 

(vii) Total amount of federal award committed to Grantee by 
$192,236.00 Agency: 

(amount of federal funds from this FAIN committed to Grantee) 

(viii) Federal award project description: Coronavirus Relief Fund 

(ix) Federal awarding agency: U.S. Department of the Treasury 

Oregon Department of Administrative 
Name of pass-through entity: Services 

Contact information for awarding official of pass-through Gerold Floyd, 

entity: CoronavirusReliefFund@Oregon.gov 

Number: 21.019 

(x) CFDA number, name, and amount: Name: Coronavirus Relief Fund 
Amount: $1,388,506,837.10 

Yes • (xi) Is award research and development? No 12] 

Not allowed per U.S. Treasury 
(xii) Indirect cost rate: guidance 

Yes u 
Is the 10% de minimis rate being used per §200.414? No 12] 

DAS Grantvl, updated 20200513 Page 21 of21 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR 
MORROW COUNTY, OREGON 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING 
THE COUNTY TREASURER 
TO INVEST FUNDS 

) 
) 
) 

ORDER NO. OR-2020-5 

This matter having come before the Morrow County Board of Commissioners this 
24 th day of June 2020, at a properly organized meeting, a quorum having been present 
and all notice and procedural requirements having been met, the Morrow County Board 
of Commissioners does hereby make the following findings and issue the following 
ORDER: 

That the Morrow County Treasurer is a "custodial officer" as defined by ORS 
294.004 (2); 

That the Morrow County Treasurer is authorized to invest funds of this body by 
virtue of ORS 294.035, 294.125, and other general authorization: 

Therefore, it is hereby ordered that the Treasurer of Morrow County is authorized 
to invest the funds of this body, subject to all statutory guidelines and provision, from 
July 1, 2020 until January 29, 2021, unless amended earlier by the Board of 
Commissioners: 

It is further ORDERED that this ORDER be spread upon the minutes/journal of this 
body. 

SO ORDERED this 24th day of June 2020. 

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Melissa Lindsay, Chair 

Don Russell, Commissioner 

Jim Doherty, Commissioner 
Approved as to form: 

Morrow County Counsel 

Order No. OR-2020-5 Page 1 of 1 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of2) 

-(For l30CUsel 
Item# 

£.b 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners 
(See notations at bottom of form) 

Presenter at BOC: Justin Nelson / Commissioner Lindsay 
Department: District Attorney / Board of Commissioners 
Short Title of Agenda Item: 

Phone Number (Ext): 5627 
Requested Agenda Date: 6/24/2020 

(No m:ronyms plea.-<.:) Morrow County Mental Health Advisory Board Appointments 

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 
D Order or Resolution ~ Appointments 
D Ordinance/Public Hearing: D Update on Project/Committee 
D 1st Reading D 2nd Reading D Consent Agenda Eligible 
D Public Comment Anticipated: D Discussion & Action 

Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 
D Document Recording Required D . Purchase Pre-Authorization 
D Contract/ Agreement D Other 

0 N/A 
Contractor/Entity: 

Purchase Pre-Aulborl7.ations1 ontracls & Agrrrments 

Contractor/Entity Address: 
Effective Dates - From: Through: 
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line: 
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? D Yes Ii] No 

Reviewed By: 

________________ Department Director 

/J ~~ ;J D~; 
~__./~~<::Administrator 
(~~ DATE 

_______________ County Counsel 
DATE 

_______________ Finance Office 

DATE 

Human Resources ----------------

Required for all BOC meetings 

Required for all BOC meetings 

* Required for all legal documents 

*Required for all contracts; other 
items as appropriate. 

*If appropriate 
DATE * .\How I wrck for re,·icw (submit tu all simultaneously), When each office has notified the suhmilling, 

•h'nactm,·nc or nuuro,·nL Uwll $Uhmit thr rranrst tn thr ROC for nlarrmrnt on thr agenda 
Note: All other entities must sign cont.-acts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners ( originals 
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. 

Rev: 3/28/18 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of 2) 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY): 

Additions and removals to the Morrow County Advisory Board (for mental health services) must 
be approved by the Morrow County Board of Commissioners. 

The Advisory Board approved a motion to request the Morrow County Board of Commissioners 
appoint the following individuals: 

1. Appoint Linda Skendzel as a Advisory Board Member. 
2. Appoint Marissa Turner as a Advisory Board Member. 

2. FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S): 

Move to approve the appointment of Linda Skendzel and Marissa Turner as a Advisory Board 
Members. 

~ Attach additional background documentation as needed. 

Rev: 3/28/ 18 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of 2) 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners 
(See notations at bottom of form) 

Presenter • t BOC: Kate Knop 
Department: Finance 

Phone Number (Ext): x5302 
Requested Agenda Date: 06/24/2020 

Short Title of Agenda Item: 
(No acronyms please) Insurance Renewal - General Liability, Auto, Mobile and Property; 

Worker1s Comoensation: and Pollution Policv. 
This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 

D Order or Resolution D Appointments 
D Ordinance/Public Hearing: D Update on Project/Committee 
D I st Reading D 2nd Reading D Consent Agenda Eligible 
D Public Comment Anticipated: ~ Discussion & Action 

Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 15 minutes 
D Document Recording Required D Purchase Pre-Authorization 
~ Contract/ Agreement D Other 

D N/ A Purchase Pre-Authorization I Con1rac1J & Agrtcmtnts 

Contractor/Entity: Agent - Wheatland Insurance 
Contractor/Entity Address: PO Box 755, Heppner, OR 97836 
Effective Dates - From: 07/01/2020 Through: 06/30/2021 
Total Contract Amount: $469,430.51 Budget Line: Multiple 
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? Ii] Yes D No 

_ ______________ County Counsel 
DATE 

Finance Office ---------------
DATE 

Human Resources ---------------' 

Required for all BOC meetings 

Required for all BOC meetings 

*Required for all legal documents 

*Required for all contracts; other 
items as appropriate. 

*If appropriate 

D 

DA TE *Allow l week for review (submit to all simultaneously). When each office has nolified the submitting 

!lrpartm•ot °C apprn•·aJ. thm wbmjt \bf re<IJ!est to the BOC for nlamw:ru on tbr a0 enda 
Note: AU other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals 
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on tbe 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and RR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. 

Rev: 3/30/20 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of 2) 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY): 

Insurance Renewal: 
Workers Compensation Insurance coverage is provided by SAIF. This year's premium will be 
$159,495.03. This is an increase of $22,286 or 16.24% over the previous year. Class code rates 
have eased by 2% even though our total payroll has increased 3 .3%. Morrow County's 
Experience Rating has increased from 1.48 in 2019/2020 to 1. 7 5 for 2020/2021, resulting in the 
premium spike. 

CIS (CityCounty Insurance Services) provides coverage for Property, Auto, Mobile and General 
Liability Insurance. This year's premium will be $308,570.48. This is an increase of $21,129 or 
6.85% over the previous year. The main areas affecting the increase in premium are the Auto 
Damage, and the Property coverage. 
Please see the following page for previous years' comparison by type of coverage. 

Westchester Surplus Lines Insurance Company has historically provided the Pollution Policy for 
the Weed Department facilitated through Wheatland Insurance. This premium has been holding 
steady around $1,365. No changes are anticipated for the coming fiscal year. 

2. FISCAL IMP ACT: 

SAIF - Workers' Compensation Policy, all Personnel XXX-XXX-5-10-1302 $159,495.03 
CIS - Property, Auto, General Liability Policy, XXX-XXX-5-20-3530 $308,570.48 
Westchester Surplus Lines - Pollution Policy Weed Dept 101-128-5-20-3531 $1,365.00 

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S): 

Discussion. 

~ Attach additional background documentation as needed. 

Rev: 3/30/20 



MORROW COUNTY 
Insurance Renewal Rates 

Comparisons from FY 2018/2019 through FY 2020/2021 

Description I 2018/2019 2019/2020 Difference 2020/2021 Difference ' 
Gen Liability $126,817.91 $145,644.99 ~$ 18,827.08 14.85% $145,941.61 $ 296.62 u------Auto Liability $ 32,973.74 $ 38,865.42 $ 5,891.68 17.87% $ 38,113.68 $ (751.74) 

u 

TOTAL GEN & AUTO LIABIL TIY $159,791.65 $184,510.41 $184,055.29 ~· 
Auto Damage $ 37,579.73 $ 43,349.61 $ 5,769.88 15.35% $ 53,436.73 $10,087.12 

~ 

$197,371.38 ! $227,860.02 $237,492.02 
e-~-

$ 72,727.61 i rso,471.01 
--~·•--..."'•"""''" 

$ 92,621.88 i $12,150.87 Property $ 7,743.40 10.65% 
1,;...,....,........., -~--- T ..... . - ..... ..,,_ .... .,......, ..... 'M'n 

! $270,098.99 J $308,331.03 $330,113.90 ; -· ............ 
VARIOUS CREDIT TOTALS $ (19,742.97)! $ (20,889.93) $ (21,543.42) ) 

i,-,,, .... ,,.n-...... VH ,ynv ,v ,v,v.v.v,v.v,v.vN,v.¥o 

$250,356.02 i $287,441.10 $ 37,085.08 $308,570.48 ! $21,129.38 

j 12.90% 6.85% ! 

0.20% 

-1.93% 

23.27% -·~-
15.10% 

-·-
,v ,v ,v.~'n 

n 



WHt~Tl~ND 
ln,UU.HCI (Unt.11, lltC. 

., Work. sa1 g::gon. 

June 15, 2020 

NANCY SNIDER MORROW COUNTY 
PO BOX 788 
HEPPNER, OR 97836-0788 

WHEATLAND INSURANCE CENTER INC 
PO BOX 1127 

SAIF policy: 12261 
Policyholder: Morrow County 

PENDLETON, OR 97801 

This business's workers' compensation policy with SAIF Corporation renews on July 01, 2020. I 
authorized the rates and plan(s) shown on the enclosed premium estimate(s). 

Annual prepay quote 

To elect coverage 
Sign and return the Notice of Election before the effective date of July 01, 2020. 

Prepay discount 
SAIF Corporation offers additional savings in exchange for paying premiums in advance. A 3.50 
percent discount is offered for annual prepay plans. 

SAIF uses estimated premium paid in advance during the policy year to calculate the prepay discount 
when the policy is bound and issued. The prepay discount does not change with adjustments in 
premium after the policy term is issued. 

The terrorism premium, catastrophe premium, and the Department of Consumer and Business 
Services (DCBS) premium assessment will also be estimated and paid with your prepay Installments. 
The prepay discount does not apply to the terrorism premiums or the DCBS premium assessment. 

If SAIF does not receive your first installment In our office on or before the 25th day of the month 
preceding the new policy period, you will not receive the prepay discount. SAIF does not use postmark 
dates In determining date received. 

Installment payment terms 
Each Installment wlll be the same amount based on the annual estimate divided into equal 
installments. Subsequent installments are due by the 25th day following the bill date of the 
installment. 

Changes in your payroll or operations during the year can result in an adjustment to your policy 
premium . Please notify us of changes In your business to avoid a large reconciliation adjustment at 
the end of the year. 

We will send a payroll report to you at the end of each reporting period. Return the completed payroll 
report to us by the Indicated due date or you may go to saif.com to submit payroll figures online 
where SAIF makes it easy by doing all the calculations for you. 

SAIF adds Interest at the rate of one percent per month to any past due balance. 

Pol_PC1_P-Covr _Proposal 

400 High Street SE 
Salem, OR 97312 
P: 800.285.8525 
F: 503.373.8020 



Morrow County 
June 15, 2020 
Page 2 

Your final policy premium will be adjusted after you file your actual payroll on a report sent to you at 
the end of the policy period. To make it easy, SAIF will calculate the premium for you. You can file the 
report by going to saif.com / Employer Guide / File a payroll report, or you may return the 
completed report to SAIF. SAIF will notify you by invoice of the adjustment in your premium based on 
the actual payroll you reported for the policy period. 

Verifiable time records 
Oregon Administrative Rules require you to report wages under the highest rated classification 
applicable to any part of the worker's duties if you choose not to keep verifiable time records. 

In most instances, if you have more than one classification on your Insurance policy and your workers 
shift duties between those classifications, you can use verifiable time records to separate the payroll of 
the workers and report It in more than one classification on the payroll report. 

Verifiable time records must be supported by original entries from other records, including, but not 
limited to, timecards, calendars, planners, or dally logs prepared by the employee or the employee's 
direct supervisor or manager. Estimated percentages or ratios will not be accepted. For more 
information on how to keep verifiable time records, go to salf.com / Employer Gulde/ Reporting 
payroll / Verifiable time records. 

Prevent jobslte Injuries 
Safety awareness and preparedness are key In preventing on-the-job injuries, which may keep 
workers' compensations costs down. Please go to saif.com / Safety and health and also the Oregon 
OSHA website at orosha.org to obtain valuable information to prevent injuries. 

SAIF Corporation strives to provide our customers with the best services available at the lowest 
possible cost. We appreciate your confidence in us and look forward to working with you. Please feel 
free to contact me whenever you need assistance. 

Sincerely, 

/s/ Tami Coxen 
Underwriter 
P: 503.373.8129 
F: 503.584.8129 
TAMCOX@SAIF.COM 

c: Nancy Snider 

12261 Morrow County 



., Work. WHt~Tl~ND Sal ~::gon. lfflURAHCl C.CU1 ti. UtC, 

Morrow County 
Premium estimate for Guaranteed Cost 

Period: 07/01/2020 - 07/01/2021 Policy: 12261 
Plan: Version #1 

Rating period: 07/01/2020 to 07/01/2021 
Location 1: Morrow County 

Subject 
Classification descrietion Class ea~roll Rate Premium 
Weed Control Incl Dr 0050 $21,856.00 4.1 $896.10 
Reforestation And Drivers 0124 $0.00 5.79 $0.00 
Tree Thinning And Drivers 2702 $243.00 16.99 $41.29 
Wildland Fire Fighting & Drivers 2704 $0.00 7.43 $0.00 
Painting-NOC-& Shop/Dr 5474 $0.00 5.91 $0.00 
Street/Rd Const-Fnl 5506 $333,773.00 4.97 $16,588.52 
Grad/Pve/Rep/Dr 
Street or Road Construction- 5507 $0.00 3.47 $0.00 
Subsurface Work & Drivers 
Street or Road Construction-Rock 5507 $441,142.00 3.47 $15,307.63 
Excavation & Drivers 
Forest Trail Const/Exel Oper-Dr 5511 $2,430.00 4.96 $120.53 
Excavation-NOC-& Dr 6217 $0.00 3.36 $0.00 
Grading Of Land NOC & Dr 6217 $0.00 3.36 $0.00 
Vessels-NOC-State Act 7024 $19,282.00 2.77 $534.11 
Vol Chauffeurs/Drivers 7380 $59,856.00 3.72 $2,226.64 
Garbage Work/Reduction Incinerator 7590 $21,677.00 3.01 $652.48 
Police Officers & Dr 7720 $1,749,243.00 2.9 $50,728.05 
Minor Offenders 7720 $0.00 2.9 $0.00 
Inmates 7720 $0.00 2.9 $0.00 
County Search And Rescue- 7720 $0.00 2.9 $0.00 
Volunteer 
Clty/County-Veh/Equip Repr Shop-Dr 8380 $138,481.00 2.16 $2,991.19 
Vol Dpty Sheriff @ 2400/Qt 8411 $29,664.00 0.99 $293.67 
Field Representatives 8742 $306,533.00 0.2 $613.07 
Office Clerical 8810 $2,213,443.00 0.11 $2,434.79 
Attorney & Cler/Messenger/Dr 8820 $310,576.00 0.12 $372.69 
Physician & Clerical 8832 $554,896.00 0.29 $1,609.20 
Buildings-Operation By Owner Or 9015 $13,117.00 2.74 $359.41 
Lessee & Drivers 
County Fairs/Dr 9016 $0.00 2.01 $0.00 
Snow Removal -Streets/Roads-Dr 9402 $101,099.00 4.56 $4,610.11 
Garbage/Ash/Refuse Collectn Dr 9403 $0.00 4.16 $0.00 
Municipal/Twn/Cnty /State Em p-NOC 9410 $247,440.00 1.32 $3,266.21 
Total manual premium $6,564,751.00 $103,645.69 

Descri[!tlon Basis Factor Premium 
EL Increased Limits premium (Part II) $103,645.69 1.004 $414.58 
Total subject premium $104,060.27 

Descrietion Basis Factor Premium 
Experience Rating $104,060 .27 1.75 $78,045.20 

Pol_PC1_ P-PremEstimate Created on 06/15/202• 



WHE~Tl~ND 
ua1\M""c' curU-'l.1H¢1 

Morrow County 
Premium estimate for Guaranteed Cost 

Period: 07/01/2020 - 07/01/2021 

Total modified premium 

Description 
Pre-pay credit 

Total standard premium 

Description 
Oregon Total Premium 
Premium Discount 
Terrorism Premium 
Catastrophe Premium 
DCBS Assessment 
Total premium and assessment 

Premium discount 
schedule 

First $5,000 0.00% 
Next $10,000 10.50% 
Next $35,000 16.50% 
Over $50,000 18.00% 

The experience rating modifier ls tentative. 

Basis 
$182,105.47 

Basis 

$175,731.78 
$6,564,751.00 
$6,564,751.00 

$145,657.69 

Part Two coverage at limits of $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000 

Policy Minimum Premium: $500 

Part Two Coverage Increased Limits Minimum Premium: $120 

Maritime Coverage Minimum Premium: $0 

., Work. S81 g[!gon. 

Policy: 12261 
Plan: Version #1 

$182,105.47 

Factor Premium 
0.965 -$6,373.69 

$175,731.78 

Factor Premium 
$175,731.78 

0.1676 -$29,456.72 
0.005 $328.24 

0.01 $656.48 
1.084 $12,235.25 

$159,495.03 

Your policy premium is based on your current estimated premium and may be prorated for policies in 
effect for less than a full year or adjusted based on actual payroll by classification. 

Terrorism Premium is in addition to Policy Minimum Premium. 

Catastrophe Premium ls In addition to Policy Minimum Premium. 

DCBS Premium Assessment excludes Part Two Coverage. 

Payroll Reporting Frequency: Annual 

Policyholder Option to Reimburse SAIF Corporation for Medical Expenses (Nondisabling 
Claims Reimbursement Program): This policyholder has chosen to enroll in the Nondisabling 
Claims Reimbursement program with Quarterly claim evaluation . 

Pol_PC1_ P- PremEstimate Created on 06/15/2020 



WHt~Tl~ND 

Morrow County 
Premium estimate for Guaranteed Cost 

Period: 07/01/2020 - 07/01/2021 

Pol_PC t_P-PremEstimate 

., Work. Sal g::gon. 

Polley: 12261 
Plan: Version #1 

Created on 06/15/2020 



WH€~TL~ND 

Morrow County 
Plan description for Guaranteed Cost Plan 

Period: 07/01/2020 - 07/01/2021 

Guaranteed Cost Plan 

Policy: 12261 

SAIF Corporation's Guaranteed Cost Plan is a simple, no-risk plan that allows purchasers to know their insurance costs 
throughout the policy period. It may provide a premium discount based on volume. 

Installment payment terms 
Each installment will be the same amount based on the annual estimate divided into equal installments. Subsequent 
installments are due by the 25th day following the bill date of the installment. 

Changes In your payroll or operations during the year can result In an adjustment to your policy premium. Please 
notify us of changes in your business to avoid a large reconciliation adjustment at the end of the year. 

We will send a payroll report to you at the end of each reporting period. Return the completed payroll report to us by 
the Indicated due date or you may go to saif.com to submit payroll figures online where SAIF makes it easy by doing 
all the calculations for you. 

SAIF adds Interest at the rate of one percent per month to any past due balance. 

Your final policy premium will be adjusted after you file your actual payroll on a report sent to you at the end of the 
policy period. To make it easy, SAIF will calculate the premium for you. You can file the report by going to saif.com / 
Employer Guide / File a payroll report, or you may return the completed report to SAIF. SAIF will notify you by 
invoice of the adjustment In your premium based on the actual payroll you reported for the policy period. 

Prepay discount 
SAIF Corporation offers additional savings in exchange for paying premiums in advance. A 3.50 percent discount is 
offered for annual prepay plans. 

SAIF uses estimated premium paid in advance during the policy year to calculate the prepay discount when the policy 
is bound and Issued. The prepay discount does not change with adjustments In premium after the policy term is 
issued. 

The terrorism premium, catastrophe premium, and the Department of Consumer and Business Services (DCBS) 
premium assessment will also be estimated and paid with your prepay Installments. The prepay discount does not 
apply to the terrorism premiums or the DCBS premium assessment. 

If SAIF does not receive your first installment in our office on or before the 25th day of month preceding the new 
policy period, you will not receive the prepay discount. SAIF does not use postmark dates in determining date 
received. 

Pol_PCl_P·GCPlanDescr Created on 06/15/2020 



Morrow County 
Notice of Election for Guaranteed Cost Plan 

Period: 07/01/2020 - 07/01/2021 

Agency: Wheatland Insurance Center Inc 
Producer: Nancy Snider 

Total estimated premium and assessments: $159,495.03 

Payroll reporting frequency: Annual 

Policy: 12261 

Plan: Version #1 

., Work. S81 ~:!gon. 

Please visit salt.com and choose Safety and health for Information about safety or choose Employer Guide for 
Information about reporting payroll, paying online, filing and managing a claim, and coverage. 

Initial Installment due by 06/25/2020: $159,495.03 

I, the undersigned, as a legal representative of the Company listed above, do hereby authorize SAIF Corporation to 
Issue the policy and determine workers' compensation premiums according to the plan selection on this form. I 
have read, underst d, and agree to the terms and conditions of this plan as set forth In the proposal. 

~ ~uc.. u - Co - 10 -J u 
Date signed 

Please return this page with remittance. You may choose to pay on line at saif.com, or write the quote or 
policy number indicated in this document on your check, Make check or money order payable to: 

SAIF CORPORATION 
400 High St SE 
Salem, OR 97312-1000 

SAIF use only 
Date received 

Bond Company 

Pol_PCl_P-GCNOE 

D: $0 
Amount received 

I: $159,495 

Check no. 

Bond no. 

Created on 06/15/2020 



Property and/or Liability Proposal Summary 

Named Member 
Morrow County 
PO Box788 
Heppner, OR 97836 

;coverage 

General Liability (Aggregate Plan) 

Auto Liability 

Auto Physical Damage 

Property 

Optional Excess Liability 

Optional Excess Quake 

Optional Excess Flood 

Optional Excess Crime 

Optional Excess Cyber Liability 

Difference in Conditions 

Summery 

This is not an Invoice. Information Only. 

Agent of Record 
Wheatland Insurance-Heppner 
PO Box755 
Heppner, OR 97836 

Descrlptlon 

Contribution Limit $5,000,000 
Aggregate/Retro Deductible Credit 
Multi-Line Credit 
High Risk Activity 

Contribution 
Multi-Line Credit 

Contribution 
Multi-Line Credit 

Contribution 
Multi-Line Credit 

Not Purchased 

Not Purchased 

Not Purchased 

Not Purchased 

Not Purchased 

Not Purchased 

Contribution 
Aggregate/Retro Deductible Credit 
Multi-Line Credit 
High Risk Activity 

-citycounty insurance services 
cisoregon.org 

Proposal Date: 
Member Number: 
Effective Date: 
Tennination Date: 

Amount 

$145,941.61 
($15,000.00) 
($4,018.25) 

$3,000.00 

$38,113.68 
($1,143.41) 

$53,436.73 
($1,603.10) 

$92,621 .88 
($2,778.66) 

$330, 113.90 
($15,000.00) 
($9,543.42) 

$3,000.00 

512212020 
20023 
7/1'2.020 
7/1/2021 

Total 

$129,923.36 

$36,970.27 

$51,833.63 

$89,843.22 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

[ $308,570.48] 



Proposal Date: 5/22/2020 

CIS 
1212 Court St NE 
Salem, OR, 97301 

Coverage• 

C/S Liability Coverage Proposal 

Named Member 
Morrow County 
PO Box788 
Heppner, OR 97836 

This Proposal Does Not Bind Coverage 

-citycounty insurance services 
cisoregon .org 

Coverage Period: 7/1/2020 to 7/1/2021 

Agent of Record 
\Mieatland Insurance-Heppner 
PO Box755 
Heppner, OR 97836 

Refer to Coverage Forms for terms, c:onditions, and limitations of c:overage 

Per Occurrence Annual Aggregate 
Per Occurrence Agg/Retro 

Deductible I SIR* Deductible 

Public Entity Liability Coverage (Including Auto Liability) as 
described in CIS General & Auto Liability Coverage $200,000 $600,000 NONE $20,000 
Agreement 

Forms Applicable: CIS General & Auto Liability Coverage Agreement- CIS GUAL (7/1/2020) 

Coverage• Per Occurrence Annual Aggregate 

Excess Public Entity Liability Coverage as described in the 
CIS Excess Liability Coverage Agreement (limits shown are $4,800,000 $14,400,000 
excess of primary coverage limits) 

Forms Applicable: CIS Excess Liability Coverage Agreement- CIS XS/GL (7/1/2020) 

Coverage• Per Occurrence Annual Aggregate 

Additional layer of Excess Liability Not Purchased Not Purchased 

•Refer to the CIS General & Auto Liability Coverage Agreement and CIS Excess Liability Coverage Agreement and endorsements (if any) for detailed 
coverages, special deductibles, limits, subllmits, exclusions, and conditions that may apply. 

Excess Liability Coverage does not provide Uninsured Motorist coverage. 

Coverage 

General Liability 

Auto Liability 

Liability Total 

Contribution 

$148,941.61 

$38,113.68 

$187,055.29 

To effect c:overage, please sign, date and return this form before requested effective date. Fax or email is acceptable 

Accepted by: ----------------------------Authorized Representative / Agent 

Date: 



Auto Physical Damage Coverage Proposal -
[Proposal Da.te: 5122/2020 

CIS 
1212 Court St NE 
Salem, OR, 97301 

Autos Covered* 

Scheduled Autos 

Rented or Leased Autos (60 days or less) 

Newly Acquired Autos 

Named Member 
Morrow County 
PO Box788 
Heppner, OR 97836 

TJl ls Proposal Does Not Bind <,overage 

citycounty insurance services 
cisoregon.org 

C.overag_e Period: 7/112020 to 7/112021-] 

Agent of Record 
IMleatland Insurance-Heppner 
PO Box755 
Heppner, OR 97836 

Refer te Coverage Ferms fer terms, conditiens, and llmllal ans of coverage 

Coverage Limit Comprehensive Deductible Collision Deductible Contribution 

Per Schedule** Per Schedule .. Per Schedule** $53,436.73 

ACV Notto Exceed $100,000 $100 $500 Included 

Included $100 $500 Included 

'This represents only a brief summa,y of coverages. Please refer to CIS Auto Physical Damage Coverage Agreement for detailed covera9es, exclusions, and 
conditions tJlat may apply, 

Total Contribution: 

Fonns Applicable: 

$53,436.73 

CIS Auto Physical Damage Coverage Agreement • CIS APO (7/1/2020) 

••current CIS Auto Schedule 

To effect coverage, please sign, date and return this form before requested effective date. Fax or email is acceptable 

Accepted by: ---------------------------Authorized Representative / Agent 

Date: 



Property Coverage Proposal -
Proposal Date: 5/2212020 

CIS 
1212CourtStNE 
Salem, OR, 97301 

Named Member 
Morrow County 
PO Box788 
Heppner, OR 97836 

This Proposal Does Not Bind Coverage 

citycounty insuronce services 
cisoregon.org 

Coverage Period: 7/1/2020 to 7/1/2021 

Agent of Record 
\Nheatland Insurance-Heppner 
PO Box755 
Heppner, OR 97836 

Refer to Coverage Forms for terms, conditions, and limitations of coverage 

Coverage Limits (Per Occurrence) :* 
Building and Contents and PIO 

Mobile Equipment 
Earthquake 

Excess Earthquake - Coverage applies only if coverage limit is shown. 

Per current CIS Property Schedule 
Per current CIS Mobile Equipment Schedule 

$5,000,000 
None 

$5,000,000 Flood 
Excess Flood - Coverage applies only if coverage limit is shown. None 

$1 ,000,000 
$1,000,000 
$1 ,000,000 

Combined Loss of Revenue and Rental Value 
Combined Extra Expense and Rental Expense 
Property in Transit 
Hired, Rented or Borrowed Equipment 
Restoration/Reproduction of Books, Records, etc. 
Electronic Data Restoration/Reproduction 
Pollution Cleanup 
Crime Coverage 
Police Dogs (if scheduled) 
Off Premises Service Interruption 
Miscellaneous Coverage 
Personal Property at Unscheduled Locations 
Personal Property of Employees or Volunteers 
Unscheduled Fine Arts 
Temporary Emergency Shelter Restoration 
Difference In Conditions• Earthquake & Flood (if any) : 
Extra Items (if any): 

$150,000 
$100,000 
$250,000 
$25,000 
$50,000 
$15,000 

$100,000 
$50,000 
$15,000 
$15,000 

$100,000 
$50,000 

$0 

"This represents only a brief summary of coverages. Please refer to CIS Property Coverage Agreement for detailed coverages, exclusions, and conditions that may apply. 

Locations Covered : 

Perils Covered : 

Deductibles: 

Total Contribution: 

Forms Applicable: 

Per current CIS Property Schedule. 

Risks of Direct Physical Loss subject lo the terms, conditions and exclusions contained in the coverage forms listed 
below under Forms Applicable. 

$1,000 Per occurrence except as noted and as follows (if any) . 
$1,000 Per occurrence on scheduled mobile equipment items. 
Earthquake and Flood : Special deductibles and restrictions per Section 2 of the CIS Property Coverage Agreement. 

$92,621 .88 (Property) 

CIS Property Coverage Agreement - CIS PR (7/1/2020) 

To effect ccverage, please sign, date and return this form before requested effective date. Fax or email is acceptable 

Accepted by: ------------------------------Authorized Representative / Agent 

Date: 



Equipment Breakdown Coverage Proposal -
Proposal Date: 5/22/2020 

CIS 
1212 Court St NE 
Salem, OR, 97301 

Coverage Limits :• 
Property Damage 
Rental Value/Rental Expense 
Extra Expense 
Service Interruption 
Drying out following a flood 
Course of Construction 
Computer Equipment 
Portable Equipment 
CFC Refrigerants 
Hazardous Substance 
Data Restoration 
Perishable Goods 
Expediting Expense 
Demolition 
Ordinance or Law 
Off Premises Property Damage 
Contingent Rental Value/Rental Expense 
Newly Acquired Locations 
Extended Period of Restoration 

Named Member 
Morrow County 
PO Box788 
Heppner, OR 97836 

This Proposal Does Not Bind Coverage 

citycounty insurance services 
cisoregon .org 

Coverage Period: 7/1/2020 to 7/1/2021 

Agent of Record 
\Nneatjand Insurance-Heppner 
POBox755 
Heppner, OR 97836 

Refer to Coverage Forms for terms, conditions, and limitations of coverage 

Per current CIS Property Schedule or $100,000,000, whichever is less. 
Included in Property Damage 
lnduded in Property Damage 
Included in Property Damage 
lnduded in Property Damage 
Included in Property Damage 
lnduded in Property Damage 
Included in Property Damage 
Included in Property Damage 

$2,000,000 
$250,000 

$2,000,000 
$2,000,000 
$2,000,000 
$2,000,000 

$250,000 
$250,000 

$1,000,000 / 365 Days Max 
30Days 

*This represents only a brief summary of coverages. Please refer to CIS Equipment Breakdown Coverage Agreement for detailed coverages, exclusions, and 
conditions that may apply. 

Locations Covered: 

Deductible: 

Contribution : 

Forms Applicable: 

Per current CIS Property Schedule. 

$1,000 Ail Coverages: 24 hour waiting period applies for service interruption. 

Included 

CIS Equipment Breakdown Coverage Agreement- CIS BM (7/1/2020) 

To effect coverage, please sign, date and return this form before requested effective date. Fax or email is acceptable 

Accepted by: ----------------------------Authorized Representative / Agent 

Date: 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of 2) 
5d 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners 
(See notations at bottom of form) 

P,·esenter at BOC: Kate Knop 
Department: Finance 

Phone Number (Ext): x5302 
Requested Agenda Date: 06/24/2020 

Short Title of Agenda Item: 
( plea e) Equity Fund - Loan Review Committee and Policy & Procedures 

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 
D Order or Resolution D Appointments 
D Ordinance/Public Hearing: D Update on Project/Committee 
D 1st Reading D 2nd Reading D Consent Agenda Eligible 
D Public Comment Anticipated: ~ Discussion & Action 

Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 15 minutes 
D Document Recording Required D Purchase Pre-Authorization 
D Contract/ Agreement D Other 

0 N/A 
Contractor/Entity: 

Purchase Pre-Authoriza lioos, Conrracts & Agreements 

Contractor/Entity Address: 
Effective Dates - From: Through: 
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line: 
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? D Yes Ii] No 

_ _______________ County Counsel 
DATE 

Finance Office - ------ ---------
DATE 

u Human Resources - ---------------

Required for all BOC meetings 

Required for all BOC meetings 

*Required for all legal documents 

*Required for all contracts; other 
items as appropriate. 

*If appropriate 
DATE *Allow 1 week for re,,iew (submit to all simultaneously). Whe_n each office has notified the submitting 

department of approval, dieu submit the regm·st to the BOC for nlacemcnt on the agemla. 
Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners ( originals 
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. 

Rev: 3/30/20 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of 2) 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY): 

On March 25, 2015, the Morrow County Commissioners unanimously approved to appoint the 
following representatives to the Equity Fund Loan Review Committee: Banner Bank, Bank of 
Eastern Oregon, Community Bank, Willow Creek Valley Economic Development Group, 
Morrow County Finance Director, and Gary Frederickson, At-Large, representing Boardman and 
Irrigon. 

However, on January 10, 2020 Community Bank closed the local Heppner branch which was the 
only branch located in Morrow County. 

The Equity Fund Policies and Procedures as outlined in Paragraph 9 states, "The Committee will 
be comprised of a representative of each of the two financial organizations in the County, those 
being Bank of Eastern Oregon and Banner Bank, a member of Willow Creek Valley Economic 
Development Group, an at large member representing the interests of the cities of Boardman and 
Irrigon and the Morrow County Finance Director." 

In addition, The Greater Eastern Oregon Development Corporation (GEODC) has received an 
Equity Fund loan request and the Committee will need to meet in the next couple of weeks. 

2. FISCAL IMP ACT: 

None at this time. 

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S): 

It is recommended the Board of Commissioners consider removing Community Bank from the 
Loan Review Committee as they no longer have a financial organization in Morrow County. 

~ Attach additional background documentation as needed. 

Rev : 3/30/20 



Present 
Judge Terry Tallman 
Commissioner Leann Rea 
Commissioner Don Russell 

Morrow County Court 
March 25, 2015 

Heppner, Oregon 
Pioneer Annex Conference Room 

Karen Wolff, Executive Secretary/Personnel Director 
Rick Worden, Finance Director 
Mike Gorman, Assessor/Tax Collector 
Gayle Gutierrez, Treasurer 
Roberta Lutcher, Court Executive Assistant 

Judge Tallman called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. 

City and Citizen Comments - Lexington/Ione 
Bobbi Childers, Clerk 

Ms. Childers asked Burke O'Brien, Public Works Director, when the road from Ella over to 
Bombing Range Road and Baseline Lane will receive some work because the potholes are very 
bad creating a potentiaUy dangerous situation when encountering traffic in the other direction. 
Mr. O'Brien said the Road Committee meeting would have been a good time to bring this up. 
Ms. Childers said we don't know when those happen. Mr. O'Brien said they are advertised and 
we will be working on some of those roads. 

Ms. Childers then asked, "When will we get County Court minutes?" Ms. Wolff said we're 
about to publish them and they will be turned into the Clerk's Office next week and then things 
will be caught up. Ms. Childers said we have minutes from December 2014, but nothing for 
2015 ... how can we know what's going on when we don't see them for three months, it's 
frustrating. Commissioner Rea asked if there are any particular minutes she wants to see. Ms. 
Childers said we should see them when they're approved. Commissioner Rea said the minutes 
need the supporting documents to go with them, .. if you have a citizen with an issue about a 
meeting, call us, if approved, we'U share them. Ms. Wolff said we can release them even in draft 
form. Brief discussion about processing of minutes with documents. Ms. Childers said she 
wants written minutes not the attachments. Judge Tallman said we'll note your request. 

Open Agenda 
Ms. Wolff said she has some items and Public Works is here to discuss plans for repairs to the 
Courthouse from the recent sewer damage. 

Judge Tallman said he has a report from a Court Security meeting which may be more 
appropriate for Long Range Planning this afternoon. 

Page 1 oflO 



Weed Department Policy and Weed Inspector Job Description 

Ms. Wolff said the Commissioners have the most up-to-date policy and job description in an 
attempt to ensure they match. Minor changes were discussed for each. 

Commissioner Russell moved to approve the Morrow County Weed Department Policy, dated 
March 2015, with minor changes such as changing the title from Weed Inspector to Weed 
Coordinator/Inspector. Commissioner Rea seconded. Unanimous approval. 

Commissioner Russell moved to approve the job description for the position titled Weed 
Coordinator/Inspector with minor grammatical changes, dated March 2015. Commissioner Rea 
seconded. Unanimous approval. 

Minutes 
Commissioner Rea moved to approve the minutes of March 18th, with correction. Commissioner 
Russell seconded. Unanimous approval. 

Commissioner Russell moved to approve the Executive Session minutes of March 18th, as 
presented Judge Tallman seconded Unanimous approval. 

Claims 
Commissioner Rea moved to approve two Payroll Payables, Immediate & Electronic, both dated 
March 51\ and another dated March 181\ and Accounts Payable, dated March 26th, in the 
amount of $444,246.91. Commissioner Russell seconded Unanimous approval. 

Correspondence Reviewed 
• Letter from Oregon Department of Environmental Quality to Morrow County Public 

Works regarding approval of the Morrow Watershed 2014 Opportunity to Recycle 
Program. 

• Agenda for the Morrow County Planning Commission meeting, Tuesday, March 315\ 

7:00 p.m., Heppner City Hall. 

New Business 
Equity Fund Loan Review Committee Appointments 

The Commissioners decided it would be better to state the Committee will consist of 
representatives from each of the entities, rather than specifically named individuals from those 
entities. They also decided to include Community Bank in the list. 

Commissioner Rea moved to appoint members to the Equity Fund Loan Review Committee, 
effective March 2 5, 2015, to include representatives from Banner Bank, Bank of Eastern Oregon, 
Community Bank, Willow Creek Valley Economic Development Graup, Morrow County Finance 
Director, and Gary Frederickson, At-Large, representing Boardman and Irrigon. Commissioner 
Russell seconded. Unanimous approval. 

Page 4 of 10 



Equity Fund Loan Review Committee 
March 25, 2015 

At Large representing Boardman & Irrigon 
Gary Frederickson 

PO Box 109 

Boardman, OR 97818 

541-481-2822 (Oregon Hay) 

Bank of Eastern Oregon 

PO Box 39 

Heppner, OR 97836 

541-676-0201 

Banner Bank 
PO Box 230 

Boardman, OR 97818 

541-481-9201 

Community Bank 
PO Box 278 

Heppner, OR 97836 

541-676-5745 

Morrow County Finance Director 
PO Box 867 

Heppner, OR 97836 

541-676-5615 

Willow Creek Valley Economic Development Group 
PO Box 1232 

Heppner, OR 97836 

541-676-5536 

Appointed 

3-25-2015 

3-25-2015 

3-25-2015 

3-25-2015 

3-25-2015 

3-25-2015 



VOL. 138 NO. 40 6 Pages wednesday, October 2, 2019 Morrow Coooty. Heppner, Oregon 

Heppner Community Bank 
scheduled to close 

Based on current eco
nom ic factors and shifting 
banking landscape, Com
munity Bank has decided to 
consolidate the operations 
of its Heppner branch with 
the bank's Henniston loca
tion. Effective January I 0, 
2020, the Heppner branch 
of Community Bank at 
127 N. Main Street, will 
be closed permanently 
and consolidated with the 
Henniston branch at 50 E. 
Theater Lane. 

~•we appreciate the 
trust and confidence the 
Heppner community has 

placed in us by utilizing 
our banking services for 
the past IO years," says 
Community Bank pres
ident Tom Moran. Bank 
customers will not have to 
perform any action during 
this transition, unless they 
have a safe deposit box 
held at the Heppner branch 
location. All other services 
will continue uninterrupted. 
Customers' account num
ber( s) will not change and 
they may continue to use 
debit/credit cards, online 
banking, the mobile app, 

mobile check deposit and to 
write checks as usual. 

Local Heppner branch 
manager. Judi Hall. will 
continue working at the 
bank in Heppner, through 
the closing date, where she 
and her staff will be assist
ing all current customers 
with questions, safe depos
it box closures/transfers 
or account type changes 
during the transition. 

The official closing 
will be at the end of regular 
banking hours on Friday, 
January 1 O, 2020, at 5 p.m. 



Morrow County 

Equity Fund 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

The following policies and procedures are used as a guideline when 
reviewing loan applications. It will be the duty of the Loan Review Committee 
(Committee) to detennine ellglblllty and propose a loan to the Morrow County 
Court (Court) for final approval that Is within the fund guidelines. 

A. FINANCING POLICIES 

The Equity Fund will be guided by the following financing policies: 

1. All loans will fall within the parameters of the "Morrow County Equity Fund" 
document that was provided to the Oregon Legislature for the purpose of 
securing the $500,000 to fund this program and which Is attached to these 
Policies and Procedures and by this reference incorporated herein. 

2. All loans will be made in conjunction with primary financing from a traditional 
financial institution. In addition to the Morrow County loan application the 
participating financial Institution and borrower wlll provide copies of their loan 
analysis, including pro-forma financial data, credit reports and any other 
relevant information, to the Loan Review Committee for their consideration 
and review. 

3. Working capital loans will not exceed 50% of the total loan portfolio. 

4. Interest rates will be determined by the Court. 

5. Loan tenns for each project will be recommended by the loan review 
committee. However, no loan shall exceed 10 years. 

6. The Court will have the authority to approve special financing, such as 
deferrals of principal or interest payments or both, to meet a borrower's need 
for high-risk financing and to leverage financing from conventional borrowers. 
The Court may also forgive or postpone loan payments due to special 
circumstances or unanticipated difficulties. When considering requests for 
postponement of payment obligations, the Court will consider the request on 
Its merits alone and will base its decision on a thorough analysis of the 
business's financial statements, especially historical and projected cash flows. 
Deferrals on principal payments will be granted for businesses that can 
evidence the ability to achieve a positive cash flow within a specified time. 

Equity Fund P&P Am<nded 07-2008.doc • I . 

I 



7. With regard to collateral, the Court will consider the merits and potential 
economic benefits of each request. When appropriate, liens, assignments, 
and guarantees will be secured in accordance with the following principles: 
a. To encourage the participation of other lenders and investors, Morrow 

County's lien position may be subordinated and made inferior to liens 
securing other loans made in connection with the project. 

b. Collateral for working capital loans will normally be liens on inventories, 
receivables, fixed assets or other available assets of the borrower. Such 
liens will be subordinated only to existing liens of record. 

c. The Court may also require security In the form of assignment of patents, 
licenses, and other assets with a realizable value. 

d. Life and/or disability insurance may be required on each owner or key 
person(s) of the business or corporation with 20% or more ownership. 
Such policies will be assigned to Morrow County In the amount of the 
original loan. 

e. Hazard or liability insurance will be required on all businesses and policies 
will have Morrow County listed as loss payee. 

f. Flood insurance will be required on properties located in the flood plain. 
g. Personal guarantees will be required from principal owners when the 

Court determines that sufficient collateral is not available for the loan. 
Personal guarantees will be required for any person owning twenty 
percent or more of a corporation that will borrow from the fund. 

h. A minimum of 1:1 collateral coverage is required. The discounted value of 
the collateral will be determined by the Court. The following loan to value 
guidelines are used: real estate - 90%, new equipment, furniture and 
fixtures - 80%, used equipment, furniture and fixtures - 50%. 

8. A loan application fee of 1 % of the loan amount will be charged for all loans, 
up to a maximum of $500. This fee shall be non-refundable. 

9. A Loan Review Committee will be appointed by the Court to provide an Initial 
review and recommendation of all loan requests to the Court. The Committee 
will be comprised of a representative of each of the two financial 
organizations in the county, those being Bank of Eastern Oregon and Banner 
Bank, a member of the Willow Creek Valley Economic Development Group, 
an at large member representing the Interests of the cities of Boardman and 
Irrigon and the Morrow County Finance Director. 

10. The Greater Eastern Oregon Development Corporation (GEODC) shall act 
as the loan administrator for the Fund on behalf of the County and, under the 
terms of that agreement, shall service the loans made by the Fund. Under 
said agreement GEODC shell collect all costs associated with loan closings 
from the bo.rrower(s). 

11. There wlll be no construction phase financing. 

Equiry Fund PllP Amended 07-2003.doc ·2 · 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of2) 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners 
(See notations at bottom of form) 

Presenter at BOC: Justin Nelson Phone Number (Ext): 5627 
Department: County Counsel Requested Agenda Date: 6/24/2020 
Short Title of Agenda Item: 

( o acronyms please) Resolution Discussion- First Addendum to 2017 VaData Enterprise 
zone Ai!reement 

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 
~ Order or Resolution D Appointments 
D Ordinance/Public Hearing: D Update on Project/Committee 
D 1st Reading D 2nd Reading D Consent Agenda Eligible 
D Public Comment Anticipated: D Discussion & Action 

Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 
D Document Recording Required D Purchase Pre-Authorization 
D Contract/ Agreement D Other 

• NIA 
Contractor/Entity: 

Purchase Pre-Authorizations. Conlracls & Agreements 

Contractor/Entity Address: 
Effective Dates - From: Through: 
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line: 
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? Ii] Yes D No 

Reviewed By: 

_______________ Department Director 
DATE 

Administrator ---------------DATE 

_______________ County Counsel 
DATE 

Finance Office ---------------
DATE 

Human Resources ---------------

Required for all BOC meetings 

Required for all BOC meetings 

*Required for all legal documents 

*Required for all contracts; other 
items as appropriate. 

*If appropriate 

D 

DATE '' .\llnw I week for review (submit lo all simultaneously). Whtn each office has notified the submitting 

denaclJDfl] I or !1Uprm ul, thru <11 hm j1 th,• ri•m1rst In lbr ROC fo r 1])81:• mr nt on th• H" \'l!!fa, 

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals 
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. 

Rev 3/30/20 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of 2) 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY): 

Discussion regarding the First Addendum to the 2017 VADATA Enterprise Zone Agreement. 

2. FISCAL IMPACT: 

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S): 

1. Request that Resolution be finalized and placed on next available consent agenda. 
2. Request changes/further research. 
3. Move to Approve Resolution at June 24th BoC meeting. 

~ Attach additional background documentation as needed. 

Rev: 3/30/20 



DocuSign Envelope ID: D7EA2FB4-7819-45C1-9CE7-12FCE351F342 CC 620 MSAD 00197348 2020 TR 

FIRST ADDENDUM TO THE AGREEMENT FOR LONG-TERM RURAL ENTERPRISE ZONE 
ABATEMENT 

This First Addendum to the Long-Term Rural Enterprise Zone Tax Abatement 
("Addendum") is made and entered into as of May 15, 2020 ("Addendum Effective Date"), by the 
COLUMBIA RIVER ENTERPRISE ZONE II BOARD, representing the sponsor entities 
MORROW COUNTY, OREGON ("Morrow County"), the CITY OF BOARDMAN, OREGON 
("City of Boardman"), the PORT OF MORROW, OREGON ("Port of Morrow") and AMAZON 
DATA SERVICES, INC., formerly known as VADATA, INC. (the "Company"). Morrow County, 
the City of Boardman, and the Port of Morrow are referenced collectively in this Addendum as 
"Sponsors." Sponsors and Company are sometimes collectively referenced in this Addendum 
as "Parties." 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Sponsors and the Company are parties to that certain Agreement for 
Long-Term Rural Enterprise Zone Abatement dated December 4, 2017 (the "Agreement"). 

WHEREAS, the Sponsors and the Company desire to clarify the Annual Improvement 
Payment (defined below) due for small data centers included within the Facility, and subject to 
exemption under the Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the Parties hereby acknowledge and agree that, due to their anticipated 
building design specifications, certain investments and facilities will be subject to the obligations 
contained herein. 

WHEREAS, the Parties hereby agree that this Addendum is necessary to clarify certain 
provisions of the Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of the parties, each to the 
other giving, the parties do hereby agree as follows: 

ADDENDUM 

I. Section B of the Agreement is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following: 

B. Additional Obligations: As established solely under this Agreement, the Parties 
agree to the additional obligations set forth below: 

1. Annual Improvement Payment ("AIP"): For each year of the 
Exemption Period . the Company shall pay to the Sponsors an AIP in the 
amount of i) $1 ,000,000 for each data center located within the Facility 
that is equal to or greater than 15,000 square feet and that is issued. and 
maintains a certificate of occupancy. and (ii) $60,000 for each data 
center located within the Facility that does not exceed 15,000 square feet 
and that is issued , and maintains. a certificate of occupancy; provided, 
however he minimum total AIP for each year of the Exemption Period 
will be $2.000 000 . 

First Addendum to the Agreement For Long-Term Rural EnterP,r/~jclne Abatement 
AMAZON CONFIDENTIAL _., 

Page 1 of 3 



DocuSign Envelope ID: D7EA2FB4-7B19-45C1-9CE7-12FCE351F342 CC 620 MSAD 00197348 2020 TR 

2. Additional Annual Fee ("AAF"): For each year of the Exemption 
Period, the Company shall pay to the Sponsors an AAF in an amount 
determined by applying the tax code area ad valorem property tax rate to 
$25,000,000, increased annually at the rate of 3%. 

3. The Company shall make the AIP and AAF payable to the "Columbia 
River Enterprise Zone II Board" and deposit the AIP and AAF to the 
Morrow County Assessor on or before November 15 of each year of the 
Exemption Period . 

a. The mailing address for payment is: Morrow County Assessor, 
P.O. Box 247, Heppner, OR 97836. 

4. Payment Reduction for Charitable Payment: The Company may make 
payments to or for the benefit of charities or non-profit entities that benefit 
Morrow County, or residents of Morrow County, and that are reasonably 
approved by the Sponsors (a "Charitable Payment"). Additionally, the 
Company may make housing allowance payments to its employees, or 
employees of affiliates of the Company, who reside in Morrow County (a 
"Morrow County Housing Allowance Payment"). If the Company makes a 
Charitable Payment or a Morrow County Housing Allowance Payment (a 
"Qualifying Payment"), the Company may reduce its payments due under 
this Paragraph B on a dollar-for-dollar basis in an amount equal to the 
Qualifying Payment made during each year, up to a total reduction each 
year in the amount of $150,000. 

5. Permit Fees: The Company will pay all standard building permit and 
other permit fees related to the Facility. The Company further agrees that 
if it has a choice between obtaining an equivalent permit, license, or 
similar approval for the Facility from either a local governmental entity or 
a state entity, the Company will obtain the permit, license, or similar 
approval from the local governmental entity. 

6. Payments Generally: With respect to the Facility, and to the fullest 
extent of applicable law, the Company will not be required to pay sums to 
any local taxing authority in which the Facility are located other than the 
AIP, AAF, or any amounts due under this Section V. 

II. Entire Agreement: This Addendum contains the entire understanding of the Parties 
regarding the subject matter of this Addendum. Except as specifically provided herein, 
all terms and provisions contained in the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full 
force and effect as written for the duration of the Agreement. 

Ill. Counterparts. This Addendum may be executed by the signing of counterparts. The 
execution of this instrument by each of the parties signing a counterpart hereof shall 
constitute a valid execution, and this instrument and all of its counterparts so executed 
shall be deemed for all purposes to be a single instrument. Signatures transmitted by 
telecopy or electronic mail shall be binding as originals . 

[Signature page follows] 

First Addendum to the Agreement For Long-Term Rural Enterpri~~.{one Abatement Page 2 of 3 

AMAZON CONFIDENTIAL ____.., 



DocuSign Envelope 10: 07EA2FB4-7B1M5C1-9CE7-12FCE351F342 CC 620 MSAD 00197348 2020 TR 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties, by their respective duly authorized 
representatives, have executed this Addendum on the date shown below. 

Columbia River Enterprise Zone II Board 

IA. w1 
Dated this 8 day of fU4 j , 2020 

Don Russell, CREZ II Chair 

Amazon Data Services, Inc. 

Dated this __ day of ______ , 2020. 
May 6, 2020 

Roger Wehner 

First Addendum to the Agreement For Long-Tern, Rural Ente~~~~one Abatement 
AMAZON CONFIDENTIAL l-

Page 3 of 3 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 85488B79-AC99-4A 1 E-BDA9-62AD93F4068D CC INCA 00054892 2017 TR 

AGREEMENT FOR LONG-TERM RURAL ENTERPRISE ZONE ABATEMENT 

This agreement for Long-Term Rural Enterprise Zone Tax Abatement ("Agreement") is 
executed by the COLUMBIA RIVER ENTERPRISE ZONE II BOARD, representing the sponsor 
entities MORROW COUNTY, OREGON ("Morrow County"), the CITY OF BOARDMAN, 
OREGON ("City of Boardman"), the PORT OF MORROW, OREGON ("Port of Morrow") and 
VADATA, INC. (the "Company"). Morrow County, the City of Boardman, and the Port of Morrow 
are referenced collectively in this Agreement as "Sponsors." Sponsors and Company are 
sometimes collectively referenced in this Agreement as "Parties." 

RECITALS 

The Sponsors have established the Columbia River Enterprise Zone II pursuant to 
Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 285C.045, et seq. 

With the aid of tax incentives from the Sponsors, the Company, either directly or through 
an affiliate, intends to make investments exceeding $200 million in the Columbia River 
Enterprise Zone II (the "Zone") by building and operating new data centers located in the Zone. 

The Company has previously made significant investments in the Zone that have 
contributed to long-term investment and employment in the Zone. 

The Company and the Sponsors desire to enter into this Agreement to encourage the 
Company to continue to make investments in the Zone and to streamline and simplify the 
reporting and administration of tax abatements made available to the Company. 

The Company has timely and properly filed the Oregon Department of Revenue's 
Certification Application for Long-Term Rural Oregon Tax Incentive ("Application") with respect 
to the Facility (as defined herein). 

The Company must execute a first-source hiring agreement, pursuant to ORS 285C.215, 
regarding the new permanent jobs to be created in Morrow County upon completion and 
operation of the Facility. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in recognition of the foregoing recitals, in consideration of the 
covenants contained herein, and in accordance with ORS 285C.400 through 285C.420, the 
Parties hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

I. The Facility: The "Facility" will consist of investments in data centers to be developed 
by the Company or its affiliates and located in the Zone, which will include the land, real 
property improvements, machinery and equipment, related personal property, and 
related support facilities and buildings, which may be installed, constructed, added, or 
placed in service in the Zone during the term of this Agreement. The Facility is currently 
expected to be located in the Zone at or near 75300 Lewis & Clark Drive, Boardman, 
Oregon 97818; 79553 Rippee Road, Boardman, Oregon 97818, including 79539, 79531, 
79536, and 79540 Rippee Road; provided, however, the Facility (and addresses) shall 

Page 1 of 9 



DocuSign Envelope ID: B54B8B79-AC99-4A 1 E-BDA9-62AD93F4068D CC INCA 00054892 2017 TR 

be amended to account for any changes, modifications, or additional addresses to future 
data centers developed in the Zone during the term of this Agreement. 

II. Exemption for the Facility: The Sponsors jointly acknowledge and agree that, upon 
approval of the Company's Application, and upon certification by the Sponsors and the 
Morrow County Assessor, and conditioned upon the satisfaction of other requirements 
under ORS 285C.400 to 285C.420 and this Agreement, the Facility will be exempt from 
ad valorem property tax on the Facility as provided in ORS 285C.409(1). The property 
tax exemption granted by this Agreement will to the maximum extent permitted by this 
law exempt from all ad valorem property taxation the real property improvements, 
personal improvements, and tangible and intangible personal property (excluding land, 
as set forth in ORS 285C.409(5)(a)) comprising or installed, constructed, added or 
otherwise placed at the Facility, all as set forth in ORS 285C.409 and OAR 123-690-
0100 and 123-690-6200. 

Ill. Term of Exemption: Pursuant to ORS 285C.409(1), and conditioned upon the 
satisfaction of other requirements under ORS 285C.400 to 285C.420 and this 
Agreement, the Facility will be exempt from ad valorem property tax as follows: 

A. For the first tax year following the calendar year in which the Company is certified 
or after which construction of the Facility commences, whichever event occurs 
later; 

B. For each subsequent tax year in which the Facility is not yet in service as of the 
assessment date; and 

C. For a period of 15 consecutive property tax years commencing as of the first tax 
year in which the Facility is in service as of the assessment date (the "Exemption 
Period"). As used in this Agreement, the Facility is "in service" or "in operation" 
on the date the Facility is issued its first certificate of occupancy. 

IV. Scope of Exemption: Pursuant to ORS 285C.409(1)(a) and (b) and subject to Section 
II, the Company and its affiliates are entitled to exemption from ad valorem property tax 
with respect to all qualified property, whether leased or owned and whether tangible or 
intangible, of the Company and its affiliates used in connection with the development 
and construction on the Facility. 

V. Obligations of the Company: The Company will comply with the following conditions 
as authorized under ORS 285C.403(3)(c): 

A. Statutory and Administrative Requirements: The Company agrees to comply 
with the requirements of ORS 285C.409 and 285C.412(5) as well as those 
provided in Oregon Administrative Rules ("OAR") Chapter 123, Division 690, 
including: 

1. Minimum Facility Investment: As provided in ORS 285C.412(5), by the 
end of the year in which the Facility is placed in service, the total cost of 
the Facility will exceed $200 million. 

2. Minimum Distance: At the time the Company will be certified, the 
location of the Facility will be 1 O or more miles from Interstate Highway 5, 
as measured between the two closest points between the Facility and 
anywhere along that interstate highway. 

Page 2 of 9 



DocuSign Envelope ID: B54B8B79-AC99-4A 1 E-BDA9-62AD93F4068D CC INCA 00054892 2017 TR 

3. Minimum Employment: The Company and its affiliates will hire and 
thereafter continue to employ during the term of this exemption at least 1 O 
full-time employees at the Facility by the end of the third calendar year 
following the year in which the Facility is first placed in service. In 
accordance with OAR 123-690-4200, the Minimum Employment 
requirement will be satisfied for any given year if: 

a. The number of employees performing their jobs at the Facility 
during the year, less the number of employees performing their 
jobs at the Facility 12 months before the Facility was placed in 
service, is greater than or equal to 10. 

4. Minimum Employee Compensation: The annual average 
compensation for the Company's employees and employees of its 
affiliates at the Facility will be at least equal to or greater than 130 percent 
of the County average annual wage, in accordance with the definitions 
and guidelines in OAR Chapter 123, Division 690. This requirement may 
be initially met in any year during the first five years after the year in 
which operation of the Facility begins, and thereafter is met if the annual 
average compensation for employees at the Facility for the year exceeds 
the average wage in the County for the year in which the requirement was 
initially met. 

B. Additional Obligations: As established solely under this Agreement, the 
Parties agree to the additional obligations set forth below: 

1. Annual Improvement Payment ("AIP"): For each year of the 
Exemption Period, the Company shall pay to the Sponsors an AIP in the 
amount of $1 ,000,000 for each data center located within the Facility that 
is issued, and maintains, a certificate of occupancy; provided, however, 
the minimum total AIP for each year of the Exemption Period will be 
$2,000,000. 

2. Additional Annual Fee: For each year of the Exemption Period, the 
Company shall pay to the Sponsors an Additional Annual Fee in an 
amount determined by applying the County's ad valorem property tax rate 
to $25 million, increased annually at the rate of 3%. 

3. The Company shall make the AIP and Additional Annual Fee payable to 
the "Columbia River Enterprise Zone II Board" and deposit the AIP and 
Additional Annual Fee to the Morrow County Assessor on or before 
November 15 of each year of the Exemption Period. 

a. The mailing address for payment to the Morrow County Assessor 
is: Morrow County Assessor, P.O. Box 247, Heppner, Oregon 
97836. 

4. Payment Reduction for Charitable Payment: The Company may make 
payments to or for the benefit of charities or non-profit entitles that benefit 
Morrow County, or residents of Morrow County, and that are reasonably 
approved by the Sponsors (a uc haritable Payment"). Additionally, the 
Company may make housing allowance payments to its employees, or 
employees of affiliates of the Company, who reside in Morrow County (a 

Page 3 of 9 

~ 



DocuSign Envelope ID: B5488879-AC99-4A 1 E-BDA9-62AD93F4068D CC INCA 00054892 2017 TR 

"Morrow County Housing Allowance Payment"). If the Company makes a 
Charitable Payme·nt or a Morrow County Housing Allowance Payment (a 
"Qualifying Payment"), the Company may reduce its payments due under 
this Paragraph B on a dollar-for-dollar basis in an amount equal to the 
Qualifying Payment made during each year, up to a total reduction each 
year in the amount of $150,000. 

5. Permit Fees: The Company will pay all standard building permit and 
other permit fees related to the Facility. The Company further agrees that 
if it has a choice between obtaining an equivalent permit, license, or 
similar approval for the Facility from either a local governmental entity or 
a state entity, the Company will obtain the permit, license, or similar 
approval from the local governmental entity. 

6. Payments Generally: With respect to the Facility, and to the fullest 
extent of applicable law, the Company will not be required to pay sums to 
any local taxing authority in which the Facility is located other than the 
AIP, the Additional Annual Fee, or any amounts due under this Section V. 

VI. Obllgations of Sponsors: Sponsors will comply with the following conditions: 

A. Resolutions: Within 30 days of the Effective Date (as that capitalized term is 
defined below), the governing body of each of the County, the City, and the Port 
of Morrow will adopt resolutions approving and authorizing the execution of this 
Agreement. Such resolutions will serve to approve the Facility for a property tax 
exemption under ORS 285C.409 and constitute the resolutions described in ORS 
285C.403(3)(a). 

B. Certification: Within 30 days of satisfaction of the criteria set forth under 
ORS 285C.403(3), Sponsors and the Assessor will approve and countersign the 
application submitted by the Company, thereby certifying the Company as 
eligible for the property tax exemption contemplated by this Agreement. 

C. Tax Exemption: Sponsors hereby sets the period of the property tax exemption 
for the Facility for purposes of ORS 285C.409(1)(c) to be 15 consecutive years, 
beginning with the first tax year following the calendar year in which the Facility is 
first placed in service. 

D. Allocation of Payments: Sponsors are solely responsible for the allocation, 
budgeting, division, and disposition of the AIP, Additional Annual Fee, and any 
other payment due under this Agreement, including any portions that may be due 
or payable to the City, County, Port of Morrow, or any other jurisdiction. In no 
event shall the Company have any liability in connection with any disagreement, 
error, or conflict related to the division, allocation, or distribution of such amounts 
by the Sponsors or County. In no event will the Company have any liability or 
obligation to any other person with respect to the AIP and Additional Annual Fee 
after the Company has discharged its duty to pay as set forth in Section V above, 
and Sponsors shall hold the Company harmless with respect to any claims to the 
contrary. 

E. Sponsors' Support: Sponsors will support the Company in the Company's 
efforts to qualify for and obtain other tax incentives in connection with the Facility, 
including by promptly executing such letters or other documentation of support as 

Page 4 of 9 



DocuSign Envelope ID: B5488879-AC99-4A 1 E-BDA9-62AD93F4068D cc INCA 00054892 2017 TR I 

may be reasonably requested by the Company, but Sponsors make no warranty 
with respect to its ability to affect any outcome in such regards. 

VII. Termination Rights: Each party may terminate this Agreement as follows: 

A. The Company's Termination Right: The Company may elect to terminate this 
Agreement for any reason or no reason by delivery of written notice thereof to 
Sponsors. Upon delivery of any such notice, this Agreement will be of no further 
force or effect and no party will have any further rights or obligations hereunder, 
except for obligations owing and unpaid on the date of termination. 

B. Sponsors' Termination Right: If the Company fails to make any payment 
required under this Agreement within 30 days of the due date of such payment, 
or fails to fulfill any other obligation of this agreement within 30 days of written 
notice specifying the obligation which is in default, Sponsors may terminate the 
Agreement upon written notice to the Company. Such notice must provide an 
additional 60 days in which the Company may cure any such payment deficiency 
or default. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Sponsors may not terminate the 
Agreement if the Company's failure to pay is due to Sponsors' error. 

C. Mutual Termination Right: The parties may terminate this Agreement at any 
time upon mutual written agreement of termination . 

VIII. Confidentiality: 

A. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is a public record subject to 
Oregon's public records laws. If any person or entity requests any data, 
documents, or notes about the Company or its business practices (other than this 
Agreement) that are related to this Agreement or its tax exemption, whether by 
court order, subpoena, Oregon Public Records Request, or other reason, the 
Sponsors shall not release any such information until all of the following steps 
are completed: 

1. the Sponsors shall notify Company within three (3) business days of the 
receipt of such request; 

2. if the Company elects to challenge or appeal the release of such 
information, the Company shall notify the Sponsors within nine (9) 
business days of receipt of the request, and the Company shall assume 
all responsibilities, costs, and expenses for such defense; 

3. if the Company does not notify the Sponsors within nine (9) business 
days of receipt of such request, the Sponsors shall be authorized to 
release the requested information to the requester and the Sponsors shall 
have no liability to the Company for such release of such Confidential 
Information. 

Notwithstanding the above, the Sponsors agree to cooperate with the Company 
in any challenge or appeal to a court order, subpoena, public records request, or 
other applicable law requiring the release of Confidential Information. The 
Company shall indemnify and hold the Sponsors harmless for all costs and 
expenses incurred in the challenge or appeal to the release of such information, 
including court and appeal costs and the Sponsors' attorney's fees and 
expenses. Nothing in this section requires the parties to refuse to disclose such 

Page 5 of 9 

~ 



DocuSign Envelope ID: B54B8B79-AC99-4A1 E-BDA9-62AD93F4068D CC INCA 00054892 2017 TR 

information after a final order, including any appeal, by a competent judicial 
authority. If Oregon law is amended to require responses to public records 
requests be made less than twelve (12) business days from the request, the 
number of business days the Company has to respond pursuant to Paragraphs 
(1) and (2) above shall be reduced to the number of business days to respond to 
a public records request as mandated by Oregon law, less two business days. 

IX. Miscellaneous Provisions: 

A. Effective Date: This Agreement becomes effective on the date at which this 
Agreement has been signed by all of the Parties. 

B. Assignment: Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the other party, except that the Company may assign this Agreement 
to any of its affiliates or to any wholly owned subsidiary of its ultimate holding 
company, or to a new entity without the prior written consent of the other party. 
Subject to this limitation, this Agreement will be binding upon, inure to the benefit 
of, and be enforceable by the parties and their respective successors and 
assigns. 

C. Amendment: This Agreement may be amended only by a written document 
signed by the party against whom enforcement is sought. 

D. Waiver: No waiver will be binding on a party unless it is in writing and signed by 
the party making the waiver. A party's waiver of a breach of a provision of this 
Agreement will not be a waiver of any other provision or a waiver of a 
subsequent breach of the same provision. This Agreement constitutes the entire 
agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof. 

E. Notices: All notices and communications relating to this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be personally delivered or sent by registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, or delivered by nationally recognized express courier 
service. Such notices and other communications shall be effective upon receipt 
if hand delivered or sent by facsimile, three (3) days after mailing if sent by mail, 
and one (1) business day after dispatch if sent by express courier, to the 
following addresses: 

If to the Company: 

Amazon.com, Inc. 
410 Terry Ave. N 
Seattle, WA 98109 
Attn: Mike Grella, Director, 
Infrastructure Global Expansion, 
Economic Development 

With copies to: 
Amazon.com, Inc. 
Attn: General Counsel (Real Estate) 
P.O. Box 81226 
Seattle, WA 98108--1226 

Amazon.com, Inc. 

Page 6 of 9 

If to Sponsors: 

Morrow County Planning Department 
Attn; Enterprise Zone Manager 
205 Third Street NE, Irrigon, OR 97844 

With copies to: 
Morrow County Planning Department 
Attn: Enterprise Zone Manager 
P.O. Box40 
Irrigon, OR 97844 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 85488879·AC99-4A 1 E·BDA9·62AD93F4068D 

Attn: Property Tax 
P.O. Box 80416 
Seattle, WA 98108-0416 

CC INCA 00054892 2017 TR 

F. Limitation of Liability: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Agreement, neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, shall be liable for: (a) 
any indirect, reliance, exemplary, incidental, speculative, punitive, special, 
consequential or similar damages that may arise in connection with this 
Agreement, (b) any lost or foregone tax revenues, or (c) any damages, liabilities, 
fees, costs, expenses, penalties, diminishments in value, losses or payments 
(including any lost or foregone tax revenues) that exceed, in the aggregate, the 
lesser of (i) the financial benefit realized by the Company under this Agreement 
and (ii) $3,000,000. 

G. Force Majeure: A party will not be deemed to be in breach, material breach, 
default or otherwise in violation of any term of this Agreement to the extent such 
party's action, inaction or omission is the result of a Force Majeure Event. The 
Company and Sponsors agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to 
promptly resolve any Force Majeure Event that adversely and materially impacts 
their performance under this Agreement. A force majeure event pauses a party's 
performance obligation for the duration of the event, but does not excuse it. 
"Force Majeure Event" means any event or occurrence that is not within the 
control of such party or its affiliates and prevents a party from performing its 
obligations under this Agreement, including without limitation, any act of God; act 
of a public enemy; war; riot; sabotage; blockage; embargo; failure or inability to 
secure materials, supplies or labor through ordinary sources by reason of 
shortages or priority; labor strike, lockout or other labor or industrial disturbance 
(whether or not on the part of agents or employees of either party); civil 
disturbance; terrorist act; power outage; fire, flood, windstorm, hurricane, 
earthquake or other casualty; any law, order, regulation or other action of any 
governing authority; any action, inaction, order, ruling moratorium, regulation, 
statute, condition or other decision of any governmental agency having 
jurisdiction over the party hereto, over the Facility or over a party's operations. 

H. Severablllty: The Parties agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is 
declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any 
law, the validity of the remaining terms and provision shall not be affected, and 
the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be construed and enforced as if the 
Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid. It is 
the intent of the Parties that, in the event a clause or provision is stricken, that 
there be added as part of this Agreement a clause or provision as similar in terms 
as may be possible, legal, and enforceable so as to provide a comparable 
property tax exemption and comparable payments as provided for in this 
Agreement. 

I. Governing Law: This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of 
Oregon, without giving effect to any conflict-of-law principle that would result in 
the laws of any other jurisdiction governing this Agreement. 

J. Venue: Any action, suit, or proceeding arising out of the subject matter of this 
Agreement will be litigated in courts located in Morrow County, Oregon. Each 

Page7of9 

~ 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 85488879-AC99-4A1 E-BDA9-62AD93F4068D CC INCA 00054892 2017 TR 

party consents and submits to the jurisdiction of any local, state, or federal court 
located in Morrow County, Oregon. 

K. Attorney's Fees: If any arbitration, action, suit, or proceeding is instituted to 
interpret, enforce, or rescind this Agreement, or otherwise in connection with the 
subject matter of this Agreement, including but not limited to any proceeding 
brought under the United States Bankruptcy Code, the prevailing party on a claim 
will be entitled to recover with respect to the claim, in addition to any other relief 
awarded, the prevailing party's reasonable attorney's fees and other fees, costs, 
and expenses of every kind, including but not limited to the costs and 
disbursements specified in ORCP 68 A(2), incurred in connection with the 
arbitration, action, suit, or proceeding, any appeal or petition for review, the 
collection of any award, or the enforcement of any order, as determined by the 
arbitrator or court. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Party's maximum liability 
under this Section 4(K) is $75,000 and in no event will any Party be obligated by 
this Section 4(K) to pay an amount in excess of $75,000. 

L. Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the 
Parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all prior 
and contemporaneous negotiations and agreements, whether written or oral, 
between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

M. Signatures: This Agreement may be signed in counterparts. A fax transmission 
of a signature page will be considered an original signature page. At the request 
of a party, the other party will confirm a fax-transmitted signature page by 
delivering an original signature page to the requesting party. 

N. Waiver of Jury Trial: With respect to any proceeding or action arising out of or 
in any way relating to this Agreement (whether in contract, tort, equity or 
otherwise), the parties knowingly, intentionally and irrevocably waive their right to 
trial by jury. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties, by their respective duly authorized 
representatives, have executed this Agreement on the date shown below. 

Columbia River Enterprise Zone II Board 

Dated this _!:f__ day of :-:::Dec.c- l,,r , 2017. 

'-t0on<2~ 
Don Russell , CREZ II Chlr 

Attest: 

Page 8 of 9 

~ 



DocuSign Envelope ID: B54B8B79-AC99-4A 1 E-BDA9-62AD93F4068D 

Vadata, Inc. 

Dated this .lL..,_ day of December 

1;?i~:go~:/~ 
~ 8EMtR~~fla 

Its: Vice President 

CC INCA 00054892 2017 TR 

I 2017, 

Page 9 of9 

~ 



PARTITION PLAT No. 2017-
Mor,ow County, Oregon LP•N•XXX R·N•XXX-17 
Township 4 North, Ranga 26 East, w.,,1., 
Portions of Sections 7 
A Part/llon of Parcel 1, P.P. 2016-06 
For; 

Port of Morrow 
P.O. Box 200, #2 Marine Drive 
Boardman, Oregon 97818 

PROPERTY DESaumm,:: 
P.irccJ l or P:ln.hlon Pl:ll !t)J (\./.)(, ,l.'\ r1k-.J In the 1(1?-,;or,J r,l l\::in.Jt lon Pl.it>, 
MnrTO"' County, Or~c,n 
LIX.11cd In Scc11on 7 ol Townshlri 4 North. Range U, t..l.\1 or thr 
\\'dl:unrlte ~kril.l1an, In lhC' Cnunlv of ~lorrr,w, 'i1.itc .;1 ftrc,an n.. 

" lVJJ-i'>b ,.,,.,, 
4.t.9S Acrd 

I I •IU't lA: J\MtW ....... U,W,, ~ 
• I ~-a,i, ~ ,A: ..... 0.,11 

l\.e 1.1 ••1111"'lo 1 ,il -

1/4Co,,w 
ZI /Z- .... C,p 
PUtU, 1916 

: Cl.~ ... , ~,.,_,, 

JUftYIU)~I CUI N,U~ t. NAAIIAT'l\l'l1 

, Rar.&JI/Uu<..-- ~• Atl!Jil!Ued~L&l>ClS..."W)IO'a! ... ~ll.ol~ •• ~,~1r-ClCllT«1')1o.-.~...s 
~ ._ ~~O'llt..aP\.111 ~ID CR$~1lul N~dO,.,. 

n-.--""" •~ "" ,.....,..,...,XUM.t.. H 1 ~t.:-OL•Qt ). ~ • .., .. &1-.'°1-1' ,. ~, 
n-.lk"'l) l,M'I' •~•J'•---~ 11~36'-'lff\'!fl'\it)SJt,,t fk1~!",r:,fl """q,.n,,.,,.,__., •• Jc,J (/1 

:"'"~;:-'==:r~~~~~;•;:.T.~'~1!~~~w'!:ww1~:,~:;:::-:•, r.-. ;i,,ru,t............... ~.#1:_,,.'-.. .nd -..,.,._,~~ .... - ~-~)011 If rt• ... flwtb'~ ..,...,. .. :-"'t:~~~~~~~-..:.----"r wr,.awr.c1!0-00WAi• ..,,. ~er,.• ""-Ill r,,,.__,_ 
OW'-1111'1: 0-U:UJI i\1 fl04,i 1, OLOIC.A'Tl(IN 

...... , .. _r,1 ..... ........ ,...,_, - ii-., pl.I• .. ~1,e,,,r---·--.. 
~••- • --~1/Wudl•- ,'0.., 9\,lllf"'WWI ~ - l t,~t .,..., ._,,..,,,,,,_,~l.,.. 4. , o-_.. 
...u.........,t,~•• f'I "'""'x,11 1, .... ~,.-..... .._ .... ,.. . .. _ _ _ o,,,,,,,:a . .. l"tlllla~ll'I 

~~";!~~=~~~~:,::..~o: =.....":...~":-==:,~o.rv4 
• . .,-o-,_, 

er.:.-ac,~-P:111~1,,1,,:JmJw 

°""''- - a., 1016 -~--- ._.,"f'C'~...,,._...JI) .. ,_ ~ --~IO -
IObt,._.-,\-..1 ~-pl·~-- IPA "'"" ,_~...i,~., ""'......,.,..• 

-·-
1,,fyP-11,..iU.-" 

llo.ii.lC!.. T.J.f\l<nt r.aNr 

~"""" U.C-.e Iii Bi" 27' £0· E 

~~~~--------- I.AC· i Na4i" '-1 ' 4 7' E 
l.&C-6 N6"" 41 ' <ol 7" l 

~ 
Ul'IZ7 
#HO 
ao,,· 
66-199' 
'9•.'5' 
5•6.U' 
tS ... , · 

4-40S•' 

.... Can- E~ L4C•7 s er so Oti" E 
l.6C· 8 'I A•' ll ' Zl " C 
1.4C·' Ha,• Z7' l•' C 
l.AC·1C It a'J" O! lZ ' E 
UCl l sso· ,1 OO'l 
LAC l l S )O" •I JO" [ 164S7 

73-UII" 
19• n.· 
l&l.'3 

Pl •I H86"••1' 47" ( 
P\. Z SBZ' 5'0" 06"E 

.... 
l\.·I IPl..11 
1'1.8Ulll 

c,,,.rueT,t,bk 
~ ~Bliba.l..!Olfll 
,;1 .,.... uioOO,) 01•os II" 
C:> •UV 66tl00 -&Q" ~ S"' 
Cl •J,IJ,6 6611M ll ' 11, .Hi" 
"-< ,-,.,. IQ6CI00 02".&!.~" 
l"\(,J I J IOSIOO 1r l ~ -4 1" 
I\.C,,.J u ,a.. MoJOO oe· cas w 
Pl(' • 4JI M 610.00 -IC"S4' 21' 
,ti.t, .. u , 610 00 1)'35, .,.. 
il' l C& JM,_. 'J'OOOO 1s• 3&· 2-&• 
"-' JOtM 2"'800' ro•.-44· 
c~ ,.~ ~oo' 711' .. 4'>~ 
a:.Ji w"' .-.o-> 1ti,~v ,r 

I 

..,__,,,Qlllilllm 
"'Ml'5'1'51'ii IIH" 
6-'0'"~13"1': ~.,-
$-l.t'181•" 1': 1!111~' 
NMt'OII u ·1: SO.M 
SIi' 1:rs1·t: lJJ .. 
NN"M WE .. ~1• 
s10· ;w1r£ &ZJOI 
S.a.J ' ZII l •"E 1-M.U 
9~•!1 1,1,• E !Na$ 
94,.1' 1&' 2'TW zstQ 
S &J'l6 ZT" W MiS.l ' 
~:-.,, • ...,1 t1 · w 13,2..l.$ 

• 
0 

• 
• 

APPROV,\L,: 

lceftlty~llh.1\olOeunw"INr<I 
ap;»"OVDd It'll, P.i,tl\ion Pt.I t or lh.s 
_ dayol ____ , 2017 

Mc.rrow County SuNeyo, 

I ctrbt)' INI I !'law, e~ oil'd 
~cr.oed D\QI P#tlllOO P!.11 ,'Ml this 

day ol , 2017 

IC9ffiy'll"l.al I._,. ,. i.aand 
ao;wovtdlhltP~Pworttu 
_ d..,-ol ____ ,011 

U.,tt/W C,a \11'1.t-;Qenl 
A~a~ 

~ '!';:, ... o:,.G<»• ss ) 
l qr\:ti,Vl.dN.-.~ • .-. 
tlCN'_..,~r~ ln htQ>• =s-4~ 
~ow Coumy 0eftt 

by 

DOC• 
RCPT 
021 f't 7 , ... 

FoundSeoori 11/4Goml!I 

Fotnt 518" l JO" A«laf 
WI PlaskCap, Pt.S 12431 

SM516"130"~WI 
PiMkc.p, Pl.S .-i-u1 

Alu11wu,,~inC L P~nl 

CALCIJLATEO POtHT • Not St1 

SECTION UNES 

"°"'"""""""' PAATTTION BOUNDARIES 

COO0I Gl.O FIKord 

5' u' I SCALE 1 • = 500 Ft. 

' 
February, 2017 

Rev. 02-2 1 17 



1THISMAPWASPREPAREOFOR ! ' "' "' "" ""'-' 
·ASSESSMENTPURPOSEONLY I I 1 11 I 1 11 I, I I I, I, I 

. ' 

.- "1"" . 
, _✓ J_ 

.- , -- . ..,;::.. 
,,.-. 

201 i: 
to ,, .. :.i:,,-c :: ,, 

i : LOT J MO!f 

?: 
j: 

__ r-•• ••·-l-~T_J··• ~45 ____ ....... ~ ~ 
'• :: ,, 
:: 

SECTION 11 T.4N. R.25E. W.M. 
MORROW COUNTY 

,. =•00' 

II 

I 
LOT 1 Jt-46 .• 

·\ 
'-'----=-:'------1· •------- </1)· ···-··--·-• ··•·· .... =-....... - -1-•....••.•.•••.. 

I 

t 
: . .J ·- ·· -____ _: 

--;.· ti 

15 1• 

12 

I " 

13 

04N25E11 

R:l!IV11ed OBJ 
07128/201• 

04N25E11 



Columbia River Enterprise Zone II Board of Directors 
December 1, 2017 
Port of Morrow Upstairs Conference Room 
Meeting Minutes 

Chair Russell called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. and welcomed those in attendance: Gary 
Neal, Tom Kligel, Lisa Mittelsdorf, Don Russell, Karen Pettigrew, Marc Rogelstad and Carla 
Mclane. The following joined by phone: Jerry Healy, Mike Gorman, Mike Grella, Hanish Patel, 
Sandy Toms, Greg Sweek and Melissa Lindsay. 

Bond Payment Orders: 
Two items came before the Board for action: Order Number CREZ 11-0006-2017 Blue Mountain 
Bond Payment and Order Number CREZ 11-0007-2017 Boardman Park and Recreation Bond 
Payment. Karen Pettigrew moved to approve the Blue Mountain Bond Payment, seconded by 
Jerry Healy. Motion passed. Sandy Toms moved to approve the Boardman Park and 
Recreation Bond Payment, seconded by Gary Neal. Motion passed. Also discussed was the 
previously approved Boardman Rural Fire Protection District Ladder Truck Payment which is 
now able to be paid. 

Attorney Agreement: 
It was shared that the CREZ II Board has back in effect an agreement with Will Carey to 
provide legal services for the balance of 2017 into August of 2018. 

VADATA Agreement - Long Term Rural Program: 
Several items within the Agreement were discussed including attorney fees and assignment. 
After discussion with VADATA it was agreed to incorporate some additional language prior to 
signature concerned with those items. Also finalized with VADATA was concern with how the 
facility would be identified within the agreement with assigned addresses, to be consistent with 
previous agreements. A request was completed clarifying how the payment is handled: submit it 
to the County Assessor and make the check payable to the CREZ II Board. VADATA will submit 
the final version which will be distributed to the Board for a final review prior to signature. With 
the discussed changes Greg Sweek moved to approve the agreement, Sandy Toms seconded. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

Next Meetings: 
A meeting to discuss funding priorities was set for Tuesday, December 12, 2017, to start at 
8:30 a.m. to be held at the Port of Morrow. The Board will be provided with written reports from 
each of the entities that have received funds. Those entities would include the Willow Creek 
Valley Economic Development Group, Boardman Community Development Association, City of 
Irrigon, Boardman Rural Fire Protection District, Morrow Education Foundation, Boardman 
Police Department and the Morrow County Health District. The funding decisions meeting will 
take place at a later date, most likely in January. Tom Kligel shared that the amount to grant is 
$2,464,577.00. 

The meeting adjourned at 9:48 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Carla Mclane, Manager 
Columbia River Enterprise Zone II 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FOR MORROW COUNTY, OREGON 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING 
AN ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE SPONSORS OF THE 
COLUMBIA RIVER ENTERPRISE ZONE 
AND AMAZON DATA SERVICES, INC. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

RESOLUTION NO. R-2020-

WHEREAS, Morrow County, the Port of Morrow and the City of Boardman are 
Sponsors of the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (II); and 

WHEREAS, the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (I) was originally established in 1998 
and the Columbia River Enterprise Zone {II) was reauthorized in 2009; and 

WHEREAS, the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (II) is governed by an 
Intergovernmental Agreement which sets forth governance and authorizes the Columbia River 
Enterprise Zone II Board to negotiate and enter into Agreements on behalf of the Sponsoring 
Entities; and 

WHEREAS, the Columbia River Enterprise Zone {II) Board has negotiated with 
Amazon Data Services, Inc. for extended abatement under the Rural Long-term Enterprise Zone 
requirements outlined in Oregon Administrative Rule Chapter 123 Division 690, that was 
approved in 2017; and 

WHEREAS, the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (II) Board has negotiated with 
Amazon Data Services, Inc. for an addendum to the original agreement that would allow for a 
reduced Annual Improvement Payment for data center facilities that do not exceed 15,000 square 
feet; and 

WHEREAS, the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (II) Board and Manager have executed 
the Agreement (Attachment A); and 

WHEREAS, Amazon Data Services, Inc., has submitted the necessary application to the 
Columbia River Enterprise Zone Manager; 

Resolution No. R-2020- Page 1 of2 



THE MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS RESOLVES AS 
FOLLOWS: 

To support the Agreement as negotiated by the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (II) 
Board with Amazon Data Services, Inc. by signing this statutorily required Resolution. 

This Resolution shall be effective immediately. 

Dated this ___ .th. day of ____ ____ ., 2020. 

Approved as to Form: 

Morrow County Counsel 

Resolution No. R-2020-

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MORROW COUNTY, OREGON 

Melissa Lindsay, Chair 

Don Russell, Commissioner 

Jim Doherty, Commissioner 

Page 2 of2 



Administrative Handling: Limited distribution 
Confidential epidemiological investigations are underway. All related activities and concerns 
must be coordinated with the IMT. All external communication with news media , partners and 

stakeholders must be coordinated with the IMT and PHO Communications. 

Oregon Public Health Division 
LPHA and Tribes COVID-19 Call Agenda 

800 NE Oregon Street • Portland, Oregon 

Incident Name: Novel Coronavirus 2019-nCoV OERS#: 2020-0178 

Date: 06/23/2020 lme: 1200 
Operational Period: 06/18/20-06/25/20 

Link for participants: 
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/5583299560419153420 
Webinar ID 782-950-755 

Call in information: 
1-888-363-4 734 
Participant code: 8189474 

Agenda 
Welcome (Sara Beaudrault) 

Situation update on COVID-19 
• Epi Updates (Lexi Zhang, Amanda Faulkner, Kelly Cogswell and Steve Rekant) 

• Testing updates 

o Oregon State Public Health Lab Updates (Sarah Humphrey) 

o Clinical Lab Coordination, Lab Supply, and Testing Updates (Rob Nickla) 

• Senior Health Advisor Update (Dawn Mautner) 

• Active Monitoring (Stefanie Murray) 

• Reopening guidance (Shira Pope and Ilana Kurtzig) 

o School reopening plans (Danna Drum) 

• Communications (Jamie Bash) 

Isolation and quarantine funding expectations (Dave Baden) 

Questions and Answers - Please use question function on webinar 

Final Comments/Adjourn 

Next Call - Friday, June 26, 2020, 1400 



Order No. OR-2020-6                                                                                                                                     Page 1 of 2 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FOR MORROW COUNTY, OREGON 

 
 

An Order Declaring a Local State of Emergency)   Order No. OR-2020-6 
 
 

WHEREAS, ORS 401.305 provides authority for the Board of County Commissioners 
for Morrow County (hereinafter, the "Board”) to act as an emergency management agency, 
including authority to establish policies and protocols for defining and directing responsibilities 
during time of emergency; and  
 

WHEREAS, ORS 401.309 authorizes the Board to declare that a state of emergency 
exists in Morrow County and to establish procedures to prepare for and carry out any activity to 
prevent, minimize, respond to or recover from an emergency; and 
 

WHEREAS, the following conditions have resulted in the need for a local state of 
emergency:  (a) Emergency orders from the Governor restricting gatherings, closing schools and 
encouraging social distancing and remote business operations; (b) COVID-19 is a highly 
contagious and novel Coronavirus for which there is no vaccine, and the public is at risk for 
contracting the disease; (c) Oregon announced its first presumptive case of COVID-19 on 
February 28, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, the presence of COVID-19 constitutes a high potential threat to public 

health, to wit, infectious Coronavirus (COVID-19) which is known to spread person-to-person 
through coughing, sneezing and close personal contact; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 8, 2020, Governor Kate Brown signed Executive Order No. 20-
03, declaring a statewide emergency due to COVID-19 outbreak in Oregon; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the COVID-19 

outbreak as a pandemic; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 18, 2020, the Morrow County Board of Commissioners declared a 

COVID-19 emergency; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COVID-19 Morrow County Command Team agreed that a continued 

emergency declaration is necessary based upon continued spread of COVID-19 in Morrow 
County and the need for the County to quickly respond to any issues raised by the continued 
spread of COVID-19 in Morrow County; now therefore, 
 
THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF MORROW COUNTY, OREGON, 
hereby ORDERS as follows: 
 

Section 1.  Pursuant to ORS 401.309, the Board of Commissioners for Morrow 
County formally declares a state of emergency for Morrow County, 
effective on this 24th day of June 2020 and continuing for 180 days from 
the date of this Order, unless extended or terminated earlier by the Board 
of Commissioners. 



Order No. OR-2020-6                                                                                                                                     Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Section 2.  Upon this declaration of a state of emergency, the Board of 

Commissioners (and/or designees) shall be authorized to take and/or direct 
such actions and issue such orders as are determined to be necessary to 
protect the public and property and to efficiently conduct activities that 
minimize or mitigate the effect of the emergency as authorized by ORS. 

 
Section 3.  The County Commissioners, County Administrator, Local Public Health 

Administrator and Emergency Manager shall take all necessary steps 
authorized by law to coordinate response and recovery from this 
emergency including, but not limited to, coordinating with the State of 
Oregon and the federal government in order to qualify Morrow County for 
all available state and federal emergency assistance, not limited to use of 
shared resources, assistance from state and federal agencies, and financial 
assistance and reimbursements. 

 
Section 4.  Emergency procurements of goods and services are authorized pursuant to 

ORS 279B.080, ORS 279C.335(6), ORS 279.380(4), and Morrow County 
contracting rules. 

 
Section 5.  With regard to county employees, the Board of Commissioners may 

authorize modification(s) to relevant personnel leave, payroll processes, 
and workplace requirements/designations as deemed necessary by the 
Board of Commissioners to address impacts associated with COVID-19. 

 
Section 6. The scope of this declaration is in support of the COVID-19 public health 

response being overseen and directed by the State of Oregon; the residents 
of Morrow County are encouraged to follow standard hygiene protocols 
and stay at home when ill, but otherwise, where reasonable and safe, go on 
with daily life. 

 
Section 7. This Order is effective upon signing. 

 
Adopted this 24th day of June 2020 

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
    Melissa Lindsay, Chair 

 
 

_____________________________________ 
Don Russell, Commissioner 

 
         

 _____________________________________ 
       Jim Doherty, Commissioner 



Item #6a 

ROAD REPORT JUNE 2020 

RAIN STORM EVENTS: Crew members continue to make repairs to roadways, shoulders, ditches, and culverts 

that were damaged by recent rain storm events. 

WIND STORM EVENT: Crew members responded to blown down trees in the Boardman and Irrigon areas. Trees 

and limbs were cut up and hauled off that fell from private property onto the county right of ways, and trees and limbs 

that fell from our right of way onto private property. Plans are in the works to deal with trees in the county right of way 

that pose a threat to private property and public safety. 

ELLA IONE-BOARDMAN INTERSECTION: Paving is complete. We are currently working on placing shoulder 

rock in that area. 

LEXINGTON YARD: The sand/ equipment shed is under construction. The contractor is doing a good job at staying 

on schedule and keeping the area safe. The building should be complete sometime in July. 

SPRING BLADING: Spring blading continues around the county. 

HOMESTEAD LN: Shoulder rock has been placed following the paving project. 

MCNAB LN: Contract paving has started on McNab from hwy 74 to the Gilliam County Line. Paving and stripping will 

be complete by June 25. 

ROAD SIGN REPAIR: Crew members continue making sign repairs around the county as needed. 

POTHOLE PATCHING: Various potholes have been repaired on county roads. 

PERMITS: Following are permits approved during the month of June. 

OPY 

OPZ 

OQA 

OQB 

559 

608 

608 

908 

Homestead Lane Centurylink Utility 2" telephone conduit 06/10/2020 06/11/2020 

Upper Rhea Creek Road {Keene Brdg.) Centurylink Utility 1" Telephone conduit 06/10/2020 06/11/2020 

Upper Rhea Creek Road {Snyder Brdg.) Centurylink Utility 1.5" Telephone conduit 06/10/2020 06/11/2020 

Eighth Road West Umatilla Electric Co-Op Utility 120/240 line 06/15/2020 06/16/2020 



KATE BROWN 
GOVERNOR 

June 18, 2020 

Gina Nikkel 
Executive Director 
Association of Oregon Counties 

Mike Cully 
Executive Director 
League of Oregon Cities 

Frank Stratton 
Executive Director 
Special Districts Association of Oregon 

Gina, Mike, and Frank: 

Correspondence 

Thank you for your memo dated June 5, 2020, proposing how to expend the remaining funds from the 
Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) that have been allocated to your three entities. We appreciate the 
thoughtfulness that has gone into the proposal and would like to move forward with the general 
premise requested but with some logistical modifications. 

As you are aware, the action taken by the Emergency Board to allocate these funds indicates the funds 
are to be distributed on a reimbursement model. In addition, through the first round of reimbursement 
funding that is currently in process, contracts are being established with each entity in order to meet the 
requirements within the Treasury guidelines, both around reimbursement and for federal audit 
purposes. 

We agree with the major points in your memo dated June 5, 2020, and understand local governments 
need both clarity on which expenditures will be allowable expenses and certainty as to how much each 
local government will receive under this program. In particular, we agree economic supports will be an 
allowable expense for cities and counties under the second round distribution. We also agree a fixed 
dollar amount available to each city and county will allow for better financial planning and effectiveness. 

Of the original $200 million authorized by the Emergency Board, approximately $46.1 million will be 
distributed in Round 1 to cities, counties, and special districts. This leaves $153.9 to be distributed in 
Round 2. Based on the formula outlined in your memo, $20 million will be set aside to reimburse special 
districts for cost increases associated with the COVID-19 response, but excluding any reimbursement for 
economic assistance programs. It has come to our attention that there are outliers who fit into the 
SDAO statutory construct and would ask that a proposal around eligibility and distribution be brought 
forward for our consideration prior to any additional funds being distributed to special districts. In 
addition, we would appreciate additional clarity on how to distribute these funds if total reimbursement 
requests exceed the allocated $20 million. 

254 STATE CAPITOL, SALEM OR 97301 ·4047 (503) 378-311 1 FAX (503) 378-6827 
WWW.OREGON.GOV 



June 18, 2020 
Page 2 

This leaves about $133.9 million to be distributed between cities and counties. Based on your memo, 
cities will receive 40 percent ($53.6 million) and counties will receive 60 percent ($80.3 million). The 
$53.6 million allocation to cities would be further allocated among cities based on their relative 
population, with a minimum $25,000 allocated to each city with a population less than 750 and a 
minimum $50,000 allocated to each city with a population greater than 750. Similarly, the $80.3 million 
allocation to counties would be allocated among cities based on their relative population, with a 
minimum $250,000 allocated to each county. We agree with this allocation model, and are comfortable 
using this model to allocate resources in Round 2. We would also like to encourage any small cities or 
counties to work with us in the event that they are unable to operate under a reimbursement model. 

In October or early November, we should collectively evaluate the spending allocations. If any local 
jurisdiction thinks it may not be able to fully spend its aiiocation, it might be worth reallocating the 
unspent funds to other jurisdictions that could use the resources. 

Given that the documentation presented to the Emergency Board and the certificate documenting the 
Emergency Board action refer to this program as reimbursing local governments for eligible expenses, 
we think the program needs to continue on a reimbursement based approach. We can work with each 
city and county to have certainty as to how much it is eligible to receive and expenses would be 
distributed on a reimbursable basis. 

The Emergency Board and the certificate documenting the Emergency Board action also is very clear 
that only local governments outside the boundaries of Multnomah and \Nashington counties are eligible 
for reimbursement. We do not see a path around this second issue without further legislative action. 

We are hopeful that this approach will allow local governments to balance the needs of your 
communities with the current available funds and the requirements laid out by the Emergency Board 
action. 

Thank you, 

Leah Horner 
Regional Solutions Director 
Jobs & Economy Policy Advisory 
Interim Transportation Policy Advisor 

Cc: Senators Jeff Golden and Bill Hansell 
Representatives Karin Power and Rick Lewis 

254 STATE CAPITOL, SALEM OR 97301-4047 (503) 378-31 1 1 FAX (503) 378-6827 
WWW.OREGON.GOV 



JACKSON COUNTY 
Oregon 

June 11, 2020 

Governor Kate Brown 
900 Court St NE Suite 254 
Salem OR 97301 

Dear Governor Brown: 

Board of Commissioners 

Rick Dyer 
Bob Strosser 
Colleen Roberts 
Fax: 

(541)774-6118 
(541) 774-6119 
(541) 774-6117 
(541) 774-6705 

10 South Oakdale, Room 214 
Medford, Oregon 9750 I 

Part of the Phase II Reopening Guidance for recreational sports includes the prohibition of any sport that 
involves participants coming into bodily contact. It has also been stated that Phase II will be in effect until a 
reliable treatment or vaccine is available. As we are sure you are aware, this creates the untenable situation of 
tens of thousands of Oregon youths unable to pursue their chosen athletic endeavors indefinitely. There is no 
question that this situation will lead to numerous adverse effects to our children's physical and mental health, 
attendance and performance in school, personal and professional growth, and too many more negative 
consequences to mention. It will also create far reaching ripple effects that will be felt in Oregon for many 
years. With the world in the state it is in currently, it is more imperative than ever to ensure our kids are able to 
be involved in these positive and constructive activities. 

It was also reported that there will be exceptions made for college and pro sports teams to play. This not only 
acknowledges the fact that these activities can be engaged in safely, it creates an unacceptable disparity that 
needs to be rectified. Our kid~ need to be represented fairly in this decision, and a plan to allow them to engage 
in their activities needs to be developed and adopted. There are thousands of" concerned parents, teachers, 
coaches, athletes, and other citizens ready to be a part of that solution. We need swift and decisive action on 
this immediately so our kids can begin to engage in their fall sports programs without unnecessary delays. 

Thank you for your attention and timely action. 

Sincerely, 

JACKSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Colleen Roberts, Chair · 

Ri~4~r---
.&{r/1-/~:_, 
Bob Strosser,~6ner 

RD:lf 

l:\BcC\Correspondence\Ccrrespcndence_2020\2020_06_ 11 _Spcrts_Prchibltlcn_Frcm_Dyer.dccx 



PUBLIC NOTICE Gi~}~~~ 
Wheatridge Renewable Energy Facility I 

Request for Comments on Request to Transfer Site Certificate 
and Notice of Transfer Hearing 

Summary: 
Dat e Not ice Issued : June 15, 2020 

Request: Amend site certificate to authorize 
transfer of site certificate ownership 

Facil ity Location : Morrow County 

Anticipated Transfer Hearing:* 
Date: August 20, 2020 
Time: 5:30 p.m. 
Location: Energy Facility Siting Council Meeting 

*Transfer hearing details will be determined at 
least 20 days prior to the hearing date. Please visit' 
the Department's project webpage or signup to 
receive electronic notification of Council meeting 
agendas (see More Information section below) 
before July 30, 2020 to ensure you receive the 
transfer hearing date, time and location 
information 

Anticipated Dead line for Comments: August 20, 
2020 (5 p.m. or close of Transfer Hearing) 

Introduction: The Oregon Department of Energy 
(ODOE), staff to the Energy Facility Siting Council, 
received a Request for Amendment to Transfer 
(RFAl) the Wheatridge Renewable Energy Facility I 
(WREFI) site certificate from certificate holder, 
Wheatridge Wind Energy, LLC, to a new certificate 
holder, Portland General Electric. 

Description of the Facility: WREFI is a 100 
megawatt (MW) wind energy generation facility, 
currently under construction, originally approved 
as part of the 650 MW Wheatridge Wind Energy 
Facility. Once operational, the facility will include 
40 wind turbines; and, related or supporting 
facilities including two meteorological towers, one 
substation, up to 20 MW of battery storage, 
electrical collection system, access roads, 
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System, 
and temporary laydown areas. 

Facility Location: The WREFI site boundary is 
located within Morrow County, south of Interstate 
84 and northeast of Lexington. A map of the facility 
site boundary is included in this notice. For 
detailed maps, please visit our online mapping tool 
at https://tinyurl .com/EFSCmap. 

Site Certificate Transfer Process: To approve a 
Request for Amendment to Transfer, EFSC must 
find that the proposed new certificate holder, 
Portland General Electric, complies with the 
Council's Organizational Expertise (OAR 345-022-
0010) and Retirement and Financial Assurance 
(OAR 345-022-0050) standards. EFSC must also find 
that Portland General Electric is or will be lawfully 
entitled to possession or control of the site or 
facility prior to approval of the transfer. 

ODOE will provide recommended findings of facts 
regarding compliance with the above standards, 
including an evaluation of any comments received 
prior to the transfer hearing, in a staff report to 
Council at least 20 days prior to the transfer 
hearing. The staff report, to include a draft Final 
Order, will be available on the Council's webpage 
and the Department's project webpage. 

Prior to Council's review of the draft Final Order, 
Council will hold a transfer hearing. The transfer 
hearing is not a contested case hearing. At the 
conclusion of the transfer hearing, the Council will 
review the draft Final Order and take action to 
either approve or deny the final order; and, will 
either issue or deny issuance of an amended site 
certificate. 

Transfer Hearing and Comment Period: A Transfer 
Hearing is anticipated to be held at 5:30 p.m. on 
Thursday, August 20, 2020 during the Council's 
regularly scheduled meeting but could occur at a 
later date; WebEx details and physical address, if 
in-person option is available, will be provided via 
the Department's project webpage at least 20 days 
prior to the transfer hearing and will also be 
noticed via Council agenda. 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Oregon Department of Energy, Wheatridge Renewable Energy Facility I Amend. 1, June 15, 2020 Page 1 



Written comments are due no later than the close 
of the Transfer Hearing. Department staff will be 
available to answer questions related to the EFSC 
transfer process and the facility. 

Written or oral comments may be submitted prior 
to the transfer hearing (anticipated to be August 
20, 2020, 5:30 p.m.) by mail, e-mail, hand-delivery 
or fax. Please send comments to: 

Sarah Esterson, Senior Siting Analyst 
Oregon Department of Energy 
550 Capitol Street NE 
Salem, OR 97301 
E-mail: sarah.esterson@oregon.gov 
Phone: 503-385-6128 

Written or oral comments may also be provided at 
the transfer hearing. The Council will not accept 
comments on Request for Amendment to Transfer 
after the close of the record of the transfer 
hearing. 

Receipt of this Notice: Please note that you may 
be receiving this notice for multiple reasons: 

1. You own property within or adjacent to 
(within 500 feet) the property on which the 
facility is located. You will automatically 
receive all future notices on this facility. 

2. You have requested to receive paper 
notices on the Wheatridge Wind Energy 
Facility or Wheatridge Renewable Energy 
Facility I. If you wish to be removed from 
these mailing lists, please contact Sarah 
Esterson. 

3. You have previously signed up via 
·GovDelivery/ClickDimensions or by 
contacting ODOE to receive notices related 
to Wheatridge Wind Energy Facility, 
Wheatridge Renewable Energy Facility I or 
all EFSC project-related notices. You will 
automatically receive all future notices per 
your request, unless you unsubscribe via 
ClickDimensions or by contacting ODOE. 

More Information 
Please contact Sarah Esterson, Senior Siting 
Analyst, at the listed e-mail address, phone 
number, or mailing address. More information 
about the facility and updates on the review 
process is available using any of the options below. 

1) ODOE's webpage 
More details on Wheatridge Renewable Energy 
Facility I, including the Request for 
Amendment to Transfer are available online on 
at: https://www.oregon.gov/energy/facillties
safety/ facilities/Pages/WREF-l.aspx 

Additional resources to help you participate in 
the state siting process can be found at: 
http://www.oregon.gov/energy/facilities-
saf ety/f acil ities/pages/ defau It.as px 

2) Updates by e-mail 
Subscribe to ClickDimensions for e-mail 
updates on WREFI, other energy facilities 
under EFSC jurisdiction, or Council meetings. 
ClickDimensions is an automated e-mail system 
that allows interested members of the public 
to manage subscriptions to information 
received about ODOE projects and events. For 
more information, please visit: 
https://tinyurl.com/ODOE-EFSC. 

3) In hardcopy 
Copies of Request for Amendment to Transfer 
are available for public inspection at: 

Oregon Department of Energy 
550 Capitol Street NE 
Salem, OR 97301 

Please contact Sarah Esterson if you wish to 
arrange a time to inspect the request to 
transfer. 

Accessibility information: The Oregon Department 
of Energy is committed to accommodating people 
with disabilities. If you require any special physical 
or language accommodations, or need information 
in an alternate format, please contact Michiko 
Mata at 503-378-3895, toll-free in Oregon at 800-
221-8035, or email to michiko.mata@oregon.gov 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Oregon Department of Energy, Wheatridge Renewable Energy Facility I Amend. 1, June 15, 2020 Page 2 



Figure 1: Wheatridge Renewable Energy Facility 1 

~ 1 :40.000 WGS 1914 UTII Zone 11N ... .. ... 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Oregon Department of Energy, Wheatridge Renewable Energy Facility Amend. 1, June 15, 2020 

Whemidge "--hie 
Energy Fadlly I 

Figure 1.1 
Site Bounday 

IICA:AOW COUMTY~ 0A 

\Vlloatlklpc, Ra,,o-.,il!llo 
Et,o,g:,, FooMiy I Soto B<>unaa,y 

S110 Bou~aa,y OW<iap ,,.,.., 
!:zz;:J Wlluln<l',lo Ror,owablo Energy 

Faetllly Ir 

- State tt,gr,w;ry 

-loo:,IRoaa 

D County Bounao,y 

Page 3 


	1 Agenda
	2 Trucking Contract - Andy Ashbeck Trucking
	3 Assistant Watermaster IGA
	4 10th Am. to OHA IGA #159824 Public Health Svcs
	5 13th Am. to OHA IGA #159824 Public Health Svcs
	6 Helion Software Contract
	7 Coronavirus Relief Fund Agreement #1025
	8 Order Authorizing Treasurer to Invest Funds
	9 Mental Health Advisory Board Appointments
	10 Insurance Renewals
	11 Equity Fund Loan Review Committee
	12 Resolution Discussion, 1st Addendum to 2017 Vadata EZ Agmt.
	13 Order #OR-2020-6 Extending COVID-19 Emergency Dates
	14 Road Report
	15 Correspondence



